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STRATEGIC REPORT | OVERYIEW

WHO WE ARE

As one of the largest environmental infrastructure groups
In the UK, we are at the top end of the FTSE 250

We have assets of around £5 7 billion and a workforce of
over 4,800 people

OUR BUSINESSES
WATER AND WASTEWATER

SOUTH WEST WATER

Prowiding water and wastewater services to a population of ¢ { 7 million in
Comwall, Devon and parts of Dorset and Semerset South West Water was
awarded enhanced status for its 2015-2020 Business Plan, and has the highest
potential returns in the water sector

BOURNEMOUTH WATER

Providing water services tc a population of ¢ 0 5 million in areas of Dorset,
Hampshire and Wiltshire Bournemotth Water was acquired in April 2015
and has been substantially integrated with South West Water to deliver
synergies and savings

WASTE RECYCLING AND RECOVERY

VIRIDOR

A leading UK recycling, energy recovery and waste management company,
providing services to more than 50 local authorrties and major corporate
clients as well as over 32,000 customers across the UK

OUR VISION

To be a pre-eminent developer, manager and cperator of environmental
infrastructure and related services

= To prowvide first class services to our customers
» To achieve positive outcomes for the communrties in which we operate

* To provide sustainable value for our shareholders

OUR MISSION

To enable and encourage the people and businesses we serve to be
more sustainable

* To adopt sustainable practices in our management of the environment

* Toinvest in new and innovative technologies for the benefit of our businesses
and stakeholders

OUR STRATEGY

* To innovate, drive efficiencies and identify opportunities for growth

* To provide high quality, reliable services and a safe working environment for
our people and the communities we serve

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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OVERVIEW GROUP PERFORMANCE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STRONG FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE
BENEFITING CUSTOMERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS

GROWTH AT VIRIDOR:
ENERGY RECOVERY
ACTIVITIES
PERFORMING WELL

STRONG START
TO Ké (2015-2020):
OUTPERFORMING
REGULATORY
CONTRACT

SECTOR-LEADING
DIVIDEND POLICY:
+4% GROWTH OVER RPI
YEAR ON YEAR TO 2020

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016 3
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GROUP FINANCIAL
FHIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS OF
THE YEAR

Strong start to the new regulatory period for the
water business delivering a RoRE of I 7%

’ ° m -0.4% « Group resulis benefiting from growth
— #£90 milhon of EBITDA delivered from Energy

Recovery Faciities (ERF<) in 2015/16, up 166%

ADJ USTED EBITDA®" pefore non-underlying riems ERFs on track tc deliver targeted ¢ £100 million
of EBITDAN in 2016/17 despite pressure

on power prices and the removal of Levy
Exemption Certificates (LECs)

— Bournemouth Water acquired on 15 April
£ 5 0 8 4 m o 2015, with key aspects of the integration with
L +9.1% South West Water delivered

- licence and trade and assets merged

PROFIT BEFORE TAX before non-underlying tems - shared services combined

- debt transferred and security removed

= Group efficiency initiatives underway, expected to

£ 2 I I 3 deliver future cost savings of ¢ £11 millen pa
M +0.3%

(statutory basis £206.3m) STRATEGY IN ACTION

Dividend increased by 5 6% in line with

sector-leading pohcy of 4% year-on-year growth
DIVIDEND o RP

« Group remans well funded with efficient
long-term finanang

+ Continued focus on sustainable investment and

activities that make a positive impact on
® p +5.6% comrmunities and the environment

+ Implementing )improverments in recychng activities

SHAREHOLDER PROFITS® (¢m)

Profit before tax and non-underlying items 211.3
Non-underlying items impacung profit before tax (5.0)
Tax charge (38.0)
Profit attributable to perpetual capital holders (16 2)
Profit after tax attributable to shareholders 152.1

{1) Earnings before interest tax deprecration amertisation and non underlying iterns (EBITCA)
(Adjusted EBITDA ncludes IFRIC |2 interest recevable and share of joint venture EBITDA —
see notes 8 and 20 1o the financial statements)

{2) Reconailiation of pn ofit befor & tax and non-underlying ems to profit after tax attributable
1o shareholders

(3) Return on regulated equity See page 28 for further detalls

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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OVERVIEW GROUP PERFORMANCE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ASSETS INVESTMENT IN KEY CASH AND COMMITTE
INFRASTRUCTURE D

FACILITIES TO FUND
CAPITAL PROGRAMME

£1.7bn

£5.7bn  £317m

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS®"

REVENUE (£m) DIVIDEND PER SHARE (pence)
W 1,233 | 20101/12 26 52
2012413 1,201 2 2012/13 28 46
2013714 1,321 2 2013/14 3031
201415 1,3572 201415 31 80
2015116 -04% |1,352.3 2015/16 +5 6% 33.58

ADJUSTED EBITDA® pefore non-underlying items (£m) INTEREST RATE ON ANNUAL NET DEBT (%)

2011412 4308 20011112 412
2012413 433 0 201213 A0
2013/14 456 9 2013/14 ER:]
2014/15 465 9 2014/15 34
2015716 +9 1% 5084 2015/16 3.3

PROFIT BEFORE TAX before non-underlyng iems (¢my ~ REGULATORY CAPITAL YALUE a5 at 31 March (£m)

2011/12 2005 2012 2,827
2012/13 1900 2013 2,916
2013/14 2073 2014 2,959
2014115 2107 2015 2,928
2015/16 +03% 2113 2016 +76% 3,150

EARNINGS PER SHARE

before non-undertying tems and deferred tax (pence) GROUP ASSETS asat 3) March (£bn)
2011412 473 2012 43
2012413 40 3 2003 48
2013/14 426 2014 50
2014/15 398 2015 54
2015/16 -0 8% 39.5( 2016 +5 6% 5.7

(1) These are the key performance mdicators (KPIs) we use 10 measure the performance of our businesses as
descnbed in our business model on page (0

(2) Earmings before interest tax depreciation amortisation and non-underiying items (EBITDA) (Adjusted
EBITDA ncludes IFRIC |2 interest recevable and share of joint venture EBITOA)

(3) Basic earnings per share {statutory basis) 37 0p

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016 5




6

STRATEGIC REPORT | OVERVIEW

GROUP OPERATIONAL

HIGHLIGHTS

TOTAL RENEWABLE ENERGY GENERATION

1,496GWh

DRINKING WATER QUALITY

(mean zonal compliance)

SOUTH WEST WATER BOURNEMOUTH WATER

99.97% 100%

BATHING WATER COMPLIANCE(")

(‘sufficient quality’ or higher)

97.2%

TOTAL WASTE MATERIAL INPUTS

7.8 million tonnes

ERF AVAILABILITY RECYCLING VOLUMES

TRADED (mifhon tonnes)

85% 1.8

RIDDOR INCIDENCE RATE
{per 100,000 employees)

822

PENNCN GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

HIGHLIGHTS OF
THE YEAR

High guality drinking water maintained (mean zonal
compliance was 99 97% for South West Water and
100% for Bournemouth Water)

= No water restrictions for customers and leakage
targets met

+ Increase In customer service score in the
water business

* 97% of bathing waters in the South West
Water region meeting tougher new bathing
water standards

+ Two-thirds of ERF portfolio now on Ine

+ Recyding and Resources £0 6 million (1%) ahead
of 2014/15 EBITDA desprte ongoing challenging
commaodity prices and market conditions

STRATEGY IN ACTION

* Group-wide focus on health and safety to drive
cultural and behavioural change

* Investment in new technologies and innovation
helping to improve performance in water business

« Construction underway on new £60 million
drinking water treatment works for the Plymouth
area —first of ts kind in the UK

+ Merger of South West Water and Bournemouth
Water bringing efficiency benefits and sharing of
best practice

+  New company, Pennon Water Services, established
as part of our non-household retal strategy

+ Long-term revenue streams for ERFs helping
secure consistent risk profile

+ Input, Throughput and Qutput Optimisation
(ITOO) programme continuing to deliver
further efficencies and financal benefits in
waste management

+ New operating model implemented at Vindor
to provide a platform for growth in line with
business strategy

(

-

MNew standards introduced in 2015 under the EU s revised Bathing
Water Directive The classifications are poor quality  sufficient
qualty (the new mimimum standard) good quality and excellent
quahty (the new guideline standard) Prior years not restated




\ J X J J
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS®

DRINKING WATER QUALITY TOTAL WASTE MATERIAL INPUTS

mean zonal comphance (%) (millon tonnes)
2012 9999 201112 31 o7 38 76
013 9997 201213 27 07 4 75
2014 99 98 2013714 27 07 43 77
2015 99 96 2014115 25 12 iB 75
2016 South West Water 9997  1w01516 20 21 17 7.8
2016 Bournemouth Water 100.00 Landfill ERFs Recycling and other

CUSTOMER SERVICE :ervice incentive mechanism (%) RECYCLING YOLUMES TRADED (mulkon tonnes)

2011412 66 9 2001412 18
2012113 705 201213 9
2013714 739 2013/14 18
201418 748 2014415 17
2015/16 South West Water 78.6 2018/16  Vindor +73% 1.8
2015/16 Bournemouth Water 86.29
BATHING WATER COMPLIANCE %) ERF INPUT CAPACITY"™ milien tonnes)
2083 293 2011412 08
2013 910 2012113 08
2004 993 2013714 08
2014 863 2014/15 I 4
2015  South West Water 97.2@ 201816 Vindor +79% 2.5
2015  South West Water 70.3@

EU muinimum standard Guidebne standard

TOTAL RENEWABLE ENERGY

RIDDOR INCIDENTS® GENERATION Gwn)
0N 59 004102 775
W12 52 201213 839
2013 40 201314 795
2014 35 2014/15 949
2015 Pennon Group +20% 42  2015/16 Pennon Group +57 6% 1,496

(1) These are the key performance indicators (KPls) we use to measure the performance {4) Processing capacty available in the year including jont ventures

of our businesses as described in our business mede!l on page 10 {5) Incidents invalving employees under the Reporting of Injuries Diseases and
(2) See footnote on previous page Dangerous Occurrences Regulations Change in RIDDOR reporung cnteria from
(3) Bournemouth Water s service incentive mechanism (SIM) score for 2014/15 was 856 2012 See page 48 for details of each company s performance

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016 7
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

In my first annual statement to you as
Chairman of Pennon Group, | am pleased to
report another year of strong performance
and solid financal results, which translate
directly to shareholder value

Foliowing my appointment as Charman in August 2015, | took
time to familianse myself with the Group’s operations and

the strengths of the business and concluded that a strong
platform exists upen which we can further build to achieve a
successful future It was clear to me that Penncn was ready to
move to the next phase, South West Water had embarked on
a new five-year tegulatery cycle whilst working towards the

full iIntegration of Bournemouth Waters business acquired in
April 2015, and Vindor was progressing from ‘construction’ to
‘operation’, with eight Energy Recovery Facilities (ERFs) cperating
successfully and the construction of three more progressing well
In addition, | found talented and committed people threughout
the organisation, with a very strong executive leadership team
in place The autumn of 2015 was therefore a natural tme for
reflection in terms of the Group s strategic priorities

Whilst this strategic review has not given rise to a ‘new Group
strategy, it has led to differences of nuance and focus In particular
we Identified that with the maturity of Virndar's business, as it
moves away from waste disposal to landfill greater commonality
exists between the Group’s businesses We also recognised that
we were able to move towards a mot e homogeneous 1isk profile
across the two businesses, with Pennon’s investment proposition
now premised on an increased proportion of contracted
long-term, index-linked revenues cver a long-lived asset base

As part of the strategic review, the Board deaded to create a new
rale of Group Chief Executive Officer, a position to which Chris
Loughlin (who was Chief Executive of South West Water at the
time) was appointed with effect from | January 2016 Chris has
been tasked with driving forward our strategy. which will involve
looking across the business at how we can share best practice,
deliver synergies and capitalise on emerging opportunities Both
Viridor and South West Water have a breadth and depth of
experience In managing large asset bases and in using engineering
excellence, technology and innovation to deliver efficiency

and effectiveness By sharing knowledge across the Group and
harnessing our combined skills we can provide even better service
to our wide customer base of local authorities, major corperate
clients and household customers throughout the UK By driving
integration across the Group we will also be able to extract
tangble efficencies and synergies

PENNON GRCOUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

HEALTH AND SAFETY

| have been impressed by the level of commitment of the Board
and the senior management teams to the health safety and
wellbeing of cur people As reported last year, tragically there was
an inadent i June 2015 nvaling a Vindor vehicle, which resulted
in the death of a Vindor employee The Group continues to work
with the authorities In relation to this incident

Reflecting the Board's desire for a consistent and effective
Group-wide approach, we have created a new role of director
of Safety, Health, Environment, Quality and Sustanability
(SHEQS), and recrutrment 1s underway The Group has strategic
improvernent plans in place and continues te invest in
programmes and inigatives to further embed the change in
culture and atttudes necessary to achieve its target of zero
accidents and incidents

SUSTAINABILITY

Ervironmental, social and governance (ESG} matters are integral
to our strategy and business model The Sustamabiity Cormmittee
of the Board continues to oversee our performance in maintaining
a responsible approach to business operations The Group's
notable achievernents incude another year of tigh quality drinking
water, benefits to local economues as a direct result of our
nvestment In energy recovery Infrastructure strong performance
against new EU bathing water standards prehminary work on

a new water treatrnent works with cutting edge technology

for the Plymouth area, investment in further customer service
improvements, further workto reduce the risk of sewer flooding,
recognition for our apprenticeship programmes and acclaimed
education programmes and community engagement activities
across the Group

Further information on the Group's approach to sustainability 1s
provided throughout the strategic report and in the Sustainability
Committee report for the year on pages 70to 73

DIVIDEND

| am pleased to report that the Board i1s recommending a final
dnadend per share of 23 |2p, representing a 6 0% increase on
last year's final dmdend Thiswill tesult in a total dividend for
the year of 33 58p, an increase of 5 6%, which 1s in ine with our
dvidend policy of year-on-year growth of 4% above RPI nflation
to 2019/20 and reflects the Board's confidence in the future
financial performance of the Group We will agan be offering a
scrip dividend alternative to shareholders in respect of the final
dwvidend for which the timetable 15 given on page 173
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NEW GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

On my appointment, | was pleased to see that a strong
commitment to the three essentizl pillars of a successful board —
strong financial control, sound admmistration and good gover nance
- was In evidence in the boardroom To ensure we are well placed
to continue to delver sclid growth and effiaency, | reviewed

our Board structures, in consultation with the Non-executive
Directors, and identified opportuntties for sttearnlining the Group's
governance framework and decision-making processes Changes
were Implemented after agreement with Ofwat in respect of South
West Water and Bournemouth Water governance arrangements
This involved simplifying the subsidiary board structure to achieve
mare efficient governance whilst preserving the regulatory ring
fence around the water and wastewater business Further details
are provided in the governance report on page 62

OTHER BOARD DEVELOPMENTS

Ken Harvey, our long-serving and distinguished Chairman of 18
years, retired at last year's AGM The success of Pennon Group
today 1s 1n no small measure due to his professionalt leadership
and integrity Our Senior Independent Director Gerard Connell,
also stepped down at the AGM and we acknowledge the
significant contribution he made to our Board during his 12 years
of service We also wish both a happy retirement | am pleased
to report that Gill Rider has been appointed as our new Senior
Independent Director

As reported above, Chris Loughlin was appointed to the new
role of Group Chief Executive Officer on | January 2016 Puor to
that, Chris served as an Executive Director of Pennon Group Ple
in his capaaty as Chief Executive of South West Water Stephen
Bird was promoted to the position of Managing Director of South
West Water with effect from the same date Asat | Apnl 2016
Susan Davy's title changed from Group Director of Finance to
Chief Finanaial Officer

Changes to the governance structure, which were implemented on
| April 2016 have seen our existing independent Non-executive
Directors, Martin Angle, Neil Cooper and Gill Rider; additionally
being appointed as non-executive directors of South West Water
Limited | continue to serve as chairman of South West Water,

an office to which | was appointed on 31 July 2015 In addruon,

the Board has been pleased to welcome three non-executive
directors of South West Water, Martin Hagen, Steve Johnson

and Lord Matthew Taylor, to participate in plenary sessions of the
Pennon Group Board and its Committees Steve Johnson resigned
subsequent to the year end due to taking up another appointrment

Ken Woodier, our Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
decided to retire In the year He has served the Board in a diligent
professional and committed way for some 18 years We thank

him and wash him well in the future He is succeeded by Helen
Barrett-Hague from Alent Plc and we welcome her to Pennon

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVERSITY

The Board continues to promote equality and diversity across the
Group in all areas, ncluding gender and ethnicity | am pleased to

say we exceeded our target of 25% female representation on the
Board by 2015

We remain committed to ensuring our Board pursues a
progressive diversity agenda and you will find further details in
our Nomination Committee report on page 74

MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

The success of any caompany 15 down to the quality of its
leadership, nat just in the boardroom, but throughout the
organisation The strong and effective leadership we have

along with well-trained and skilled personnel, including our
award-winning apprenticeship schemes, underpin the success of
Pennon Group

May | take this cpportunity to express my thanks and that of
our Board to all our employees who make the difference to our
perfermance and to the service we render to our communities
every day

LOCKING TC THE FUTURE

With its refreshed strategy Penncn will continue to capitalise on
strategic opportunities whilst developing our people protecting
the ervironment, helping the communities in which we operate
and enhancing shareholder value We have built a solid foundation
for the future

Sir Jobn Parker
Chairman
Pennon Group Plc
24 May 2016

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model 1s the framework through which we deliver our strategy and
shareholder value to innovate, drive efficencies and identify opportunities for growth,
and to provide high qualrty, reliable services and a safe working environment for our
people and the communities we serve

PENNON GROUP
STRONG GOVERNANCE

\ /
/ N N
WATER AND WASTE RECYCLING
WASTEWATER AND RECOVERY
/ N

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

We create value for our shareholders by developing our
environmental infrastructure businesses and by efficient
financing and strong management of the Group as a whole

Our commitment to sustainable shareholder returns is
reflected through our dividend policy of year-on-year
growth of 4% above RPIl inflation to 2019/20, meaning a
policy for 10 consecutive years (2010-2020) of 4% real
dividend growth.

RISK FINANCIAL CUS;SSERS OUR OUR
MANAGEMENT [ PERFORMANCE [ (. imirigs || ENVIRONMENT PEOPLE
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GOVERNANCE

HOW WE MANAGE OUR BUSINESSES TO CREATE VALUE

Ve create shareholder value by focusing on six core areas, underpinned by our
commitment to creating and maintaining a sustainable business

STRONG
GOVERNANCE

RISK
MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

CUSTOMERS
AND
COMMUNITIES

OUR
ENVIRONMENT

OUR
PEOPLE

Pennon provides oversight and support to 1ts businesses through a strong governance framework which includes robust
processes for decision-making a2nd oversight of the Group's performance

More information on gavernance can be found on pages 58 to 76

Qur operaung framework includes a comprehensive and fully embedded risk management process which assists us in
wdentifying and manageng risks and opportunities to deliver the Group s strategy and the other essential elements of our
business model

Further information on our nsk management framework and control environment is provided on pages 51 and 65, and our
principal risks and uncertainties and how we mitugate them are set out on pages 52 to 54

We have set challenging financial targets through a range of key performance indicators (KPls) These are set out on page 5

Qur focus in settng such rargets 15 to achieve sustainable performance over the short and long term Our financial
performance is set out in more detaill on pages 18 to 25

The Group s fully committed to meeting the needs of its customers and developing and maintaining good relationships wich
the wider community and stakeholders in general This is the key to the success of each of our businesses

How we respond to our stakeholders’ needs and assess customer satisfaction 1s set out on pages 36 to 4i

We are aware that our busimesses can, and do, have a material impact on the environment in which they operate To address
this we take a responsible and transparent approach to environmental marters

Qur sustainable pracuces ensure the long-term success of our businesses More infermation on our environmental impacts
1s provided on pages 42 to 47

We know that the success of our Group is due to the talent, commitment and hard work of our employees, and we aim to
be a responsible employer

We are focused on ensuring employee wellbeing, retentron, training and development, and preducuvicy Essennial to this is
our commitment to the health and safety of our workforce

More information on the iniwauves we have introduced to improve employee engagement and health and safety in our
businesses 1s set out on pages 48 to 50

www pennonannualreport <o uk/2016




STRATEGIC REPORT | GROUP PERFORMANCE

STRATEGIC REPORT
GROUP PERFORMANCE

GROUP PERFORMANCE

14 GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S OVERVIEW
18 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT

26 OUR OPERATIONS

28 WATER AND WASTEWATER

Rn WASTE RECYCLING AND RECOVERY

36  CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES

42 OUR ENVIRONMENT

a8 OUR PEOPLE

51 RISK REPORT

12 PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016




R N

J /

OVERVIEW

GROUP PERFORMANCE

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STRONG RESULTS
BENEFITING FROM
GROWTH

MAINTAINING AND
GROWING OUR
ASSET BASE

DRIVING VALUE
THROUGH EFFICIENCY

WELL PREPARED FOR
THE FUTURE
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S OVERVIEW

The year 2015/16 has been transformative
for Pennon Group White continuing to
deliver market-leading performance in
many areas of our businesses, we have
been fine-tuning our strategic focus

to meet the changing demands of our
sector; evolving our governance and
internal structures and beginning to draw
new synergistic benefits from the closer
alignment of our subsidiaries

(1) Oxera modelling for South West Water and Bournemouth Water submission to
the Competition and Markets Authority This estimate prowides the probabihity
of the merged company with synergy savings being within the UQ (the efficienicy
benchmark as used by Ofwat in PR14) at PRIS

(2) As measured by mean zonal compliance

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

As the new Group Chief Executive Gfficer | am pleased to report
that Pennon has performed very well in 2015/16

South West Water 1s outperforming its regulatory contract having
begun the Ké (2015-2020) peried In a position of confidence
following a successful Price Review, which saw its business plan
deemed best-in-class The dive towards further efficency and
improved performance has been complemented by the successful
acquisiion and merger with Bournemouth Water Integration

15 substantially complete and the bringing together of these two
goad companies s allowing for substantial efficiency savings, the
sharing of best pract:ce and operational synergies The combined
water business 1s well placed for the regulatory changes ahead
including the opering of the non-household retail market in

2017, and there s a 94% probability it will set the efficency
frontier at the 2019 Price Review!!

In waste management, Viridor has alse performed well The
company has made a clear transition from landfiil to a greater
focus on recycling and the recovery of energy from waste Eight
of the |l committed Energy Recovery Fachties (ERFs) are now
on stream with the remainder under construction (at Glasgow,
Dunbar and Beddington)

The ERF portfolio 1s being progressively de-risked with

demand expected to exceed capacity over the long term
Approximately 80% of the total ERF portfolio volumes have been
secured under long-term, index-linked contracts with short and
medium-term contracts in place for the remaining 20%

As Vindor completes its move from the investment phase to the
delivery phase with the completion of the ERF portfolio, we are
moving towards a more homogeneous r1sk profile acr oss the
Group We are increasing the predictability and visibiity of our
revenues over the long 1erm and putting Pennon in the strongast
posrtion possible to capitalise on future growth opportunities

STRONG OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Both South West Water and Bournemouth Water have made
considerable progress on their Ké business plan commitments

At South West Wiater, drinking water qualty remains high (3997%
compliancet), custormer service continues to increase, and accelerated
investment in bathing water improvements has helped the region
perform very well aganst the revised EU standards, which came

into force n 2015 Ofthe 145 bathing waters tested, |41 met the
required standard The falure of the other four was unrelated to the
performance of any South West VWater asset

Bournemouth Water achieved 100% compliance with drinking
water qualty standards and continued to deliver customer service
improvements, bullding on its already impressive track record

of customer service excellence In beth the South West Water
and Bournemouth Water service areas leakage rates were kept
within target levels and there were no water restrictions placed
on customers
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In the waste management sector, Vindor has been a consistent
leader and 1s well on track to increase Pennon's future earnings
growth This is being achieved through the delivery and ramp-up
of ERFs, which are expected to <ontribute ¢ £1C0 million to
Vindor's EBITDA in 2016/17

In landfill energy, Virdor continues to maximise value from rts
assets, managing the ongoing reduction in inputs and mowing from
the i4 remaning operational sites to a smaller number of strategic
sites by 2020 Landfill gas will remain a significant earnings stream
after the sites have dosed to waste inputs, and the company is
maximising opportunities to use existing grid connections

AREAS OF FOCUS

South West Water delvered a step change in customer service
performance during K5 {2010-2015) through a combination

of operattonal improvements and nitiatives to improve the
customer service experience, including a more proactive
approach to communications

In 2015/15 the company s customer service score® continued
to n¢rease, and further improvements are anticipated as best
practice is shared with Bournemouth Water (which consistently
delivers SIM performance in the upper quartle of the industry)

In wastewater services, areas for operational improvement
remain, particularly with regards to reducing the risk of flooding
and pollution South West Water s working resclutely towards
its 2020 targets, making the most of new technigues in activities
such as forecasting and monitoring, and working closely alongside
its supply chamn partners to deliver the necessary enhancements

ln recychng, Viridor 1s aceelerating the optimisation and
rationalisation of Its assets and contracts through the Input,
Throughput and Cutput Optmisation (ITOO) programme (see
page 33) By mowng towards a more efficient cost base and more
profitable actmwity, this 1s designed to overcome lower commodity
prices The programme s targeting a substantial enhancement

in the company’s EBITDA margin through restructuring and
improvements In source matenal qualty (including contract
renegotiation where required), asset efficency, productvity and
yield, and specific quahty control of outputs

A number of nput contracts have been successiully renegoviated
to enhance value and the quality of nputs New recycling
contracts reflect the shating of 1ecyclate price risks with
customers through better gate fees and a better specified quality
of inputs

(1) As measured by service incentive mechamsm (SIM)
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DRIVING VALUE THROUGH EFFICIENCY

South West Water is striving for ever greater efficiency in K6,
building on its strong track record from K5 Recognised by Ofwat
as delivering industry-leading cost efficiency, it was awarded an
enhanced business plan assessment with the largest element of
potential operational outperfarrmance over K6 coming from total
expenditure (Totex) savings

Plans to merge Bournemouth Water with South West Water
were given uncenditional clearance by the Compettion and
Markets Authority (CMA) in November 2015 The merger
became offical on | April 2016 and the integration process has
been progressing well with a new management structure in place

During Ké (2015-2020) ¢ £27 mullion of synergies

{net of restructuring costs) 15 set to be actueved through

a combination of

= the merging of the two companies' wholesale and
retal operations

* the creation of a single centralised support function

= the sharing of best practice to form common
systems and processes

= supply chain efficiencies

A new single legally separate company, Pennon Water Services,
has been created which will provide retail and water management
services for our ¢ 85,000 non-household customers, who will be
eligible for the new water retal market in 2017 The new market
will move into a period of shadow operation in Octaber 2016 prior
to formal opering In Apnil 2017

In addition to Vindor s operational delivery, overheads are
being streamlined as part of the anncunced reorganisation and
restructuring This 1s expected to deliver ¢ £9 million a year of
enduring finanaal benefits from 2018719

www pennonannualreport co uk/201é
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GROUP-WIDE SYNERGY

Pennon 15 focused on driving greater synergies and savings across
the Group, sharing best practice and ensuring 1t 1s well placed to
capitalse on emerging opportunities

Both Viridor and South West Water have a breadth and depth of
experience In managing large asset bases and in using engineering
excellence, technology and iInnovation to deliver efficency

and effectiveness By sharing knowledge across the Group and
harnessing our combined skills we can provide even better
services to our extensive customer base of local authorrties,
major corperate clients and household customers

A more jeined-up Group brings benefits in a variety of ways
Looking ahead to the opening of the non-househald retal
market for water services, a key differentiator for Pennen 1s the
link that can be forged between Pennon Water Services and
Vindor s customer base By capitalising on Vindors commeraal
relationships and cuiture we can add value and improve cur
service offerng

Furthermaore, as part of the evolution in Pennon's structure,

a shared services review 15 underway assessing where we can
unlock opportunities to create addiional value through integrating
back office functions

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SUSTAINABLE AND RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS
Through innovation, the use of new technolegies and the
application of best practice, we continue to focus on sustainability

By improving the efficiency and effectiveness of our business
activities we ensure sustainable value for bath shareholders and
customers while mimmising our environmental impacts This
spans everything from our holistic approach to water and
wastewater management at catchment level (see Upstream
Thinking and BDownstream Thinking on pages 29 and 31) to

our strategic purpase of giving resources new life

At a community tevel we do our best to be a good
neighbour’ through community engagement, high operational
standards support for education and the provision of access
and recreation

South West Water contnues to offer an industry-leading range
of affordability schemes to those customers who genuinely
struggle to pay We continue to provide a social tardf and expand
our innovative work with housing providers to help reduce
customer debt

At Vindor a network of active community liaison groups
continues to ensure close dialogue with people Iving and working
in areas close to our major operational sites, enabling focused
community benefit programmes

In 2015 both South West Water and Vindor were recognised

as responsible busingsses within Business in the Community’s
Corporate Responsibility (CR) Index Pennon Group also retained
its inclusion in the FTSE4Good Index following independent
assessment in 2015 of its Environmental Social and Governance
(ESG) performance

PROUD OF OUR PEOPLE

Pennon has more than 4 800 employees Their health and safety
remains our top priority and we continue to 1 efine our policies
and make enhancements where necessary in order to protect
their wellbeing and comply with best practice Further detail can
be found on page 48

Acress the Group we are focused on attracting, nurturing

and retaining a high calibre workforce South West Water, a
significant employer in the south west of England, 1s ranked as a
top 100 apprenticeship employer nationally, and has recruited 85
apprentices since 2011

Meanwhile at Vindor there is a growing focus on
apprenticeships with 23 apprentices in the business today and a
commitment to expand this at each of the ERFs

The efforts and achievements of our employees have made 2015/16
a successful year and | would like to take this opportunity to thank
them for their engoing professionalism and dedication
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OUTLOOK

As an environmental infrastructure business, Pennon 1s continually
locking to the future to antiapate, influence and manage
regulatory change and the policy environment This Is crucial to
our success

Through Vindor, we are well positioned with services
reflecting the waste huerarchy, leading with 1 eduction and
recycling, through to energy recovery ang finally to disposal

We expect demand for ERFs to continue to exceed capacity
into the long term The option te commit to an additional ERF
at Avonmouth remains and would take the total portfolio to 12
plants nationwide

We remain cautious about future recyclate price growth but are
not relying on & near-term price recovery and are instead driving
forward self-help measures through Vindor s [ITOO programme
which 1s delivering margin improvement We continue to target
new long-term and medium-term commercial and industrial
recychng and recovery contracts

\ J J
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In the water industry we are well placed to capitalise on
structural changes and resilience challenges, making the

most of opportunities for future consolidation and growth
while continuing to deliver our business plans effectively As
Bournemouth Water becomes fully integrated with South
West Water, we anticipate further synergistic benefits together
with performance improvements derived from the sharing of
best practice

At a wider industry level South West Water is fully engaged in
Water 2020 as we prepare and position ourselves for PRI9 The
company I1s In an extremely good position to anticpate and
influence future regulatory reforms and is working hard to ensute
involvement in shaping the future of the industry

ln a changing sectot Pennon 1s evalving with confidence and
ambition We continue to build on a strong platform, recogrising
areas for further improvement and efficencies while

remaining focused on delivering sustanable business value

Chris Loughlin
Group Chief Executive Officer
Pennon Group Plc
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Pennon Group delivered a strong financial performance, underpinned by
a robust funding position, continuing to support our dividend policy of 4%

gsrowth above RPI inflation to 2020

PERFORMANCE OVYERVIEW

The princpal measures used to assess the Group's financial performance are

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ADJUSTED EBITDA®

before non-underfying items (£m)

before non-undertying rtems and deferred tax {pence)

01112 430 8 wnn 47 3
2012/13 433 0 2012413 403
2013/14 456 9 2013/14 426
20(4/15 465 % 2014/15 398
2015716 +9 1% 508.4  2015/16 .0 8% 39.5
PROFIT BEFORE TAX before non-underlying itams (£m) DIVIDEND PER SHARE (pence)
2001412 2005 2011412 26 52
2012413 1900 2012113 2B 46
2013/14 2073 2013/14 3031
2014/15 2107 2014/15 31 80
2015/16 +0 3% 211.3®  2015/16 45 6% 33.58
RECONCILIATION OF EARNINGS®

2015/16 Basic 2014/15 Basic

2015/16 Profit earnings per 2014/15 Profit earnings per

after tax share after tax share

£m P £m p

Statutery earnings attnbutable to shareholders 1521 370 1263 323

Deferred tax before non-underlying items 392 95 182 47
Non-underlying items (post-tax) 2910 70) 1o 28
Earnings before non-underlying tems and deferred tax 1622 395 1555 398

{1} Earnings before interest tax depreciation amortsation and non underlying items {EBITDA) adusted EBITDA includes IFRIC |2 nterest recervable and share of joint

venture EBITDA
{2) Statutory basrs £206 3m

{3) Eamings per ardinary share in this strategic report exclude non undertying itemns and deferred tax The Directors believe excluding non underlying items 2nd deferred tax provides
a more useful comparison on business trends and performance Deferred tax distorts earnings per share through the effects of changes in corporation tax rates and the level of

long term capital investment

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Group EBITDA 1s ahead of 2014/15, reflecting growth from
Vindor's ERF business and the acquisition of Bournemouth Water
The growth across the Group has mitigated to a targe extent the
expected water business regulatory revenue reset.

FINANCIAL KPIs FOR OUR BUSINESSES

WATER BUSINESS YWASTE BUSINESS
REVENUE m) REVENUE #m)
2011412 474 0 201112 761 1
2012113 498 6 2012113 7038
2013714 5200 101314 8020
2014115 5222 2014415 8359
2015/16 +47% 547.0 2015016 -3 6% 806.2
EBITDA® pefore non-underying tems {£m) EBITDAM before non-underiying tems {£m)
2011/12 3052 2011412 1193
2012413 3171 2012413 777
2013014 3309 2013/14 763
204115 3313 2014115 80 4
2015/16 +| 2% 335.2 2015/16  +44 9% 116.5

PROFIT BEFORE TAX tefore non-underlying items (£rm) PROFIT BEFORE TAX uefore non-underlying items (£rm)

2011412 141 5 2011412 576
2012113 146 7 201213 343
2013/14 162 5 2013/14 76
2014415 1679 2014415 217
2015116 -] 3% 165.7 2015/16 +]0 8% 30.7
CAPITAL INVESTMENT () CAPITAL INVESTMENT (¢tm)
201112 130 8 2011412 145 5
201213 165 2012/13 1226
2013/14 141 6 2013014 292 0
2014/15 145 | 2014115 262 2
2015/16  -76% 134.1 2015/16 -30 3% 182.8

(1) Earrungs before interest tax depreciation amartsation and non underlying items

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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THE YEAR'S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

{before non-underlying items)

Group EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA were ahead of 2014/15 at
£448 4 million (by 21%) and £508 4 million (by 9 1%6) respectively
Profit before tax was broadly in line at £211 3 milion This has
been achteved against the backdrop of reduced allowed returns
in our water business for the Ké regulatory period (2015-2020),
with strong contributions from Vindor's growing portfolio of
operational Energy Recovery Faciities (ERFs) and having acquired
Bournemcuth Water during the year

Both our water businesses recorded strong performances aganst
their new K6 regulatory contracts, outperforming regulatory
assumptions The water business's profit before tax was
marginally down by £2 2 milon (I 3%) to £165 7 million, reflecting
South West Water's expected revenue reset, largely offset by
the additional earnings from Bournemouth Water (acquired in
April 2015), good cost control and lower average borrowing rates
With the highest potential returns in the sector for Ké, South
West Water 1s outperforming its business plan Combinad with
Bournemouth Water outperformance this results in a water
business Return on Regulated Equity (RoRE) of 11 7%

At Vindor, the portfolio of operattonal ERFs continues to
perform well, with the six most recently delivered ERFs ramping
up as Vindor optimises each plant Peterborough ERF became
operational in December 2015, having been delivered on time
and on budget, bringing the total number of operational ERFs

to eight As a result, Viridor's adjusted EBITDA increased 30 5%
compared to the previous year, driven by the full-year effect of its
expanded fleet of ERFs

Earnings per share were broadly in Ine with the prior year down
0 8% to 39 5p Overali, weighted average shares outstanding
increased by ¢ 20 milion to 4109 milhon reflecting the placing

of ¢ 12 milhon new shares, which were ssued to replenish cash
resources following the acquisition of Bournemouth Water

Dwvidend per share increased by 5 6% on a sustainable basis
to 33 58p

We continue to maintain a strong hquidity and funding position
to support our ongoing capital investment growth programme
We had £1,707 million of cash resources and committed funding
(ncluding £226 5 million of restnicted funds) as at 31 March
2016, having raised or renewed £470 mittion of faciities over

the year These funds support the continuing growth in Virdor's
ERF business, together with a significant proportion of the water
business's 2015-2020 (Ké) capital programme

Caprtal investment remaned significant this year at £316 9 million
due to continuing major investment In Vindor s ERFs which

15 driving future growth QOver two-thirds of committed ERF
capital investment 1s now complete The water business capital
expenditure in the year was shghtly down on 2014/15, reflecting
the acceleration last year of certain Ké projects to deliver early
outcome benefits to customers and the environment

We have secured funding at a cost that 1s efficent and effecuve
The Group interest rate on average net debt improved to 3 3%
(2014715 3 4%)
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REVENUE

Group revenue was broadly in Jne with last year at £1 352 3 million
Revenue from the water business was up by 4 7% to £5470 million
as a result of the Bournemouth Water acquisition and new
customers connecting to our network, offset by the revenue reset
and the reduction in revenue as a result of customers switching
from unmeasured to metered charges Vindor s revenue decreased
by 3 6% to £806 2 million due to the expected decrease n
construction spend on service concession arrangements (as plants
come on stream) and lower landfill volumas, partly offset by the
full-year contribution of operational ERFs

ADJUSTED EBITDA (before non-underlying items)

Group adjusted EBITDA, which consists of EBITDA of

£448 4 million, IFRIC 12 interest recervable of £16 7 million and
our share of joint venture EBITDA of £43 3 milion, increased by
9 1% to £508 4 milkion, with the water business up by | 2% to
£335 2 millen and Vinder up by 30 5% to £176 5 million

Our water business EBITDA was boosted by the acquisition

of Bournemouth Water, which contributed £174 million,
offsetting the reduction in South West Water's allowed returns
While average RPI rose 1 1%, both South West Water's and
Bournemouth Water's operating costs in 2015/16 fell compared
to the previous year, with significant savings in operational
maintenance, as well as targeted efficiencies contributing 1o
cost performance In addition South West Water's bad debt
charges also fell to | 5% as a percentage of revenues from | 7%
m 2014/15 At Bournemouth Water bad debt charges fell to 0 4%
from 0 8% in 2014/15 which was driven by a strong collections
performance Total operating costs before depreciation for the
water business were £211 8 million for the year (£322 5 million
including depreciation)

Vindor s EBITDA was ahead of last year due predominantly to
the full-year impact of operational ERFs Qur ERF activities
dehvered EBITDA of £897 million (2014/15 £33 7 million)

a significant increase compared to 2014/15 We remain on track
to deliver cur target of ¢ £100 million of EBITDA from ERFs

by 2016/17 {before IFRIC 12 interest receivable and cur share
of joint venture EBITDA) Joint venture EBITDA increased to
£43 3 million {2014/15 £41 4 million) due to continuing strong
EBITDA from Lakeside and hugher EBITDA from Runcorn |
reflecting a full year of operations, despite Lakeside planned
maintenance This resulied in a share of jont venture profit after
tax of £3 6 millon (2014/15 £49 million)

Recycling and resources EBITDA comprising recycling, collection
and contracts and ‘other was broadly in ine with last year at

£49 6 million (2014715 £490 milhon) despite lower recyclate prices
and therefore lower average revenues at £85 per tonne (recyclate
sales plus gate fees) (2014/15 £86 per tonne) Average costs fell by
£2 pertonne to £77 pertonne (2014/15 £79 per tonne) as a result
of self-help measures under the Input Throughput and Output
Optimisation (ITOO) programme, and therefore the recycling
EBITDA margn increased by £1 per tonne to £8 per tonne (2014/15
£7 per tonne) Although the short term outlook for recyclate prices
i1s relatively stable, we remain cautious about future recyclate price
growth and are not relying on a near term recovery We are instead
focusing on self-help measures to drive margin improvement
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Landfill gas power generation EBITDA of £31 5 millon (2014/15
£35 8 milkon) was impacted by the removal of Levy Exemption
Certificates and lower volumes As expected, landfill EBITDA was
down to £6 3 milhon (2014/15 £15 4 million) due to the continuing
planned landfill wind-down and aftet care programme Three sites
were closed to waste arsings during the year and one following
the year end

Through the Group's portfolio management approach to energy
hedging, © 90% of energy (generation net of Internal usage of
electriaity) 15 hedged into 2016/17 and over 50% 15 hedged out
to 2019/2C

NET FINANCE COSTS (befare non-underlying items)

We continued our effective managemnent of interest rates in
2015116 with net finance costs (induding capialised interest, but
before pensions interest, discount unwind on prowvisions, IFRIC 12
finance income and joint ventur e finance ncome) net of interest
recewvable on average net debt equating to 3 3% (2014/15 3 4%)
which included lower interest payable on RPI-linked debt and
lower rates on interest rate swaps

Net finance costs of £54 | millon were £13 3 milion higher than
last year, reflecting a £13 | milion decrease in capitalised interest
followmng a number of ERFs becoming eperational towards the
end of 2014/15 together with hugher borrowings associated with
the ongoing ERF capital expenditure programme, partly offset by
lower average borrowing rates and £3 2 million higher IFRIC 12
interest recevable

Intet est recevable (before IFRIC 12 finance mcome and

jont venture finance income) totalling £14 7 mullion {2014/15

£19 | million) has been achieved from the objective of enhancing
returns on the Group s substantial pre funding of £632 mithon

Duning the year net finance costs (excluding pensions net interest,
discount unwind on prowisions and IFRIC 12 contract interest
recewvable) were £59 & millon (2014/15 £41 | milion) covered
44 tmes {2014/15 6 0 times) by Group operating profit

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Underlying profit before tax was £211 3 million, an increase of
03% On a statutory basis, profit before tax was £206 3 million,
reflecting non-undet lying items of £5 0 million

(1) Indludes £2 4m operating profit on disposal of Whitehead landfill site:

\ J \ J
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TAXATION

The Group s underlying UK corporation tax charge for the

year was £32 9 milhon (2014/15 £39 2 milhon) including a
prior-year credit of £1 4 million (2G14/15 credit of £5 5 million)
The decrease of £6 3 mulhon primarily reflects the reduction in
the UK rate of corporation tax and higher ERF capita! allowances
The £1 4 million credit relating to prior years includes a charge
of £30 mullion for an uncertain tax rtem telating to a financial
transaction This is largely offset by an updated assessment of
other uncertain tax items following discussions with HM Revenue
and Customs (HMRC) on complex tax legislation relating 1o the
deductibifity of financial arrangements, relief claims for caprtal
expenditure, and submussion of the prior-year tax returns
resulting 1n lower tax being due compared to the assessment
made for the 2014/15 charge

Underlying deferred tax for the year was a charge of £39 2 million
(2014/15 £18 2 milliony The higher charge this year reflects higher
ERF capital allowances

EARNINGS PER SHARE

{before non-underlying items and deferred tax)

Earnings per ordinary share were broadly comparable with prior
year down 0 B% at 39 5p This reflects the weighted average
number cf shares in issue during the year increasing to 4109
millien (2014/15 3909 millon) driven by the equity placing

of 12 1 million shares at the start of the year and the full year
impact of the conversion of 20 3 milien shares last year from the
£125 milion convertible bond Net assets per share at book value
at 31 March 2016 were 36lp

In addition, there 1s a £33 | million deferred tax credit relating to
the enacted reduction in the UK rate of corporation tax and a

£1 0 million tax credit relating to other non-underlying iterms This
results in a total tax charge for the year of £38 0 milion (2014/15
£547 milion)

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016 24
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NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS

Net non-underlying items totalling a charge before tax of

£5 0 million have been recogrised The net charge indudes a

£10 2 million charge for restructuring provisions and a £5 2 milbon
credit relating to the non-cash fair value movement on our
long-dated derivatives with the commercial hedged position
unchanged In addition there s a £33 | mullon deferred tax credit
relating to the enacted reduction in the UK rate of corporation
tax and a £1 O milion tax credit relating to non-underlying tems
noted above

During the year the Group reviewed the alfocation of Vindor's
lang-lived assets to cash generating units (CGUs) to ensure

they remained consistent with Viridor's operations and the

waste market it serves This review concluded the need

for updated affocations with assets now considered part of
integrated regional CGUs which resulted in a £60 9 million
impairment of non-strategic landfill sites and a £60°9 million
reversal of previous impairments Details of the review are set out
in note t7 to the financial statements

The non-underlying 1tems total a credit after tax of £29 | mullion
EBITDA after non-underlying items was £438 2 million

(2014/15 £421 6 milion) Profit after tax and non-underlying
itemns attnbutable to shareholders was £152 F milhon (2014/15
£126 3 million)

DIVIDENDS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
The statutory net profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of
£1519 millon has been transferred to reserves

The Directors t ecommend the payment of & final dwvidend of

23 12p per share for the year ended 31 March 2016 ‘With the
intenm dividend of |0 46p per share pard on | Apri 2016 this gives
a total dmidend for the year of 33 58p, an increase of 5 6% over
2014415 {reflecting 4% 1 eal growth plus March 2016 RPI of | £2)

Proposed dividends totalling £138 5 mullion are covered | | tmes
by net profit (before non-underlying tems and deferred tax)
(2014/15 | 2 imes) Dividends are charged against retaned
earnings In the year in which they are paid

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Groups policy 15 to Increase the dmdend each year by 4% above
inflation up to the end of 2019/20 The Group s well positioned to
continue delivering sharehclder value

OPERATING COSTS (before non-undertying items)
Operating costs for the year totalled £1,050 milion The most
significant areas of expendrture were

Expenditure £m
Landfili tax 160
Employment costs 180
Oepreciation 183
Raw materials and consumables’ 79
Transport 57
Power 39
Business rates 37
Abstraction and discharge consents 8

* Excludes transport costs
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GROUP CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Group capital nvestment was £316 9 million in 2015/16 compared
to £407 3 million in 2014/15, reflecting lower spend on ERFs as the
investment programme moves from consiruction to operation

South West Water and Bournemouth Water capital expenditure
was £134 1 milion compared to £145 | milkon for South West
Water in 2014/15 The beginming of the new regulatory period
reflects a change in the nature and extent of capral actvity
South West Water has also delvered efficiency savings through
innovative planning and scoping of schemes and maximising
benefits during construction and through the supply chain

South West Water s spending has focused on preparations for
the innovative new water treatment works at North Plymouth,
schemes to improve water quality and investment in digrtal
infrastructure Bournemouth Water has focused on continued
pressure management and commussioning two ultraviclet
treatment plants at Beaulleu and Knapp Mill Both South West
Water and Bournemouth Water have made a good start to
delivering their Ké capital programme

Vinder's capital nvestment was £182 8 milhon compared to
£262 2 milhon in 2014/15 predominantly driven by expenditure
on ERFs This reduction reflected reduced capital expendriture
on ERFs as eight of the eleven plants in the portfolio are now
on stream, and reduced capital investment in recycling as
2014/15 included expenditure on the Scottish Newhouse glass
recychng facility in North Lanarkshire, which came on-stream
during 2015/16 Before capitahsed interest cumulative ERF
expenditure 1o date 1s £910 milion, excluding the £72 milhon
spent on Peterborough ERF, which was local authorrty financed
Thus leaves £295 million left to invest on the ERF programme,
around £185 millon in 2016/17, arcund £100 mdlion in 2017/18
and around £10 million in 2018/19 So far, Vindor has realised
£22 millon of efficencies across the ERF capral investiment
programme and 15 targeting further savings The Group's capital
expenditure on property plant and equipment including
service concession arrangerments, remained significant at

£316 9 milhon (2014/15 £407 3 mifhion) The major categories of
expenditur e were

ERF £13%m
Water £59m
Wastewater £75m
Recyching £7m
Landfill energy £12m
Other £25m
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CASH FLOW

The Group had operational cash inflows in 2015/16 of

GROUP PERFORMANCE

£418 million (2C14/15 £412 millon) These funds have been put
to use in effioently financing the Group's capital structure and
investing n future growth, through our continuing substantial
caprtal investment programme This investment together with
non-cash movements assocated with assuming the fair value of
Bournemouth Water's debt has resulted in higher Group net
debt In April 2015 Penncn acquired Bournemouth Water for
a cash consideration of £100 3 millon An equity placing was
undertaken to replenish our cash resources in respect of the
acquisition and ensure funding flexibility

201516 2014/15
Summarised cash flow £m £m
Cash inflow from operations 418 412
Net interest paid (&1) 42
Tax paid 49) {20)
Dwidends paid {net of scnp) (123) (69)
Hybnd penodic return (20) (20)
Capital expenditure {29) (365)
Dwidends and loan repayments receved 34 [
from joint ventures
Pension contributions (31) (28
Equrty placing and other share issues 102 3
Acquisitions (net of cash acquired) @ -
Net cash outflow {114) (125)
Far value of debt acquired from (160) -
Bournemouth Water
Cenversion of share of convertible bond - 125
Debt indexation/interest accruals (13) (3)
Increase in net borrowings {287) (3)
Finance leasing £1339m
Bank bilateral debt £403m
Index-linkedbond 2057 £413m
European Investment Bank loans £273m
Private placernents £554m
Bond 2040 £133m

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAJOR COMPONENTS OF THE GROUP'S DEBT FINANCE
AT 31 MARCH 2016

LIQUIDITY AND DEBT PROFILE

The Group has a strong iquidity and funding position, with
£1,707 million cash and facirties at 31 March 2016 This includes
cash and deposits of £632 milion {including £227 millon of
restricted funds representing deposits with lessors against lease
obligations) and undrawn facilities of £1 075 millon A total of
£470 million in new or renewed debt facilihes was arranged
during the year, being

+ £130 millon new European Investment Bank facility

+ £100 million new 20-year facity

+ £100 milion of new finance leases in South West Water
«  £140 milhon of term loans and revolving credit facilities

At 31 March 2016 the Group's loans and finance lease obligations
totalled £3 116 million After the £632 milion held in cash,

this gives a net debt figure of £2,484 million, an increase of

£287 million during the year

The Group’s debt has a maturity of up te 41 years with an

avet age matunty of 22 years Much of the Group's debt is floating
rate and derivauves are used to fix the rate on that debt The
Group has fixed, or put swaps in place to fix, the interest 1 ate on
a substanbal portion of the existing water business debt for the
entire Ké penod

£395 7 milion of South West Water's debt 1s index-linked at

an averall real rate of | 7% As a result of the aforementioned
initiatives, South West Watet s cost of finance 1s among the
lowest in the industry Two thirds of the water business debt 15
finance leases giving us a long matunity profile interest payable
benefits from the fixed credit margins, which were secured at the
inception of each lease

The Group's financing structure gives us the scope and flexibility
we need to implement our strategic objectives in order to
maximise value for our shareholders

The Group s interest rate on average net debt for the year to
31 March 201615 3 3% (after adjusting for caprtalised interest
of £94 milion, notional interest rtems totalling £5 5 million and
interest receved from shareholder loans to joint ventures of
£107 million, as detaled in note & to the finanoal statements)
For South West Watet this figure was 3 1%

At 31 March 2018 the fair value of the Group s non-current
borrowings was £114 million less than its book value (2015
£74 million) as detaled in note 28 to the financial statements
This r eflecis the benefit of securing iInterest rates below the
current market rate

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S

REPORT CONTINUED

CAPITAL STRUCTURE - OVERALL POSITION

The Group's net debt has increased by £287 million ta
£2,484 million, with the ncrease in part reflecting the net
debt assumed in the acquisition of Bournemouth Water The
Groups gearing ratio at 31 March 2016, being the ratio of net
debt to (equity plus net debt), was 62 5% (2015 61 9%)

In March 2013 the Group ssued a £300 millicn hybrid capital
security recognised as equity as set out in note 37 to the
financial statements

During the year the Company continued to benefit iom offering
a scrip dividend alternative £6 3 million (2014/15 £48 0 million) of
potential cash dwvidend was retained in the business and resulted
in the issuance of 760,626 shares

Group net debt includes £978 million of funding for our wholly
owned ERFs (Runcorn I, Oxford, Exeter, Cardiff, Glasgow,
Dunbar and South Lendon) and £8¢ milllon of funding for our
investments n our joint ventures through shareholder loans
{(which represents 40% of Group net debt) In addition, our joint
ventures have net debt frem third parties {excluding shareholder
loans) of £212 millon

South West Water s Regulatory Caprtal Value (RCV) including
Bournemeouth Waters RCV of £15292 million, rose 7 6% to

£3 150 milhon at 31 March 2016 This resuited in a combined debt
to RCV ratio of 59 7% (2015 62 196) of which South West Water
was 59 8% and Bournemouth Water was 56 7%, which compares
to Cfwat's Ké target efficient gearing of 62 5%

REGULATORY CAPITAL VALUE (fm) asat 31 March

2012 2,827
2013 2,916
2014 2,959
2015 2,928

2016  +76% 3,150

TREASURY POLICIES

The role of the Group's treasury function is to ensure we have
the funding to meet foreseeable needs, to mantan reasonable
headroom for future contingencies and to manage interest

rate sk The Group enters into certan structured financing
transactions that have, and are expected 1o provide, an improved
return on surplus funds and overall interest rate performance

It operates only within policies approved by the Board and
undertakes no speculative trading activity

The Board regularly monitors expecied finanang needs for at
least the following 12 months These are intended to be met for
the coming year from existing cash balances, loan faciliies and
opetating cash flows

The Group has considerable financial resources and a broad
spread of business actrmties The Directors therefore believe that
it 15 well placed to manage its business risks

PENNON GROUF PLC ANNUAL REFCRT 2016

INTERNAL BORROWING

South West Water's and Bournemouth Water's funding 1s treated
for regulatory purposes as ring-fenced This means that funds
raised by, or for, either company are not available as long-term
funding for cther areas of the Group

TAXATION STRATEGY

QOur tax strategy, reaffirmed by the Board in April 2016, 1510

fulfil our statutory obligations by the application of relevant tax
legislation n a reasonable way, engaging in tax planning only

when it 15 aligned with the commeraal and economic activity of

the Company This 1s 1n line with the prinaiples published by the
Confederation of British Industry (CBl) in 2013 The Group engages
with HMRC in an open and transparent way identifying potential
areas of uncertainty on a timely basis Due 1o the complexity of

tax legslation, the Group and tax authorities may scmetimes have
differing opinions on the treatment of certain tax items The Group
manages this nisk and accrues for areas of tax uncertainty in ine
with accounting standards requirements, where appropriate The
Board 1s regularly updated on tax matters, and any tax implications
of commercal activities are highlighted to the Board with the use of
a nsk matrix to assess the appropriateness of a proposal i

TAX CONTRIBUTION 2015/16 - COLLECTED/PAID

The Group made a net payment of £45 Q million of UK
corporaticn tax in the year (2014715 £21 0 million) The marn
element of the payment was £254 million 1n relation to 2015/16
net of refunds of £0 2 millien from prior years £9 3 milhon was
paid In relation to the 2014/15 quarterly instalments, in addition
£10 3 million was paid for earler years

The total tax charge for the year (before non-underlying items)
of £72 | million was greater than the charge that would have
arsen had the accounting profit befor e tax and non-underlying
items been taxed at the statutcry rate of 20% A reconcliation s
provided in nate % to the financial statements

The mainstream tax charge for the year (before deferred tax,
prior-year and non-underlying items) of £34 3 million results
in an effective rate of |6 2%, which is lower than the statutory
rate of 20 0% due to capital allowances received on ERF
capital expenditure

Landfill tax £167m
Employment taxes £54m
UK corporation tax £45m
Business rates £42m
Environmental payments £llm
Fuel Excise Duty £8m
VAT £8m
Carbon Reduction Commrtment 4m
Other £3m |
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The Groups tatal tax contribution extends significantly beyond rts
UK corporation tax charge Total taxes amounted to £342 million
(2014/15 £329 million) of which a net amount of £62 million
(2014/15 £26 millicn) was collected on behalf of the authorities
for employee payroll taxes and Value Added Tax (VAT)

In addrtion to corporation tax, the most sigrificant taxes invalved
together with their profit impact, were

Landfill tax of £167 million includes £166 milhon (2014/15
£204 million) collected by the Group on behalf of HMRC

This amount includes £11 mifiion (2014715 £11 million) pad

to local environmental bodies via the Landfill Tax Credits
Scheme Landfill tax 1s an operating cost that 1s recovered from
customers and Is recognised In revenue The Group incurred
landfill tax of £1 mulhon (2014/15 £5 million) on the disposal of
waste to third parties The reduction of £4 million compared
10 201415 reflects the |evel of waste that 1s being diverted to
ERFs rather than going to landfill This 1s an operating cost for
the Group and reduces profit before tax The net amount of
landfill tax paid to HMRC by the Group and via third parties
represents 17% of the total fandfill receipts of HMRC in

the year

VAT of £8 million paid (2014/15 £9 million recovered) by the
Group to HMRC The movement in VAT from recovered to
paid 1s a result of a reduction in the caprtal expenditure and
the increase in Group operating profit VAT has no material
impact on profit before tax

Business rates of £42 millon (2014/15 £33 million) paid to local
authoriies This 15 a direct cost to the Group and reduces
profit before tax

Employment taxes of £54 milion (2014/15 £50 millior)
including employees’ Pay As You Earn (PAYE) and total
National Insurance contributions {NICs) Employer NICs of
£15 million (2014715 £14 millen) were charged approximately
92% to operating costs with 8% capitalised to property, plant
and equipment The total amount of £54 millien ncludes PAYE
of £3 million (2014/15 £2 million) on pension payments made
by the Group pension schemes

Fuel excise duty of £8 million (2014/15 £10 mullion) related to
transport costs This reduces profit before tax

Payments to the Environment Agency and other regulatory
bodies totalling £11 million (2014/15 £9 milion) This reduces
pt ofit before tax

Carbon Reduction Commitment payment for the Group of
£4 milkon {2014/15 £4 milhon) This reduces profit before tax

The corporation tax rate for 2015/[6 used to calculate the current
year's tax s 209 and will reduce to 19% for the year ended 2018
and to |8% for the year ended 202|

N ) J
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PENSIONS

The Group operates defined benefit pensian schemes for certan
employees of Pennon Group The mamn schemes were closed to
new entrants on or before | April 2008

At 31 March 2016 the Group's pensian schemes showed an
aggregate defiat (before deferred tax) of £409 million (2014/15
£59 6 millon) The decrease primarly reflects an acceleration of
deficit recovery payments totalling £22 6 milion and the addition
of the Bournemouth Water's defined benefit scheme, which 1sin
surplus, offsetting adverse movements in asset market condrtions
and continuing low bond rates used in the discounting of the
schemes liabilities

Net labilties of £33 million (after deferred tax) represented
around 1% of the Group's market capitalisation at 31 March 2016

The last actuarial valuation of the main scheme was as at
31 March 2013 The 31 March 2016 valuation 1s underway

INSURANCE

Pennon Group manages its property and third party hability
risks through insurance policies that manly cover property
and business interruptien motor public liability, environmental
pollution and employers' liabrhity

The Group uses three tiers of insurance tc cover operating risks

+ selfinsurance — Group companies pay a moderate excess on
most claims

* cover by the Group's subsidiary (Peninsuta Insurance Limited)
of the layer of nsk between the self-insurance and the cover
provided by external insurers

* cover provided by the external insurance market, arranged
by cur brokers with insurance comparues that have good
credit ratings

Susan Davy
Chief Financial Officer
Pennon Group Ple
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OUR OPERATIONS

WATER AND WASTEWATER

STRATEGY

We are focused on providing water and
wastewater services In the most efficient and
sustainable way possible Innovation, new
technologies, and the pioneering of a holistic
approach to water and wastewater management
are playing a key role in delivering service
improvements and long-term value

KEY FACTS

+ 22 million total population served

+ 996929 customers

= 23 raw water reservoirs

+ 18,131km of drinking water mains network

+ 688 treatment works with 66 ultraviolet (UV)
treatment facilities

+  15,600km wastewater mams network*
= 900 wastewater pumping stations*

* 145 bathing waters and 24 shellfish waters *
* South West Water region anly

South West Water has delivered further improvements in line with
our Business Plan to 2020, ensuring we are well placed to meet the
changing demands of our sector The integration of Bournemouth
Water 1s progressing well and provides further scope for performance
improvement, operational efficency and sharing best practice

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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WASTE RECYCLING AND RECOVERY

STRATEGY

Our purpose Is to give the world's resources new life

We remain at the forefront of the resource sector in
the UK, transforming waste into energy, high quality
recyclates and raw materrals

KEY FACTS

* Eight energy recovery faclities in operation and three more
under caonstruction across the UK

» Produces enough energy to power over 330 000 homes

= Over |50 local authority and major corporate clients as well
as over 32,000 customers across the UK

* Network of 313 recyclng, energy recovery and waste
management facilities

+ Qver 75 milllon tonnes of recyclates and resources
managed each year of which | 8 million tonnes are recycled
(including organics)

» A fleet of 650 waste collection vehicles

Viridor continues to develop and improve its recycling and recovery and

facilities for clients and partners throughout the UK Driven by a clear
purpose and strategy, this year we've seen further investment in our

essential recycling and energy recovery infrastructure, and in our people
and processes, to delver future growth, better UK resource efficiency

and a quality service for our customers

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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OUR OPERATIONS coNTINUED

WATER AND WASTEWATER

OUR PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE Ké
REGULATORY CONTRACT (2015-2020)

South West Water has the highest
potential rewards in the sector for Ké
At 3| March 2016 the combined water
business (South West Water and
Bournemouth Water) has delivered

an 11 7% Return on Regulated Equity
(RoRE)" arising from base, operational
and finanang returns

2015/2016 RoRE

1) Base — 6 0%
2) Totex outperformance — 2 5%
3) ODI outperformance ~ 0 2%

4) Financing outperformance — 3 0%

TOTAL-11 7%

{1) RoRE reflects the Ofwat regulatery guidance of Base RoRE plus Outpel formance
1t 15 caleulated wsing actual results before non-underlying items (deflated nto 2012443
prices) and compared aganst the Final Determinat:on allowances sourced from
Ofwat pubkshed models and based on noticnal gearing and annual average regulatory
capital vehicle {(RCY)

(2) Interest outperformance 15 based on the outturn effective interest rate (ahgned
with Regulatory Accounting Guidelines and adjusted for one off credits) using the
expected Ké RPI of 2 8% aligned with the 2014 Final Determination cost of capital
assumptions nouonal debt geanng of 62 5% and a notonal tax impact of 20%

{3) £53Im from South West Water £3m from Bournemouth \Water includ ng integration
synergies already delivered Phasing of actual expenditure compared 1o the planned
programme has beenreflected Quiper farmince indudes a 1eduction n the RCY
run off for the RCV element of Totex cutperformance cakulated based on the Final
Detet mination PAYG Taw impacts reflect actual eftective tax) ates

{4) Finanaing outperformance s based on comparning average 1Boxx rates adjusted by
natanal Final Determination RPI of 2 B% and compared to the cost of debt assumed
of 275% This s applied to an assumed new debt proportion of 25% and adjusted for
the tax impact

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPCRT 2016

TOTEX STRATEGY - SECURING OQUTPERFORMANCE
South West Water 1s strving for ever greater efficency in K4,
building on a strong track record from K5 The company was
deemed 1o be at the fronter of cost efficency when it was
awarded an enhanced Business Plan assessment with the largest
element of potential operational outperformance over Ké
coming fom total expenditure (Totex) savings and efficencies
Bournemouth Water s one of the top performing water-only
companies and was deemed to be mid-table for efficency The
combined water business is front-end-loading’ efficencies and
savings to allow early and more certain delwery of outperformance
£56m of Totex savings™ have been delvered in 2015/16, despite
costs of delivening growth These Totex sawngs reflect changes in
the timing of delivery from those planned in the determinations

ODI REWARDS SECURED

South West Water has 23 outcome delivery incentives (ODls),
nduding SIM, which have potential financal rewards or penalties
Incentives for performance are recognised in the year of delvery,
whether the measure 1s recovered in period or as a regulatory
true-up at the end of the period

Operatonal performance for the year which 1s covered in more
detal below, has resulted in an ODI reward Rewards were
secured across bathing water quality, odour complamts and water
restrictions Improved performance i1s being targeted in areas
where penalties were received such as pollutions and interruptions
to supply Bournemouth Water has |0 ODls including the service
incentive mecharism {SIM), which have financial rewar ds and
pemalties Rewards were achieved in leakage and reducing large
scale interruptions Combined ODI rewards resultina £2 Im
benefit and reflects RoRE outperformance of 0 2%

WATERSHARE

South West Water has in place a unique WaterShare mechanism
10 share net benefits with customers through renvestment
options, future bill reductions and service improvements
exceeding planned targets

WaterShare reflects the estzblished mecharism for sharning
Totex outperformance but also allows customers to share in
finanaing outperformance® from movements w1 the market
on new debt nstruments In addition speafic iterns are also
shared with customers — with diffening rates depending on the
company delivery

This WaterShare mechanism has identified ¢ £3 Imillion of
benefits to customers this year and following discussions with
our independent VWaterShare panel it has been decided that thig
would be earmarked for reinvestment, rather than a targeted
reduction in customer bills This equates to a RoRE of 0 3%
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DRINKING WATER

South West Water continued to deliver high quality drinking
water in 2015 achieving 9997%, a slight improvement on

the previous year Leakage was kept within target levels, water
resources were unrestncted for a [9th consecutive year and there
was a 14% reduction in customer contacts regarding taste, odour
or discolouration issues

Bournemouth Water achieved a perfect score for drinking water
quality, with 100% of complance tests!" carried out meeting the
required standard and there was a further substantial reduction
in the amount of water lost through leaks and bursts The number
of customer contacts regarding taste, odour or discolouration
1ssues was well within the target threshold, and less than 1% of
customers experienced an interruption to their water supply
lasting three hours or more

The average duration of supply interruptions per property

for South West Water regrettably was up by 2 minutes to 25
minutes in 2015/16 Thus was largely due to two large trunk main
bursts affecting customers’ supplies at St Blazey in Cornwall in
October 2015 and in Plymouth in December 2015 In each case
we took immediate steps 1o restore supplies as quickly as possible
and keep customers informed

We have further developed our strategies to prevent and
mitigate the impact of such occurrences in future These are
being supported by the use of nnovative techniques for network
pressure management and menitoring, together with investment
In advanced repair technologies

Recognising that customers regard a clean and safe supply
of dnnking water as their top service priority key areas of
imvestrnent and actmty during 2015/16 incdluded

{1} As measured by mean zonal complhance the recogrised industry measure for averall
dnnking water quality

\ ) )
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DRINKING WATER QUALITY

(mean zonal comphance)

SCOUTH WEST WATER

99.97%

BOURNEMOUTH WATER

100%

South West Water
« Development expenditure for a new £60 million
state-of-the-art North Plymouth water treatment works

» Detaled design of improved water treatment processes such as
granular activated carbon (GAQC) filtration and UV disinfection
at five water treatment works actoss the region

* Mains rehabilitation and flushing
« Pressure management and network modelling

* Investment in digital nfrastructure, including iImprovements
In retail engagement targeting a2 proactive and positive
customer experience

Bournemouth Water
* Mains replacement schemes and new mains development

= Water treatment upgrades including GAC replacement and
the addition of UV treatment at three sites

= Improvements to the disinfection process at Alderney water
treatment works

Furthermore, improved drinking water quality and drinking water
treatment efficency continue to be targeted through South
West Water's award-winning 'Upstream Thinking” prograrmmme of
catchment management

Delivered in partnership with a range of stakeholder groups,
wncluding wildhfe trusts and river authorities, Upstream Thinking s
combination of moorland restoration inibatives and agricultural
improvement schemes seeks to reduce the level of man-made
and natural contaminants in the region’s watercourses

Building on the programme s success in K5 (2010-2015), South
West Water s investing around £10 milion between 2015

and 2020 to delver improvements in 11 additlonal catchment
areas This will include 700 farm improvement schemes and the
restoration of ¢ 1,300 hectares of moorfand

At Bournemouth Water catchment management work has
commenced with our partner Natural England and Catchment
Sensitive Farming, working with farmers in the River Stour
catchment area to educate them about the effects of their actity
on raw water quality

www pennonannualreport co uk/20i6
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OUR OPERATIONS coNTINUED

WATER AND WASTEWATER

WASTEWATER

We aim to ensure the safe and efficient removal and disposal of
wastewater while minimising the likehhood of sewer flooding or
pollution affecting homes, businesses or the environment

During K5 (2010-2015) South West Water focused on a targeted
programme of wastewater treatment improvements while also
working to prevent potential fallure through increased monitoring
In 2015 the company's score for numeric comphance (the
percentage of wastewater treatment works deemed compliant)
at 95 8% remained above the K5 average but was shghily below
that of the previous year (2014 96 1%6) This highlights the need for
further enhancements as we strive to achieve 100% complance
by 2020

Our legacy of major investment to protect bathing waters,

in addition to accelerated bathing water quality schemes
implemented during 2014/15, was reflected in extremely positive
results for the 2015 bathing water season, which was assessed
under tougher new EU standards Of the 145 bathing waters
tested in the South West Water region, 141 (372%) were
classified 'sufficient’ or better, with more than 70% classified

as excellent’

PENNOMN GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Four bathing waters were rated as ‘poor, however this was

not attributed to any failure of South West Water's assets We
recognise that bathing water quality 15 dependent on a wide range
of factors and work continues, alongside partners including local
counals, community groups, landowners and conservationists to
tackle bathing water quality issues in a holistic and sustainable way

South West Water had zero 'senous (Category 1) pollution
incidents in 2015 and made a substantial reduction in the number
of pollution incidents overalt (Categones 1-4) However, there
were seven significant’ (Category 2) incidents compared with
three in 2014

A comprehensive performance review was undertaken that
identified blockages on the network as the largest pollution nisk
To improve the robustness of the wastewater network and
assets, a strategy 1s being implemented to increase monitoring
and maintenance We also continue to rase customer awareness
about sewer misuse

These improvements will also help to reduce the nisk of sewer
flooding While the annual level of 1ainfall was 1 elatively normal
for the year, the number of internal and external sewer floodings
was higher than the previous year as a result of extended penods
of heavy rainfall in the winter of 2015/16
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In addition te capital maintenance and improverment schemes, we
are working to improve our response times to flooding incidents
In the longer term a reduction in sewer flooding 1s also being
targeted through cur ‘Downstream Thinking programme of work
to improve urban drainage using low-cost sustainable technigues
including {andscaping and sustainable dranage systems (SuDS)

In 2015/16 this Included

+  Aveton Gifford, Devon {pictured, below) — tackling sewer
flooding In a joint project alongside the parish counal, the
school, county counal and househelders to reduce the amount
of surface water entering combined sewers

* Exmouth, Devon — locations have been identified where SuDS
would be most teneficial Community engagement and initial
designs are planned for 2016/17

» Kingsbridge, Devon — the development of an Integrated Urban
Drainage Model in partnerstup with the Environment Agency
and Devon County Council

Furthermore, we continue to work with organisations including
the Environment Agency and local counals on flood alleviation
orojects In 2015/16 this included the completion of a £2 million
scheme to protect homes in the Colebrook area of Plymouth

and support for the proposed Ervironment Agency and Cornwall
Counail-led £20 million flocd alleviation and t egeneration scheme
around St Austell (for which a funding bid has been submitted

to the EU) South West Water 15 alse providing financial support
for the Exeter Flood Defence Scheme

J J
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Technology to
improve sewer
network monitoring

The use of new technologies 1s a key
part of South West Water's approach
to improve both efficency and
sustainability During 2015/16 we trizlled
the use of SewerBatt — innovative pipe
inspection technology that uses sound
to assess the condition of sewers Itis
hoped that the roll-out of SewerBatt will
aliow for improved sewer deansing by
identifying blockages and other potential
causes of pollution much more quickly
than traditional methods

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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OUR OPERATIONS cONTINUED
WASTE RECYCLING AND RECOVERY

ENERGY RECOVERY FACILITIES (ERFs)

We are successfully establishing a significant asset
base of ERFs, with eight plants, representing

more than two-thirds of the committed portfolio
capacity, now In operation Peterborough ERF was
completed and became operational in December
2015 The process of ramping up towards
operational optimisation continues at the six

most recently delivered ERFs

Around 80% of the committed ERF portfolio 1s expected to be operational
by the end of 2016/17, and 1s on track to deliver ¢ £100 milhon of EBITDA in
2016/17 We expect to have c |8% ERF market share by 2020, with a network
of strategic faalities driving Viridet's longer-term profit srowth

Currently we have 142 megawatts (MW) of renewable energy capacity
from our eight operational ERFs, including our share of joint ventures, and
the Greater Manchester and Walpole anaerobic digestion (AD) plants We,
together with our jont venture partners, have a total operational/cormmiited
ERF capacaity of over 2 8 milion tonnes Approximately 80% of inputs
required across the ERF portfolic (operational and those under construction)
are nocw secured under long-term contracts, helping tc secure revenue
streamns and move to a more homogeneous risk profile across the Group

Of the three ERFs under construction, Dunbar and Beddington ERFs are
progressing as planned The Glasgow gasification plant 1s expected to enter
commussioning in HI 2016/17 Alf three remain on budget

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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ENERGY

Vindor's total energy capacity 1s changing in scale and across its
energy division, currently we have 277MW of operating capacity
from ERFs, AD and landfill gas (induding joint ventures} and
expect to export over one terawatt hour (TWh) of power to the
national gnd in 2016/17 Once the total committed ERF portfolio
1s completed in 2018/19, ERFs alone will prowide 242MW of
energy generation capacity

We have developec a portfolio management strategy to

help realise the full potential of this growth, with a team of
experienced energy market professionals to actively manage our
market position VWe have also implemented framework contracts
to enable us to *hedge out’ market nsk where approprate in the
longer term The business now has the ability to hedge its market
position for periods up to five years ahead In addion, the Group
has a natural hedging opportunity which represents one third of
Vindor's energy generation, as Scuth VWest Water 1s a net user
of electricity

During the period Levy Exempuon Certificates (LECs) were
discontinued with a modest impact on Vindor There have also
been changes to the Renewable Qbligation Certificates (ROCs)
regme However, Vindor's ROC accreditations are unaffected
by these changes Energy generation continues to be a profitable
business for us

Opportunities for decentralised energy and heat utilisation
(combined heat and power) at selective ERF and landfill gas
power generation sites are being developed

\ J \ J
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RECYCLING AND RESOURCES

During the year, our recychng volumes traded increased

by 121,000 tonnes (7 3%) to | 8 million tonnes Recyclate prices
were lower for the year of 2015/16 compared to 2014/15 Prices
have now stabilised to some degree for most commodities but
remamn under pressure reflecng world economic conditions and
competitive markets

Through the Input Throughput and Cutput Optimisation (ITOQ)
programme, we are targeting improvements in source material
guality {involving contract renegotiation where required)
restructuring, asset efficiency, productvity and yreld and speafic
quality control of outputs A number of contracts have been
successfully renegobiated enhanaing value and quality of inputs
Where new recycling contracts have been secured better gate
fees reflect the sharing of recyclate price risks with customers
and secure a better specfied quality of nputs These self-help
measures have resulted in marginal Increases compared to the
prior year

We continue to operate the most extensive Matenal Recycling
Facility (MRF} capacity in the UK Virdor is established as a
quality brand in the UK, European and Asian markets including
China, where 1t holds accreditations for export There are clear
long-term regulatory drivers for recycling from the EU and UK
Government, alongside expectations from chents, ncluding local
authontties, leading corporates and the business community

www pennonannualreport co uki2016
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OUR OPERATIONS cONTINUED
WASTE RECYCLING AND RECOVERY

LANDFILL GAS POWER GENERATION

Our landfill energy business 1s being managed to maximise the
value of landfill gas power generation, while exploring alternative
commercaal development opportunities and other energy uses
such as photovoltaics (PV) and enet gy storage at our landfill sites

At present we have 39MW of landfill gas capacrty (excluding
3MW capaaity at sub-contract sites in Sufiolk) Gas volumes
reached peak production in 2012/13 and have been reducang
gradually, partially offset by improved gas capture efficiency
In 2015716 the landfill gas power gener ation output was

only marginally down to 562 gigawatt hours (GWh)
(2014/15 602GWh), 1 eflecting a continued successful output
optimisation programme

Average revenue per megawatt hour (MWh) was 2 2% lower at
£9072 (2014/15 £92 72) reflecting the withdr awal of LECs The
switch from legacy Non Fossil Fuel Obligation (NFFO) contracts
to ROCs continues with 94% of energy now sold under the
higher value ROCs The remaining 6% NFFO component wall
migrate to ROCs in 2016/17 Average costs increased slightly to
£3476 per Mwh (2014/15 £33 19)

At Pilsworth landfill in Greater Manchester, Viridor

15 hosting an £8 million cryogenic energy storage

pilot project, funded by the Department of Energy

and Climate Change, which 1s due to become
operational shortly Landfill sites have very good
potential as energy reservoirs as most already
have established grid connections, making them

valuable for energy generation and storage Novel
energy storage options are being assessed through

Virdor's Technology and Innavation Forum

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

LANDFILL SITES BEING MANAGED FOR CASH
AND ALTERNATIVE USE

We have a strategy in place for landfill that will see the business
reduce the number of sites taking new waste inputs from 18

at the end of 2014/15 to a small number of strategic sites by
2020 Three landfills closed during the year with a fourth site
closing just after the year end This 15 1n hne with legislative moves
and economic drivers to divert waste away from landfill

While sites are being wound down to closure and aftercare
our emphasis remains on maximising the value of electricity
generation from landfill gas reducng costs and developing
opportunities for alternative uses for sites or divestment

We completed the divestment of Whitehead landfill and its
associated environmental hability, generating an operating profit
on disposal of £24 million (recorded within asset sales), and
continue to promote similar oppartunities for other sites with
development potential

The business continues to be cash generative as the wind-down
and aftercare programme accelerates Viridor s average gate fees
increased by 19 1o £20 14 per tonne Consented landfill capacity
reduced from 51 7 million cubic metres (mem) at 31 March 2015
10 474 mem, reflecting usage during the period and a disposal

As previously provided for, ¢ 34mem of Vindor s consented landfill
capacity 1s not expected to be used

Landfill tax continues to ncrease in line with inflation and rose to
£84 40 per tonne on | April 2016
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CONTRACTS AND COLLECTIONS

Performance across our major local authority contracts

around the UK (the more significant centracts indude

Greater Manchester, Glasgow Lancashire, Somerset and

West Sussex) and the Thames Water contract remains broadly
in ine with last year

Our large-scale contract successes in 2015/16 include a 25-year
contracted service for Tomorrow's Valley :n Wales (where four
local authorities have come together to create a £190 million
residual waste contract for 90,000 tennes per annum), a 10-year
contract with South Lanarkshire Counal {with a potential 5-year
extension) for treatment of 80,000 tonnes per annum of residual
waste via Dunbar ERF, and Clyde Valley in Scotland (where five
local authorities have come together to create a £450 milion
residual waste contract for 190,000 tonnes per annum over

25 years)

The solid performance of the collection business reflected the
benefits of sustained management action Collection remains a
key focus In securing increased input tonnages for the business

\ J /

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JOINT VENTURES

All three of Virdor's joint ventures continue to perform well

Vindor Laing Greater Manchester (VLGM), a joint venture
between Vinder and [ohn Laing Infrastructure, is delivering the
25-year Greater Manchester Waste PFl Now in its eighth year,
this remains the UK s largest ever combined waste and energy
project The recychng, recovery and waste management facilities
serving the contract, which handle in excess of one milhon
tonnes of material per annum, are operated by Vindor on a
sup-contract basis

Solid recovered fuel produced from the residual waste from
Greater Manchester is used to generate heat and power at
Runcorn | ERF (TPSCo, a joint venture between Virdor, John
l.aing Infrastructure and Inovyn), which has cperated well since it
came on line in 2015

The third joint venture at Lakeside ERF (a 50/50 joint venture with
Grundon Waste Management) i1s In its sixth year of operation and
continues to outperform its onginal power generation and waste
processing targets
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CUSTOMERS AND

COMMUNITIES

Pennon aims to be a good neighbour and
consults with its stakeholders in order

to understand and respond to their
priorities We aspire to have a positive
effect on quality of life, communities and
regional economies

PENNON’'S CUSTOMER STRATEGY

Central to our strategy 1s the management of the Group as

a sustainable and successful business for the benefit of all of

our stakeholders We recognise that consultation with our
customers, a key stakeholder group, 15 iImperative in order to
understand thewr priorities and deliver the level of service that
they require In turn, this helps us to bulld a sold reputation for
high quality customer service which contributes to the creation of
shareholder value

South West Water's customer strategy will be reafised through
delivery of its Business Plan to 2020, which places customer
priorities at the heart of all its services and activities aiming to
deal with customer requests, problems and queries quickly and
efficiently, and ensuning that the service provided repr esents value
for money for all customers, whether residential or business

Bournemouth Waters strong customer service ethos and
impressive track record of service excellence means it s well
placed to support the delivery of Pennon’s customer strategy
through the sharing of best practice

For Vindor, the focus 15 on a programme of imitiatives to enhance
the customer experience across its large and diverse range of
large corporate, commercial and local authonity clients, while
ensuring a consistent and transparent approach
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Pennon's water businesses maintained their previous high levels
of customer satisfaction dunng the year South West Water's
overall customer satisfaction remained broadly stable at §9%
(2014/15 90%), with satisfaction regarding value for money at
59%, 1% higher than last year For |6 years Bournemouth Water
has retained the bienmial Customer Service Excellence Award,
which 1t last recerved in 2014 This national award recogrises
service excellence across the measures of imeliness qualty of
information, professionalism and employee attitude

A key indicator of customer service performance for the water
businesses is the service incentive mechamism (SIM), which Ofwat
uses to compare the performance of water companies The

SIM score 1s calculated against a qualitative element (based on

a customer survey) and a quantitative element that takes into
account, among other things, the number of complaints receved
N writing or by phone South West Water's SIM score for the
year was 78 6 (continuing the improving trend of recent years),
and Bournemouth Waters SIM score at 86 2 remains one of the
highest in the industry

Vindor also conducted an extensive customer research survey In
2015, involving over 1,000 customers in sectors including retail,
education, food production and construction, as well as our
local authority clients The output of the research will help us to
take smarter business decisions in order 1o meet our customers'
needs, deliver customer benefits and drive business growth

RESPONSIVE TO CUSTOMERS’ NEEDS
Household water customers expect to have a choice of
commurication methods through which queries can be raised,
they expect their 1ssues to be resolved on the first contact and
as quickly as possible In order to meet this expectation, our
approach 15 to focus on recruitment, trasiming and employee
development, and enhance and promote the services we

offer ontine

South West Water saw an improverment in fit st tme : esolution
of contacts from customers duning the year, 1eflecting both
operational iImprovements and ongoing work to improve
customer service through the proactive delivery of information,
advice and support This includes the avadability of self-service
options and real tme information through digital platforms such
as MyAccount, Waterlive and BeachLive A revamped web
presence 15 also 1n development for 2016/17

Over ume, we intend to migrate Bournemouth Water to South
West Water's technology and systems to give customners more
choice and flexibility This will include providing an online biling
and account management facility, increasing use of electronic
communicaticn channels and introducing social media

Cur waste recovery and recycling services have been developed
N response to customer demands for ‘zero waste' recycling-led
services that reflect the waste hierarchy improve tesour ce
efficency and contribute towards a more circular economy



CVERVIEW GROUP PERFORMANCE

Virdor's customers expect to receive a high quality and reliable
service financial integrity and transparency, and the highest
standards of compliance An increasing number of Vindor's
customers also want clear auditing and reporting of recycling,
resource and carben management practices, alongside a
commitment to continucus improvement and engagement with
us as a supply chain partner

Vinder continues te offer a progressive and collaborative
approach to service and sustanability epriomised in the
aggregated services model we are developing with our partners
in Greater Manchester This is not only delivering results in terms
of mcreased recycing and landfill diversion but 1s supporting and
contributing to the regions decentralised energy and low carbon
ambitions, arming to attract further inward investment within the
broader context of the ‘Northern Powerhouse'

SUPPORT FOR THOSE WHO NEED IT

South West Water has impiemented a range of innovative
iIndustry-leading schemes to assist those custormers with
affordability or debt 1ssues, such as its WaterCare+ scheme and
initiatives delivered in partnership wath Citizens Advice

We were one of the fit st water companies 1o introduce a social
tanff to ease financal pressures on very low income customers
and to introduce the FreshStart grant scheme to assist those new
to debt as a result of a downturn in their personal arcumstances,
such as a bereavement or long-term illness

Through partnerships with social housing providers, we

are providing affordability help and advice to residents in order to
buld positive customer relationships and reduce customer debt
During 2015/16 this included targeted work with Teign Housing
and North Devon Homes which resulted in a 170% increase

In the uptake of affordability schemes increased metering and
significant debt reduction

J \ )

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNANCE

Bournemouth Water also offers a range of support and payment
options Specally trained and experienced employees, together
with local debt charities, help customers manage their bills

i imes of financial hardship With customet s' support, we

are looking to introduce a social taniff later in 2G16 to help the
most vulnerable in the community

METERING

South West Water and Bournemouth Water continue to
promate the benefits of metering, Including water efficiency, the
identfication of leaks and the savings that can be made 80%

of South West Water's customers are now metered (2014/15
79%) with & 058 installations carried out over the past year for
customers switching to metering In 2015/16, Bournemouth
Water installed 2,553 meters against a target of 1,860 70% of all
Bournemouth Waters customers are now metered

NON-HOUSEHOLD RETAIL STRATEGY
Preparations are being made to maximise the opportunities
presented by the cpening of the non-household retail market in
2017 while continuing to improve the services provided to our
business and commercial customers

A separate legal entity has been created, Pennon Water

Services which operates from Bournemouth This company will
provide retail and water management services to our ¢ 85,000
non-househald custamers, wha will be eligible for the water
retall market in 2017, through our existing brands — South West
Water Business Services, Source for Business Avon Valley Water,
Bournemouth Water Business Services and Aquacare

A key part of our non-household strategy will be to capitalise
on Viridor's national footprint, focusing on existing customer
relationships and exploring the opportunities to provide
value-added services

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES

CONTINUED

PENNON’S COMMUNITY RELATIONS
STRATEGY

We am to ensure that all our business acovities have a positive
impact on the communities in which we operate With over 1,000
operating facilites and treatment works, it 15 mportant that we
maintain the highest operational standards, meet commuruty
expectations and deliver clear community benefits in our service
areas We achieve this by

= undertaking our activities in a way ihat mimimises potential
adverse effects on society the environment and on those living
or working in proximity to our sites

* ensuring a positive econormic Impact on the local economy
through the provision of essentral services employment and
supply chain opportunities

* conducting open and transparent engagement with local
communities and taking into account their needs and prionhies

* making community nvestments that ¢t eate benefits for both
the cormmunity and the Group's core businesses

= fosienng an environment that encourages employees to
engage with communities and provides opportunities for
establishing partnerships with community organisations

Both South West Water and Vindor have developed ther

own strategies to deliver Pennon’s commurnity vision South
West Water 1s focusing on sttengthening its profile within the
communities it serves, creating opportunibies for employee
engagement and developing long-term collaborations with charity
and sponsorship pariners, ncluding the Royal National Lifeboat
Institution, the Devon and Cornwall Food Association, the Devon
Wildhfe Trust and the South West Coast Path Association

Viridor offers structured and transparent programmes

of community investment linked to its core business and
guided by its community strategy Such activiiies include an
annually reviewed programme of targeted charrtable gvng
and sponsorship, education and engagement and employee
valunteerng opportunities
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In 2016 beth Vindor and South West Water receved 2 5 stars
out of five in the Business in the Commumity s 2016 Corporate
Responsibility (CR} Index This 15 a rigorous and robust
benchmarking tool which has helped hundreds of companies
measure and manage the progress they are making to integrate
responsible business practice into their mainstream business at
all levels

Bournemouth Water prowvides support through commurity
volunteering and the company maiches the fundraising of

its employees Employees of both South West Water and
Bournemouth Water continue to support WaterAud via regular
gving and participating in events and challenges, helping to bring
safe water and sanitation to those desperately in need

During 2015/16 Pennon provided a total of £12 | milon in
community support, spensorship and charitable donations, of
which £11 8 millon was paid to Vindor Credits!? for distribution
via the Landfill Communities Fund

COMMUNITY SUPPORT, SPONSORSHIP
AND DONATIONS

SOUTH WEST WATER

200112 79,858
2012/13 73,301
2013/14 90,921
2014/15 106,188
2015/16 136,250

VIRIDORY* (£m)

2011412 104
201213 107
2003/14 135
2014115 12 8
2015/16 12.0

* Including amaunts paid to Vi dor Credits for distt bution via the Landfill
Communities Fund

(13 Vindor Credits 15 an independent not-for-pr ofit argamsation that was set up ta
administer Vindors contribunons to the Landbll Communities Fund
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UPDATE: VIRIDOR STREET TREES - GREATER MANCHESTER

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Vindor's nnovative urban tree planting project n partnershup with Red Rose Forest, an environmental

charity, celebrated its {ifth year n 2015/16 The partnership seeks to reward key recycling customers
by allowing them to give something back to therr local communities and contribute to a greener
Greater Manchester, by identifying local streets and working with communities to plant and maintan

semi-mature street trees

The partnership has directly engaged 1,092 residents planted 154 semi-mature trees and improved

3,144 metres of urban roadside

Via its regional educational programme, Vindor will continue to support Red Rose Forest s new
movement ~ City of Trees — which airns to plant three mullion trees in the next two decades, one for
every man, woman and child in Greater Manchester

RECREATION AND LEISURE

The recreational opportunities and faalities avalable at South West
Water's reservairs are managed on its behalf by the South West
Lakes Trust Sailing, fishing, windsurfing wakeboarding, nature trails
and cycling are just a few of the activities the trust helps to facilitate
A highlight for 2015/16 was the achievement of a Green Tounsm
Gold Award for Wimbleball Lake in December 2015, recognising
the trust's work to promote sustainable tounsm

Bournemouth Water owns around three-quarters of Christchurch
Harbour, together with the tidal reaches of both the Stour and
Avon rivers, and offers fishing in the harbour and the Lower Stour,
as well as a range of fishing iocations at Longham Lakes We also
manage a wide range of moorings in the harbour which provides
easy access to one of the most popular areas for boating on the
south coast

CUSTOMER CAMPAIGNS

We strive to engage educate and inform residents and businesses
about water usage, sewer blockages, waste prevention and best
practice in tecycling and rescurce efficiency

In Greater Manchester an updated communications plan for
2015-2018 has been developed to drive behavioural change
and increase recychng in communities that have been identified
as mid-performing and hard to reach Vindor also works with
Somerset Waste Partrership and West Sussex County Council
to deliver comprehensive educational and behavioural change
programmes to a wide range of stakeholders

In 2015 South West Water taunched its 'Love Your Loo'
community engagement campaign aimed at reduang sewer
blockages and sewer flooding incidences The campaign began
in Falmouth, where the local public torlets receved the ‘red
carpet’ treatment in an attempt to engage local residents and
visitors to the area

EMPLOYEE VOLUNTEERING

South West Water has an active volunteering programme that
enables staff to take part in agreed community projects including
beach cleans and habitat restoration These are often inked
with external groups, such as Keep Britain Tidy and the regions
wildlife trusts In 2015/16 the voiunteenng programme included
tree planting and woodland expansion at Park Lake a designated
County Wildhfe Site in North Cornwall

Virdor employees continued to fundraise for their preferred
charities, including Breast Cancer Now, Jeans for Genes, Save
the Children and Vindor's main charity partner, the Children’s
Air Ambulance A new partnership with Plantiife, an organisation
that promotes the protection of wild flowers and plants, was
recently confirmed

Bournemouth Water encourages its employees to spend three
days each year working en community initiatives with charitable
organisations, schools, wildhfe trusts and other community
partners Volunteering resulted in 201 5 employee days being
spent in the community duning 2015/16
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CUSTOMERS AND COMMUNITIES

CONTINUED

SUPPORT FOR EDUCATION

To promote environmental sustanability and increase the fevel
of understanding about the sectors in which we operate we are
actively engaged with schools colleges and universities Pennon
Group provides educational resources and activities ranging from
school talks to work expenence placements and site visits

In 2015/16 Vindor welcomed over 17,000 students and visitors
to its 11 educational fackties The visitor centre at Ardley Energy
Recovery Faciity (ERF) won the Chartered Institution of Wastes
Management s award for Waste and Resource Learning &
Development for its work ta educate children about the benefits
of reducing, reusing and recycling waste, and energy recovery A
new education facility at the Glasgow Recycling and Renewable
Energy Centre is planned for 2016/17

Bournemouth Water has developed a bespoke water efficiency
education programme, Waterwise, which 15 available free to all
schools within the company's area of supply

INSPIRING THE NEXT GENERATION OF
ENGINEERS

Viridor's flagship educational partnerships with the Engineering
Development Trust's ‘Go4SET’ programme in Scotland and
Business in the Community's ‘Business Class’ programme

are helping establish long-term productive partnerships with
secondary schools These mnovatve programmes closely align
with the science, technology, engineering and mathematics
(STEM) curriculum with real world applications in industry and
help to inspire and connect students with career opportunities in
these important fields

In Wales Virdor runs a programme for 'Girls into STEM that
supports the ambition of the Engineering Education Scheme
Wales (EESW) to encourage more young women to take up
educational and career options in engineering and science
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SKILLS FOR THE FUTURE

South West Water 15 a leading partner, together with the
Unwersity of Exeter and South Devon College, in the
development of a new University Techmical College {UTC) for
South Devon, based in Newton Abbot The coilege which
opened in October 2015, places a unigue focus on engineerning,
water and the environment and caters for up to 600 young
people aged between [4 and 18

Students will achieve academic and technical qualfications,
enabling them to progress to positions as technicians, apprentices
and graduate engineers, thereby making a valued and sustanable
contribution o the industry and the region

UNIVERSITY PARTNERSHIPS

Vindor collects the waste and recycling for a number of
universities including the universities of Exeter, Kent and
Glasgow Our partrerships with these key customers have
shown impressive results In Exeter we secured a three-year
contract with the potential to extend for another two This will
deliver th: ee fundamental objectives to improve the institution's
recycling rate by providing support and education to unversity
staff and students, an upgrade on vehicles that will allow a
pay-by-weight solution and the delivery of zero waste to landfill

Viridor has secured a further three to five-year contract with
the University of Kent This long-established relationship has
seen the university achieve a recychng rate of 65% We continue
to support the Its zero waste strategy by helping it to further
increase recycling and utihse cur ERF for energy generation

In 2015/16, South West Water supported a successful bid, led
by the University of Exeter to secure £07 million from the
European Commissions Horzon 2020 programme The funds
will be used to conduct pioneering investigations inte how
policymakers can develop strategies to meet the cmate
change challenges facing water, food and energy provision

Bournemouth Water has maintaned s successful partnership
with the Students' Union at Bournemouth University and with its
support, continues to run campaigns to engage students with the
aim of Increasing awareness of the social impact of non-payment
of their blls
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REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS

As an essential service provider and a significant employer and
user of third party services, South West Water has a major
economic Impact on its regron We work with local enterprise
partnerships {LEPs) and are actively invelved with European
Structural Fund and Rural Development Programme Monitoring
Commuttees to support economic growth resilience and match
funding opportunities for defivery partners

South West Water also works with partners to maximise funding
opportuniies on behalf of the communities 1t serves Alongside
Cornwall Councll and the Environment Agency, we are part of

a bid to secure European Union funding for a £20 milhon flood
defence scheme in South East Cornwall

Viridor's programme of investrnent which includes the UK's
lar gest power plant programme over the last five years, has

* provided 3 700 construction jobs and 470 new, full-ume
skilled jobs

= supported 90 construction apprentices and 50
construction graduate tranees, along with 230 work
placement cppertunities

« spent over £190 million with SMEs and other supply <hain
partners in the communities around our facilities

QOur ERF construction projects will continue to add to the already
significant community benefits provided As an example, Vindor
and 1ts contractors are firmly committed to realising an ambrtious
package of communty benefits as part of the delivery of the

£177 millon ERF at Dunbar, East Lothian Over £3 million of
sub-contracts have been awarded to local companies, and a series
of 'meet the buyer’ and job events have been held with more
planned for the coming year

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAINS

Supply chain engagement remains an integral element of
sustainable business practice and delivers real economic and
social benefit

Seuth West Water annually places approximately £/100 million of
order value with companies which have a base in the region Qur
procurement process sets standards for how individual suppliers
approach economig, finanaal and environmental sustainabihity and
ngorous steps are taken to ensure they meet strict criteria in this
regard The water business operates a ‘mixed economy supply
chain model which uses smaller specialist companies alongside
larger strategic partners Following the merger with Bournerouth
Water, the existing procurement strategy s being carried forward
across both companies

Vindor continues to strengthen its approach to procurement
and supply chain refationships wia its procurement team and
has a wide range of policies and protocols in this impartant
area These include a policy on sustainable procurement which
utihses whole-Ife costings and criteria to ensure clear social and
envirenmental responsibility for goods and services procured
This appt oach helped deliver benefits of over £2 6 millien in
2015/16, demaonstrating long-term value for us and, in turn,

our customers

Examples of activities supporting Pennon's sustanable
precurement objective include the adoption of in-cab technology
that monitors driver behavicur and helps to reduce acadents,
fuel usage and carbon emissions, the tral of electric and

hybrid vehicles as part of a review of the transport fleet, the
introduction of imits on CO, emissions for company cars,

and, at Vindor, a tender for the procurement of new printing

and photocopying equipment that will reduce the amount and
cost of printing, as well as a move to environmentally friendly
office supplies

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

As a business within which the environment
I1s so closely correlated with its core
activities, Pennon is acutely aware of its
environmental impact and obligations

We understand that the scale of our
operations brings responsibilities in how
we manage our workforce and operational
activities, and we are committed to
working in the most environmentally
sustainable way possible

PENNON’S ENVIRONMENT STRATEGY

We are committed to the conservation and enbancement of
the natural environment Cur strategy involves applying best
practice and targeting nnovation to ensure the sustainability of
our activities, maximsing the efficiency of our use of resources,
reducing waste, increasing recycling and fully exploiting
opportunities for renewable energy generation

Across the Group we are focused not only on meeting
environmental standards but also the drve 1o find new ways of
working that deliver better envirecnmental cutcomes Qur water
businesses take rigorous steps to protect the environment during
the extraction treatment and delivery of drinking water and, for
South West Water, the removal and safe disposal of wastewater
(see 'Our Operations’ on pages 28 to 31) Vindor's mission

to give the world s resources ‘new life’ directly contnbutes to
environmental sustainability
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

WATER BUSINESS — RECYCLING VOLUMES

(tonnes of dry solids)

2001112 54,612
2012413 45,304
2013/14 34918
201415 41,300
2015/16 38,000

WASTE BUSINESS ~ RECYCLING VOLUMES
TRADED (million tonnes)

2001112 18
2012113 19
2013/84 18
201415 17
2015/16 1.8

GROUP RENEWABLE ENERGY
GENERATION Gwh)

2011412 775
2012413 839
2013/14 795
2014/15 949
2015/16 1,496
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RENEWABLE ENERGY
BREAKDOWN 2015/16

WATER AND WASTEWATER

1} Hydro - 12 8GWh
2) CHP -5 IGWh

3) Solar PV - 7 3GWh*
4) Wind - 0 3GWh

TOTAL - ¢ 25 5GWh

* This ncludes 5 |GWh of cutput from two private wire schemes — Polmaugan (Restormel) and
Wadebndge Renewable Energy Network (Nanstallon) — and 0 3GWh of Bournemouth Water solar
energy generation

WASTE RECYCLING AND RECOVERY

1) ERFs — 903GWHh

2) Anaerobic digestion - 3GWh
3) Landfill gas — 562GWh

4) Solar PV - 3GWh

TOTAL - 1L, 471GWh

Looking ahead, South West Water has commistted to buying power from
Virrdor, via its electnaty supplier, Total Gas & Power and we are also
investigating additional private wire renewable energy opportunities with
developers and community groups across the South West region

GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

CONTINUED

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Pennon aspires to [eadership n minimising emissions that
contribute to chmate change and recognises that improved waste
recycling and recovery contributes 1o the associated UK and EU
ckmate change adaption strategies

CHANGE IN GROUP EMISSIONS

Our overall net emissions increased by 21% between 2014/15 and
2015/16 (see table on page 45) prmarnly as a resuft of the addition of
new Energy Recovery Faciities (ERFs) that became fully operational
dunng 2014/15 The proportion of Group emisstons assigned 1o such
plants has more than doubled in the year as we seek to move our
focus away from landfill towards investment in energy recovery

Qur emissions intensity measure of tCO2e/£100,000 revenue
also increased from 92 tCO2e/£100 000 to 112 tCO2e/£100,000
as a result of the Group's ermissions growing at a faster rate than
its revenue

South West Water reduced its carbon emissions to 158 891
tonnes of carbon dioxade equivalent (tCO2e) (2014/15 166,370
tCO2) This was in part due to a reduction in the emissions
factor applied to usage of imported electricity from the

national gnd which, as a result of a fall in coal-fired electricity
generation, reduced by almost 7% between 2014/15 and 2015/16
Bournemouth Water (which, having been acquired in Apnil 2015,
15 included in Group reporting for the year 2015/16 only) was
responsible for 1% of total Group net emissions in 2015/16 with a
carbon footprint of 16,844 tCO2e

Vindor's overall emussions increased to 1,354 686 tCO2e (2014/15
1,906 tCO2e) atthough emissions from landfill operatons
continued to decrease

CARBON REDUCTION STRATEGY AND TARGETS
Consisient with the overall Group strategy, we are exploring
synergies across our businesses with a view to idenufying
areas of best practice for carbon management and to develop
common goals

Qur businesses' strategies are based on the optimisation and
efficiency of plants and treatment works through a surte of energy
management techniques {including performance monitoring and
maintenance of assets, such as Bournemouth Water's pump
replacement programme), as well as the use of new technologies
{(such as remote operating systems, cryogenic energy storage, the
installatton of LED lighting and solar PV), community initiatives to
encourage greater water efficency {which reduces the amount
of water to be pumped around the network), measures for the
reduction of transport emissions {including a trial of electric and
hybrid vehicles) and the promotion of In-house energy efficency
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Our long-term goals are

 To reduce the carbon footprint of our waste management
business by 35% by 2020 from a 2011 baseline of 1,231,762
tCO2e Thsis an ambitious target, given the challenges of a
landfill wind-down and aftercare programme in the operating
landfill busmess happening in parallel with bnnging a fleet
of ERFs into operation In addition, Virdor s aspiration s to
become 20% more efficient in terms of the fossil fuel-based
energy It uses

* In our water and wastewater business, South West Water's
target 1s to reduce emissions to less than 150,000 1CO2e
by 2019/20 The scope and boundary of thrs target includes
emissions from the regulated business, which includes Scope |
and 2 emissions and significant Scope 3 emissions (see page 45
for definiticns) This will represent a 12% reduction from the
2014/15 baseline

88% of the Group's gross emissions can be attrbuted to our waste
management business In the short term, our increasing fleet of
ERFs will continue to contribute to a significant propertion of our
carbon footpnint We anticipate that in the long term, however,
our energy recavery activities and their related combined heat and
power schemes will help to deliver a step-change iImprovernent
over landfill In addition, although energy intensive for our business,
the displacement of virgin materials in manufactunng supply chans
with recycled materal contributes to significant reductions in
embodied carbon across preduct iife cycles (although this offset falls
outside greenhouse gas reporting scopes)

INITIATIVES DURING THE YEAR

A number of initiatives relating to renewable energy generation
and energy efficency were mplemented or progressed during the
year This includes the Burrator Dam hydro scheme, a 160 kilowatt
turbine generating ¢ 250MWh per annum, which South West
Water brought on line iy April 2015 The water business has also
commissioned two solar PV schemes in Cornwall one of which

1s 2 250kW array generating 270MWh per annum for Camborne
Wastewater Treatment Works in Cornwall {approximately 12%
of the site s total usage) and the other a 100kW array {pictured)
supplying Nanstalion treatment works via a private wire supply and
20-year power purchase agreement with VWadebndge Renewable
Energy Network The promaotion of energy efficiency internally
has continued through South West Water's 'Powerdown inbiative
which focuses on the 20% of the company's energy consumption
that comes from process treatrment and non-operational activities,
for example, ultraviolet disinfection process control, heating,
lghting, cooling and computer usage

Within the waste recycling and recovery business we have
recently installed solar power at seven of our facilities which walt
generate 841kW of renewable energy and significantly reduce
the demand for etectricity from the national grid, as well as
saving money, boosting energy output from a renewable source
and reducing the need for fossil fuels In addition, our strategic
objective of utlising closed landfill sites for alkernztive energy
generation and storage technologles 1s progressing well (see
page 34 for further details)

Vindor South West Water and Bournemouth Water
operate separate energy management systems and each 1s
registered to 1SO 50001 201t by ndependent external UKAS
accredited assessors
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PENNON GROUP PLC GREENHOUSE
GAS EMISSIONS

201516 2014/15
Scope | 1351192 i 105 242
Scope 2 157089 148,317
Scope 3 56 764 56 966
Tatal gross emissions 1,565,044 1,311,125
Green tanff electnaty offset (2041 {1018)
Exported renewable energy {155 048) {147899)
reduction (up to total amount
of electricity purchased and
consumed by organisation)
Total annual net emissions 1,407,955 1,162,208
Biogenic emissions outside 1,767,878 1,214,455
of scopes
Intensity measure tCQO,e (gross 12 92

Scope [+2)/£100 000 revenue

Scope | (direct emissions) Activities owned or controlled by our organisation
that release emissions straight nto the atmosphere for example the combustion
of fuels in company-owned and company-controlled stationary equipment

and transportation emissions from site based processes and site based

fugriive emissions

Scope 2 (indirect enussions) Emissions released into the atmosphere assoclated
with our consumption of purchased electriaity heat steam and cooling These

are indirect emissions that are a consequence of our activities but which occur at
sources we do not own or control

Scope 3 (other indirect emissions) Emissions that are a consequence of our
actions which occur at seurces that we do not own or control and that are not
classed as Scope 2 emissions

NOTES

METHODOLCGY AND APPROACH

We have retained last y=ar's approach in applying the ‘equity share’
methedalogy for Vindor and its subsidiary companies This means
that emissions fram jeint venture operations can be accurately
attributed to the company in proportion to the percentage of
Vindor's holding The remaining companies in the Group continue
10 use the ‘financal contre! approach Thisis the conventional
method for parent companies and subsidiaries within a group that
have the ability to direct financial and operating polices and retain
the majority of the organisation's risk and rewards

QUANTIFICATION AND REPORTING

We have followed the Government's gurdelines for mandatory
greenhouse gas emissions reporting published by the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) In June 2013
{and updated in October 2013) In calculating our ermissions we
have used the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard {revised editicn) and the web-based
conversion factors provided by DEFRA

We have adopted the revised emissions conversion factors
published by DEFRA in 2015, which are based on a hugher rate for
the global warming potential (GWF)} of methane gas " Despite
this, emissions from our landfill operations have continued to
decrease, faling a further 3% between 2014/15 and 2015/16

\ AN J

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bournemouth Water was acquired by Pennon Group on |15 April
2015 and accordingly Bournemouth VWater's emissions have been
included in this greenhouse gas report for 2015/16

ORGANISATIONAL BOUNDARY

The emissions listed here cover the Pennon Group of comparnues,
each of which uses the financial control approach, with the
exception of Vindor which uses an equity share approach

OPERATIONAL SCOPES
We have measured our Scope | and 2 emissions and certain
Scope 3 emissions where information 1s available

INTENSITY MEASUREMENT
We have chasen an intensity measure of Scape | and 2 gross
emissions in tCO2e per £100,000 revenue

EXTERNAL ASSURANCE STATEMENT

Qur greenhouse gas emissions data has been independently
verfied by Strategic Managernent Consultants wheo tested the
assumptions, methods and procedures that are followed in the
development of the reported data and audited that data to
ensure for accuracy and consistency

CARBON OFFSETS

We rely on self-generated renewable energy to reduce our
overall Scope 2 emissions We supplement this with power
purchase contracts with third parties for renewable energy
through private wire where it 1s avallable near our sites

RENEYYABLE ENERGY EXPORT

Pennon Group self-generates more electricity than it uses and
much of its renewable electricity generation 1s exported to the
national gnd We account for this exported renewable electricity
IN our net emissions measure where we subtract ‘emissions
credits’ up to the Imit of our gross volume of Scope 2 ermissions

(1) The GWP of methane gas has nsen from 21 to 25 umes the GWP of carbon dioxide
under the Fourth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Chimate
Change which 15111 hne with the calculation of emissions for UK GHG Inventory
reporting under the Kyoto Protocal

www pennonannualreport ¢o uk/2016
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

CONTINUED

BIODIVERSITY

We recognise the importance of environrental stewardship,
and the protection and enhancement of natural capital

and biodiversity

BIODIVERSITY BENCHMARK SCHEMES

In additton to managing 14 active landfill sites and other
substantial landholdings Vindor also continues to care for 3!
closed landfills across the UK Using our expertise in restor ation,
we can take a number of different approaches to closing a fandfill
restoring farge tracts of land to heathland, grasstand woodland
agriculture, amenity parkland or a combination of these schemes,
and Vindor seeks to restore and manage is sites in accordance
with clear biodiversity plans

Some sites are also bemng restored and managed to attain the
Wildlife Trusts’ Biodwversity Benchmark Scherne (BBS) The BBS
18 a national standard which recognises continual biodiversity
Improvement to restore and manage habntats for existing plants
and wildlife, recreate new habtats once alternative land use has
ceased, and finally to work towards developing a network of
habrtats in the local area

Virdor currently has nine sites that have achieved and retained
the Biodiversity Benchmark These include sites of notable habitat
mportance such as two heathland restorations (Tatchells and
Warmwel! in Dorset) and a grassland restoration that has national
significance for birdlfe (Beddingharm in Sussex)

These transformations have been so successful that the sites have
become havens for several rare and endangered species Dormice
and bats at Odcombe and sand lizards, adders and woodlarks

at Tatchells and Warmwell are all thriving thanks to careful land
management and support from partner organisations such as

the RSPB

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ECOLOGICAL BASELINE ASSESSMENTS

Good ecological baseline assessment 1s key to producng good
management options for enhancing biodiversity and creating
healthy ecosysterns Bournemouth Water has been focusing its
work on establishing a baseline for all habitats and species on its
properties many of which are designated as special protection
areas, special areas of conservation or sites of special scientific
interest, such as the banks of the River Avon at the Knapp

Mill site

SITES OF SPECIAL SCIENTIFIC INTEREST

There are nine sites of special soentific interest (5551s) In South
West Waters region and six in Bournemouth Water's region
South West Water 15 the only water and wastewater company
to have met the 2010 targets for SSSI land condition, with 95%
of the total area classed as *favourable’ or ‘recovering’ We are
now working to bring all of our land with 5551 designation to
‘favourable’ status by 2020

Virdor also actively manages eight S55Is on five of its sites
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NON-NATIVE INVASIVE SPECIES

In order to protect native biodversity and ecosystems South
West Water and Bournemouth Water montor, report and
assess the extent and potential impact of non-native invasive
species on therr sites and remove them as appropriate We also
work to protect any known protected species on our sites, for
Bournemouth Water, this has included the creation of roasts for
its resident bats

RESTORATION OF PARK LAKE

Park Lake, a former china clay pit on Bedmin Moor, has been
transformed by South West Water from a ‘moonscape of waste
sand and mica’ to a designated County Wildhfe Site and home to
rare plants and arimals

Park Pit was turned into a reservoir by South West Water after
we entered into an agreement with the former owners, Imerys,
to manage the surrounding land as an exemplar of post-industrial
restoration Planning conditions were met by 2012 but, working
in partnership wath local environmental groups and volunteers
we have continued with an integrated management programme
of restoration

Work has included restoration of wetlands, control of invasive
species and the introduction of managed grazing which has led

to 1t being described by local conservatiorists as one of the best
sites on Bodmin Moar far wildlife [t is now home to the second
largest colony of the tormentl mining bee in Cornwall, breeding
populations of the nationally scarce small 1ed damselfly, 15 species
of dragonfly ncluding the keeled skimmer and black darter and
the marsh fi itllary butterfly, making it a natuonaily important site
for conservation

\ VIR J
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CATCHMENT SENSITIVE FARMING

Bournemouth Water works dosely with Natural England and
Catchment Sensitive Farming to protect the quality of raw water
sources through managing the catchment area and wisiting farmers
inv the catchment area with the aim of educating them about the
effects of their actvities on raw water quality The key areas of
focus are helping farmers find cost-effective, alternative solutions
to the use of pestiades and ensunng that ivestock 1s kept away
from rivers to reduce the potential for contamination

www penaonannualreport co uk/2016
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OUR PEOPLE

Across Pennon the most important
element for the delivery of our strategic
objectives 1s our people It 1s our goal to
attract, nurture and retain a dedicated,
highly trained workforce

PENNON’S WORKPLACE STRATEGY

Pennon relies on the talent and professionalism of its employees
and 1s committed to their health, safety and wellbeing, which it
sees as investment in the Group's long-term human caprtal and
directly related to sharehclder value We am to develop and
motivate employees, treat them fairly and ensure they are fully
engaged in all aspects of the Group's objectives Through this
approach, we seek 1o mantam a pipeline of talent thais well
placed to lead and serve our businesses as they grow and adapt

We are commitied to employee engagement, training and
development, and equality and diversity and provide ongotng
support through a range of workplace policies These cover areas
such as health and safety, equal opportunities human rights
ethics, employee relations and family-friendly policres such as
flexble working and parental leave, and schemes designed to
promote the health and wellbeing of employees

RIDDOR INCIDENTS"

01 59
2012 52
2013 40
2014 35
2015 4200
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

We strive for the highest standards of health and safety in the
workplace 56 as 1o mmimise acadents, incidents and lost ume
Both the water and wastewater businesses and the waste
recychng and recovery business are working hard to embed
health and safety within the culture of the orgamisation, reduce
risk and achieve zero inaidents across the Group

At South West Water performance in respect of
RIDDOR-reportable mjuries was mantained at the same
level during the calendar year 2015 as in 2014 wth a total

of seven reportable inuries (an ncidence rate of 520 per

100 000 employees) none of which nvolved a serious inury
(2014 7 incidents, 552 per 100,000 employees) Bournemouth
Water had one RIDDOR-reportable imjury (@ rate of 490 per
100,000 employees)

During the same penoad Vindor expenenced 47 RIDDORs of
which 34 involved employees (an incidence rate of (,063 per
100,000 employees) In addition, there were nine inaidents involving
agency colleagues, three invelving contractors and one involving

a member of the public Disappomntingly, this was an increase

from 30 incidents the previous year (28 employees and two

agency workers) and the 2014 inadence rate of 889 per

100,000 employees

Vindor has committed to delivering a new Safety Health,
Ervironment, Quality ancd Sustainability (SHEQS) strategy centred
on the vision of 'ne harm to people and environment’

Building on our world-class safety record within our ERF and
capital investment programme, we have adopted a ‘beyond

a millon approach with employees and contracting partners
which targets over a million safe working hours on each project
During 2015/16 this was exemplified at the Glasgow Recycling
and Renewable Energy Centre, which achieved the milestone one
mifion safe hours worked with no RIDDORs during construction

Following a major review of its operational sites dunng 2014/15,
South West Water undertook a number of activities n 2015/f6
1o further reduce health and safety risks This includea the
roll-out of a Dynamic Risk Assessment training package, designed
to help front-ine operational personnel undertake advanced

risk assessment

South West Water made progress with its Lone Worker

project to further safeguard staff working alone This has seen
the introduction of wearable hardware known as TWIG™,
which can monitor body movement and rasse alerts if patterns of
movement synonymous with injury trips or falls are detected We
explored the use of remote technologles including aenal drones
to provide improved risk assessment and physiotherapy to
provide employees with timely treatment, reduce the nisk of
longer-term injury and thereby minimise lost working time due
to absence Health safety and wellbeing also continued to be
promoted through a variety of internal campaigns including ‘TAP’
("Think Act, Prevent’) and ‘Hang on a Sec which was focused on
raising awareness within wastewater operations

{1} Incidents involving employees under the Reporting of Injunes Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations

(2) Since 2012 reportable Inaidents have been reported on seven days absence in
previous years they were reported on three days absence

(3) Bournemouth Water incidents included for 2015 only
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Bournemouth Waters strong safety record s underpinned by
a comprehensive programme of traming, audit and inspection
Sentor managers are required to accompany comphiance
personnel in conducting regular audits to ensure that they are
famihar with the requirements, can interrogate processes and
bring fresh perspectives to bear

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

South West Water's ‘People Strategy' conuinues to foster a
culture of support and motivation for stafl Various programmes
are In place to encourage career development, and we continue
to review and expand these to ensure we have the nght balance
of skills for the years ahead

In 2015/6 South West Water s employee development
programme incuded

+ continuing with the programme of skdlls-based training for
operational staff (started in 2014/15)

* supporting over 120 first-ine, middle and senior managers
through three tiers of management development programmes
(Managing for Success (M45), STEP and LEAD)

* continuing to grow and expand our award-winning
apprenticeship programme (85 apprentices have been recruited
to the apprenticeship programme since 1t started in 2011)

Bournemouth Water has retained the Gold standard of the
Investors in People accreditation and South West Water has
retained its Silver status

Virdor believes strongly in helping all colleagues to reach thesr full
potential and has structured traning programmes to develop and
nurture employees at all levels of the business

Aswell as its range of employment benefits, Vindor offers popular
traning epportunities for employees who wish to progress within
the company Last year, colleagues across the waste business were
provided with over 6 500 training days Virdor's pioneenng
management degree programme, developed in partnership with
Edge Hill University wall give its future leaders the skills necessary
to build on their existing knowledge and expertise So far 40
supervisors and managers have completed the degree, which was
launched in 2012 and seeks to bridge the gap between technical
expertise and manageral knowledge The latest round of students
began their studies in Apnl 2015 with a further 30 currently on the
programme and due to graduate n 2017

In addition, Viridor has a graduate management training scheme
that aims to develop the next generation of managers and
technical experts to support the changing nature of its business
This programime I1s open to internal and external applicants with a
degree or equivalent qualification

\ NG )
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The two-stage development starts by providing a thorough
understanding of Vindor's operations and services, framed within
the wider context of the recycng and waste industry This sees
candidates participating in a rotating programme around core
areas of the business

The second year nvolves an extended, and possibly permanent
placement with clear objectives backed up with regular reviews

In 2015 we recrurted three graduates onte Vindor's training
scheme and of the |2 past attendees of the scheme currently !0
are n permanent positions across the business

APPRENTICESHIPS
Apprenticeships provide a legacy for the skilis and knowledge that
are integral to the Group's core businesses

In 2015/16 the water business recruited 24 new apprentices
which brings the current total to 89 apprentices recruited

since 2011, ncluding four at Bournemouth Water South West
Water receved a number of accolades during the year including
Large Employer of the Year (South West) at the National
Apprenticeship Awards and the retention of our Top 100
Apprenticeship Employer status

Viridor offers a wide range of apprenticeship programmes in
different areas of its business, from Engineering Technician to
Business Administration Assistant

Over 23 apprenticeships are currently registered across our
waste management business All employees are offered a wide
range of training and career progression opportunities

Vindor 1s currently working alongside Energy & Utiity Skills and
other organisations in its ndustry and beyond to develop and
delver a seres of traitblazing apprenticeships in waste recycling
and recovery

www pennanannualreport co uki2016
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OUR PEOPLE
CONTINUED

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

Engaged staff are critical to our success Employees who are more
engaged feel safer and are invotved in fewer acadents at work,
take fewer days off sick and receive more positive feedback from
customners Put simply, working to improve engagement is a key
part of working to improve overall performance and sustatnability

South West Water, Bournemouth Water and Virdor undertake
employee surveys at regular intervals

Virndor's most recent survey, which utilised the Gallup Q12
methodology showed an impressive 77% response rate, up

from 39% in 2014/15 We also saw an increase in the overall
engagement score with nearty one-third of employees ranking as
actively engaged in our purpose and values, well above the UK
average of Gallup's users Resultant areas of focus for 2016/17
mnctude management development, more emphasis an recognising
and rewarding effort and a more structured approach to
performance management and career progression

South West Water's 2015 employee survey, which was carred
out by Ixia, also showed a 77% response rate, up 4% on the
prior year The Engagement (ndex remained at 74% (against
Ixia’s benchmark of 70%), wath areas of focus including more
communication on company changes more recognition of effort
and the sharing of rationales for decision-making
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CONSULTATION AND SUPPORT

At South West Water, director-led brefing sessions and a formal
consultation regarding the integration of Bourmnemouth Water
commenced In January 2016 A comprehensive employee support
programme was made avallable for those affected

In February 2015 Vindor announced a new operating model to
meet the needs of current and future market condrtions and to
provide a platform for growth in line with its business strategy
The plans which were subject to consuftation with affected
employees, include proposals to close a small number of sites

and merge the company's South West and South East operating
regions Affected employees were offered full support and where
appropnate, assistance with finding alternative opportunities
outside the Group

WORKPLACE DIVERSITY
We are committed to providing equal epportunities and
impraving diversity within our workforce

Virider has established a new 'Diversity in Action' group

whose specific am (s to promote and encourage a culture of
inclusion where all colleagues are treated fairty and are given
every opportuntty to learn grow and excel in their careers with
us The group’s initial focus 15 on improving gender diversity The
majority of Viridor's employees are male (83 8%), reflecung a
traditionally male-dorminated industry The ratio 1s similar across
senior management with 16 2% female This 1s just short of cur
goal of increasing the number of women to at least 20% by the
end of the 2015/16 financial year

In South West Water over 25% of the workforce 1s female,
although in the craft and industnal group female ratios are
very low at less than 1% We are focusing on this as an area for
improvement, In particular in operational and technical roles

GENDER DIVERSITY asat 3 March (%)

Employees 924 194

2015 3836 80 6

Employees 1,054 204

2016 4105 796

Senior || 164
management

W15 56 836

Sentor 2| 219
managament

016 75 78 |

Board 2 250

2015 I3 750

Board 2 286

Wis g 714

Women Men
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RISK REPORT

The Group faces a number of risks which, If they arise, could affect its
ability to achieve Its strategic objectives The Board is responsible for

identifying principal risks and ensuring appropriate risk mitigation is in

place to manage them effectively

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Successful management of existing and emerging risks 1s essential to the long term success of the Group and
the achievement of its strategic objectives Pennon has established a fully embedded Group risk management
framework, to identify significant nisks and determine whether they are being approprately managed

and mitigated

With Pennon’s strategic decision to move towards a more hemogeneous Group risk profile, the risk
management framework has evolved to ensure risks are being managed in line with the Group's agreed

risk appetite To support this transition, a Group Risk Forum has been established to provide a ‘top down’
assessment of Group risks, to supplement the ‘bottom up risk assessments by each substdiary The key stages of
the risk process are

* Identificauon of significant nisks by core business functions, utthsing agreed risk critena based on a
combination of likelihood over a five-year penod, and impact based on financial, reputational, management
effort and impact on stakeholders and customers,

* Principal and other business risks are captured in risk registers which are examined and challenged as part of
a robust assessment of the nisks and key mitigations, controls and assurance activities that have been defined
by risk owners The assessment considers gross nisk net nisk after mitigation, and risk appetite, as well as the
direction of travel of the risk level,

* Quarterly nsk and assurance forums are held to review principal risks, with management justifying ther
bottom-up risk assessments through formal reports and presentations, and

* Prnapal nsks faced by each subsidiary are reviewed and confirmed on a quarterly basis by the subsidiary
executive management boards, following which the Group Risk Forum completes a comprehensive
top-down evaluation of risks that could impact on the delivery of Group strategic objectives The Forum
consists of senior executives and its role is to debate, challenge, agree and prioritise the principal risks
faced by the Group, based on the rnisk appetite set by the Board The risk assessment i1s then subjected to a
thorough appraisal by the Audit Committee before formal presentation to the Board for approval

RISK APPETITE

Risk appetite 15 defined as the tevel of risk it s considered appropriate to accept in achieving Group strategic
objectives The approprateness of the mitgation appled to each principal risk 1s considered by the Board in the
context of the effectiveness of the overall cortrol environment in ensuring compliance with risk appetite

ROBUST RISK ASSESSMENT

The Directors confirm that they have carned out a robust assessment of nsks facing the Group The following
table describes the prinapal nsks and how they are being managed or mitigated in line with the Board's nsk
appetite These principal risks have been considered 1n preparing the wiabiity statement on page 55

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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RISK REPORT cONTINUED

Key

Risk Level

Low

Medium

High

The low medium and high risk level 1s our estimate of the
net risk to the Group after mitigation [t s important to .
note that risk 1s difficult to estimate wrth accuracy and

therefore may be more or less than indicated

O

Increasing Unchanged Decreasing
Current assessment of direction of travel of risk level T (—9 J,
LAWY, REGULATION AND FINANCE
Principal Risks Mitigation Net Risk Direction | Risk Appetite
Compliance wich Robust regulatory framework ensures . 1\ High standards of
law, regulation complance with Ofwat, Environment complance are sought with
or decisions by Agency and other requirements Full no appetite for legal and
Gavernment and engagement In consultations on reform of regulatery breaches
regulators, including policy and legislavon, helps influence change As regulatory reform 1s

water industry reform | through effective stakeholder relationships

Good progress has been made in preparing
for regulatory reform We are fully engaged
in the Water 2020 programme including
upstream regulatory reform External
reviews support the assurance letters
required by the Market Operator

progressing we aim to
mirmise the impact by
targeting changes which
are NPV neutral ever the
longer term, to protect
shareholder value and
customer affordabilty

Maintaining Clear treasury and funding policies and an
sufficient finance effective Group Treasury team
and funding to meet Funding in place at effective average

QNgoIng commitments | nierest rates below many in its sector,
with prefunding and headroom including
revolving credit facilities, to meet future
funding requirements

Ensure funding
requirements are fully
met by maintaining
prudent headroom

Non-compliance Rigorous health and safety complance . 1\ High standards of

or occurrence of systems policies and procedures are in compliance are sought with

avordable health and place across the Group, supported by a nc appetite for compliance

safety naident programme of capital investment te further breaches wilhin the Group
reduce sk and third party operations

Uncertatnty arising Professionally qualified and experienced . 1\ Full complhance with HMRC

from open tax In-house tax team, supported by external requirements Residual

computations where specialists A dedicated team 15 working risk 15 higher on some

habihties remain to with HMRC to expediate the agreement of historic arrangements

be agreed outstanding tax items
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MARKET AND ECONCMIC CONDITIONS
Principal Risks Miugation Net Risk | Direction | Risk Appetite

Non-recovery of
customer debt

Water business debt collection strategies
kept under review with new initiatives
regularly implemented

 targeting previous occupier debt after
customer moves

spealfic case management and use of court
claims, and

* use of charging orders

Affordability tanffs (e g Restart, WaterCare,

Fresh Start) help to reduce bad debt
exposure for customers strugghing to pay

Virdors debt collection sk 1s lower due to
the high proportion of public sector accounts

\ w4

Minirmise non-recoverable
debt We recognise
customer affordability
challenges and that given
the inability to disconnect
domestic customers,
some risk of uncollectable
debt remains

Macro-economic
risks arising from

the global and UK
economic downturn
impacung commodity
and power prices

Vindor 15 well positioned across the
wasle hierarchy, with long-term contracts
supporting the ERF segment The

ITOO (Input, Throughput and Output
Optimisation) programme helps focus on
recycling performance in mitigating the
impact of global ecenomic conditions on
commodity prices

Energy risk management at a Group level
acts as a natural hedge between SWW

and Virdor, offsetting the drop in power
prices Existing investments that quahfied
for Renewable Obligation Certificates are
protected by the 'grandfathering’ procedure

Taking welljudged risks
and having response

plans in place to mitigate
external macro-economic
risk factors down to an
acceptable level

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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OPERATING PERFORMANCE

Principal Risks

Mitigation

MNet Risk

Direction

Risk Appetite

Poor operating
performance due to
extreme weather ar
climate change

Contingency plans, emergency resources
and investment through a planned capital
programme mitigates the nsks of extreme
weather ncidents

We prepare a Water Resources
Management Plan every five years and
review it annually for a range of chmate
change and demand scenarios with
various schemes promoted to mantan
water resources {e g pumped storage foi
reservoirs), conservation and customer
water efficiency measures

Vindor has in place a regional adverse
weather management strategy, aimed at
reducing disruption to site operations and
transport logistics

A

Reduce both the likelihood
and impact through long
term planning and ensuring
sufficent measures are in
place to mitigate risk

Poor custamer service/
increased competition
leading ta loss of
customer base

Targeted improvements made to improve
customer service and SWW s relative
industry standing during the Ké pericd

Vindor s strategy to diversify inta energy
1ecovery has offset the dechine n landfill
and current challenges in recycling
Vindor 15 exploring alternative uses for its
landfill assets

Good customer service 1s
at the heart of everything
we do Continually

seek 10 increase
customer satisfaction

Mirimise the impact of
market reform by defendmg
the existing customer

base whilst developing
further markets

Bustness interruption
or significant
operational failures/
incidents

Detailed conungency plans and incident
management procedures

Equipment fallure 1s managed through
sophisticated planned preventative
maintenance regimes Any disruption
15 alleviated by good haisen

and communication

Effective business continuity
and contingericy plans

in place to mitigate the

risk and accelerate the
recovery from an inadent
with residual risk covered
by insurance

Dufficulty in
recruitment, retention
and development of
appropriate skills,
which are required

to deliver the

Group's strategy

Succession plans are in place The recent
Group restructure, Vindor transformation
and integration of Bournemouth Water has
sirengthened the executive team but in turn
have the potential to iImpact morale

Appropriate skills and
experience in place, with
good succession plans

to mitigate mpact on
strategic plan

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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BUSINESS SYSTEMS AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT
Principal Risks Mitigation Net Risk Direction | Risk Appetite

Fallure or increased
cost of capital
projects/exposure
to contract faillures

Skilled project management resource and
oversight boards provide rigour to the
delvery of major projects Due diligence
on suppliers technologies and acquisitions
Back-to-back agreements and supplier
guarantees provide protection

Regular reporting of performance on major
contracts and post project appraisals

<

Pennon's investment
activities are based on
taking well-judged risks for
appropriate returns

Fallure of informatuion
technology systems,
management and
protection including
cyber nisks

Major systems implementation 15
supported by a formal programme
governance framework supplemented by
specialist consultants

Cyber risks are mitigated by a strong
information security framewark cyber
security awareness campaigns plus

Robust systems in place
to support business
activity, with strong cyber
protection to minimise a
growing risk

1SO accreditation

internal and external testing and formal

VIABILITY STATEMENT

The Board has assessed the Group's financial wiability and
confirms that it has a 1easonable expectation that the Group wall
be able to continue in operation and meet its labilities as they
fall due over a five-year penod The assessment, has been made
with reference to the Group's current positon and prospects, its
longer-term strategy, the Board's risk appetite and the Group's
principal risks and how these are managed, as detaled on

pages 5| to 54 of the risk report

The Group's strategic business plan and associated principal

risks are a foundation of the scenario testing This assessment
has considered the potential impact of these risks arising on the
business model, future performance, solvency and hquidity over
the peried In question In making their assessment, the Directors
reviewed the principal risks and considered which risks might
threaten viabihity It was determined that none of the individual
risks would in ssolation compromise the Group's viability, so a
number of plausible risk combinations were considered to stress
test the plan, primarily by reducing revenues, increasing costs and
impacting cash flows The Board considered the monetary impact
of these scenarios over a five-year period, to ensure that they did
not adversely impact the Group's viabiity

In making the assessment, the Directors have taken account of
the Group s robust capital solvency position, its ability to rase
new finance and a key potential mitigating action of restricting any
non-contractual payments

In assessing the prospects of the Group the Directors note
that, as the Group operates n a regulatory industry which

potentally can be subject to non-market influences, such
assessment 1s subject to uncertainty, the level of which depends
on the proximity of the time horizon, and accordingly the future
outcomes cannot be guaranteed or predicted with certainty

As set out in the Audit Committee s report on page 68, the
Directors reviewed and discussed the process undertaken
by management, and also reviewed the results of the stress
testing performed

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This strategic report, consisting of pages 4 1o 51, contains
forward-looking staternents regarding the financial position,
results of operations, cash flows, dvidends, financing plans,
business strategies, operating efficencies, capital and other
expenditures, competrtive positions, growth opportunities,
plans and objectives of management, and other matters These
forward-looking statements including, without bmitation, those
relating to the future business prospects, revenues, working
capital, hquidity, capital needs, interest costs and income

in relation 1o Pennon Group and its subsidianies, wherever
they occur in this strategic repart, are necessanly based on
assumptions reflecting the views of Pennon Group and its
subsidiary companies, as appropriate

They wvolve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those suggested by the
forward-looking statements Such forward-looking statements
should, therefore, be constdered in the hght of relevant

factors, including those set cut in this section on principal risks
and uncertainties

The strategic report consisting of pages 4 to 55 was approved by the Board on 24 May 2016

By Order of the Board

HEBHrguo

Helen Barrett-Hague
Group Company Secretary
24 May 2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

CHAIRMAN'S =
LETTER TO '
SHAREHOLDERS

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

In my first corporate governance report on behalf of the Board, | am
pleased to confirm that it was evident to me on my appointment that
the three essential pillars of a successful board were in evidence in

the Pennon boardroom, namely having strong financial control, sound
administration and good governance | place great importance on all
these facets but maintaining good governance 1s central to the successful
management of every board and to the creation of shareholder value as
set out In our business model on pages 10 and 11

I am committed to ensuring that Pennon Group continues to operate
to.the highest standards of corporate governance and in my first few
months as Chairman | have reviewed in consultation with the Non-
executive Directors the Board governance structure The result 1s a
more streamlined structure as described in this report on page 62 whilst
ensuring that the water business remains rning-fenced in accordance with
Ofwat regulatory requirements

The annual report is the principal method of reporting to

our shareholders on the Board's governance policies and the

practical application of the principles of good corporate governance

set out In the UK Corporate Governance Code {the UK Code)

The UK Code is published on the Financial Reporting Councl (FRC)
website, www frc orguk In accordance with the FRC's requirements,
we have reported against the latest version of the Code, which is
effective for reporting periods commencing on or after | October 2014
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ROLE OF THE BOARD AND ITS EFFECTIVENESS

My primary role as Charrman 1s to prowvide leadership to the
Board and to provide the right environment to enable the
Directors and the Board as a whole to perform effectively to
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of s
shareholders In doing so we take account of the interests of our
custormers, employees, suppliers, the communities in which we
operate and other interested stakeholders including Ofwat, the
Drinking Water Inspectorate, the UK environment agencies and
other regulatory bodies in the UK

| believe our revised Board structure reinforces the good
governance that was in place before | became Chairman

and will enable us to continue to operate effectively and
cohesively as a Board It 1s my responsibility each year to fead a
detalled performance evaluation of the Board and each of the
Committees The aim s to identify further areas for improverment
and ensure that our knowledge, skills and processes remain
relevant as the Group's businesses develop and grow Further
details of the review, which was facilitated by an external
governance consultancy. are set out later in this report

The revised Board structure also assists in ensuring that all Board
members continue to have appropriate up-to-date knowledge
and understanding of our businesses as we pursue our refreshed
strategy described in the strategic report

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We maintain appropriate and regular dialogue with our
shareholders to ensure that there 1s a good understanding of our
raticnale for our strategy and our performance actions It also
allows shareholders to provide feedback on the matters they
consider to be important and any issues which require addressing

We have a comprehensive investor relations programme During
the year some 85 meeungs and conference calls were held and
Pennon attended six City conferences and salesforce briefings
hosted by investment banks This engagement covered both
current and prospective shareholders, the majonity of which are
institutional, with the remainder being a selection of large private
client Investment managers

Over the year we also held a series of analyst and investor
bnefings focused on particular industry themes and key areas of
our business These included a Vindor Waste Market Briefing, 2
South West Water Briefing on delvering and outperforming the
K6 business plan and an analyst and investor day in Manchester
including site visits to Viridor's Runcorn Energy Recovery Facility
and Longley Lane Matenals Recycling Facility In addition to

these events Pennon heid its inaugural Capital Markets Event in
February, focusing on recent Board and management changes and
Group strategy

N J

GOVERNANCE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

The Chief Financial Officer continues to report to the Board
regutarly on major shareholders’ views about the Group, and
every six months the Company s brokers present to the Board on
equity market developments and shareholder perceptions This
ensures that the Board is fully briefed an the views and aspirations
of shareholders

I 'will actively encourage the participation of our shareholders at
our AGMs and will welcome questions on any business issues
affecting the Group As usual, at our 2016 AGM on | July all our
Directors intend to be present together with a number of other
senior executives of our businesses to meet with shareholders to
further explain the developments in the Group

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPOQRATE
GOVERNANCE CODE AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

| am pleased to report that througheut the year the Company
complied with the provisions and applied the main principles set
out in the UK Code with no exceptions to report

My introduction to this corporate gavernance report and the
following sections are made in comphance with the UK Code,
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) Listing Rule 98 6 and FCA
Dusclosure and Transparency Rules 7 | and 72 and cover the work
of our Board and its Committees, our internal control systems
and procedures including risk management, our corporate
governance statements relating to share capital and control, our
confirmation of the Company as a going concern and Directors’
responsibility statements Finally, in accordance with reporting
requirements, on page |01 the Board confirms to shareholders
that the Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole s fain,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary to assess the Company's performance, business model
and strategy

ir John Parker
Chairman
Pennon Group Plc
24 May 2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board considers each of its Non-executive Directors
to be Independent in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Board believes its Directors have an appropriate range of
experience 10 oversee the business of the Group

COMPOSITION s at 31 March (%) (%)
2015 Executive 375 2015 Male 750
2015 MNon-executive {inc. chairman} 625 2015 Female 250

2016 Executive 43.0 2016 Male 7.4

2016 Non-executive (Inc chairman) 57.0 2016 Female 28.6

EXPERIENCE asat 31 March @ TENURE asat 31 March (%)
201S  Industry 375 2015 0-3 years 500
2015 Finance 500 2015 4.6 years 125
2015 Governance 12§ 2015 7-10+ years 375

2016 Industry 43.0 2016 0-3 years 57.0

2016 Finance 43.0 2016 4-6years 14.0

2016 Governance 14.0 2016 7-10+ years 29.0

The Board's target to achieve 25% female representation was achieved early, before the 2014/15 year end However, during a penod of
transition on the Board, the female representation fell to 22% between April and July 2015 but then increased to 28 6% following the

2015 AGM

CHAIRMAN

Sir John Parker
GBE FREng, DSc (Eng), 5cO (Hon), BSc (Hon),
DUniv (Hon), FRINA

Sir John was appointed to the Board as Deputy Chairman on | April
2015 and became Chairman on | August 2015 He 1s also chairman of
the Nomination Commiitee

Sir John 1s recogrised as a highly expenenced and independent
chairman and brings a wealth of leadership experience across a range
of Industries He was previously the chairman of National Grid Ple
senior non-executive director and chair of the Court of the Bank of
England, deputy chairman of DP World, joint chair of Mondi and chair
of BVT and P&O Plc

External appointments

Sir John 1s the chairman of Anglo American Plc He is also a
non-executive director of Carnival Corporatton and Airbus Group
Sir John 1s a Visiting Fellow of the University of Oxford and was
president of the Royal Academy of Engineering from 2011 1o 2014

Sir John's significant commitments in the year have reduced with tis
stepping down as deputy chairman of DP Warld in July 2015

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Christopher Loughhn
BSc Hons, MICE, CEng MBA

Chnis was appointed to the Board on | August 2006 upon joining
Pennon Group as Chief Executive of South West Water He became
the Group Chief Executive on | January 2016 Chns 15 chairman of
the Pennon Executive Management Board and a member of the
Sustainability Committee

Chris was previously chief operating officer with Lioyds Register
and earlier In his career was an executive director of British Nuclear
Fuels Plc and executive chairman of Magnox Electric Plc He was
also a senior diplomat In the British Embassy Tokyo Chris started
his career as a chartered engineer working in both the consulting
and contracting sectors and subsequently held 2 number of senior
positions with Briish Nuclear Fuels Between Apnl 2008 and March
2012 he was chairman of Water UK

External appointments

Currently Chris 15 vice chairman of the Cornwall Local Enterprise
Partnership and a trustee and member of the audit committee
of WaterAid He 1s a board mernber (and past president) of the
Institute of Water
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DIRECTORS

Marun Angle
BSc Hons, FCA, MCSI

Independent Non-executive Director
Martin was appointed to the Board on

{ December 2008 He is chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit, Neminatien and
Sustainability Committees

Formerly Martin had senior positions with
Terra Firma Capital Partners and various
of its portfoho companies, induding the
execuuve chairmanship of Waste Recyching
Group Lirnited Before that he was the
group finance director of Tt Group Plc
having previousty held a number of senior
investment banking positions with SG
Woarburg & Co Ltd, Morgan Stanley and
Dresdner Kleinwort Benson

During the year, having completed his full
terms of office, he retired from the boards
of GAQO Severstal, Shuaa Capital psc and
the National Exhibition Group where he
was charman

Excternal appointments

Martin1s currently the senior independent
director at Sawvills Plc the vice chairman

and non-executive director of the FIA
Foundation and the adviser to the board of
the Commercial Bank of Dubai

lan McAulay
BEng, CEng, MICE, MCIWEM

Chief Executive, Viridor

lan was appointed to the Board on 9
Septernber 2013 He 15 chairman of
the Vindor Executive Management
Beoard and a member of the Pennon
Executive Management Board and the
Sustainability Committee

lan was previously chief of global strategy and
corporate development with MWH Global
based in the US and before that he was the
managing director capital programmes, at
Urited Utilives Plc lan started his career as

a consulting civil engineer and held a number
of positions with Crouch & Hogg in Glasgow
and subsequently Montgomery Watson
which merged in 2001 with Harza to form
MWH Global

External appointments

lan 1s a member of the board of the
Environmenital Services Association, the
Greater Manchester Low Carbon Hub
board and the Scottish Government’s 2020
Climate Group

GROUP PERFORMANCE

Neil Cooper
BSc Hons FCMA

Independeant Non-executive Director
Neil joined the Board on | September 2014
He s chairman of the Audit Committee and
Is currently a member of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees

Nell was previously group finance direcior
of Williars Hill Ple and before that he was
group finance director of Bovis Homes
Group Plc He also held senior finance
roles with Whitbread Plc worked for
PricewaterhouseCoopers as a management
consultant and held a number of roles with
Reckitt & Calman Plc

External appointments

Neil s currently the chief financial officer of
Barratt Developments Plc

Gill Rider
CB, PhD, CCIPD

Semor Independent Director

Gill was appointed to the Board on 1
September 2012 She s charman of

the Sustainability Committee and a
member of the Audit, Remuneraton and
Nomination Committees

Formerly, Gill was head of the Civil Service
Capability Group in the Cabinet Office
reporting to the Cabinet Secretary and
prior to that held a number of senior
positions with Accenture LLP culminating in
the post of chief leadership officer for the
global firm She was previously president
of the Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development and a non-executive director
of De La Rue Pic

External appointments

Gill currenily holds non-executive
directorships with Charles Taytor Plc, where
she 1s senior independent director and
Intertek Group Plc She s chairman of both
their remuneration committees She is also
chair of the counal (board) of the University

of Southampton

GOVERNANCE

_ J

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Susan Davy
BSc Hons, ACA

Chief Financial Officer

Susan joined the Board on | February 2015
She 1s a member of the Pennon Executive
Management Board Susan is a graduate
qualified chartet ed accountant with 20 years’
experience In the vtility sector

Susan was previously finance and regulatory
director of South West Water, a position 1o
which she was appointed in August 2007
Prior to joinung Pennon Group she held

a number of semor posts with Yorkshire
Water including head of regulation and head
of finance in 1ts Waste Water Unit and was
head of finance for Brey Utilities, a joint
venture company owned by Yorkshire Water
and Earthtech Engineenng Lirnited

External appointments
Susan 1s a councll member of
CBI South West

GROUP COMPANY
SECRETARY

Helen Barrett-Hague
Solator, LLB Hons

Group General Counsel &

Company Secretary

Helen joined Pennon Group as Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary to
the Board in March 2016

She began her career in private practice
before moving In-house n 1999 Helen
subsequently held positions of Increasing
responsibility with the Generics Group
AG Aveva Group Plc and Alent Plc She
has worked both in the UK and overseas
and has extensive corporate experience
including capital raisings, inrtial public
offenings corporate restructuring mergers
and acquisitions She has previously held a
number of non-executive directorships
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

THE BOARD AND IT5
GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board and its new governance framework introduced in Apnil 2016, which
Incorporates a ‘plenary’ style of operation, I1s set out below The Board has a
‘matters reserved’ schedule setting out its responsibilities, and each Committee
has a detaled terms of reference setting out its responsibilities, accountabilities
and reporting obligations to the Board Further details of the responsibilities

of the Pennon Group Board Committees are set out in the report of each
Committee on pages 66 to 76 These, together with the risk management and
internal control frameworks described on pages 51 and 65, form an effective
and robust governance structure designed to manage and develop the Group in
accordance with the Group’s strategy to maintain and grow shareholder value

(THE BOARD

Consisting of the Chairman, the Group Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the
Viridor Chief Executive and three independent Non-executive Directors [n addition, three
independent South West Water non-executive directors attend Board meetngs and contribute
to the Board's discussions

N— iV

4 \
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Members three independent Pennon Non-executive

N~ Directors Two independent South West Water

nen-executive directors attend Cormmittee meetings and

\contnbute to the Committee discussions Y,

N GROUP EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT BOARD

/
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Members three independent Pennon Non-executive

Ne Directors Two independent South West Waier Chaired by the Group Chief Executive
non-executive directors attend Committee meetings and Officer and consistng of principal
\contnbute to the Committee discussions y, executives of the Group

d ™N
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Members the Charrman and three independent
N Pennon Non-executive Directors with three 1

independent South West Water non-executive
directors attending when South West Water
matters are considered

/ SOUTH WEST WATER VIRIDOR EXECUTIVE
( SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE " | EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
L Members two independent Pennon MANAGEMENT BOARD BOARD
Non-executive Directors and two Executive Chaired by the South West Chaired by the Vindor Chief
Directors Two independent South West Waler Water Managing Director and Executive and consisting of
non-executive directors attend Commuttee consisting of principal executives principal executives of Vindor
\ neetings and coniribute to Committee dlscussmrE/ of South West Water

/
N
The South West Water board continues to operate as a separate iIndependent board for regulatory and

statutory purposes and consists of the Chairman, the Group Chief Executive Officer, the Managing Director

and the Finance Director of South West Water, and six independent non-execuuve directors

/
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND INDEPENDENCE

At the end of the year the Board of Directors comprised the Chairman, three Executive Directors and three Non-executive Directors
Al of the Non-executive Directors were considered by the Board to be ndependent throughout the year None of the relationships
or arcumstances set out in provision B [ | of the UK Corporate Governance Cade (the UK Code) applied to the Directors listed

on the next page other than in respect of Gerarg Connell who retired on 31 July 2015 While Gerard had served on the Board for
more than nine years since his first election, he was determined by the Board to be independent, and the Board was satisfied that he
demonstrated independence of character and judgement in the performance of his role on the Board up to the date of his retirement

Sw John Parker, who was appointed to the Board on | April 2015 as Deputy Chairman, succeeded Ken Harvey as Chairman following
the 2015 Annual General Meetng Sir John met the iIndependence critera set out in provision B | | of the UK Code on tis appointment
as Chairman and there have been no significant changes to his external comrmitments since his appontment

Following the acquisition of Bournemouth Water in Apnl 2015 Chris Loughiin and Gerard Connell were appointed as non-executive
directors on the Bournemouth Water board That board, following the merger of South West Water and Bournemouth Water on 3|
March 2016 ceased to operate and was disbanded

All Directors are subject to re-election each year in accordance with provision B7 | of the UK Code

DIRECTORS’ SKILLS AND ROLES

All of the Non-executive Directors are considered to have the appropriate skills experience in ther respective disciplines and
personality to bring independent and objective judgement to the Board's dehberations Their biographies and the experience chart on
pages 60 and 6| demonstrate collectively a broad range of business finanaal and other relevant experience

Neil Cooper 15 chairman of the Audit Committee and in accordance with the UK Code and FCA Disclosure and Transparency Rule
711 he has recent and relevant financial experience (as set out in his biography on page 61) Martn Angle 1s also a member of the Audrt
Committee and he has relevant financial experience as set out in his biography on page 61

There s a clear separation of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive divided between managing the
Beard and the business, while they of course maintain a close working refationship

All the Director s are equally accountable for the proper stewardship of the Group's affairs but they do have specfic rales, which
include those set out below

Position Director Role

Charrman Sir John Parker *+ Leading the Board and settng its agenda

Promoting the highest standards of integrity and probity and ensuring good and effective governance

Managing Board composition performance and succession planning

Prowviding advice support and guidance to the Group Chief Executive

Representing the Group and being available to shareholders

Discussing separately with the Non-executive Directors performance and strategic 1ssues

Group Chnis Loughlin » Managing the Group and providing executive leadership
g;f'_d Executive » Developing and proposing Group strategy
er * Leading the cperation of the Group in accordance with the decisions of the Board
= Co-ordinating with the Chairman on important and strategic 1ssues of the Group and providing input to
the Board's agenda
+ Contributing to succession planmng and implementing the orgarusational siructure
= Leading on acquisiions disposals business development and exploiting Group synergies
> Managing shareholder relations
Senior Gll Rider + Assisting the Chairman with shareholder communications and being available as an additional point of
Independent contact for shareholders
Director * Being avallable to other Non-executive Directors if they have any concerns that are not satisfactonly
resolved by the Chairman
* Leading the annual evaluation of performance of the Chairman with the other Non-executive Directors
Executive Susan Davy * Supporting the Group Chief Executive Officer in providing executive leadership and developing
Directors lan McAulay Group strategy

Reporuing to the Board on perfarmance and developments within thewr business areas

Implementing deasions of the Board

Managing their own speafic business responsibiliues

Non-executive  Marun Angle
Directors Neil Cooper
Gill Rider

Critically reviewing the strategies proposed for the Group '

Critically examining the operatonal and finanaal performance of the Group

Evaluating proposals from management and constructively challenging management s recommendations

Coniributing to corparate accountabdity through being active members of the Commitiees of the Board
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

THE BOARD AND ITS

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

CONTINUED

BCARD ATTENDANCE, OPERATION AND ACTIVITIES
The Directors and their attendance at the |0 scheduled meetings
of the Board during 2015/16 are shown below

Appointment

Members dace Attendance
Kenneth Harvey March 1997 4/4
{Charman untit 31 July 2015)

Sir John Parker April 2015 90
{Deputy Chairman and

Non-executive Director

until 31 July 2015 and

Chairman thereafter)

Non-executive Directors

Martin Angle December 2008 10/10
Gerard Connell October 2003 4/4
Neil Cocper September 2014 9/10
Gill Rider September 2012 10710
Executive Directors

Susan Davy February 2015 10/10
Christopher Loughlin August 2006 10410
lan McAulay September 2013 10/10

Sir John Parker and Neill Cooper were each unable to attend a
Board meeting on one occasion due to a prior commitment that
was scheduled before thewr appomntment to the Board

In accordance with the governance framework set out on page
62, the Board has a schedule of matters reserved for its decsion
The Board delegates more detailed consideration of certan
matters to Board Commuttees, to the Executive Directors

and to the Group General Counsel & Cormpany Secretary, as
appropriate The matters reserved to the Board include

= approval of the full-year and half-year results announcements

+ the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts (including the
financial statemenis)

« all acguisitions and disposals

= major items of capital expenditure

+ authority levels for other expenditure

* nisk management process and monitoring of risks

+ approval of the strategi plan and annual operating budgets
= Group policies procedures and detegations

+ appomntments to the Board and its Committees

The Pennen Group Board now operates as a plenary board
covering Group and Vindor matiers and separately, when
appropriate, as the board of South West Water This 1s to ensure
governance of South West Water in compliance with Ofwat's
principles on board leadership, transparency and governance

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

The Board operates by receming written reports circulated usually
in advance of the meetings from the Executive Directors and the
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary on matters within
theirr respective business areas of the Group When appropriate,
the Board also recerves presentations on key areas of the business
and undertakes site visits to gain a betier understanding of the
operation of business initiatives

Under the guidance of the Chairman, all matters before the
Board are discussed openly Presentatrons and advice are receved
frequently from other senior executives within the Group

and from external advisers to facilitate the decision-making of

the Beoard

BOARD SUPPORT AND TRAINING

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary and the Board has
an estabiished procedure whet eby Directors, in otder to fulfil
ther duties, may seek independent professional advice at the
Company's expense

Newly appointed Directors receive a formal induction which
includes an explanation of the Group structure, regulatory and
legal issues, the Group governance framework and pohaes, the
Groups approach to nisk management and its principal risks
(financial and non-financial) duties and ebligations {including
protocols around cenflicts of interest and dealing in shat es), and
the current actmties of the Board and its Commuttees Directors
also visit operating faclhites across the Group and have meetings
with staff to receve briefings on key processes and systems

The training needs of Directors are reviewed as part of the
Board's performance evaluation process each year Traiming
censists of attendance at external courses organised by
professional advisers and also internal presentations from
senior management

PERFORMANCE EYALUATION

The Board has well-developed internal procedures to evaluate
the performance of the whole Board, each Commitiee the
Chairman, each ndwidual Director and the Group General
Counsel & Company Secretary

The evaluation of the performance of the Board and its
Committees was facilitated by an external governance
consultancy, Lintstock All participants’ views were sought via an
online questionnaire on a range of questions that were designed
by Lintstock following consultation with the Chairman and

the Group General Counsel & Company Secretary to ensure
objective evaluation of performance Responses were then
analysed and summarised by Lintstock for the Board and each
Committee to consider and determine possible improvement
areas Apart from providing services relaung to pension scheme
board and committees’ performance evaluations and an tnsider
hist governance system, Lintstock has no other connection with
the Company
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The Board considered the 2015/16 performance evaluation which
1t concluded was a thorough and valuable assessment of Board
performance although it was recogrised that the new governance
structure had only just been introduced and therefore there

was a need to allow it to ‘bed i’ before further review
Nevertheless some actions were considered desirable to improve
performance which related to a further drive to achieve more
succinct reporting by executives and careful ime management

by the Board to ensure critical matters and strategic 1ssues were
fully considered The Board has agreed a performance action

plan aganst which the Group Company Secretary will monitor
developments duning the year and ensure, In conjunction wath

the Chairman and Executive Directors that the agreed actions
are implemented

The main area for action that had been identified as a result of
the 2014/15 performance evaluation (namely a focus on strategy
at a time of transition with the new Chairman) has been followed
up during the year and has resulted in a refreshed strategy

as outhned on page 8 and described in more detail on pages
141017

The Chairman'’s performance was evaluated separately
by the Non-executive Directors, led by the Senior
Independent Cirector

BOARD COMMITTEES' TERMS OF REFERENCE

In accardance with Group policies, a range of key matters are
delegated to the Board's Committees as set out on pages 66 to
76 of this governance report

The terms of reference of each of the Board's Committees are
set out on the Company's website www pennon-group co uk
or available upon request to the Group Company Secretary

DEALING WITH DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
In accordance with the directors interest provision of the
Companies Act 2006 and the Company's Articles of Association,
the Board has in place a procedure for the consideration and
authonsation of Directors' conflicts or passible conflicts with the
Company s Interests

RISK MANAGEMENT AND THE GROUP'S SYSTEM OF
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board 1s responsible for mantaining the Group's system of
internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Group's assets and for reviewing its effectiveness The system
15 designed to manage rather than elminate the risk of fature
to achieve business objectives and can only prowide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss There (s an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
maznaging the significant risks faced by the Group that has been in
place throughout 2015/16 and up to the date of the approval of
this Annual Repart and Accounts

The Group's system of internal contro! has been further reviewed
to take account of the FRC's new 'Guidance on Risk Management,
Internal Control and Related Financial and Bustness Reporting’
(FRC Internal Control Guidance) which 1s applicable to reporting
peniods beginning on or after | October 2014
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The Board confirms that it applies procedures n accordance
with the UK Code and the FRC Internal Control Guidance which
brings together elements of best practice for risk management
and internal control by companies The Board's risk framework
described on page 51 in the strategic report prowides for the
rdentification of key risks including environmental, socal and
governance (ESG) nisks in relation to the achievement of the
business objectves of the Group, menitoring of such risks and
angoing and annual evaluation of the overall process

As part of the review of the effectiveness of the system of

risk management and mternal control under the Group risk
management policy, all Executive Directers and senior managers
are required to certify on an annual basis that they have effective
controls in place te manage nsks and to operate in compliance
with legislation and Group procedures

The Group also has polictes covenng suspected fraud, anti-bribery
and whistleblowing Allegations of misconduct and irregularity

are thoroughly investigated and follow-up action in respect of the
Group's control environment is taken when appropriate In the
normal course of business investigations into irregularites may be
ongoing as of the date of the approval of the financial statements

The Group s processes and policies serve to ensure that a
culture of effective control and risk management 1s embedded
throughout the Group and that the Group 1511 a posiuon to
react appropriately to new risks as they arise Details of key rnisks
affecting the Group are set out in the strategic report on pages
5210 54

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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THE AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased te introduce the Audit Committee's report in my
first full vear as chairman of the Committee

The principal respensibilities of the Committee are focused
firstly on the approprateness of the Group's financial reporting,
including the accounting jJudgements made In preparing reporting
secondly the ongoing effectiveness of the internal control
environment and thirdly the risk management processes across
the Group, including challenging and testing the Group's risk
appetrte Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the
external auditor and the internal audit function 1s an important
element of the Commuttee's assurance activities These
responsibilities are discharged throughout the year in accordance
with the calendar of business of the Committee, which 1s
designed to allow sufficient time for their consideration whilst also
permitting time 1o be spent on related key finanaal matters

New significant matters considered during the year included

a review of the Group's delegated authorres and finanaal
procedures which, following the appointment of a Group Chief
Executive Officer for the first time, were refreshed to ensure
ongoing alignment wrth Group reguirements and the risk profiles
of the businesses, and a review of the long-lived asset cash
generating units (CGUs) within Viridor, which were realigned to
ensure they remained consistent with the evolving operational
and management focus of the business

The Commuttee has also reviewed progress on Viridors
Enterprise {business transformation and systems integration)
solution, which Is progressing on a multi-year timescale, to ensure
assurance protocols are in place, and the internal controls and
audit systems in place in Bournemouth Water which was acquired
in April 2015 1t was pleasing to note that they were determined
to be robust and appropriate to the size of the business

We are mindful of the revisions to the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the UK Code) and supporting FRC gurdance on risk
reporting As a resuit, we have further reviewed the risk
management processes In place across the Group and have
endorsed the establishment of a new Group executive risk
management forum to assess nisk appetite and monitor key

risks and their mitigation More detall on our nsk management
processes, prinaipal risks and their mitigation can be found on pages
51 to 55 Aligned wath this we have also assessed the Company's
viability over a penod of five years, which we consider to be
aligned with key business cycle periods in the water business and
the longer-term nature of Vindor's ERF assets as well as being
reasonabie in terms of our ability to lock forward with some
certainty in the business and regulatory environment in which the
Company operates Our viability statement 1s reported on page 55

As part of the half-year and year-end reporting review process,
we reviewed and challenged the key judgerments of management
as set out on page 68 Significant matters considered by the
Commuttee both during the year and n relation 1o the year-end
financial statements are explained in this report

Neil Cooper
Audit Committee Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

AND MEETINGS

The membership of the Committee together with appeintment
dates and attendance at meetings during 2015/16, 1s set out below

Members Appointment date Attendance
Nell Cooper September 2014 7
{Commuttee chairman)

Gerard Connell® October 2003 212
Martin Angle December 2008 77
Gill Rider September 2012 7

* Retred on 31 Juty 2015
Other regular attendees to our meetings duning the year included

*  Group Chief Executive (following appontment on | January 2016)

* Group Director of Finance {now retitled Chief
Financial Officer)

= Chief Executive, South West Water {(untl 31 December 2015)
» Chief Executive, Vindor
« Group General Counsel & Company Secretary

+ Managing Director South West Water {following appointment
on | January 2016}

= Finance Director, South West Water
+ Finance Director, Vindor

= Group Financial Controller

= Group Audit Manager

« External auditor

In preparation for the revised governance structure (detaled on
page 62) two South West Water non-executive directors, Martin
Hagen and Lord Matthew Taylor, also attended the last two
meetings of the Committee in the year

In addion, the Charrman of the Group, Ken Harvey until 31
luly 2015 and Sir fohn Parker as his successor from this date, has
had an open invitation to attend the Committee meetings In
the last year the Chairman has attended those meetings where
the Comrmittee has reviewed the half-year and full-year financal
results of the Group

In accordance with the UK Code, the Board is satisfied that Neil
Cooper and Martin Angle have recent and relevant financal
experience and also, in accordance with FCA Rule Disclosure and
Transparency Rule 7| IR, have competence in accounting andfor
auditing Detalls of each Director’s significant current and prior
appcintments are set out on pages 60 and 6|

All of the Committee members are also members of the
Remuneration Committee which allows them to provide
input Into both Committees on any Group performance
matters and on the management of any risk factors relevant to
remuneration matters
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SIGNIFICANT MATTERS CONSIDERED BY THE COMMITTEE
The calendar of business of the Committee prowdes a fr amework for ensuring that it manages its affan s effiaently and effectively
throughout the year and 1s able to concentrate on the key matters that affect the Group

The most significant matters that the Committee consider ed and made decisions on during the year and, where appropriate, since the
year end, are set out below

Financia! reporting

* Monitored the integnity of the finanaal statements of the Group and the half-year and full-year results announcements
relating to the Group s finanaal pet formance including reviewing and discussing significant financial reporting
Judgements contained in the statements

After a detaled review 1n accordance with its established process adwised the Board that the Annual Report and
Accounts is fair balanced and understandable in accordance with reparting requirements and recommended their
approval for publication

Internal control and
compliance

* Quarterly review of internal audit reports on core systems and processes across the Group, including Group treasury
credit management, reactive operational mantenance, payroll, procurement practices energy recovery faclity control
environment, informaticn security and IT risks water leakage management, customer facing processes including billing
and collection, and business continuity management

Reviewed internal control framework for the Group

Monitared performance on speafic matters including Vindor s Project Enterprise (business transformation project)

External audrtor

Considered auditor's report on its review of the annual results focusing on key findings

Assessed external auditor and its effectivenass in respect of the previous years external audit process

Recommended to the Board reappointment of the external auditor for approval at the Annual General Meeting with
the Committee being authorised to agree the external auditor's remuneration

Considered and approved the audit plan and audit fee proposal for the external auditor

Monitored the provision of non-audit services

Risk management

Reviewed the risk management framework and compliance with that framework duning the year and after the year-end
up until the publication of the Company's annual report

Reviewed the assessment of the risks by the Executive Directors and considered risk appetite

Reviewed the Group risk register and considered appropriate areas of focus and priontisation for the audit work
programme for the year

* Recewved as part of the nsk management review the annual report on any whistleblowing
* Introduced tegular deep dives at Committee meetings on spealfic areas

Governance

.

Discussed the annual evaluation exercise of the Committee and agreed action plans to further improve the
Committee s performance

Reviewed new annual report disclosure requiremenits including the audit report

Constdered and approved Group accounting policies used in the preparation of the finanaal statements

Reviewed a number of updated Group poliaes covering finanoal delegations, foreign exchange whistleblowing and
suspected fraud ant-bribery and otherirregulanties

Confirmed comphance with the UK Code

Regularly held separate meetings with the external auditor and the Group Internal Audit Manager without members of
management being present

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

BOARD COMMIT TEES
RE PO RTS CONTINUED

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

In respect of the monntonng of the integrity of the finangal
statements, which 15 a key responsibility of the Committee
identified in the UK Code, the significant areas of judgement
considered in relation to the financial statements for the

year ended 3| March 2016 are set out in the following table,
together with details of how each matter was addressed by the
Committee At the Committee's meetings throughout the year
the Committee and the external auditor have discussed the

significant matters anising 1n respect of finanaial reporting during
the year and the areas of particufar audit focus, as reported

on in the iIndependent auditor’s report on pages (04 to 113

In addition to the significant matters set out in the table below,
the Commuttee considered a range of other areas including
presentational issues in particular relating to non-underlying
disclosure and changes to asset Iives following external

expert review

Avrea of focus by the Commuttee  How the martter was addressed by the Commutcee

Revenue recognition Once again there were a number of judgement areas in respect of revenue recognition relating to inceme

from measured water services, estimates of timing of receipt of unmeasured revenue accounting for revenue
from long-term service concession arrangements under IFRIC 12 and calculation of accrued income on waste
management coniracts and powergen The Commrttee relied on South West Water s track record of assessing
an appropnate level of accrual at previous year ends given actual outtumns and Virdor s internal processes for
analysing complex long-term contracts The Committee also considered the work in respect of these areas at

year end by the external auditor who was satisfied with the approach taken in each business

Non-current asset imparment
review and provisions

Recogrusing that the value of certain non-current assets and long-term environmental provisions within
Vindor 1s sensitive ta changes in assumptons over future discount rates and cash flow projections which
require jJudgement, the Committee pays careful attention to asset iImpairment and provisions and the review
of goodwill In addition in the year management reviewed the evolving structure of the cash generating urits
(CGUs) with the objective of ensuring the determination of CGUSs remained consistent with both the waste
market and Vindors operatng model The change in CGU determination resulted wy impairment reversals
and charges being recognised in the year This key area was also reviewed as part of the year-end audit by the
external auditor Following 2 detailed review of the analysis undertaken, and consideration of management
assumptions in relation to the rewised structure of the CGUs, the Committee was satisfied that a robust and
consistent approach had been followed and that the management’s assertion that goodwill and intangible assets
were not impaired was reasonable and therefore the Commitiee were able to approve the disclosures in the
financial staterents

South West Water and Vindor
bad and doubtful debts

Regular updates on progress against debt collection targets and other contractual payments due are receved
by the Board Parformance 1s monitored regularly against South West Water's historical collection record
and the track record of other companies in the sector At the year end the external auditor reported on the
work it had performed which together with the detated analysis reported on 1o the Committee enabled the
Committee to conclude that the management’s assessment of the year-end position was reasonable

Provisions for uncertain tax
posIitions

[t has been and remains the general policy of the Group to take a balanced view of its tax position and only
release tax provisions when matters under discussion are expected 1o be cleared by HM Revenue & Customs
At the year end the Chief Financial Officer prowided an update to the Board on progress in resclving a number
of tax posttions the background te which had been considered in detail by the Committee on a regular basis as
part of progress reperts from the Chief Finanaal Officer 1t was noted that whei e approprate expar t external
legal adwice and cther specialist taxation advice had been sought which assisted the Committee n forming a
view on the appropnateness of the provisiens for uncertain tax positions and related tax disdosures 1n the
financial statements

Going concern basis for the A monthly report from the Chief Financial Officer on the finanaal performance of the Group induding

preparation of the financial forward-locking assessments of covenant compliance and funding levels undar differing scenarios 1s provided

statements and viability statement  to the Board Rolling five-year strategy piojections and the resultant headroom relative to borrowings is also
regularly reviewed by the Board At each half-year end the Chief Financial Officer prepares for consideration by
the Committee a report focusing on the Group's iquidity over the 12-month penod from the date of signing
either the annual report or half-year results This year the Committee has also considered a report from the
Chief Financial Officer on the Group's finanaial viability over an apprepriate peried, which the Board considers
to be five years in connection with the new UK Corporate Governance Code requirement for a viability
statement 1o be given by the Board Consideration of these reports and construcuve challenge on the findings

' of the reports including the scenane testing carmed out by management has enabled the Committee to

form rts assessment and satisfy itself that it remains appropnate for the Group to continue to adopt the going
cencern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements and in addition advise the Board on
providing the viability statement set out on page 55
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EFFECTIVENESS OF THE EXTERMNAL AUDIT PROCESS
Receving high quality ang effective audit services is of paramount
importance tc the Committee VVe continue to monitor

carefully the effectiveness of our external auditor as well as its
Independence, bearing in mind that 1t 15 recognised there 1s a need
o use our external auditar’s firm for certain non-audit services
We have full regard to the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards and ensure that cur procedures and safeguards meet
these standards

The current external auditor was appointed following a
comprehensive audit tender process and approval by shareholders
at the Company s 2014 AGM Thewr reappointrment was approved
at the 2015 AGM

The external auditor produced a detailed audit planning report
In preparation for the year-end financial statements, which has
assisted the auditor in delivering the timely audit of the Group's
annual report and financial statements

The effectiveness review of the external auditor 1s undertaken

as part of the Commuttee s annual performance evaluation

The review demonstrated that there was satisfaction with the
performance of the external auditor Accordingly, the Committee
considered that it 1s approprate that the external auditor be
re-appointed and has made this recornmendation to the Board

The Committee chairman has also met privately with the
external auditor

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

The Committee carefully reviews on an ongoing basis the
relationship with the exterrmal auditor to ensure that the auditor's
independence and objectivity 1s fully safeguarded

The external auditor reported on their independence in the
year and since the year end and cenfit med to the Committee
that they have complied with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards and, based on therr assessment that they were
independent of the Group

PROVISION OF NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The Commuttee has a restrictive policy for the engagement of
the external auditor's firm for non-audit work The policy 1s for
non-audit fees not to exceed 70% of the audit fee for statutory
work Where fees for non-audit work exceed 50% of the

annual audit fees (but are less than 70%) the Committee must
be notified of the assignment with a summary report on the
background and the reascns for using the auditor for the work

In exceptional arcumstances, where there 1s good rationale for
the auditor's non-audit fees to exceed 70%, the Chief Financial
Officer is required to set out In a report to the Committee

the reasons why the auditor's fitm should be appeinted for any
such work The Committee would carefully review whether it
was necessary for the audrtor's firm to carry out such work and
would only grant approval for the firm's appointment if it was
satisfied that the auditor's Independence and objectivity would be
fully safeguarded If there was another accounting firm that could
provide the required level of experience and expertise In respect
of the non-audit services, then such firm would be chosen in
preference to the external auditor
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The level of non-audit fees payable to the external auditor for
the past year 1s |5 74% of the audit fee, which is well wathin the
Group's 70% non-audit fee hmst

The Chief Finanaia! Officer regularly 1 eports to the Committee
on the extent of services provided to the Company by the
external auditer and the level of fees paid The fees paid to

the external audrtor's firm for non-audit services and for audit
services are set out In note 7 to the financial statements on
page 132

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit activities of the Group are a key part of the
internzl control and nsk management framework of the Group
At Group level there 15 a long-standing and effective centralised
internal audit service led by an experienced head of function who
makes a significant contribubion to the abibity of the Commuttee to
deliver its responsibilities

A Group internal audrt plan 1s approved usually n September
each year It takes account of the prinaipal risks, the activities to be
undertaken by the external auditor, and also the Group's annual
and ongoing risk management reviews This approach seeks

to ensure that there 15 a programme of internal and external

audrt reviews focused on identified key risk areas throughout

the Group

The Greup Internal Audit Manager reports quarteriy to the

Committea on audit reviews undertaken and their findings,

and there are regular discussions, correspondence and private

meetings between the Group Internal Audit Manager and the

Committee chairman '

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE ASSESSMENT

To enable the Committee to advise the Board in making its

statement that it considered that the Company's Annual Report

and Accaunts is fair, balanced and understandable (FBU) on page

101, the Committee has applied a detailed FBU review framework

that takes account of the Group's well-documented verification

process undertaken in conjunction with the preparation of the

Annual Report and Accounts This 1s in addition to the formal !
process carried out by the external auditer to enable the I
preparatton of the independent auditor s report which 15 set out

on pages 104 to 113

In preparing and finalsing the 2016 Annual Report and Accounts,
the Committee considered a report on the actions taken by
management in accordance with the FBU process and an FBU
assessment undertaken by each Group executive management
board This assisted the Committee in carrying out its own
assessment and being able to advise the Board that it considered
that the Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole 1s fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the nformation
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance
business model and strategy

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CMA ORDER
Having undertaken a competitive audit tender process in

2014, the Company 1s in compliance with the Statutory Audit
Services for Large Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory
Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016 69
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THE SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

I am pleased to introduce the Sustatnabiity Comimittee s report on s annual actities Sustainabihity remans
an integral part of Pennon’s strategy, and the Group continues to take this responsibility very seriously in

all its business and operational practices Our investment and our commitment to high levels of service

and performance will contribute to meeting our communities' long-term needs — for water, energy and
waste management

The role of the Sustainability Commuttee s to bring together and review imitiatives that drive sustainability, to
approve targets and to monitor the progress made in achieving Pennon's strategic sustainability objectives
Those objectives are set out on page 72

The implementation of the new governance structure (as explained on page 62) was introduced formally on
I Apnl 2016 and we have been pleased to welcome two South Wast Water non-executive directors to the
Committee Neil Cooper stood down from the Committee on | April 2016

We continue to apply the best practice framework published by Business in the Community {BitC), a leading
business-led chanity that promotes responsible business, and use the siructure provided through BitC's key
areas of sustainability {marketplace workplace community and environment) for reviewing our programmes
and the performance of both South West Water and Vindor as they work to achueve the highest standards of
corporate responsibility

On pages 10 and || we show how a thorough approach to sustainability helps us to draw together the needs
of society with the delvery of commercaial success This theme 1s expanded upon by Chris Loughlin in bis Group
Chief Executive's review, which explains how the Group's strategy of investment for growth allows us to deliver
for the benefit of our customers, the environment and the communities we serve, as well as buld shareholder
value Details and examples of how South West Water and Vindor are implementing this strategy are provided
in the sections on Custorners and Communities and Our Environment We are pleased to note the results in
both businesses which confirm sustainability is indeed ntegrated in all we do

Gill Rider
Sustainabiity Committee Chairman

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016




N J

OVERVIEW

GROUP PERFORMANCE

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE COMPOSITION
AND MEETINGS

Members Appomtment date Attendance
Gill Rider {chairman} September 2012 616
Martin Angle December 2008 6/6
Gerard Connell® November 2006 3/3
Neil Cooper September 2014 5/6
Chnstopher Loughlin November 2006 6/
lan McAulay September 2013 6/6

* Retired on 31 July 2015

Two South West Water independent non-executive directors,

Steve Johnson and Lord Matthew Taylor, were inwvited to attend
the last two Committee meetings of the year in preparation for
the revised governance structure (detaled on page 62)

During the year the Sustainabiity Committee worked with the
South West Water sustainability committee and the Vindor
board which, prior to the new Group governance framework
coming into effect, directed sustainability activities for therr
respective orgamsations, to ensure that the Group's sustarnability
objectives are met The subsidiaries develop a range of targets as
part of their business planning processes and monitor and report
progress throughout the year

As at 31 March 2016 South West Water had achieved eight of
its 12 targets for the year and Vindor had completed nine out
of 13 of 1ts targets Further details will be provided in Vindor's
sustainability report and South VWest Water's company annual
performance report, to be published in May 2016 and July
2016 respectively

The Sustanability Committee operates in the context of the
requirement for companies to conduct their business in a
responsible manner (in relation to environmental, social and
governance (ESG) matters) while at the same time delivering
strong finanaial performance and lasting value for shareholders
and other stakeholders The Sustanability Commitiee reviews
and approves as appropnate the strategies, policies, management,
mitiabives, targets and performance of the Pennon Group
companies in the areas of occupationa! health and safety and
security environment, workplace policies, responsible and ethical
business practice, customer service and engagement, and the role
of the Group in souety
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Duning the year the Commuitee considered a wide range of
matters in accordance with its terms of reference, including
+ the Group's health and safety performance and plans

» pollutton and compliance performance

= performance in respect of customer service and engagement,
in particular South West Water s approach to affordability and
social tariffs

+ the Group's approach to community engagement
and investment

+ performance aganst the Group's workplace policy, including
review of the results of employee engagement surveys
conducted by Pennon, South West Water and Vindor

= sustainable procurement and practices within the supply chain

* sustanability reporting for 2015 for the Group, South West
Water and Vindor, and the assoaated verifier's reports and his
recommendations for the 2015/16 reports

+ progress aganst the sustanability targets for 2015/16
and sustainability targets for 2016/17

* the coverage and appropriateness of Group policies

In addition, the Committee considered

» the Committee's performance evaluation resuls
+ modifications to the Committee’s terms of reference

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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THE SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

STRATEGIC SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVES

The Sustainabiity Committee has defined the following strategic objectives, which inform the
sustamnabilily targets set by South West Water and Vindor Further details are available throughout

the strategic report — page references are provided

MANAGE PENNON GROUP AS A SUSTAINABLE

AND SUCCESSFUL BUSINESS FOR THE BENEFIT OF
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

As a well-managed and responsible Group, with sustainability

at the core of our business strategy and our operations we

aim to deliver strong performance and lasting value far all

our stakehclders Our services and methods of operation are
designed to prowide clear community benefits and to protect and
enhance the environment

The key performance indicators by which we measure
sharehaolder value and wider stakeholder benefit are set out on
pages 5 and 7

AIM TO ENSURE THAT ALL OUR BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
HAVE A POSITIVE ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ON THE COMMUNITIES IN
WHICH WE OPERATE

Pennon recognises 1t has a responsibility to contribute positively
towards communities affected by its operations

Details of the Group s economic soczl and environmental impact
can be found on pages 38 to 47

ENGAGE WITH ALL STAKEHOLDERS AND FOSTER
GOOD RELATIONSHIPS WITH THEM

Pennon aims to be a good neighbour, and consults with
its stakeholders in order to understand and respond to
their priorities

Detalls of the Groups approach to stakeholder engagement and
custormer satisfaction can be found on pages 36 to 41

STRIVE FOR THE HIGHEST STANDARDS OF HEALTH
AND SAFETY IN THE WORKPLACE SO AS TO MINIMISE
ACCIDENTS, INCIDENTS AND LOST TIME

The Group remains committed to achieving and maintaining
improvements in health and safety Both South West Water and
Vindor continue to endeavour to embed health and safety within
each organisationss culture

Details of South West Water's and Vimdor's health and safety
performance and thewr future plans are provided on page 48

PENINON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

DEVELOP AND MOTIVATE QUR EMPLOYEES, TREAT
THEM FAIRLY AND ENSURE THAT THEY ARE FULLY
ENGAGED IN ALL ASPECTS OF THE PENNON GROUP'S
OBJECTIVES

Pennon’s success 1s fundamentally down to its employees We
recruit talented and committed people and provide training
packages to equip them with the skills they need to deliver the
Group's objectives

Details of the Group's strategies and performance around
employee engagement can be found on pages 49 and 50

ASPIRE TO LEADERSHIP IN MINIMISING EMISSIONS
THAT CONTRIBUTE TO CLIMATE CHANGE, AND
DEVELOP CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTION STRATEGIES
Pennon continues to strive for a reduction in emissions and
encourages Its businesses to adopt nitiatives for renewable
energy generation

Details of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions and chmate
change strategies are provided on pages 44 and 45

ASPIRE TO LEADERSHIP IN ALL ASPECTS OF WASTE
PREVENTION AND RESQOURCE EFFICIENCY

Pennan Is delivering solutions for society to address the
environmental challenge of depleting natural resources by
maximising the value of residual matenals, transforming waste and
improving energy effiuency

Detalls can be found throughout the strategic report including on
pages 32 to 35 and 39 to 44
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REPORTING AND VERIFICATION

In reporting on sustanability, the Company has sought to comply
with the Guidelines on Responsible Investment Disclosure 1ssued
by the Association of British Insurers and now maintained by The
Investment Association

Pennon’s sustainability performance and reporting has been
audited by Strategic Management Consultants Limited (SMC),
an independent management consultancy specialising in technical
assurance 1 the utility sector Pennon considers that SMC's
method of venfication — which includes testing the assumpuons,
methods and procedures that are followed in the development
of data and auditing that data to ensure accuracy and consistency
— complements the best practice insight gained through South
Wesi Water's and Vindor's membership of Business in the
Community Disclosures within this annual report in respect of
Bournemouth Water s sustainability performance have been
verified by SMC aganst the output of an independent audit of
Bournemauth Water s sustainability disclosures conducted by
Halcrow Management Sciences Limited

BENCHMARKING

Pennon 15 pleased to have retaned its place on the FTSE4Good
Index, having been independently assessed against the
FTSE4Goced critena and satisfying the necessary requirements

Created by the global index provider FTSE Russell (the trading
name of FTSE International Limited and Frank Russell Company)
FTSE4Gooed 15 an equity index series that is designed to facilitate
investment in companies that meet globally recognised corporate
responsibility standards Companies in the FTSE4Good Index
Series have met stringent environmental, social and governance
critena, and are posittioned to capitalise on the benefits of
responsible business practice
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PENNON SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
Pennon's sustainability reporting 1s integrated throughout the
strategic report and speafically in the following sections

+ Group Chief Executive Officer s overview {page |6)
+ Qur operations (pages 30 to 31)

= Customers and communities (pages 36 to 41)

+ Qur envircnment (pages 42 to 47)

+ Our people (pages 48 to 50)

SOUTH WEST WATER AND VIRIDOR
SUSTAINABILITY REPORTS

The full sustainability report for Vindor will be published in
May 2016 and this year South West Water will incorporate
its sustainability reporting in 1ts company annual performance
report and regulatory accounts, which will be published

In July 2016 Both documents will be avallable to view at
www pennon-group co uk and also on the subsidianies
websites Full details of the sustainabihty targets for South West
Water and Virder for 2015/16 and their performance against
them, are given In their respective reports

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

BOARD COMMIT TEES'

RE PO RTS CONTINUED

THE NOMINATION
COMMITTEE REPORT

The Nomination Committee meets in accordance with an annual
calendar to consider succession planning, equality and diversity
reports and periodically as necessary 1o manage the Board
appointment process and recommend to the Board suitable
candidates for Board appointments in the Group

it 15 the practice of the Committee led by the Chairman,

to appoint an external search consultancy to assist in Board
appointments to ensure that an extensive and robust search can
be made for suitable candidates

During the year the Committee met to consider

+ the Group Chief Executive Officer, the South West Water
Managing Director and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary appointments

= the Group's dversity and equality policies and pracuce

Following the year end the Committee also considered its
performance evaluation for the year and concluded that for the
forthcoming year there would be a sharper focus on succession
planning having regard to the new corporate structure
recently introduced

External search consultants were not engaged to assist with the
recrutment of the Group Chief Executive Officer or the South
West Water Managing Director due to exceptionally able internal
candidates being available for consideration by the Committee

The appontment of the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary was undertaken with the assistance of an external
search consultant

Members Appointment date Attendance
Kenneth Harvey” March 1997 22
{Commuttee chairman

untdl 31 July 2015)

Martin Angle December 2008 414
Gerard Connell October 2003 217
Neil Cooper September 2014 44
Gill Rider September 2012 4/4
Sir John Parker April 2015 4/4

{Committee chairman
from | August 2015)

*Retred on 31 July 2015

In accordance with the revised governance structure (detailed on
page 62) with effect from | April 2016 the South West Water
ndependent non-executive directors will also contribute to
Committee discussions when matters within the Committee’s
remit relevant to South West Water are to be considered

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

DIVERSITY POLICY

The Commuttee is required by the Board to review and monitor
complance with the Board s diversity policy and report on the
targets, achievement against those targets and overall compliance
in the annual report each year

The Board's diversity policy confirms that the Board 1s
committed to

*+ the search for Board candidates being conducted, and
appointments made, on mer, against objective ¢riteria and
with due 1 egard for the benefits of gender and ethnic diversity
on the Beard

= satisfying itself that plans are in place for orderly succession
of appointmenis to the Board and to senior management
to maintain an appropriate balance of skills and experience
within the Group and on the Board and to ensure progressive
refreshing of the Board In addition, within the spint of
Principle B 2 of the UK Code, the Board endeavours to
achieve and maintain

— armimmum of 25% female representation on the Board

— armurimum of 25% female representation on the Group's
sernor management team

The Committee 1s pleased to report that as at 31 March 2016
and, as disclosed with the Directors biographies on page 60, the
Group had exceeded 25% female representation at Board level
While arcumstances on occasion will result in changes n Board
composition the Committee and the Board remain committed to
maintaining at least the 25% level

In respect of the Groups senior management team, progress Is
being made with 21 9% being female compared to the reported
16 4% at 31 March 2015 Action 1s being taken to improve
dwversity across the workforce which will assist in increasing
female representation at senior management level as described
on page 50

The Committee and the Board will continue to monitor and
promote diversity across the Group with the aim of achieving
a minimum of 25% female representation on the senior
management team by the end of 2017

As well as its diversity policy, the Group has a number of
policies in place embracing workplace matters, including
non-discrimination and equal opportunities polices which are
reported on separately on page 48 together wath information
regarding the gender breakdown of the workforce on page 50




N )\

OCVERVIEW

GROUP PERFORMANCE

THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE REPORT

The Committee meets in accordance with an annual calendar to
consider remuneration matters in respect of the Greup and n
particular 1s responsible for

* ensuring remuneration 1s aligned with and supports the
Group's strategy, reflects our values as a Group and
optimises performance

* maintaining and reviewing the remuneration policy to ensure
It remains appropriate to attract and retan high calbre people
who are able to contribute to the success of the Group

= advising the Board on the framework of executive
remuneration for the Group

+ deterruning the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Chairman, the Executive Directors and senior management of
the Group

Members Appointment date Actendance
Martin Angle December 2008 6/6
{Committee chairman)

Gerard Connell® October 2003 444
Neil Cooper September 2014 6/6
Gill Rider September 2012 6/6

* Retred on 31 July 2015

Two South West Water independent non-executive directors,
Martin Hagen and Steve Johnsen, attended the last two
Committee meetings of the year in preparation for the revised
governance structure {detaled on page 62)

The current remuneration policy was approved by shareholders
at the Company s 2014 AGM and no changes are proposed to the
policy at this year s AGM

OUR REMUNERATION POLICY

IS DESIGNED TO SUPPORT OUR
GROUP STRATEGY AND PROVIDE
STRETCHING INCENTIVES FOR
OUR MANAGEMENT TO PERFORM
IN THE INTERESTS OF MAXIMISING
SHAREHOLDER VALUE WHILST
ENSURING THE LONG-TERM
SUSTAINABILITY OF THE GROUP

) Y )

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMMITTEE'S ACTIVITIES DURING THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

annual review of the pay and benefits policies and practices for
the staff below Board level in the Group

annual executive salary review

determining performance targets in respect of the Annual
Incentive Bonus Plan for 2015/16

reviewing drafts of the Directors’ remuneration report for
2014/15 and recommending it to the Board for approval for
inclusion in the 2015 annual report, and reviewing early drafts
cf the Directors remuneration report for 2015/16

deterrmining bonuses, deferred bonus awards and executive
share options pursuant to the Company s Annual Incentive
Bonus Plan i respect of the year 2014/15

approving the Performance and Co-investrnent Plan awards
for the year

reviewing the annual performance evaluation resuits of
the Committee

approving the remuneration arrangements for the new
Group Chief Executive Officer, the South West Water
Managing Director and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary

approving the release of the 2012 deferred bonus share
awards and the vesting of executive share options pursuant (o
the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan

determining the cutcome of the 2012 Performance and
Co-investrnent Plan awards

THE COMMITTEE’S FOCUS FOR 2016117

monitor the alignment of executive pay and benefits with the
strategic direction of the Group

following the acquisition of Bournemouth Water and the
bringing on stream of the ERFs, ensure incentive cnteria is
properly aligned with the Group's objectives

review the remuneration policy in preparation for its
submussion for approvat to shareholders at the 2017 AGM
(after the conclusion of the three-year approval period of the
current policy) to ensure 1t 15 algned with the Groups strategy
going forward

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

BOARD COMMITTEES
REPORTS conminuep

THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

GOVERNANCE

The Committee's terms of reference setting out full detalls of the
role and responsibilities of the Committee in accordance with the
principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code 15 avallable on
our website www pennon-group co uk

In accordance with the Code, all of the Committee members

are ndependent Non-executive Directors, and the Committee

15 advised by Deloitte, an independent remuneration consultant,
to ensure remuneration 1s determined impartially The Charman
of the Board 15 a regular attendee but not a member of the
Committee and, following his appointment, the Group Chief
Executive Officer 1s invited to attend meetings except for such
part of a meeting when matters concerning his own remuneration
are to be discussed

For 2016/17 two South West Water independent non-executive
directors will attend meetings of the Committee and contnbute
to discussions They will contribute to the setting of the
remuneration policy for the whole Group whilst being responsible
for leading on remuneration matters concernng South

West Water

This Directors' remuneration report has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and
the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 It also comphes
with the requirements of the Financial Conduet Autherity's
Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules The
UK Corporate Governance Code also sets out principles of
good governance refating to directors’ remuneration, and this
report describes how these principles are applied in practice
The Committee confirms that throughout the finanaal year the
Company has complied with these governance rules and best
practice provisions

The above regulations also require the external auditor to

report to shareholders on the audited information within the
annual report on remuneration which 1s part of the Directors
remuneration report The external auditor is obliged to state
whether, In 1ts opinion the relevant sections have been prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 The external
auditor's opinion 15 set out on page 112 and the audited sections
of the annual report on remuneration are identified in this report

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder

INTRODUCTION

Our current remuneration policy was approved by shareholders
at our 2014 AGM and last year we set out a sumrmary of the
policy for nformation We are providing a summary again this
year on pages 79 to 83 as we are once again not proposing any
changes to the policy at this year's AGM

On pages 84 to 98 we set out our annual report on remuneration
which contains the remuneration of the Directors for the

year 2015/16 including the single remuneration figure' table
providing a value for each element of remuneration for each
Director together with the details of the link between Company
performance and remuneration during the year (pages 87 to

89) It also provides details of how our policy will be applied for
2016/17 This section of the report together with this letter s
subject to an advisory shareholder vote at this year's AGM

Last year the Remuneration Committee was pleased to note
that 98% of shareholders who voted approved the annual report
on remuneration The Committee appreciates the continuing
support of its shareholders

REMUNERATION DECISIONS

For 2016/17 the salary of the Group Chief Executive Officer

was not increased due to Chris Loughlin being appeinted to the
position towards the end of the 2015/16 year The salary for the
Chief Executive, Virndor, was in¢reased by | 5%, reflecting market
rates and performance in the year Susan Davy was proemoted

to the position of Chief Financial Officer en | February 2015
The Commuittee intially set her salary at £325,000, a level below
market rates, with the intention of pt oviding flexibility to make
higher than usual Increases to reflect performance and experience
in the role The Committee’s assessment is that she 1s now fully
effective In the role, and performing at a level which exceeds the
expectations set out on her appaintment The Commitiee s view
was therefore that it was appropriate to make an adjustment to
her salary for 2015/16 and her salary was increased to £390,000
fram | April 2016, the first salary increase since her appontment
Following this adjustment, which 1s believed to be in line with
market rates and commensurate with her predecessor's salary, it
15 not anticipated that there will be any further increases of this
nature for Susan Davy and future increases are not expected to
be materially different from general employee increases

The bonus outturns for the Executive Directors for 2015/16
reflect the achievements of the Group businesses in the year, the
Company's performance aganst corporate finanaal targets and
the Executive Cirectors performance against individual targets
Half of the bonus 15 deferred into shares Further details of targets,
measures and performance are set out on pages 87 and 88

As regards the Company's long-term incentive plan, the overall
estimated outturn for awards vesting at the end of the three year
pericd ended 31 March 2016 15 34 5% of the maximum 100%
This reflects that the Company’s total shareholder retuin is
estimated to be 0 52% above the comparator index performance
and I1s expected to have a percentile rank of 52% within the FTSE
250 group

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BOARD CHANGES

Sir John Parker became the Chairman on | August 2015
and his fee in the role was set at the same level as that of his
predecessor His fee for 201&/17 will be £266,350

On | January 2016 Chris Loughlin became the Group Chief
Executive Officer As this was a new position for the Group,

his salary was set after recening advice from the Committees
remuneration consultant and reflected the fact that he was an
experienced Director with the Pennon Group, having been
promoted from being the Chief Executive of South West Water
Accerdingly his pre-existing awards and contractual commitments
will continue 1n accordance with thewr established terms This s
accordance with the approved remuneraticn policy

LOOKING FORWARD

We will continue to review performance measures annually to
ensure they are aligned with our strategy For the financial year
2016/17 they have been adjusted as set out on page 84 1o reflect
the drive for synergies across the businesses and the changing
structure of the businesses as the ERFs become operaticnal and
as South West Water prepares for industry change

We will also review our overall remuneration policy with our
external iIndependent remuneration consuitant in readiness for
subrission for shareholder approval at our AGM in 2017 at the
end of the approval period of our current policy

In conclusion, | hape you find our report this year infor mative
and that we can rely on your vote in favour of the annual report
on remuneration

Martin D Angle
Remuneration Committee Chairman
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION

The current Directors remuneration policy was approved by shareholders at the Company's AGM on

3i July 2014

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee s intention 1s 1o seek approval for the remuneration policy at the end of the normal three year
cycle in hne with the remuneration reporting requirements We are therefore not seeking approval for our
remureration policy at the 2016 AGM The Committee will undertake a review of the policy during 2016/17
which will then be submitted for shareholder approval at the 2017 AGM

The remuneration policy tables for Executive and Non-executive Directors are set out below for shareholder
information They have been reproduced as approved at the 2014 AGM with the exception of updating to
reflect Director changes addtional wording on malus clawback and the holding period introduced in 2015 in
the Group's Performance and Co-investment Plan, and minor and inconsequential changes

The Directors’ remuneration policy 1s displayed on the Company's website www pennon-group co uk/
about-us/directors-remuneration-policy and 1s avalable upon request from the Group Company Secretary

FUTURE POLICY TABLE — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The table below sets out the elerents of the total remuneration package for the Executive Directors which are
compnsed in this Directors’ remuneration policy

How the component supports
the strategic objectives of
the Company

How the component operates
{including provisions for
recovery or withholding of
any payment)

Maximum potential value of the
compaonent

Dascription of framewaork
used to assess performance

BASE SALARY

Set at a competitive level to attract
approprate candidates to meet
Company s strategic objectives

and to aid retention

Salaries are generally reviewed
annuzlly and any changes are
normally effective from | Apni
each year In normal circumstances
salary increases will not be
materally different to general
employee pay increases but there
may be exceptions such as where
there has been the recrutment
of a new Executive Director at an
intially lower salary

When reviewing salaries the
Committee has regard to the
follownng factors

+ salary increases generally for all
employaes in the Company and
the Group

« market rates

+ performance of the indmdual
and the Company

other factors It considers
relevant

There 1s no overall maximum

None although indmidual and
Company performance are factors
considered when reviewing
salartes

BENEFITS

Benefits are provided that are
consistent with the market and
level of senionty and which ad
retention of key skills to assist in
meeting strategic objectives

Benefits currently include the
provision of a company vehicle,
fuel health insurance and life
assurance Other benefits may
be provided if the Committee
considers (t approprate

In the event that an Executive
Oirector 1s required to relocate
relocation benefits may be
provided

The cost of insurance benefits may
vary from year to year depending
on the individual s circumstances

There 15 no overall maximum
benefit value but the Committee
aims to ensure that the total value
of benefits remains proporuonate

None

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FUTURE POLICY TABLE - EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CONTINUED

How the component supports
the strategic objectives of
the Company

How the compenent operates
(including provisions for
recavery ar withhalding of
any payment)

Maxamum potential value of the
component

Description of framewark
used to assess performance

ANNUAL BONUS

Linked to achievement of key
performance cbjectives aligned to
the strategy of the Company

Annual bonuses are paid following
finahsation of the financal results
for the year to which they relate
and paid usually three months after
the end of the finanoal year

A portion of any bonus is deferred
into shares in the Company which
are normally released after three
years Normally 50% 1s deferred
Any dividends on the shares
dunng this period are paid to the
Directors

The deferred bonus plan is
operated in conunction with

the Company’s HMRC approved
executive share option scheme
(ESOS) on the basis that the pre-
tax value of awards under both are
the same as (f the deferred bonus
plan had operated alone

For bonuses awarded from the
2014/15 financal year malus

and clawback prowvisions apply
These prowisions permit net

cash bonuses and/cr deferred
bonus shares to be forferted,
repaid or made subject to further
condibons where the Committee
censiders it appropriate in the
event of any significant adverse
circumstances inchuding {but not
limited to) a matenal falure of nsk
management serious reputational
damage a financiai misstaterment
or misconduct Clawback may be
applied for the pericd of three
years following determination of
the cash bonus

The maximum bonus potential
for each Directoris 100% of base
salary

Performance targets relate to
corporate and personal objectrves
which are reviewed each year
Normally at least 70% relates to
financial tatgets or quantitative
measures

The measures weighting and
threshold levels may be adjusted
for future performance years
Following the financial year-end
the Committee with advice
from the Chairman of the Board
and the Group Chief £xecutive
Officer, except with regard

to his own performance, and
following consideration of the
outturn against target by the
charman of the Audit Committee
assesses 10 what extent the
targets are met and determines
bonus levels accordingly In
doing so the Committee takes
into account overall Company
performance and may adjust the
bonus upwards or downwards
for any speafic factors such as
exceptional cutperformance or
underperformance

PENNOMN GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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FUTURE POLICY TABLE — EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CONTINUED

How the component supports
the strategic objectives of
the Company

How the component operates
(including provisions for
recovery or withholding of
any payment)

Maximum potential value of the
compaonent

\ J

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Descripaon of framework
used tao assess performance

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (PERFORMANCE AND CO-INVESTMENT PLAN])

Provide alignment to shareholders
and to longer-term Company
performance

Annual grant of conditional shares
{or equivalent) Share awards vest
dependent upon the achievament
of speafic performance conditians
measured over a performance
penod of no less than three years
A grant 15 only made if the
Director has acquired or 1s due

to acquire co-Investment shares
equivalent to one-fifth of the value
of the award

Dividend equivalents (including
dividend reinvestment) may be
paid on vested awards

An underpin’ apphes which allows
the Committee to reduce or
withhald vesting if the Committee
1s not satisfied with the underlying
operational and economic
performance of the Company
Introduced for 2015/16 onwards

For grants made from 2015
onwards malus and clawback
provisions apply which permit
shares to be forfeted repaid

or made subject to further
condiions where the Committee
considers it appropriate in certam
circumstances The circumstances
in which mafus may be applied
include (but are not limited

t0) material misstatement

serious reputational damage

or the participant s rmisconduct
The circumstances in which
clawback may be applied are
materal misstatement or serious
rmusconduct

In addition a further two year

helding period will apply In respect

of any shares which vest at the
end of the three year performance
penod

Malus may be applied during the
three year performance perted
and clawback rmay be applied up
until the end of the holding pericd

The maxmum annual award 1s
100% of base salary

The current performance
conditions are based on total
shareholder return {TSR) with
50% based on TSR aganst the
peer group index (chosen because
these companies are regarded

as the Company s key listed
comparators) and 50% based

on TSR against constituents of
the FTSE 250 index (excluding
investment trusts) (chosen because
this s the FTSE index to which
the Company belongs currently}
No more than 30% of maximum
vests for mimmum (threshold)
performance as described on
page 89 1n respect of the current
forecast outturn for 2015/16

The underpin’ evaluation includes
consideration of environmental
social and governance {ESG)
factors and safety performance as
well as financial perfermance

The Committee will keep the
performance measures under
review and may change a
performance conditien for future
awards If it was considered to

be afigned with the Company s
interests and strategic objectives
However the Committee would
censult with major shareholders in
advance of any proposed material
change in performance measures

www penncnannualreport co uk/2016
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FUTURE POLICY TABLE - EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CONTINUED

How the component operates

How the component supports {including provisions for
the strategic objectives of recovery or withhalding of Maximum potential value of the  Description of framework
the Company any payment) compenent used to assess performance
PENSION
Provides funding for retirement Defined benefit pension The maxamum annual pension None
and aids retention of key skills to arrangements are closed to new contrbution or cash allowance
assist n meeting the Company s entrants Defined contribution 15 20% of salary For Executive
strategic objectives pension arrangements have been Directors who commenced
avallable to new staff since 2008 employment prior to April 2013

A cash allowance may be provided  the maximum annual pension
as an alternative and/or in additon  contnbution or cash allowance 15

where pension imits have 30% of salary
been reached Legacy defined benefit pension
arrangements will continue to be
honoured
ALL-EMPLOYEE SHARE PLANS
To align interests of all employees  Executive Directors may The maximum is as prescrbed None

with Company share performance  partiapate n HMRC approved all-  under the relevant HMRC
employee plans on the same basis  legislation governing the plans
as employees

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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FUTURE POLICY TABLE - NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The table below sets out the Company's policy In respect of the setting of fees for Non-executive Directors

How the component supports the strategic

objectives of the Company How the component operates Maximum potential value of the component
FEES

Set at a market level to attract Non-executve  Fees are set by the Board with the Charrmans  Total fees pad to the Chairrnan and Non-
Directors who have approprate expenence fee being set by the Committee The relevant executive Directors will rematn within the limits
and skills to assist In determining the Groups Durectors are not present at the meetings stated in the Articles of Association

strategy when their fees are baing determined

Non-executive Directers normally recewve a
basic fee and an additional fee for any specific
Board responsibility such as membership or
charmanship of a Committee or occupying the
role of Senior Independent Director

In reviewing the fees the Board or Committee
as appropnate considers the level of fees
payable to Non-executve Directors in other
companies of similar scale and complexity

BENEFITS
Benefits for the Charrman are provided which Expenses incurred in the performance of None
are consistent with the market and level of non-executive duties for the Company may
seniority be reimbursed or paid for directly by the
Company (including any tax due on the
expenses)

The Chairman is entrtled to expenses on

the same basis as for other Non-executive
Directors and when appropnate for the
efficent carrying out of his duties, 15 pravided
with a driver and vehicle

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS/LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

The policy for Executive Directors’ service contracts is to provide for |2 months' notice from either side The policy for Non-executive
Directors letters of appointment 1s 1o contain three months’ notice from either side The policy for the Chairman's letter of
appointment 1s to contan a six month notice peried from either side
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

INTRODUCTION

This secuon sets out how the Company has appled its remuneration policy in the year, and detalls how the policy will be implemented
for the year 2016/17 In accordance with section 439 of the Companies Act, this section will be put to an advisory vote at the
Company's AGM which 1s scheduled to be held on | July 2016

OPERATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2016/17

A summary of the specific remuner ation arrangements for Executive Directors in 2016/17 15 described belaw

Base salary 2016717 salaries are
« Chris Loughhn £5/0,000

+ lan McAulay £406,000
* Susan Davy £390,000

Susan Davy was promated to the pasition of Chief Fnanaial Officer on | February 2015 The Committee intially
set her salary at £325000 a level below market rates with the intention of providing flexibility ta make higher
than usual Inct eases to reflect performance and experience In the role This approach of setting a lower salary
with the potental for higher increases following appointment is in ine with the Committee s normal policy The
Committee s assessment during the review was that she 1s now fully effective in the role and is performing at a
level which exceeds the expeciations set out on her appointment The Committee was therefore of the view that
it was appropriate to make an adjustment to her salary for 2015/16 and her salary was increased to £390 000
from | April 2016 the first safary increase since her appointment Following this adjustment, which 1s beheved

to be m hne with market rates and commensurate with her predecessors salary 1t 1s not anticipated that there
will be any further increases of this nature for Susan Davy Accordingly, future increases are not expected to be
matenally different from general employee increases

Pension and benefits No changes Salary supplement cash allowance of between 209 and 30% from which 1s deducted the employers
contnbution to the defined benefit or defined contnbution pension schemes for the Directors
Chnis Loughhn, appointed on | January 2016 and having been promoted from within the Group, already receved
a pension benefit equivalent to 30% of salary, In respect of which there has been no change

Annual bonus No change to maximum opportunity of 100% of salary No change to operation of deferral 50% of the bonus
15 delivered as deferred shares No changes to the overall performance measurement framewerk for the annual
bonus for 2016/17 although there 1s some adjustment to the component make-up of the financial performance
measures and the role-speafic measures affecting the Group Chief Executive Gfficer and the Chief Financial
Officer to reflect goals for the year, as set out below

30% EPS (before deferred tax and non-underlying items) performance

30% personal strategic objectives

40% measures which are speafic to the role including, in South West Water, net debt, operating profit
RoRE (Return on Regulated Equity) Totex (total expenditure) performance and service impr cvements
and, in Vindor, operating profit net debt and Adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest tax, deprecation,
amortisation and non-underlying items plus joint ventures EBITDA and IFRIC interest recervable)

More detal on the measures and weightings 1s provided on the following page The objective was to ensure
alignment to measures identfied as key for each rote with an appropriate balance between hard financal
measures and objectives aligned to the strategic success of the business

For bonuses from 2014/15 both malus and clawback apply as descnibed in the summary of the remuneration

policy report
Performance and No change to maximum performance opportunity of 100% of base salary awards being subject to co-mvestment
Co-investment Plan {PCP) of 20% of the award, and performance measures

» 50% TSR vs FTSE 250 {excluding investment trusts)

= 50% TSR vs a peer group index

‘Underpin relating to overall Group performance including consideration of emvironmental social and governance
factors and safety performance as well as financial performance

For awards from 2015716 both malus and clawback apply and a holding period applies in respect of any shares
which vest at the end of the three year performance period, as deseribed in the summary of the remuneration
policy report

Sharehaolding guideline No change [00% of salary to be bullt up n the first five years of joining

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016




N )\ VN y

OVERVIEW GROUP PERFORMANCE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORWARD-LOOCKING PERFORMANCE TARGETS
Detals of the annual bonus framework that will apply for each Executive Director for 2016/17 are set out In the table below

Group Chief Executive Officer, Chris Loughhin

30% EPS*

20% Average of South West Water directors performance including
() Operating profit () Net debt {v) Service iImpravements performance
(1} RoRE* performance (v} Totex® outperformance

20% Average of Vindor directors perfor mance including
(1) Operatng profit {n) Net debt {my Adjusted EBITDA

30% Personal strategic and delwery objectives

Chief Executive, Virdor, lan McAulay

30% EPSe
40% Average of Vindor directors performance nduding

{) Operating profit () Net debt {n) Adjusted EBITDA
30% Personal strategic and delivery objectives

Chief Financial Officer, Susan Davy

30% EPS*

20% Average of South West Water directors performance including
() Opetating profit {m) Net debt (v) Service improvements perfotmance
(1) RoRE* performance () Totex® outperformance

20% Average of Vindor directors perfaormance including
(1) Operaung profit (ny Ney deby () Adyusted ERBITDA

30% Personal strategic and delivery objectives

* EPS is before deferred tax and nor underlying items + RoRE 15 Return on Regulated Equity # Totex s total capital and revenue expenditure

The specific bonus targets are considered to be commercally sensitive However the Committee intends to disclose detalls of the
targets set retrospectively to the extent they are not considered commercially sensitive

For the PCP (long-term incentive plan) the targets are set out below

Threshold Maximum
(30% of maximum vests) ($00% of maximum vests)
Comparator index (50% of award) Equal to index 15% above the iIndex
FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts) Above 50th percentife At or above 75th percentile
(50% of award)
The comparator ndex will comprise
* Shanks Group * National Grid » United Utiibies * Suez Environnement
« Severn Trent * Seche Environnement * Veola Environnement

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FEES

Non-executive Director fees for 2016/17 are set out below They include increases per Non-executve Directar ranging from 0 6% to
73% approved by the Board, effective from | April 2016, to reflect principally changed responsibilities and additional commitments
arising from the revised Board governance structure The Chairman's increase approved by the Committee was | 5%

Fees
Raole 4
Chairman 266 350
Basic Non-executive Director fee 46500
Addinienal fees
Sentor Independent Director fee 5000
Additional fee for chairman of the Audit Comunittee 14,000
Additional fee for chairman of the Remunerztion Committee 10,000
Additional fee for chairman of the Sustainability Commiitee 10,000
Committee fee 5,000
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

CONTINUED

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION TABLES (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Benefits Annual bonus  Performance and
(including {cash and Co-Iinvestment Total
Base salary/fees Sharesave) deferred shares) Plan Pension remuneration
{£000) {£000) (£000) (£000) {£000) {£000)
=4 8 = S 8 =) = 8 8 = = =
< & & 2 w = & £ & 2 & 2
o~ o o~ & o o % o N = o -
Executive Directors
Susan Davy 325 54 18 2 238 51 66 - g|® 330 738 140
Chief Financial
Officer (appointed
| February 2015)
Chris Loughlin, 427 387 22 27 356 303 172 - 128 e e B33
Group Chief
Executive
Officer (appointed
| January 2016 -
previously Executive
Orrector and Chief
Executive South
West Water)t?
lan McAulay Chief 400 355 21 34t 238 202 - - 80 71 739 662
Executive Vindor
Non-executive Directors
Ken Harvey 87 262 8 24 - - - - - - 95 286
Chairman (retired
31 July 2015)
SirJohn Parker 219 - - - - - - - - - 219 -
Chairman
(appointed | August
2015 — previously
Deputy Charrman
from | April 2015)
Gerard Connell 23 63 - - - - - - - - 23 63
(retired 31 July
2015)
Neill Cooper 65 37 - - - - - - - - 65 37
Martin Angle 62 60 - - - - - - - - 62 60
Gilt Rider &5 60 - - - - - - - - 65 60

(1) Based on an estmated 34 5% vesung as referred to on page B9 and based on the Company s share price of 796 5p as a1 |9 May 2016 together with an estimate of the accrued
dividends payable on the vesting shares

{0) Includes legacy pension benefit accrued in the year

() Remuneration is aggregate total in the y=zar n respect of both positions

{~v) Benefits nduded a rewmbursement of relocation costs {including income tax) of £15 000
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ANNUAL BONUS OUTTURN FOR 2015/16
The performance targets set and the performance achieved in respect of the annual bonus for 2015/16 for each Executive Director 1s
set out below In line with the Committee s policy 50% of any bonus s payable in shares

SUSAN DAVY
Actual Bonus
Measure Weghting Threshold Target Maximum outturn outturn
EPS 30% 31 6p 351p 404p 395p 24 38%
SWW aperating profit 5% £198 8m £2093m £2198m £2150m 385%
SWW Return on Regulated 5% 85% 9% 10% 117% 500%
Equity
Vindor operating profit 10% £40 3m £424m £44 Sm £41 0m 216%
Net debt 20% No payout for below target Maximum payout for net debt £1788m 984%
of 2 5% below target*
Personal strategic objectives 30% Relating to key finance business objectives for the Group - 2800%
including progressing the Group s funding strategy, driving
the Group strategic review, developing the Group financial
framework and delivering on objectives relating to
subsidiary financial tat gets *
Total cutturn 7323%
* Some objectives and the detaded targets contnue to be commeraially confidential
IAN McAULAY
Acrual Bonus
Measure Weighung Threshold Target Maximum eutturn outturn
EPS 30% 3l 6p 35ip 404p 395p 24 38%
Average Vindor directors 40% The average of the bonus earned by the other executive 1013%
performance directors of Vindor induding targets that related to
* operating profit — the operating profit targets
were £38 2m(threshold) £42 4m(target) and
£46 6ém{maximum) actual cutturn was £40 9m
+ net debt*
+ Adusted EBITDA™*
The average also tock into account collective strategic
objectives relating to profitable revenue growth, forecasting
process improvements, comparative health and safety
performance and mplementation of organisational design *
Personal strategic objectives 30% Implementing Vindor strategy and projects including - 2500%
profitable sales of landfil sites and objectives in relaton to
the implementation of the ERF programme *
Total outturn 5951%

* Same abjectves and the detalled targets conunue 1o be commercally confidential
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ANNUAL BONUS OUTTURN FOR 2015/16 CONTINUED

CHRIS LOUGHLIN

Chris Loughlin became Group Chief Executive Officer from [ January 2016 and the: efore different objectives applied to the last three

menths of the year as set out below

Actual Bonus
Measure Weighting Threshold Target Maximum outturn outturn
Targets applicable for che period | April 2015 to 31 December 2015
EPS 22 5% 3lep 3Blp 40 4p 395p 18 28%
Average South West 30% The average of the bonus earned by the other executive directors of South West 26 00%
Water directors Water in respect of targets which refated to
performance + operating profit — the operating profit targets were £198 8m (threshold)
£209 3m (target) and £219 8m {maximum), actual cutturn was £215m
= net debt*
+ the postion the company achieves in the Service Incentive Mecharmsm of water and
wastewater companies established by Ofwat™®
- the achievement of a range of service standards set for the company by Ofwat *
Personal strategic 22 5% Implementing South West Waters new strategies and projects 21 00%
objectives including the achievement of the transion milestones and synergies
related to Bournemouth Water acquisiion and the delivery of opex/
capex efficiency targets*
Total outturn 65 28%
Targets apphcable for the period | January 2016 to 3t March 2016
EPS 75% 3l &p Blp 404p 395p 610%
Average South West 5% The average of the bonus earned by the ather executive directors of South West 433%
Water directors’ Water in respect of targets which related to
performance + operatng profit - the operating profit targets were £198 8m (threshold)
£209 3m (target) and £219 8m {(maximum) actual outturn was £215m
+ net debt*
+ the posiion the company achieves in the Service Incentive Mechanism of water and
wastewater companes established by Ofwat*
+ the achievement of a range of service standards set for the company by Ofwat *
Average Vindor 5% The average of the bonus earned by the other executive directors of Vindor | 27%
directors performance including targets that refated to
+ operating profit — the operating profit targets were £38 2m (threshold), £42,4m
(target) and £46 6m (maximum) actual outturn was £409m
+ net debt®
+ Adjusted EBITDA *
The avarage also took nto account collective strategic objectives relating to
profitable revenue growth farecasiing process improvements comparative health
and safety performance and implementation of organisational design *
Personal strategic 75% Development of new rale as Group Chief Executive Officer, completing the 700%
objectives integration of Bournemouth Water and pursuing synergies across the Group *
Totat outturn 18 70%
Overall total autturn 83 98%

* Some objectives and the detaded targets contirue to be commercally confidential
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PERFORMANCE AND CO-INVESTMENT PLAN OUTTURN FOR 2015/16
The PCP awards made on 2 July 2013, which are due to vest on 2 July 2016, are the awards included in the single figure table, and
currently it 15 estimated that the outturn will result in a 34 5% vesting as set out in the table below

50% of the awards vest subject to the Company's TSR performance measured against an index made up of the following six isted
comparator companies These companies were considered to be the Company's key listed cornparators

» National Grid Plc = Seche Environnement « Severn Trent

* Shanks Group * Suez Environnement + United Utihties

The remaining 50% of the awards vest subject to the Company's ranked TSR performance against the canstituents of the FTSE 250
(excluding Investment trusts)

The calculation of TSR performance over the three year performance period {(being | April 2G13 to | April 2016) for the PCP awards
was undertaken by Delaitte LLP for the Committee

Threshold (30% of Maximum (100% of Achievement in che Vesting

maximum vests) maximum vests) period to | April 2016* outturn*

Comparator index (50% of award) Equal to index 15% above the index | 05% above the index 18 3%

FTSE 250 (excluding investment trustsy (50%  Above 50th percentile At or above 75th percentile 520% 16 2%
of award)

TOTAL 34 5%

Straight-line vesting between points

For below threshold performance 0% vests

* Az the caleulation requires averaging TSR pe: farmance over the first thi e moniths af the perfor mance period and comparng it to the average over the three months toliowing the
end of the performance periad (| April 2016 to 30 June 2016) the achievement and the cutturn 1s an estimate at the date of calculation (20 May 2016)

Vesting of an award 15 alsc subject to the ‘underpin’ described on page 81 which the Committee has determined to the date of this
report would be satisfied

TOTAL PENSION ENTITLEMENTS (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Defined benefit persion accrued Description of additional benefits

at 31 March 20169 Normal reurement age avaitable to the Director on

£000pa ({for pension purposes) early retirement

Susan Davy 16 65 None

(1) The accrued pension for Susan Davy 1s based on service to the year end and final pensionable salary at that date

Susan Davy receives an overall pension benefit fiom the Company equivalent to 25% of her salary She 1s a member of Pennon
Group's defined benefit pension arrangements and 1s entitled to normal retirement pension payable from age 65 of broadly 1/80th of
pensionable remuneration for each year of pensionable service completed

The employers contribution to the pension for Susan Davy 1s deducted from the overall pension allowance

Pensions in payment are guaranteed to ncrease at a rate of 5% pa or RP| if lower for service accrued in the period up to 30 June 2014
and at a rate of 2 5% pa or CPlif lower for service accrued in the penod after this date If a Director dies within five years of retinng,
alump sum equal to the balance of five years' pension payments 1s paid plus a spouse’s pension of one half of the membet's pension
Pensions may also be payable to dependants and children

lan McAulay 1s a member of Pennon Group's defined contnibution arrangement and received an overall pension benefit from the
Company equivalent to 20% of tus salary Chris Loughhin 1s not a member of any of the Pennon Group's pension schemes and receves a
sum in keu of pension entitlement equivalent to 30% of salary

No addruonal benefits will become recevable by a Director in the event that the Director retires early Chnis Loughlin s normal
retirement age (s 67, which will be reached on 20 August 2019 lan McAulay s normal retirerment age 15 65, which will be reached on
25 Aprii 2030 Susan Davy's normal retirement age for pension purposes is 65, which will be reached on 17 May 2034
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DATES OF DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS/LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
The dates of Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment and details of the outstanding term are shown below

Executive Directors

Date of service contract

Expiry date of service contract

Susan Davy*

| February 2015 At age 67 (17 May 2036)

Chris Loughlin®

{ January 2016 At age 67 (20 August 2019)

{an McAulay*

2 August 2C13 At age 65 {25 April 2030)

* Each of the Executive Directors service contracts s subject 1o 12 months notice on either side

Non-executive Directors

Date of letter of appointment

Expiry date of appaintment

Sir john Parker 19 March 2015 Ongomng — subject 1o six months notice
Ken Harvey I Apnil 2005 31 July 2015 (retired on this date)
Martin Angle 28 November 2008 30 Novemnber 2017

Gerard Connell

30 September 2003 31 July 2015 {retired on this date}

Neil Cooper

17 July 2014 30 August 2017

Gill Rider

22 June 2012 30 August 2018

The policy for Executive Directors’ service contracts s to provide for 12 months' notice from either side

Non-executive Directors' letters of appointment contan three months' notice from either side and the Charmanss letter of

appointment contains a six month notice penod from erther side

OUTSIDE APPOINTMENTS

Executive Directors may accept one board appointment in ancther company Board approval must be sought before accepting an

appointment Fees may be retained by the Director Currently no Executive Directors hold cutside company appointments other than
with industry bodies or governmental or quasi-governmental agencies

DIRECTOR CHANGES — ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

RETIREMENT OF MR K G HARVEY AND MR G CONNELL
Both Mr Harvey (Chanman) and Mr Connell retired from office
on 3| July 2015 Nerther Director received any compensation for
loss of office

Following his retrement Mr Harvey continued in office as

the non-executive chairman of the board of Vinder Limited
This appointment ceased on 31 March 2016 following the
implementation of the new Group Board structure Mr Harvey
receved fees amounting to £56,647 and benefits of £2,830

in respect of the Vindor chairman role for the remaining eight
months of the year

Mr Connell, following his retirement, continued in office as a
non-executive director on the board of Bournemouth Water
until that board was disbanded on 3| March 2016 consequent
upecn the merger of Bournemouth Water and South West Water
Mr Connell received fees amounting to £13 333 in respect of

this role
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SIR JOHN PARKER
Sir John Parker was appointed as a Non-executive Director and
as Deputy Chairman of the Board on | April 2015

His fee was determined to be 50% of that of the then
Chairman's fee and was increased to the same level as that of his
predecessor upen his taking up the appointment as Chairman
on | August 2015 When appropriate for the efficent carrying
out of his duties, he is provided with a driver and vehicle

He 1s entitled to expenses on the same basis as for other
Non-executive Directors
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ALL EMPLOYEE, PERFORMANCE AND OTHER CONTEXTUAL INFORMATION
HISTORICAL TSR
The graph below shows the value, over the seven year period ended on 31 March 2016, of £100 nvested in Pennon Group on | Aprit
2009 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 Index This ndex s considered appropriate as it 1s a broad equity

market index of which the Company 1s a constituent

Date Pennon FTSE 250
Apr-09 100 100
Apr-10 134 162
Apr-11 167 189
Apr-12 195 191
Apr-13 177 238
Apr-14 219 287
Apr-15 252 308
Apr-16 255 31

EQUIVALENT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REMUNERATION

As the Company did not have a Group Chief Executive Officer untit 31 January 2016, the Committee has provided histonc single
figure information in the form of the aver age remuneration of the Executive Directors {or years up to and including 2014/15 Their

remuneration was considered to be the most approprate to use as they were the most senior executives in the Company

For 2015/16 the Commuttee has provided the average remuneration for the Executive Directors (excluding the Group Chief Executive
Officer) and the Group Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration for the year, as explaned in footnotes (1) and (i) below

2009/10 2010411 201112 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15  2015/160  2015/160
Average Executive Director single figure 916 1,051 1,221 894 962 762 738 1,419
of remuneraticn (£000)
Arnnual bonus payout (% of maximum} 2179 94 69 7287 4700 6756 6820 6637 8398
LTIP vesting (% of maximum)* 6730 5000 7930 5000 3020 000 3450 3450

{) The average of the Executrve Directors excluding the Group Chief Executve Officer

{u) Group Chief Executive Officer for the year including remunerason receved between | Apnl 2015 and 31 December 2015 when in position as Chief Executive South West Water
{m) The long-term incentive plan {LTIP) vesung percentage 15 an esumate as at |9 May 2016 and excludes accrued dividends which are added on vesting
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COMPARISON OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION TO EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

The table below shows the per centage change between 2014/15 and 2015/16 in base salary, benefits and annual bonus for the average
of the Executive Directors (including the Group Chief Executive Cfficer from his appointment on | January 2016 and in his previous
role as Chief Executive, South West Water) and all employees To enable comparison, the remuneration of the previous Chief Financial
Officer (previously titled Group Director of Finance) for 2014/15 has been included n the calculztion of the percentage changes

The percentage increase in average remuneration for employees s calculated using wages and salaries (excluding share-based
payments) of £158 0 million (2014/(5 £1439 milien} analysed into the three components in the table and the average number of
employees of 4987 (2014/15 4,558) both as detalled in note (3 to the Group financial statements To ensure a consistent calculabion of
year-cn-year movements Bournemouth Water's costs and employee numbers have been excluded

Percentage Percentage change in Percentage change in

change in salary benefits annual bonus

Average Executive Director remuneration +295% <20 01260 +8 63%
All employees +0 5% -09% +9 6%

(1) This figure mcludes relocation costs for lan McAulay Without these benefits the change would have been -2 89%

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

2015/16 2014415
(£ mullion) {£ million) Percentage change
Overall expenditure on pay” 1800 le54 +8 8%
Distmbutions to ordinary shareholders 1295 H70 +107%
Distributions to perpetual capital security holders 203 203 -
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment {cash flow) 2837 2981 3%

(1) Excludes non underlying items 2015/16 includes Bournemouth Water expenditure on pay

The above table illustrates the relatve importance of spend on pay compared with distributions to equity holders The purchase of
pioperty, plant and equipment (cash flow) has also been included as this was the most significant outgong for the Company in the last
financial year

SHARE AWARD AND SHAREHOLDING DISCLOSURES (AUDITED INFORMATION)

SHARE AWARDS GRANTED DURING 20!5/16
The table below sets out details of share awards made In the year to Executive Directors

Percentage vesting

Face value at threshald  Performance penod
Executive Director Type of interest Basis of award £000 performance end date
lan McAulay PCP 100% of salary 400 30% of maximum 31 March 2018
Chris Loughlin 400
Susan Davy 325
lan McAulay Deferred bonus | 50% of bonus awarded 101 nfa 26 July 2018
Chris Loughlin 151
Susan Davy 784

Sharesave (SAYE) awards were also made as detaled on page 97

(1) A proportion of the award made to Susan Davy related to her pertormance i her previous position with the Group as finance and | egulacory director South West Water

PCP awards were calculated using the share price at the date of grant (| July 20i5) which was £8 105 per share Deferred banus
awards were calculated using the share price at the date of grant (27 July 2015) which was £791
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DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING AND INTEREST IN SHARES
The Remuneration Committee believes that the interests of Executive Directors and senior management should be closely aligned
with the interests of shareholders

To support this the Committee operates shareholding guidelines The Executive Directors are expected to bulld up a shareholding n
the Company in accordance with the Company's sharehclding guideline which amounts to a shareholding interest equivalent to 100%
of salary to be built up within the fir st five years of joining the Company at the rate of at least 20% per year by the end of each year

This level of shareholding 15 then expected to be mamntaned by each Director and 1s revalued each year in accordance with the then
prevailing share price and the Executive Director’s salary

The beneficial nterests of the Executive Directors in the ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company as at 31 March 2016 (or date of
cessation, if ea:lier) and 31 March 2015 together with thewr shareholding guideline obligation and interest are shown in the table below

Unvested awards
Share Share
interests Interests
{including  (including Performance
connected connected Shareholding shares
partiesy at parues)at puidehne (100% Shareholding (subject to Deferred
31 March 31 March to be accrued guideline | performance banus Buyout
2016 2015 over five years) met? conditians) SAYE shares ESOS award
Susan Davy" 44,197 38,557 40% Yes 79338 2635 24907 4329 -
Chris Loughlin 247745 225045 10C% Yes 155 627 4,984 55 654 4329 -
lan McAulay 18748 - 40% Yest?} 93,810 - 20554 3,651 16,091

{1) Susan Davy s unvested awards include those she 1ecerved in her previous position as finance and regulatory director South West Water which she ) etains an mnterest in following
her appomtment as Chief Finincal Officer on | February 2015

(n) Due to salary increase tming and share price movement there 15 currently a small shortfall due to be made up in connection with the 2016/17 Performance and Co nvestment Plan
award to lan McAulay

Since 31 March 2016 3,618 additional ardinary shares in the Company have been acquired by Chris Loughhn as a result of particcpation
in the Company's scrip dividend alternative and the Company’s Share Incentive Plan, and 45 additional ordinary shares m the Compary
have been acquired by Susan Davy as a result of participation in the Company s Share Incentive Plan There have been no cther
changes in the benefical Interests or the non-benefical Interests of the above Directors in the crdinary shares of the Company
between | April 2016 and 20 May 2016
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING

The beneficial nterests of the Non-executive Directors, including the benefiaal interests of their spouses, avil partners, children and

stepchrldren, n the ordinary shares (40 7p) of the Company are shown in the table below

Director Shares held at 3| March 2016 Shares held ac 31 March 2015
Sir john Parker 10,000 -
Ken Harvey (retired 31 July 2015) 26,209 26 209
Martin Angle - -
Gerard Connell (retired 31 July 2015} 4495 4444
Nell Cocper - -
Gill Rider 2500 2500

There have been no changes in the beneficial interests ar the non-beneficial Interests of the above Directors in the ordinary shares of

the Company between | April 2016 and 20 May 2016

There 15 no formal shareholding guideline for the Nan-executive Directors, however, they are encouraged to purchase shares in

the Company
SHAREHOLDER DILUTION

The Company can satisfy awards under 1ts share plans with new issue shares or shares issued from treasury up to a maximum of 10%
of its 1ssued share capital in a rolling 10 year penod to employees under its share plans Within this 10% himit the Company can only
issue (as newly 1ssued shares or from treasury) 5% of its 1issued share capital to satisfy awards under discretionary or executive plans
The percentage of shares awarded within these guidelines and the headrocom :emaining avallable as at |7 May 2016 1s as set out below

Awarded Total
Discretionary schemes 148% 5%
All schemes 4 18% 10%
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In addiion 1o the above beneficial interests, the following Directors have ar had a contingent interest in the number of ordinary shares
(40 7p each) of the Company shown below, representing the maximum number of shares ta which they would become entitled under
the plan should the relevant critena be met in full

Date of end
Value of shares of pertod for
Conditionat Canditianal Market price upan vesting Conditional qualifying
Director and awards held at awards made  upon award in Vesting in (before tax) awards held at condittons to
date of award | April 2015 n year year year!) £000 31 March 2014 be fulfilled
Susan Davy™
37Nz 17696 - 768 50p - - - 2715
217113 21 347 - 653 00p - - 21 347 W7he
14/7/14 17,893 - 798 S0p - - 17893 1347117
117115 - 40098 810 50p - - 40098 30/6/18
Chris Loughlin
31712 48 145 - 768 50p - - - 215
21713 57810 - 653 00p - - 57810 11716
14/7i14 48 465 - 798 50p - - 48 465 1317447
17415 - 49352 810 50p - - 49352 30/6/18
lan McAulay
144714 44 458 - 798 50p - - 44458 13/7117
1745 - 49352 810 50p - - 49,352 30/6118

{1} None of the |uly 2012 award shares vested on 2 july 2015 due to the performance cntena not being met Therefore all of the award lapsed
{n) A portion of Susan Davy s share awards are those she recerved in her previous posiuon as finance and regulatory director South West Water up to 3 January 2015 in which she
retans an interest i her role as Cheef Finanaial Otficer
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DETAILS OF SHARE AWARDS CONTINUED
{b) Annual Incentive Bonus Plan — deferred bonus shares (long-term incentive element)
The following Directors had or have a contingent interest in the number of ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company shown below,

representing the total number of shares to which they have or would become entitled under the deferred bonus element of the Annual
Incentive Bonus Plan (the bonus plan) at the end of the relevant qualfying perod

Date of end
Market Value of shares of period for
Conditional Conditional price of each upon vesting Conditional qualifying
Direccor and awards heldat  awards made share upon Vestng (before tax) awards heldat  condmions to
date of award | April 2015 inyear  award in year in year £000 31 March 2016 be fulfilled
Susan Davy®
N2 7,263 - 754 50p 72630 57 - 26/7i5
5/8/1300 7555 - 693 00p - - 7555 418/16
27/8/14 7543 - B2l 50p - - 7543 16/8/17
2717115 - 9809 791 00p - - 9809 26/7118
Chris Loughlin
277412 20,650 - 754 50p 20,650} 163 - 26/7/15
5/8/13¢) 16978 - 69300p - - 16,978 4/8/1&
2718/14 19552 - 821 50p - - 19552 26/8/17
27415 - 19,124 791 00p - - 19124 26/7/18
lan McAulay
30/9/13 16 091 - 696 C0p - - 16,091 29/9/16
27181140 7775 - 821 50p - - 7775 26/8/17
277115 - 12,779 791 00p - - 12,779 26/7/18

(1) A poivon of Susan Davy s share awards are those she raceived in her previous position as finance and regulatory directar South West Water up ta 31 fanuary 2015 in which she
retamns an interest 11 her position as Chief Financial Qfficer

(1) These shares vested on |18 August 2015 at 791 |Cp per share

{1 In connechon with the awards made on S August 2013 (and 27 August 2014 to lan McAwlay) the Directors receved oplions pursuant to the Company s executive share opuon
scheme (ESOS) detalls of which are set oul on page 97 These awards were made in conjunction with the operaton of the bonus plan details of which are set out on page 80

{v) This was a buyout award

During the year the Directors 1 eceived dvidends on the above shares in accordance wrth the canditions of the bonus plan as follows

Susan Davy £9,251, Chris Loughlin £22,356°

* Chris Loughhin receved his dividend in the form of ordinary shares (40 7p each} in the Company as a result of participation in the Company s scrip dividend alternative and these
shares are induded inthe tigure given for the additional ordinary shares (40 7p each) in the Campany that he acquired since 31 Maich 2016 given on page 93
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(<) Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS)

The following Directors had a contingent interest in the number of options shown in the ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company
pursuant to the Company's ESOS Further details relating to the operation of the scheme are set cut on page 80

Market
Market value of
Options Exercise pnice of each each share Optons
held at | Granted in  Exercised in price per shareon  at 31 March held at 31 Maturity
Date of award April 2015 year year share _ exercising 2016  March 2016 date
Susan Davy®
5/8/13 4329 - - 693 00p - 81100p 4329 5/816
Chris Loughlin
/8713 4329 - - 69300p - 811 00p 4329 5/8/16
lan McAutay
27/8/14 3651 - - 821 50p - 811 0Cp 365t 2718117

(1) Susan Davys shaie options a ¢ those she recerved in her previous pasition as finance and regulatory director South West Water up to 31 january 2015 in which she retains an
wtel est in hey position as Chier Financial Officer

(d) Sharesave scheme

Details of options to subscribe for ordinary shares (40 7p each) of the Company under the zll-employee Sharesave scheme were

Market Market
price value of
Options Exercise of each each share Options
held at Granted Exerased in price per shareon at 3l March heldat31  Exaercse period/
Date of award 1 Aprl 2015 in year year share exercising 2016 March 2016 maturity date
Susan Davy®
2916112 { 530 - 1 530 58800p 74800p - - 119115 - 28/2/16
2476115 - 2635 - 683 00p - 8l1 00p 2635 1/9/18 — 2812119
Chns Loughhin
373 2788 - - 53800p - 811 00p 2,788 H9/18 — 2812119
2416115 - 2196 - 683 00p - 811 00p 2196 19120 — 28/2/21

(1) Susan Davy s share aptions a & those she recaved in her pravious pasitien as finance and regulatory director South West Water up 1o 31 January 2015, 1n which she retains an
wterest in her posinon as Chief Financial Officer
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GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATION

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT
CONTINUED

ADVISERS TO THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year the Committee received advice or services which materally assisted the
Committee in the consideration of remuneration matters from Ken Harvey, Chairman
of the Company (until 31 July 2015), from Ken Woodier, Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary (until 24 March 2016), from Chris Loughlin, Group Chief Executive
Officer following his appomtment on | January 2016, and from the following adviser who
was appointed directly by the Committee

» Deloitte LLP on calculating the Company s total shareholder return compared
with two comparator groups for the Company's long-term incentive plan on
remuneration trends and on the fee level for the Group Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer Subsequent to the year end Delortte LLP provided
advice to the Committee on the form of the Directors’ remuneration Deloitte LLP's
fees in respect of advice which materially assisted the Committee during 2015/16
were £28,740 (arrived at from an hourly rate basis of charging) Delortte LLP also
provided tax and share scheme adwice to the Group, consulting, corpot ate finance
and assurance advisory services 1o Viridor and assurance advisory services te South
West Water Deloitte LLP 15 a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group
and as such voluntarly operates under the code of conduct in relation to executive
remuneration consutting in the UK The Committee is satisfied that the advice it has
recerved from Deloitte LLP has been objective and independent on the basis that
it is an independent professional firm and complies with the code of corduct of the
Remuneration Consultants Group referred to above

STATEMENT OF VOTING AT GENERAL MEETING

The table befow sets out the voting by the Company s shareholders on the resolution
to approve the Directors’ remuneration report at the Annual General Meeting held on
31 July 2015, including votes for against and withheld

Remuneration report

For % (including votes at the Charman s discretion) 98 26
Against % 174
Withheld number 3072

A vote withheld 15 not counted in the caleulation of the proparticn of votes for and against a resolution

The Remuneration Committee is pleased to note that over 98% of shareholders
who voted approved the 2014/15 Directors' remuneration report The Committee
appreciates the cont support of its shareholders

Martin D A
Chairman of th
24 May 2016

emuneration Committee
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DIRECTORS REPORT —
OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

INTRODUCTION

This Directors’ report 15 prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Comparies Act 2006 and regulations made
thereunder It compnises pages 58 to 76 and 99 to 101 as well as
the following matters which the Board considers are of strategic
importance and, as permitted by legislation, has chosen to include
In the strategic 1eport rather than the Directors' report

* sk management systems (page 51 of the strategic report}

= lkely future developments of the Company (page 17 of the
strategic report)

* important post-balance sheet events (note 45 of the notes to
the financizl statements)

* all matters relating to sustainabihity, which include details of the
Group's carbon emissions (page 45 of the strategic report)
and information relating to employee involvement (page 50) of
the strategic report, as well as the disclosure below)

In addition, the Directors’ report includes the following
disclosures {and any other disdosures) which are incorporated
by reference

+ finanaial risk management (note 3 of the notes to the
financial statements)

+ financial Instruments {notes 2(o) and |8 of the notes to the
financial statements)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors in office as at the date of this report (all of

whom served during the year) are named on pages 60 and 6t

In addition Ken Harvey, the previous Chairman, and Gerard
Connell, the previous Senior Independent Director served during
the year until their retirement from the Board on 31 July 2015

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 23 12p per ordinary
share to be paid on 2 September 2016 to shareholders on the
register on 8 July 2016, making a total dwidend for the year of

33 58p, the cost of which will be £138 5 milhon, resulting in a
transfer to reserves of £13 6 million The strategic report on
pages |8 to 25 analyses the Group's financial 1esults in more detall
and sets out other financial nfor mation

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE AND INDEMNITIES
The Drrectors have the benefit of the indemnity prowsions
contaned in the Company s Articles of Association (‘Articles )
and the Company has maintained throughout the year Directors’
and officers hability insurance for the benefit of the Company,
the Directors and its officers The Company has entered into
qualifying third party indemnity arrangements for the benefit

of all its Dhrectors in a form and scope which comply with the
requirements of the Comparies Act 2006 and which were in
force throughout the year and reman in force

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND EMPLOYEE
INVOLVEMENT

The Group has a culture of continuous iImprovement through
investment in people at all levels within the Group The Group s
committed {o pursuing equality and diversity in all its employment
actvities including recrutment, training, career development and
promotion and ensuring there 1s no bias or discrimination i the
treatment of pecple In particular, applications for employment
are welcomed from persons with disabilities, and special
arrangements and adjustments as necessary are made to ensure
that applicants are treated fairty when attending for interview

or for pre-employment aptitude tests Wherever possible the
opportunity is taken to retrain people who become disabled |
during their employment in order to mamntain thetr employment

within the Group Infermation regarding the Group s workplace

polices 15 provided on page 48

The Board has a diversity policy and encourages gender diversity
in particular Further details of the Board's diversity policy are set
out in the report of the Norination Commuttee on page 74, and
information regarding the diversity of the workforce is provided
on page 50

Employees are consulted regularly about changes which

may affect them either through their trade union-appointed
representatives or by means of the elected staff counail which
operates in South West Water for staff employees

These forums together with regular meetings with particular
groups of employees are used to ensure that employees are kept
up to date with the business performance of their employer and
the financial and economic factor s affecting the performance of
the Group The Group also cascades information monthly to

all employees to provide them with impeortant and up to date
information about key events and to obtan feedback from them
Further information about employment matters relating to the
Group 15 set out on pages 48 to 50 of the strategic report

The Group encaurages share ownership among 1ts employees
by operating an HM Revenue & Customs approved Sharesave
scheme and Share Incentive Plan Foliowing shareholder approval
at the 2014 AGM, these were amended to provide for the
increased savings imits approved by government At 31 March
2016 around 44% cof the Group's employees were participating in
these plans

HUMAN RIGHTS AND ANTI-SLAVERY

The Group s fully supportive of the pnnciples set out in the

UN Declaraticn of Human Rights, and the Group Ethics Policy
outlines the high standards of employment practice with which
everyone in Pennon Group is expected to comply The Group
also supporis the International Labour Organization s core
conventions for the protection and safety of workforces wherever
they may be throughout the Group

The Group’s commitment to ensuning the human nghts of its
employees are not nfringed extends to those of its suppliers
Supplier codes of conduct are in place to ensure that people are
treated farrly and with respect and digrity

www pennonannualreport co uk/2016 99




GOVERNANCE AND REMUNERATICON

DIRECTORS' REPORT —

OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES coNTINUED

In addition following appropriate due diligence we have put in
place policies and procedures to assess, monitor and reduce the
risk of modern slavery and human trafficking occurring in our
businesses and supply chains Risk assessments of any high risk
supply partners have been completed by Vindor, South West,
Water and Bournemouth Water to ensure comphance with the
Modern Slavery Act across the Group and we are In the process
of drafting our anti-slavery and human trafficking web-based
statement for the financral year 2016/(7 This will be avalable at
www pennon-group co uk in due course

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development within the Group involving water and
waste treatment processes amounted to £0 | millon during the
year (2014/15 £0 | million}

OVERSEAS BRANCHES

The Company has no overseas branches

PENNON GROUP DONATIONS

No political donations were made or political expenditure
Incurred and no contnbutions were made to a non-EU political
party (2014/15 nil})

PURCHASE OF OWN ORDINARY SHARES

The Company has authority from shareholders to purchase up
to 10% of its own ordinary shares {as renewed at the Annual
General Meeting in 2015), which was valid as at 31 March 2016
and remains currently valid No purchases were made during the
year As at | Apnl 2015, 389,515 shares were held in treasury
with a nominal value of £158,533 and representing 0 19 of issued
share capital 379,152 treasury shares representing 0 09% of
1ssued share capital as at | April 2015 were reissued during the
year under the Company's employee share schemes for proceeds
of £2°5 milion

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY PUBLICLY
TRADED COMPANIES

The following disclosures are made pursuant to Part 6 of Schedule
7 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and Rule 72 6 R of the
UK Listing Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (OTR)

As at 31 March 2016

a) Details of the Company's issued share capital which consists of
ordinary shares of nominal value 40 7 pence each, are set out
In note 33 to the finanaal statements an page 160 All of the
Company's issued shares are fully paid up, rank equally in all
respects and are listed on the Official List and traded on the
London Stock Exchange The rights and obbgations attaching
to the Company's shares, in addition to these conferred on
their holders by law, are set out in the Company's Articles,
copies of which can be obtained from Companies House in
the UK or by writing to the Group Company Secretary at the
Company's registered office,

b) There are no restrictions on the transfer of 1ssued shares of
the Company or on the exercse of voting rights attached
to them, except where the Company has exercised its right
to suspend their voting rights or to prohibit their transfer
following the omission of their holder or any person interested

PENNON GRCUP PLC ANNUAL REPCRT 2015

in them to provide the Company with information requested
by it in accordance with Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006
or where their holder 1s precluded from exercising voting
rights by the Financial Conduct Authority s Listing Rules or
the City Code on Takeovers and (Mergers There are no
persons with special nghts regarding control of the Company
Mo shares issued under the employee share schemes have
rights with regard to control of the Company that are not
exercisable directly by the employees,

©) Details of significant direct or indirect holdings of securities of
the Company are set out in the shareholder analysis on page
|74 The Company 15 not aware of any agreements between
shareholders which may result n restrictions on the transfer of
securities or on voting rights,

d) The Company's rules about the appointment and replacement,
of Directers are contained in the Articles and accord with
usual English company law provisions The powers of Directors
are determined by UK legslation and the Articles in force from
time to tme Changes to the Articles must be approved by the
Company's shareholders by passing a special resolution,

e) The Directors have the power to make purchases of the
Company s cwn shares in 1ssue as set out above The
Directors also have the authority to allot shares up to an
aggregate nominal value of (1) £55,765.009 (such amount to
be reduced by any shares allotted or rights granted under (i)
below in excass of £55,765,009), and () £111,530,018 by way
of a nghts 1ssue (such amount to be reduced by any shares
allotted or nghts granted from (1)) above}, which was approved
by shareholders at the 2015 Annual General Meeting (AGM)
in addition, shareholders approved a resolution giving the
Directors a lirited autherity to allet shares for cash other than
pro rata to exasting shareholders These resolutions remain
valid until the conclusion of this year's AGM Similar resolutions
will be proposed at this year's AGM The Directors have no
present Intention 1c issue ordinary shares other than pursuant
to the Company's employee share schemes and the scrip
dwidend alternative

f) There are a number of agreements which take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control of the Company following
a takeover bid, such as bank loan agreernents eurcbond
documentaticn, hybrid capital securities documentation,
private placement debt and employees’ share plans This may
result in certain funding agreements being altered or repaid
early The impact on employees' share plans 1s not considered
significant, and

g) There are no agreements between the Company and its
Directors or employees providing for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occurs because of 2 takeover bid

GOING CONCERN

Having consider ed the Group's funding position and finanaal
projections the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resource to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they
continug to adapt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the annual report
the Directors’ remuneration report and the finanaal statements
In accordance with applicable faw and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financal
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group and Company financial statements

In accordance with International Financial Reportng Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unign

Under company law the Director s must not approve the financial
statements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for the year

In prepanng these financal statements the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply
them consistently

* make judgements and accounting estimates which are
reasonable and prudent

+ state whether applicable [FRSs as adopted by the European
Unton have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial staternents

The Drectors confirm that they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the finanaal statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that ate sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group and the Company, and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’
remuneration report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Ar ticle 4 of the
International Accounting Standards (IAS) Regulation They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed
on pages 60 and 6, confirms that, to the best of hus or
her knowledge

1} The financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union grve a true and far
view of the assets, labilities financial position and profit of the
Group and of the Company

i1y The strategic report {pages 4 to 55) and the Directors’ report
{pages 99 to 101) include a far review of the development and
performance of the business during the year and the position
of the Company and the Group at the year end together with
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face

m) Following receipt of advice from the Audit Commuttee, that
the annual report, taken as a whole 1s far balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for
the shareholders to assess the Groups performance, business
model and strategy

\ J

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity
of the Company's website www pennon-group <o uk
Legslation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissernination of financal staternents may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF

INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

1) Sofar as each of the Directors in office at the date of the
signing of the report is aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditor 1s unaware, and

i) each of the Directors has taken all the steps each Director
ought o have taken indwmidually as a Director in order to make
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Cornpany s auditor 1s aware of
that information

The Directors report consisting of pages 58 to 76 and 99 to
101 was approved by the Board on 24 May 2016

By Order of the Board

Helen Barrett-Hague

Group Company Secretary
24 May 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PENNON GROUP PLC

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opmion

.

Pennon Group Plc's Group financal statements and Parent Company financial statements
(the financial statements’) give a true and far view of the siate of the Group's and of the Parent
Company's affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as

adopted by the European Union

the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the

Comparues Act 2006, and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and as 1egards the Group financial statements, Artcle 4 of the

IAS Regulation

YWHAT WE HAVE AUDITED
Pennon Group Pic's finangal statements comprise

Group

Parent Company

Consolidated income statement for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended

Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2016

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2016

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

Staternent of changes in equity for the year then ended

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended

Cash flow statement for the year then ended

Related notes | ta 46 to the financial statements

Related notes | to 46 to the financial statements

» The financal reporting framework that has been apphed in their preparation 1s apphcable law and
Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurepean Union and as regards the
parent company finanaal statements as apphed n accordance wath the prowisions of the Companies Act

2006

OVERVIEW OF CUR AUDIT APPROACH

Risks of matenal + Completeness of provisions for uncertan tax positions and tax disclosures (Group, including SWW & Vindor)

misstatement » Valuztion of goodwill (Group)

» Valuation of non-current assets (Virndor)

» Valuation of landfill related prowsions (Vindor)
* Revenue recognition across the Group's operations
+ Valuation of the provision for doubtful debts (SWW)

Audit scope + We performed an audit of the complete finanaal information of four components

+ The components where we performed full audit procedures accounted for {00% of Profit before taxation before
non-underlying items  100% of Revenue and 95% of Total assets

Matenality + Qverzll Greup matenality of £10m which represents appraximately 5% of Profit before taxation before

non-underlying tems
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OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

We identified the risks of matenal misstatement described below as those that had the greatest
effect on the overall audit sirategy; the allocation of resources in the audit, and direction of the
efforts of the audit team The Wdentified risks are consistent wath prior year In addressing these
risks, we have performed the pracedures below which were designed in the context of the financal
statements as a whole and, consequently we do not express any opinion on these indmvidual areas

Rusk

Risk
direction

Qur response to the risk

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

What we concluded to the
Audit Committee

COMPLETENESS OF PROVISIONS
FOR UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS
AND RELATED TAX DISCLOSURES
{(GROUP, INCLUDING Swvy

AND VIRIDOR)

The Groups current tax habihity of £371
milhon (2015 £52 2 million) shown in note
27 includes £37 1 million (2015 £36 6 million)
In respect of open tax computaticns relating
to prior years where labilites are yet to

be agreed with HM Revenue & Customs
(HMRC)

Pennon has a number of open periods with
HMRC as a result of on-going enquines
into the nterpretation of tax legislation
regarding transactions undertaken by the
Group The Group evaluates uncertan tax
items and where appropriate establishes
provistons for uncertain tax positrons based
on the status of discussions with HMRC
Significant management judgement 1s required
In estimatmng tax expected to be paid for
uncertain tax items

There 15 also lmited HMRC guidance available
In relation to the tax treatment assccated with
IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements’
accounting

Critical accounting judgements and estimates
made by management in applying the Groups
taxation accounting policy are disclosed in
note 4

Audit Committee commentary 1s on page 68

<

Qur procedures include

» We nspecied the latest correspondence
between the Group and HMRC

‘We read legal advice or opinion management
have obtaned in the pened in refation to
uncertain tax posrions 1 order to venfy
whether the level of provision s based on up
to date legal advice In response to HMRC's
challenges

-

We obtained an updated view from internal
tax specabsts as to HMRC s current position
on open matters

for uncertatn tax positions in light of third
party evidence cbtained the views of cur tax
speaialsts and the level of coverage provided
by the provision for the total tax that could
become payable

We tested whether the tax accounting and

disclosures in note 9 and 27 complied with the

requirements of IAS12 ‘Income Taxes

We read the tax disclosures in the Annual
Report and Accounts and evaluated the
adequacy of these

We assessed the level of provision maintained

We concluded that the tax
amounts and disclosures 10 the
Annual Report and Accounts
for the year ended 3| March
2016 are appropnate

We concur with the approach
adopted in respect of uncertan
tax postbions, and condude that
the prevision 1s appropriate,
taking into account our review
of third party advice and views
of curinternal tax specialists
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

Risk ‘What we concluded to the
Resk direction Our response to the risk Audit Committee
VALUATION OF GOODWILL H QOur procedures indude We conduded that
(GROUP) * We validated management's determination management has determined

The value of goodwill 1s £385 0 mullion

(2015 £3239 3 million), as induded in note

15 Goodwill has increased duning the year
following the acquisition of Bournemouth
Water and an annual iImparment test is
required with key assumptions being future
allowed tariff increases delvery of operational
efficencies and the discount rate apphed

The value in use of the Vindor business to
which goodwill of £339 3 milhon has anisen
1s based on assumptions over growth rates
future landfill valumes power generation
prices and discount rates, which require
Judgement

There 15 a risk that assumptions and
judgements made by management, in
calculating the value 1n use of the cash
generatmg units (CGUs) could be suscepuible
1o management bias

Cnical accountng judgements and estimates
made by management, when testing gcodwill
for imparment are disclosed in note 4

Audit Committee commentary 1s on page 68

that the Vindor waste management business
was a single CGU

We tested the clencal accuracy of the models
by reperformance of a sample of calculations

We agreed input data into the goodwill
impairment model and cash flow forecasts to
approved business plans and for Vindor we
performed sensiivity anzlysis over this data
including growth rates, volumes, and powergen
prices

We benchmarked the discount rate calculation
apphed at Group level, using our internal
valuation experts 1o assist in our review of
whether management s assumptions are within
an acceptable range based on comparative
market data

We agreed whether disclosures made are in
accordance with IFRS

cash generating units and
allocated goodwill to those
CGUs at an appropriate level
being the lowest tevel within
the Group at which goodwill
1s menitored for internal
management purposes

We concluded that the discount
rates and cash flow assumptions
appled by management were
within an appropriate range

and supported management s
conclusion that no imparrment
in goodwill was necessary

We concur with management s
assessment that the recently
acquired Bournemouth Water
business has outperformed

1ts budget for the year and
therefore the newly recogrised
goodwill ts not impaired

VALUATION OF NON-CURRENT
ASSETS (VIRIDOR)

The net book value of Vindor s property plant
and equipment s £1,012 mullion {2015 £9453
millon) as included in note 17 The Group 1s
required to review the carrying value of assets
when impairment mdicatar s are wdentified
Curing the year a detalled exercise has been
performed by management to re-evaluate
the structure of the CGUs within the Vindor
business The risk of impairment may anse if
management uses (Nappropriate assumptions
to group assets into CGUs or if imparment
indicators are not appropriately considered at
year end

This risk has decreased in the current year due
to the alignment of CGUs to reflect changes
in the waste market and recrientation of
Virndor s operations towards Energy Recovery
Facilities (ERFs), which has resulted in a higher
level of headroom

Critical accounting judgements and estimates
made by management, 1 rewsing the CGlUs
and testing assets for imparrment are disclosed
n note 4

Audit Committee commentary 1S on page 68

4

Qur procedures include

-

We discussed with management the change
1n approach to identifying the CGUs and
obtained a detaled understanding of the
changes in the business operations and
environment underlying this change

We validated that the change in CGUs has
been correctly apphed tc the grouping of
assets and assessment of the contractual cash
flows from customers to the revised CGUs

We tested the accounting entries ansing from
the revised CGUSs from the calculations to the
amounts 1 ecorded in the finanaal statements
for impairment reversals and charges

We tested management s assessment of
impairment at the year end to supporting
evidence and considered whether n our
opinion there were any cther indicators of
impairment at the balance sheet date

We benchmarked the discount rates applied
using our internal valuation experts to assist
In our review of whether managements
assumptions are within an acceptable range
based on comparative market data

We tested the clencal accuracy of the
impairment model by reperformance of the
calculation We also agreed input data into the
impan ment model and agreed cash flow
forecasts to approved business plan

We agreed whether disclosures made are in
accerdance with IFRS

We concluded that the revised
CGU structure 1s appropnate
and the timing of the revision
to CGUs 1s consistent with

the significant cperational
developments within the
Vindor business

We concluded that the
impairment assessment
performed by management and
the iImpairment adjustments
recognised and disclosed as

a result of the revised CGU
structure are appropriate
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

What we cancluded to the
Audit Commuttee

VALUATION OF LANDFILL RELATED
PROVISIONS (VIRIDOR)

Landfill related provisions of £182 1 million
(2015 £193 0 milion) are recorded in note

32 and consist of aftercare restoration and
remediation provisions

L yr

Calculation of the aftercare provision involves
significant judgement in respect of the
expected penod of aftercare, the level of costs
to be incurred and the discount rate to be
used

Key areas of estmation for the restoration
provision include the expected restoration
costs, the void space 1o be filled and uming of
site closure

Judgement over the remedial actien required
to comply with current emvircnmental
legislabion where breaches have been
dentified 15 a key estmate for the remediation
provision

There 15 nsk that provisions could be misstated
if Inappropriate assumpticns such as discount
rates, are apphed by managerment

Critical accounting judgements and estimates
made by management when recognising
landfill related prowisions are disclosed in note
4

Audit Committee commentary is on page 68

Our procedures include

We evaluated the forecast costs in the models
agreeing these to supperting evidence such as
budgets and current performance

We assessed the reasonableness of material
judgements made, including expected gas
generation and antiapated cost savings to
detalled plans and current performance

We compared the reasonableness of key
assumptrons used n the calculation of the
provisions including the discount rates

nflation rates void space and remaining lives of

the sites to avallable market information

assumpttons

We tested the aftercare restoration and
remediation prowsion models, and verified
that the models are clerically accurate

We performed sensitivity analysis on these key

We concluded that the
assumptions supporting the
landfill related provisions reflect
management s best esumates,
nformed by latest external and
internai data and consider that
the provisions are within an
acceptable range
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

Risk What we concluded to the
Risk direction  Our response to the risk Audit Commuttee
REVENUE RECOGNITION e Our procedures include South West Water and

ACROSS THE GROUP’S
OPERATIONS

The Group s matenal revenue streams
relate to the provision of water and
sewerage services by South West
Water water services by Bournemouth
Water and revenue generated from

the renewable energy recycling and
waste management services provided
by Vindeor 1SAs (UK & Ireland) presume
there is a risk of fraud relating to
revenue recognition For the Group
given targets asscciated to financial
performance and also pressures to meet
market expectations there 15 a nisk that
revenue might be overstated This risk
over revenue recognrtion specifically
arises in the following judgemental areas
where there 1s opportunity to overstate
revenue

South West Water and

Bournemouth Water

* Income from measured water services
requires an estimation of the amount
of unbilled charges at the year end
This 1s calculated using a combination
of system generated information
based on previous customer volume
usage together with management
Judgements as to the likely impact
on usage of factors such as recent
weather patterns The accrued income
balance at 31 March 201615 £678
million (2015 £&1 O milhon)

« Forunmeasured revenue the bills
for each calendar year are raised in
advance for the next finanaal year
Therefore there is a nsk that revenues
are recorded in the incorrect period
if the advance biling element 15 not
properly excluded and carned forward
In the balance sheet

.

-

South West Water and Bournemaouth Water

Bournemouth Wacer

We obtained an understanding of the process for We concluded that the basis

the supply of measured services meter reading
and related billing in order to challenge the
completeness of adjustments to reflect the accrual
or deferral of revenue

Income accrual 1s appropriate
Management assumptions in
respect of customer demand

are within an acceptable range

We tested key controls inked to system generated
information and around the estimation process for

reasured revenue biling have been correctly

recorded
We compared the accrued income to bills raised

post year end for a sample of customers and
compared management s history of estimating
the accrued income balance to bills raised in the
subsequent year

We performed a walkthrough of the process for
unmeasured revenue and the annual billing cycle

We performed controfs testing related to
the calculatien of system generated billing for
unmeasured revenue

We obtained details of the billing runs in February
and March and venfied whether there were any
other billing runs for unmeasured revenue that
should be excluded from 2015/16 total revenue

We corroborated the key assumptions and
estimates made by management in recognising
revenue by obtaining internal and external data on
factors that influence demand from custormer s

We tested whether contract terms and condiions
are met and revenue recognised at the correct time
In accordance with IFRS

We performed detailed analytical procedures by
companng revenue balances for the year against
expectation and cbtaining suppert for significant
variances

We performed detailled testing of samples of
transactions to underlying bills for both types of
revenue

In performing our journal testing we paid increased
attention to entries mpacting revenue particularly
those raised dose to the balance sheet date

of calculation of the measured

Amaounts identified as advance
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What we concluded to the
Audrit Committee

Viridor

+ Calculations of accrued income on
waste management contracts and
powergen revenue to be received
involve estimation by management

Accounting for revenue from long
term service concession arrangements
under IFRICI2 requires revenue to be
recognised on construction during
service delivery and as a capital return
on the asset

Recogrising reverue 1n the correct
penod for invoices raised close to
the balance sheet date may involve
management judgement

Crtical accounting judgements and
estimates made by management in
applying the Group s revenue recognition
policy are disclosed in note 4

Audit Committee commentary i1s on
page 68

Yirndor

v

We compared the key assumptions and estimates
made by management in recognising revenue to
prior year and monthly trends and to external
custorner confirmations

For material tems we re-performed the calculation
to confirm the accuracy of the acerued and deferred
income recorded by managerment

In performing our journal testing we paid increased
attention to entnies Impacting revenue, particularly
those raised dose to the balance sheet date

We agreed whether the revenue recogrition
policies adopted comply with IFRSs in particular the
requirements of IFRICI2 and whether margins used
to recogaise revenue are appropriate

We performed cut off testing of inveices raised
prior to and after the balance sheet date to ensure
revenue has been recognised in the correct penod

Viridor

We concluded that revenue has
been recorded in the correct
accounting pertod accrued
income has been appropriately
recognised and IFRIC 12
appropriately applied

VALUATION OF THE PROVISION &)
FOR DCUBTFUL DEBTS

(SOUTH WEST WATER)

As shown in note 22 there is a provisicn

of €162 8 millon {2015 £86 8 mill:on) at

the year end against gross trade debtors

of £306 4 million (2015 £282 5 miulhon)

The South West \Water provision 1s
calculated using a combination of system
generated Information on historic debt
recovery rates and management s
Judgement of the future likely recovery
rates

There s a risk that the assumptions used
by management in calculating the bad
debt provision may be inappropriate and
the valuation of the provision against
trade recevables may be misstated

Crical accounting judgements and
estimates made by management,
in providing for doubtful debts are
disclosed in note 4

Audit Commuttes commentary 1s on
page 68

Our procedures incude

-

We tested controls over the integnty of data and
the report utiised to generate the ageing and
categorisation of debt wathin South West Waters
billing system

We tested histonic data on collection rates and
evaluated how this data was used in the preparation
of the bad debt provision

We corroborated the assumptions used by
management In determining the amounts provided
aganst the different categories and age of debt by
comparing these assumptions to historic collection
rates and by considering the impact of changes n
the methods adopted operationally by management
to collect debt and in the external envircnment

We utilised collection information over the past
three years to determine a range of the likely
ulumate collection of debts exasting at the balance
sheet date and compared this to the provision
recorded by management

We cencluded that the doubtful
debt provision s within an
acceptable range and reflects
recent history of ccllection of
outstanding debts
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

TAILORING THE SCOPE

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materality and cur
allocation of performance matenality deterrmine our audit scope
for each entity within the Group Taken together, this enables

us to form an opinion on the conselidated finanaal statements
We take into account size, sk profile, the organisation of the
group and effectiveness of group-wide controls, changes in the
business environment and other factors such as recent internal
audit results when assessing the level of work to be performed at
each entity

In assessing the risk of matenial misstatement to the Group
financial statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative
coverage of significant accounts in the financial statements, of the
six reporting components of the Group, we performed an audit
of the complete financial information of four compenents ( full
scope component’) which were selected based on therr size or
risk characterisics Thesa components include Pennon Group
Ple, Vindor, South West Water and Bournemouth Water and
represent the principal business units within the Group

For the current year, the full scope components contributed
Q0% (2015 99%) of the Group's profit before taxation before
non-underlying items, 100% (2015 99%) of the Group's Revenue
and 95% {2015 95%) of the Group's Total assets

The remaining twe components, individually and 1n aggregate,
reprasent less than 1% of the Group's profit before taxation
before non-underlying items For these components which
include Peninsula Insurance and Peninsula Leasing, we performed
other procedures, including analytical review procedures, testing
of corsolidation journals and intercompany eliminations for each
compenent to respond to potential risks of material misstatement
to the Group financial statements

CHANGES FROM THE PRIOR YEAR

Ther e were two changes in scope from the prior year The first
was that Bournemouth Water, which was acquired by Pennon
Group Plc in Apnil 2015 was designated as full scope for the
current year audit The second change was that the scope
determined for Peninsula Insurance was changed fi om spearfic
scope to review scope, reflecting the fact that, with the growth
in Group activities, including profit before taxation before
non-underlying items, this component 1s now less than 1% of
the Group

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

INVOLVEMENT WITH COMPONENT TEAMS

There are three key locations where we perform audit
procedures for the Group and its components being Exeter
Taunton and Bournemouth The Pennen Group Plc and South
West Water accounting functions are based in Exeter and
the audit teams of thase components are led by the same
audit executive Separate teams audit Vindor in Taunton and
Bournemouth Water in Bournemouth The primary team
interacted regularly with all teams during vanous stages of the
audit, including review of key working papers, review of work
performed to address the risks of material misstatement and
attendance at key meetings with management

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

We apply the concept of matenality in planning and performing
the audit, In evaluating the effect of Identified rmisstatements on
the audit and in forming our audit opinien

MATERIALITY

The magnitude of an omission or misstaternent that, indrdually
or In the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements
Materalty provides a basis for determining the nature and extent
of our audit procedures

We deterrmined matenality for the Group to be £10 milion
{2015 £10 million), which 1s 5% (2015 5%) of profit before
taxation before non-underlying tems We believe that profit
before taxation before non-underlying items provides us with

an appropriate measure of the underlying performance of the
Group We excluded non-underlying items on the basis that
these are Iinft equent in occurrence and profit before taxation
after non-underlying items 1s not indicative of the underlying
performance of the Group We also note that market and analyst
commentary on the performance of the Group uses the same
measure We therefore, considered profit before taxation befote
nen-underlying items to be the most relevant perfarmance metric
on which to base our matenality calculation

Reported profit before taxation £206 3 million

Starting basis (2015 £1970 milion)

Non-underlying items — increase basis by
£5 0 milion (2015 £53 7 millon)

Adjustments
Totals £211 3 mullion {2015 £210 7 milhon) profit
before taxation before non-underlying items
Materality of £10 milion (5% of profit before
Materiality taxation before exceptional itemns)
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OVERVIEW GROUP PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY

The application of materiality at the :ndividual account or balance

level It1s set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds matenality

On the basis of our risk assessrments, together with our
assessment of the Groups overali control environment,

our Judgement was that performance materiality was 75%

(2015 50%) of our planning matet iality, namely £75 millon

{2015 £5 milhon) We have increased our assessment of
performance materiality from 509 to 75% during the year,
reflecting the fact that the prior year was a fir st year audit, and
also based on our assessment of the Group's internal control
environment and the extent and nature of audit findings 1identified
In the pror periad

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining
audit coverage ovet significant financial statement accounts

15 undertaken based on a percentage of total performance
matenality The performance materiality set for each compoenent
15 based on the relative scale and nisk of the component to the
Group as a whole and our assessment of the nsk of misstatement
at that component In the current year, the range of performance
materalty allocated to components was £| 4% million to £797
milhon (2015 £1 million ta £4 25 mllion)

REPORTING THRESHOLD
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered
as being clearly trivial

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to
them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £05 million
(2015 £0'5 million), which 1s set at 5% of planming matenality,

as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the
quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light
of other relevant quahiative considerations in forming our opinion

GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
dis¢losures in the finanaal statements sufficent to give 1easonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accountung policies are appropriate
to the Group's and the Parent Company’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

the Directors and the overall presentation of the financal
statements ln addition, we read all the finanaial and non-financial
mformation in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify
material nconsistenaies with the audited financial staterments and
to dentify any information that 1s apparently matenially incorrect
based on or matenally inconsistent wath, the knowledge acquired
by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware
of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

AND AUDITOR

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 101, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and far view Qur responsibility 1s o audit
and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members as a body,
in accordance wrth Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company's members those matters we are required
to state {o them in an auditors report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company s members as a body, for our audit work for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

www pennonannualrepart co uk/2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

QPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion

* the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financal statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TQ REPORT BY EXCEPTION

ISAs (UK and Ireland) We are required to report to you if, in our opinien, financal and non-finanaal information in We have no

reporting the annual report s exceptions to report

« matenally nconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements, or

* apparently matenally incorrect based on or matenally inconsistent with our knowledge of
the Group acquired in the course of performmg our audrt or

» otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to report whether we have denufied any inconsistencies
between our knowledge acquired in the course of performing the audit and the directors
statement that they consider the annual report and accounts taken as a whole s far balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess

the entity s performance business model and strategy and whether the annual report
appropnately addresses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee that we
constder should have been disclosed

Compamies Act 2006 We are required to report to you If, in our opinion We have no

reporting « adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns exceplions 1o report

adequate for our audit have not been recewved from branches not wvisited by us or

* the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration
Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or

« certam disclosur es of directors remuneration speofied by law are not made, or
+ we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit or

+ a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the Company

Listing Rules review We are regquired to review We have no

requirements * the directors statement In relation to going concern, set out on page 100, and longer-term  excephions to report

viability set out on page 55 and

* the part of the Corporate Governance Staterent relating to the company s complance with
the provisions of the UK Corpot ate Governance Code specified for our review

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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STATEMENT ON THE DIRECTORS' ASSESSMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS THAT
WOULD THREATEN THE SOLVENCY OR LIQUIDITY OF THE ENTITY

ISAs (UK and Ireland) We are required to give a statement as to whether we have anything matenal to add or  ‘We have no
reporting to draw attention to in relation to exceptions to report
+ the directors confirmation in the annual report that they have carred out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the entity, including those that would threaten
its business model future performance solvency or hquidity

the disclosures in the annual report that describe those risks and explain how they
are being managed or mitigated

+ the directors statement in the financal staterents about whether they considered
it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and
their identification of any matenal uncertainties to the enuity s ability te continue
to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements, and

» the directors’ explanation in the annual report as to how they have assessed the
prospects of the entity over what pertod they have done so and why they consider
that period to be appropnate and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and
meet its labiiiiies as they fall due over the pericd of their assessment including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

'6\/\'?'1‘( HQJAﬁ L—Laf___

Debbie O’Hanlon {(Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

Reading

24 May 2016

Notes

I The mantenance and integrity of the Pennon Group Plc website 5 the respensibility of the directars the work carmied out by the auditors does not
welve conmideration of these matters and accordingly the auditors accept ne respensibility for any changes that may have occun ad to the financal
statements since they were initially presented on the web site

2 Legslauon inthe United Kingdom gover ning the preparation and dissemination of finanaal statements may differ from legnlation in ather jursdictions
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Before non- Non-underlying Before non-  Non-underlying
underlying items underlying nems
items {Note 6) Total items (Note 6) Total
2016 2016 2016 2015 2015 2015
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 5 1,352 3 - 1,3523 13572 - 13572
Operating costs 7
Employment costs (180 0) (8 6) (188 6) (164 3) 149 {1494)
Raw matenials and consumables used {114 7) - (114 7) (103 8) - (103 8)
Other operating expenses {609 2) {1 6) (610 8) 678 1) (43) (682 4)
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 5 448 4 (102) 438 2 4110 106 26
and amortisation
Depreciation amortisation and imparment 7 {186 6) - (186 6) {164 4) (243) (1887)
Operating profit 5 2618 {10 2) 251 6 2466 (137) 2329
Finance mcome 8 421 52 473 440 - 440
Finance costs 8 {96 2) - {96 2) (84 8) — (84 8)
Nat finance costs 8 (54 1) 51 (48 9) 40 8) - (40 8)
Share of post—tax pt ofit from joint ventu es 20 36 - 6 49 - 49
Profit before tax 5 2113 (50) 206 3 2107 (137) 1970
Taxation (charge)/credit 9 (72 1) 34| (38 0) (574) 27 (547)
Profit for the year 1392 291 168 3 1533 {1no 142 3
Attnbutable to
Ordinary sharehclders of the parent 123 0 291 152 1 1373 (o) 1263
Perpetual caprtal security holders 16 2 — 16 2 160 - 160
Earnings per ordinary share {pence pershare) 1
- Basic 370 323
- Diluted 369 322
— Before non-underlying items and deferred tax 395 358

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Before non- Non-underlying Before non-  Non-underlying
underlying items underlying items
items (Note 6) Total rtems (Note 6) Total
2016 2016 2016 2015 2015 2013
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit for the year 1392 291 168 3 1533 H{1RY)] 1423
Other comprehensive iIncome/ (loss)
iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 30 (26) - (2¢6) @n - @n
Income tax on stems that will not be reclassified 2 3 06 (30) (2 4) 04 - 04
I)c:;al items that wali not be redassified to profit o (20) (30) (5 0) a7 _ 17)
ftems that may be reciassified subsequently to profit
or loss
Share of other comprehensive ncome from 30 24 _ 24 N _ 0
joint ventures
Cash flow hedges 50 - 50 (36 8) - (36 8)
Income tax on rtems that may be reclassified 9,3l {10 09 (18) 57 - 57
Total tems that may be redassified subsequently to 64 (0 8) 56 (300) _ (300)
profit or loss
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the _
year net of tax 36 44 (38 06 B Q7
Total comprehensive income for the year 143 6 253 1689 1216 {110y Ho B
Total comprehensive income attributabie to
Ordinary sharehclders of the parent 127 4 253 1527 1056 {10) 94 6
Perpetual capital security holders 16 2 - 162 160 - 160

The notes on pages 119 to 171 lorm part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS
AT 31 MARCH 2016

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 3850 3393 - -
Other intangible assets 16 638 564 - -
Property plant and equipment 17 3,8973 35788 01 0l
Other non-current assets 19 2678 2911 9055 7900
Deferred tax assets 3l - - 212 30
Dervatve finanaal instruments 23 627 602 13 -
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 20 - - 1,628 3 15236
Investments in joint ventures 10 0l Ql - -
46767 43259 2,5374 23167
Current assets
Inventories 21 206 150 - -
Trade and cther recervables 22 3235 2877 774 1562
Finangial assets at fair vaiue through profit 2] - 01 - -
Derwatve finangal instruments 23 95 gl 05 -
Cash and cash deposits 25 6322 7710 4297 5325
985 8 10819 507 6 6887
Lrabilities
Current habihuies
Borrowings 28 (65 0) (1138) (287 2) (3339)
Financial labilities at fair value through profit 24 (22) - - -
Derwauve finangal instruments 13 (17 4) (193} 27 {29)
Trade and other payables 26 (264 6) (2777) 59 56
Current tax labilities 27 371) (522) (53 5) (238)
Provisions 32 (50 4) (329) - -
(436 7) (4959} (349 3) (366 2)
Net current assets 549 | 5860 158 1 322%
Non-current hiabifities
Borrowings 28 (3,051 &) (28545) 877 1) (8854)
Other non-current hiabilities 29 (113 2) {ren 87) 87
Financial liabilies at far value thiough profit 24 (51 0) (573) {1 6) 05
Derwauve finangal instruments 23 (38 5) “60) [¢A)} (145)
Retirement benefit obligations 30 {409) (57 6) (30) 42
Deferred tax habilities 3l (272 0) (2359) - -
Prowvisions 32 (171 0) (194 4) - -
(3,738 2) (35578) (899 5) (8133)
Net assets 1,487 6 13541 1,796 2 17259
Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital 33 1678 1624 167 8 1624
Share premium account 34 2133 18 6 2133 1186
Capital redemption reserve 35 144 2 1442 144 2 1442
Retained earmings and other reserves 36 6575 634 | 976 ¢ 10059
Total shareholders’ equity 1,192 8 10593 1,501 4 1431 |
Perpetual capital secunties 37 2948 2948 294 8 2948
Total equity 1,487 6 13541 1,796 2 17259

The notes on pages 119 1o 171 form part of these finanaal statements
The financral statements on pages 114 to 171 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised lor issue on 24 May 2016 and were signed an its behalt by

arker Chairman Pennon Group Plc
egistered Office Peninsula House, Rydon Lane Exeter, Devon, England EX2 7HR Registered in England Number 2366640
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

EQUITY

Share Capuital Retained Perpetual
Share premium redemption  earnings and capital
capital account reserve  other reserves securities Total
{Mote 33} {Note 34) (Note 33) {Note 36) {Note 37) equity
£m im £m m £m £m
Group
At | Apnl 2014 1513 49 1442 6024 2948 11976
Profit for the year - - - 1263 t60 14213
Oiher comprehensive loss for the year - - ~ (317 - (317)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 246 160 1106
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dividends pad - - - (7o - {t170)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the Serip
Drvidend Alternative 26 (26) - 480 - 480
Convertible bond — equity issuance 85 163 - {05) - 1243
Adjustment in respect of share—based payments (net
- - - 35 - 35
of tax)
Oistributions to perpetual capital security holders - - - - (203) (203)
Current tax rehef on distnbutions to perpetual capital
- - - - 43 43
security holders
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share _ _ a ©8) _ 08)
Trust in respect of share options granted (
Proceeds from treasury shares re—issued - - - 39 - 39
Total transactions with equity sharehelders 1 137 - (629) (160) 459
At 3] March 2015 1624 1186 1442 6341 2948 13541
Profit for the year - - - 1521 162 168 3
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 06 - 06
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - - 1527 162 1689
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dividends paid - - - (1295) - (1295)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the Scrp
Didend Alternative 03 03 - 63 - 63
Adjustment In respect of share-based payments
(net of tax) - - - 15 - 25
Equity 1ssuance 49 954 — - - 1003
Equity 1ssuance related costs - (23) - - - (23)
Distributions to perpetual capital security holders - - - _ (203 {203)
Current tax relief on distibutions to perpetual capital
security holders - - - B 4 4l
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share 0
Trust in respect of share options granmed - - - (n - an
Proceeds from treasury shares re—issued —~ — — 75 - 25
Proceeds from shares 1ssued under the
Sharesave Scheme 02 19 - N - 21
Total transactions with equity shareholders 54 947 - (1193) (162) (354)
At 31 March 2016 167 8 2133 144 2 667 5 2948 14876

The notes on pages 119 to 171 form part of these financial statements
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Share Caprtal Retained Perpetual
Share premium  redemption  earmings and capital
caprtal account reserve other reserves securities Total
(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 35) {Note 36) {Note 37) equity
£m £m im £m £m £m
Company
At | Apnl 2014 1513 49 1442 7772 2948 13724
Profit for the year {note 10) - - - 3001 160 E1 Y
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - 5% - (59)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 2942 60 3102
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dnadends paid - - - (117 0) - (H70)
Adjustment for shares issued under the scrip dividend 36 ) _ 480 _ 480
alternative
Convertible bond — equrty 1ssuance 85 163 - {05) - 1243
Distributions to perpetual capital secunty holders - - - - (203} (203)
Current tax refief on distrbutions to perpetual capital
- - - - 43 43
security holders
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments
- - - 09 - 09
(net of tax)
Charge in respect of share options vesting - - - {08) - 08)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 39 - 39
Total transactions with equity shareholders 1 137 - (655) (160) 433
At 31 March 2015 1624 1186 144 2 10059 2948 17259
Profit for the year (note 10) - - - 914 162 10746
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (04) - 04
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 910 162 1072
Transactions with equity shareholders
Didends paid - - - (1295) - (1295)
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scrip
Dwidend Alternative 03 ©3 - 62 63
Equity Issuance 49 954 - - - 1003
Equity issuance related costs - {23) - - - {23)
Distributions to perpetual capital security holders - - - - (203) (203)
Current tax relief on distibutions to perpetual caprtal _ _ _ N 4 41
secunty holders
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments
- - - 07 - 07
{net of tax)
Charge in respect of share options vesting - - - 08 -~ {08)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 25 - 25
Proceeds from shares issued under the
02 19 - - - 21
Sharesave Scheme
Total transactions with equity shareholders 54 947 - (1208) (162) (369)
At 31 March 2016 167 8 2133 144 2 976 | 2948 17962

The notes on pages 119 to 171 form part of these financial statements
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Graup Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated! {outflow) from operations 38 3713 309 7 (103 8)
Interest paid 38 (79 1) {620) (35 3) (347)
Tax (pad)/ receved (45 0) (21 0) {107) 152
et cash generated/ {outflow) from operating activities 24712 2279 (877 (1233)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receved 149 203 513 507
Omidends received 46 60 60 1407 3lle
Investments i subsidiary undertakings - - {100 3) (2003)
Loan repayments recerved from joint ventures 275 03 - -
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 44 (31 0) - - -
Purchase of property plant and equipment (283 7) (298 1) [0 )] ohH
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 68 57 - Ol
Net cash (used in)/ receved from investing activities (319 5) (265 8) 9l & 1620
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued 33 25 39 25 39
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 100 1 - 1001 -
Purchase of ordinary shares by the Pennon Employee Share Trust {an 08 - -
Deposit of restnicted funds (303) (230) 97 I 4
Proceeds from new borrowing 800 3450 16 3450
Repayment of borrowings (96 5) (123 6) (66 8) {92 5)
Finance lease sale and lease back 304 1601 - -
Finance lease principal repayments (384) (995) - -
Drndends paid (123 2) (520) (123 2) (690)
Perpetual capital secunties periodic return 37 {20 3) (203) (20 3) (20 3)
MNet cash {used in)/ generated from firanaing activities (96 8) 1728 (16 4) 168 5
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (169 1) 1349 {125) 2072
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 25 574 8 4399 5325 3253
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25 4057 5748 4200 5325

The notes on pages 119 to 171 farm part of these finanaial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Pennon Group Plc s a company registered in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered office 1s given on
page |15 Duning 2015/16 Pennon Groups business was operated through three main subsidianes South West Water Limited providing water and
wastewater services for Devon, Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset Bournemouth Water Limited providing the water services for parts of
Dorset, Hampshire and Wiltshire Vindor Limited s business 1s waste recyching and recovery

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies have been consistently
applied to the years presented

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost accounting basis {except for far value items, prncipally acquisitions, transfers of
assets from customers and certain financial nstruments as descr ibed in acecounting palicy notes (), (v) and (n) respectively) and in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations of the IFRS Interpretations Committee as adopted by the European Umen
and wath those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS A summary of the principal accounting policies 1s
set out below, together with an explanation where changes have been made to previous policies on the adoption of new accounting standards and
interpretations in the year

The going concern basis has been adopted In prepanng these financial statements as stated by the Directors on page 100

The new standards or interpretations which were mandatory for the first tme in the year beginning | April 2015 did not have a matenal impact on the
net assets or results of the Group

Standards and interpretations in 1ssue, but not yet effective, are not expected to have a matenal effect on the Group's net assets or results, except the
fallowing set out below

= IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers’ relates to revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to
users of financial statements about the nature, amount, tming and uncertanty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity s contracts with
customers The standard will replace {AS 18 ‘Revenue and IAS |1 Censtruction centracts and related interpretations The standard 1s effective for
annual pertods beginning on or after | January 2018 and 1s subject to EU endorsement

*  The Group continues to assess the impact of the new standard on the Groupss financial statements The Group will make more detaled
assgssments of the impact over the next twelve months

» IFRS 16 Leases no longer distinguish between an on the balance sheet finance lease and an off the balance sheet operating lease [nstead, for
virtually all lease contracis the lessee recognises a lease habibty reflecting future lease payments and a nght-of-use' asset The standard 1s effective
for annual penods beginning on or after | January 2019 and s subject to EU endorsement

+ The Directors anticipate that the adoption of [FRS 16 on | April 2019 will reduce operating costs, increase depreciation charges and increase
finance costs In addition, ¢ £100 million of property plant and equipment will be recogrused with a corresponding inct ease In borrowings and
group net debt Exasting borrowing covenants are not impacted by changes in accounting standards

The accounting policy for nen-underlying items (z) previously referred to as excepuional items, has been refined to include items which due to their
nature In the view of the Directors should be separately disclosed to enable a full understanding of the Group's finanaal performance

(B) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The Gt oup finanaial statements include the results of Pennen Group Ple and its subsiciaries joint ventures and associate undertakings

The results of subsidiares joint ventures and associate undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or incorporation, and excluded from

the date of disposal The results of subsidiames are consohidated where the Group 15 exposed to or has nghts to vanable retumns from 1ts involvernent
with the entity and has the ability to affect those reiurns through s power over the entity The results of joint ventures and associate undertakings are
accounted for on an equrty basis

Intra-group trading loan balances and transactions are eliminated on consolidation

The zcquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for the purchase of subsidiznes The excess of the value transferred to the seller in return for
control of the acquired business together with the fair value of any previously held equity interest in that business over the Group s share of the farr
value of the identifiable net assets, 15 recarded as goodwill

(C) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable exduding value added tax, trade discounts and inter-company sales in the ordinary
course of business for goods and services provided

Revenue 15 recognised once the services or goods have been provided to the customer

Income from main water and wastewater charges includes billed amounts for estimated usage and 2lso an estimation of the amount of unbilled charges
at the year-end based upon a defined methodology reflecting historeal consumption and curtent tanffs

Income from electricity generated from waste management landfill gas production during the year includes an estimation of the amount to be receved
under Renewables Obligauon Certficates

Accrued income from waste management contracts at the balance sheet date 1s recogrused using management's expectation of amounts to be
subsequently billed for services rendered to the chent In accordance with the terms of the contract

Income from recycling actrvities within waste management includes arnounts based upen market prices for recyclate products and industry schemes for
waste electnical and electronmic equipment ("WEEE notes) and packaging volumes (‘PRNs ) processed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Revenue from long-term service concession arrangements I1s recognised based on the fair value of work performed Where an arrangement includes
mare than one service, such as construction and operation of waste management faclities, revenue and profit are recognised in propertion to a far
value assessment of the total contract value sphit across the services provided

(D) LANDFILL TAX
Landfill tax 1s included within both revenue and opet ating costs

(E) SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Each of the Group s business segments provides services which are subject to risks and returns which are different from those of the other business
segments The Group's iInternal orgamisation and management structure and 1ts system of internal finanoal reporung are based pnmarily an business
segments The reportable business segments comprise the water business which includes the regulated water and wastewater services undertaken by
South West Water and the regulated water services undertaken by Bournemouth Water and the waste management business of Vindor Segmental
revenue and results include transactions between businesses Inter-segmental transactions are eliminated on consohdation

(F}) GOODWILL
Goodwill ansing an consolidation from the acquisition of subsidhary undertakings represents the excess of the purchase consideration gver the far
value of net assets acquired, less any subsequent impairment charges

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the Income statement
and 15 not subsequently reversed For the purpose of mparment testing, goodwill acquired n a business combination is allocated to each of the cash
generating units or group of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination Each unit or group of units to
which goodwall 1s allocated represents the lowest leve! within the entity at which the goodwill 1s monitered for internal reporting purposes Goodwill is
allocated and monitored at the reportable operating segment levet Further details are contained in accounting policy ()}

When a subsidiary undertaking 1s sold, the profit or loss on disposal 1s determined after Including the attiibutable amount of unamortised goodwill

(G) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other intangible assets are recogrised n relation to long-term service concessions contracts to the extent that future amounts to be recewved are
not certain

Other inmtangible assets nclude assets acquired in a business combination and are caprtalised at fair value at the date of acquisition Following initeal
recognition finite hfe intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estmated useful lives with the expense charged to the income
statement through operating costs

(H) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1) Infrastructure assets (being water mains and sewers, impoundng and pumped raw water storage reservorrs dams, pipelines and sea outfalls)
Infrastructure assets were included at far value on transition to IFRS, and subsequent additrons are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment charges Expenditure to increase capacity or enhance infrastructure assets 1s capitahsed where it can be reliably measured and it s
probable that incremental futur e economic benefits will flow to the Group The cost of day-to-day serviang of infrastructure components 1s recognised
in the Income statement as it arises

Infrastructur e assets are deprecated evenly over their useful economic ives and are principally

Dams and impounding reservoirs 200 years
Water mains 40~ 120 years
Sewers 40 - 120 years

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated untl commussioned

n) Landfill sites

Landfill sites are included withia land and buildings a: cost less accumulated deprecation Cost indudes acquisizon and development expenses The
cost of a landfill site ts depreciated to its residual value {which 1s inked 1o gas production at the site post-closure) over nts esumated operatienal life
taking account of the usage of voud space

w) Landfill restoration
Where the obligation to restore a landfill site 1s an integral part of its future economic benefits, a non-current asset within prope ty, plant and
equipment 15 recognised The asset recognised 15 depreciated based on the usage of void space

v) Other assets (including energy recovery facilites, property, averground plant and equipment)
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Other assets are depreoated evenly to their residual value over their estmated economie lives, and are principally

Land and buildings - freehold buildings 30 - 60 years

Land and buildings - leasehald buildings Over the estmated economic lives or the finance lease
period whichever s the shorter

QOperational properties 40 - 80 years

Energy recavery faclities (including 25 - 40 years

major refurbishments)

Fixed plant 20 — 40 years

Vehicles, mabile plant and computers 3- 10 vyears
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(h) Propercy, plant and equipment continued
Assets in the course of construction are not deprecated untl commissicned

The cost of assets includes directly attnbutable labour and overhead costs which are incremenital to the Group Borrowing costs directly attnbutable
to the construction of a qualifying asset (an asset necessanly taking a substantial period of time to be prepared for its Intended use) are capitalised as
part of the asset Assets transferred from customers are recognised at fair value as set out In accounting pohey {v)

The assets’ residual values and useful Iives are reviewed annually With effect from | Aprl 2015 the useful lives for certain assets have been amended
where both external benchmarking and internal experience indicates a change is required Lives for some asset have ncreased whilst others have
decreased To accommodate this change the range of useful lives for water mans and sewers has increased from 100 to 120 years

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing sale proceeds with carrying amounts These are included in the inceme statement

(I} LEASED ASSETS

Assets held under finance leases are induded as property, plant and equipment at the lower of therr fair value at commencement or the present value
of the minimum lease payments, and are depreciated cver their estimated economi¢ lives or the finance lease period whichever is the shorter The
cotrespanding hability is recorded as borrowings The interest element of the rental costs i1s charged against profits using the actuanal method over the
penod of the lease Rental casts anising under operating leases are charged against profits in the year they are incurred

(J) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Assets with an indefinite useful ife are not subject to amortisatton and are tested annually forimpairment or whenever events or changes in
arcumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Assets subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for imparment whenever events or changes (n circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss 15 recognised for the amount by which an asset s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount s

the higher of an asset s far value less costs to sell and value in use For the purposes of assessing imparment assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for whizh thet e are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Value in use represents the present value of projected future cash flows
expected to be denved from a cash generating unrt, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate which teflects an assessment of the market cost of capital
of the cash generating unit Impairments are charged to the income statement in the year in which they arise

Non-finanaal assets other than goodwill that have been impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of the mpairment at each reporting date

Where a previously impared asset or cash generating unit s recoverable amount (s 1n excess of Its carrying amount, previous impairments are reversed
to the carrying value that would have expected to be recognised had the original imparrment not occurred

(K) INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are initially recorded at cost being the fair value of the consideration paid Subsequently Investments are reviewed
for impairment on an indwidual basis annually or if events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable

(L) INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures are entities over which the Group exeroses jomnt control Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group s share of the fair values of the identiflable net assets of the joint venture at the date of
acquisition 15 recognised as goodwill and 1s included in the carrying value of the investment in the joint venture

The carrying value of the Group s investment 1s adjusted far the Group s share of post-acquisiuon profits or losses recogrised in the income statement
and statement of comprehensive iIncome Losses of a joint venture in excess of the Group s interest are not recognised unless the Group has a legal or
constructive obhgation to fund those losses

(M) INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valie The cost of finished goods and work In progress includes raw materials and the cost
of bringing stocks to their present lecation and condition [t excludes borrowing costs Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less cost to ell

{N) CASH AND CASH DEPOSITS
Cash and cash depesits comprise cash in hand and short-term deposits held at banks Bank overdrafis are shown within current borrowings

(O) DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group dassifies its financial instruments in the following categories

1) Loans and recevables
All loans and borrowings are iniially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Following iniial recognitton, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the nstruments are derecognised or impared Premia discounts and other costs and
fees are recognised in the income statement through the amortisation process

Borrowings are dassified as current habilities unless the Group has an uncondibional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date

n) Trade recewables

Trade recevables do not carry any interest receivable and are recogrised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for imparment A provision for impairment of trade recervables 15 established when there (s objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance with the onginal terms of the recevables

) Trade payables
Trade payables are not interesi-beanng and are recogrised iniuially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

w) Financial assets arising from service concesston arrangements

Where the provision of waste management services s performed through a contract with a public sectar entity which controls a significant residual
interest in asset infrastructure at the end of the contract, then consideration 1s treated as contract recevables, sphit between profit on the construction
of assets, aperation of the service and the provision of finance which 15 recagnised in notronal interest within finance income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

v) Dervative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group uses denvative finanaal instruments, principally interest rate swaps, foreign exchange farward contracts and cross-curr ency interest rate
swaps to hedge risks assaciated with interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations Denvative instruments are intially recognised at far value on the
date the derwative contract 15 entered into and subsequently remeasured at far value for the reported balance sheet

The Group designates certain hedging denvatives as either

+ ahedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change in the cash flows of a recognised asset or lizbility {a cash flow hedge) or
*+ ahedge of the exposure to change In the far value of a recognised asset or lability (a far value hedge)

The gain ar loss on remeasurement 15 recognised to the income statement except for cash flow hedges which meet the conditions for hedge
accounting, when the portion of the gan or loss on the hedging instrument which 15 deterrmined to be an effective hedge 1s recogmised directly in
equity and the meffective portion in the income statement The gains or losses deferred in equity in this way are subsequently recogmised in the
Income statement in the same period i which the hedged undet lying transaction ot firm commitment 1s recognised in the Income statement

In order to qualfy for hedge accounting the Group 1s required to document in advance the relationship between the item being hedged and the
hedging instrument The Group Is also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the hedged rem and the
hedging instrument which shows that the hedge will be hightly effective on an ongoing basis This effectiveness testing 1s reperformed at the end of each
reporting pertod to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective

Where a non-dervative transaction or series of transactions with the same counterparty has the aggregate effect in substance of a dervative
instrument the transaction or series of transactions shall be recognised as a smgle dervative instrument at far value with associated movemnents
recorded In the income statement

The full fair value of a hedging dervative 1s apportioned on a straight line basis between non-current and current assets and lizbiities based on the
remaining maturty of the hedging dervative

Denvative finanaal instruments deemed held for © ading, which are not subject to hedge accounung, are classified as a current asset or lability with any
change In far value recognised immediately in the income statement

The Group uses cross-currency swaps for some of its foreign currency denominated private placement borrowings The swaps erther have the effect of
(1) converting vanable 1 ate foreign currency borrowings Into fixed rate sterting borrowings (i) converting fixed rate foreign currency borrowangs into
fixed rate sterling borrowings or (i) converting fixed rate foreign currency borrowings into floating rate sterling borrowings

vi) Financial instruments at fair value through profit

Financial instruments at fair value thraugh profit reflect the farr value movement of the hedged risk on a hedged item which has been designated in a far
value hedging relationship The far values of these finanaal instruments are imitially recogrised on the date the hedging relationship is entered into and
thereafter remeasured at each subsequent balance sheet date The gain or loss on remeasurement for the pernod is recognised in the income statement

(F) TAXATION INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX

The tax charge for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised n the statement of comprehensive incorme or directly in equity In this case the tax s also recogrised in the statement of comprehensive
Income or directly in equity

Current tax 15 calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Management penodically evaluates tax
items subject to interpretation and establishes provisions on individual tax items where in the jJuggement of management the position ts uncertain

The Group inctudes a number of companies including the parent company, which are part of a tax group for certain aspects of the tax legislation One
of these aspects relates to group relief whereby current tax labilities can be offset by current tax losses arising i other companies within the same tax
group Payments for group relief are included within the current tax disclosures

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences between the car ying amount of assets and liabiliies n the financal statements and the
tax base except if it anses from initial recognition of an asset or ilability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the tme of the
transacton affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferied tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it1s probable that future
taxable profits will be avalable against which the assets can be realised Deferred tax 1s determined using the tax rates enacted or substanuvely
enacted at the balance sheet date, and expected to apply when the deferred tax izbility 1s settled or the deferred tax asset s realised

(Q) PROVISIONS

Provisions are made where there 1s a present degal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that there will be an outflow
of econom:c benefits to settle this obligation and a reliable esumate of this amaunt can be made Where the effect of the time value of money 15
material the current amount of a provision 1s the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle obligations The unwinding of the
discount to present value is included as notional interest within finance costs

The Group's policies on specific provisions are

1) Landfill restoration costs
Provisions for the cost of restorng landfill sites are made when the obligation anses Wher e the obligation recognised as a provision gives access to future
economic benefits, an asset i property plant and equipment s recognised Prowvisions are otherwase charged against profits based on the usage of void space.

1) Environmental control and aftercare costs

Environmental control and aftercare costs are ncun ed during the operational hfe of each landfill site and for a considerable penod thereafter Provision
for all such costs 1s made over the operational Ife of the site and charged to the inceme statemnent on the basis of the usage of voud space at the site
Further provisions required after the operational life of a site are recognised mmediately in the iIncome statement

m) Underperforming contracts

Whet e the unavoidable costs of meeting a contract s obligatons exceed the economic benefits derved from that contract the unavoidable costs less
revenue anticipated under the terms of the contract, are recognised as a provision and charged to the income statement An impairment loss on any
assets dedicated to that contract 15 also recognised as descnibed in accounting poliey ()
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(R) SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Where the Company purchases the Company s equity share capital {treasury shares) the consideration paid mcluding any directly attributable costs s
deducted from equrty until the shares are cancelled or re-issued Where such shares are subsequently re-issued any consideration receved net of any
directly attributable transaction costs, 1s included n equity

The Group balance sheet includes the shares held by the Pennon Employee Share Trust relating to employee share-based payments which have not
vested at the balance sheet date These are shown as a deducuon from shareholders equity until such time as they vest

(S) DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTICNS
Dmdend distributions are recognised as 2 hiability in the financial statements in the penod in which the dmvidends are approved by the Companys
sharehalders Interim dividends are recognised when paid, final dividends when approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

(T) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1) Retrement benefit obligations
The Group operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes

Defined benefit pension schemes

The hability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans s the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the year less the fair value of plan assets iIf the value of a plans assets exceeds the present value of its obligations the resulting surplus Is only
recogntsed If the Group has an unconditional nght to that surplus

The defined benefit cbligation 1s calcutated by independent actuaries who advise on the selection of Directors best estimates, using the projected unit
credit method The present value of the defined benefit obligation 1s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using Interest rates
of high quality corporate bonds and that have terms to matunty approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation The increase in liabiities
of the Group s defined benefit pension schemes, expected to anse from employee service in the year, 1s charged aganst operatng profit

Changes in benefits granted by the employer are recognised immediately as past service cost in the income statement

Actuanal gains and losses anising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in the statement
of comprehensive income 1n the period in which they arise

Defined contribution scheme
Costs of the defined contribution pension scheme are charged to the ncome statement in the year in which they anse The Group has no further
payment obhigations once the contributions have been paid

1} Share-based payment
The Group operates a number of equity-settied share-based payment plans for employees The fair value of the employee services required in
exchange for the grant 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting perod of the grant

Fair values are calculated using an appropriate pricing model Non-market-based vesting conditions are adjusted for in assumptions as to the number of
shares which are expected to vest

(U) PRE-CONTRACT AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Pre-contract and development costs sncluding bid costs are expensed as incurred except where it 1s probable that the contract will be awarded cr the
development completed in which case they are recogrised as an asset which 1s amortised to the mcome statement over the bfe of the contract

(V) FAIR YALUES
The fair value of Interest rate swaps is based on the market price to transfer the asset or habity at the balance sheet date in an ordinary transaction
between market participants

The fair values of short-term deposits loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their book values In
the case of non-current bank loans and other loans the fair value of finanaat habilities for disclosure purposes 1s estimated by discounting the future
contractual <cash flows at the current market interest rate avallable to the Group for similar finanaial instruments

(W) TRANSFERS OF ASSETS FROM CUSTOMERS

Where an item of property plant and equipment that must be used to connect customers to the network s received from a customer or where cash
15 receved from a customer for the acquisition or censtruction of such an item  that asset 1s recorded and measured on witial recognition at its far
value The credit created by the recognition of the asset 1s recognised in the income statement The period over which the credit s recogmised depends
upon the nature of the service provided as determined by the agreement with the customer Where the service provided is solely a connection to the
network the credit is recognised at the point of connection If the agreement does not speafy a period, revenue 1s recognised over a period no longer
than the economic bife of the transferred asset used to provide the ongotng service

The farr value of assets on transfer from customers 1s determined using a cost valuation approach allowing far depreciation

(X) FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabiliies
denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the closing balance sheet rate The resulting gan or loss 1s recognised in the income statement

(Y) PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES

Perpetual caprtal securtties are issued securities that gualify for recognition as equity Accordingly any penodic returns are accounted for as dvidends
and recognised directly n equity and as a hability at the time the Company becomes obligated to pay the periodic return This reflects the nature of the
periodic returns and repayment of pnnaipal being only made at the Company's discretion Any associatet tax impacts are recognised directly in equity

(Z) NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS
Non-underlying tems are those that in the Directors view are required to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size nature or inadence to enable
a full understanding of the Group's financial performance
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

{A) FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of finanaal risks hquidity nsk market ask (interest rate and foreign currency nsk) and credit nsk

The Group s treasury function seeks to ensure that sufficient funding 15 availlable to meet foreseeable needs, maintains reasonable headrocom for

contingenaes and manages inflation and interest rate risk

The princapal financial nsks faced by the Group relate to hquidity interest rate and credit counterparty risk

These risks and treasuty operatiens are managed by the Chief Financal Officer in accordance with policies established by the Board Major transactions

are indvidually approved by the Board Treasury activities are reporied to the Board and are subject to review by internal audit

Finanaal instruments are used to raise finance, manage rsk, optirmise the use of surplus funds and manage overall interest rate performance The

Group does not engage in speculative activity

1) Liquidiry risk

The Group actively mantains a msxture of long-term and short-term comnutted faclities which are designed to ensure the Group has sufficent

available funds for operations and planned expansions equivalent to at least one year s forecast requirements at al! times Details of undrawn

committed faciliies and short-term facilities are provided in note 28

Refinanang risk 1s managed under a Group policy that permits no mare than 20% of Group net barrawings to mature in any finanaial year

The Group and Water Business have entered into covenants with lenders While terms vary these typrcally provide for mits on gearing (primanly

based on the Water Business s Regulatory Capital Value and Vindor Limited s EBITDA) and interest cover

Contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payments, at the balance sheet date were

Due Due
Due within between | between 2 Over
I year and2years and5 years S years Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Group
31 March 2016
Non-derivative financial habilities
Bon owings exduding finance lease habilities 330 el 3275 12934 17760
Interest payments on borrowings 479 473 1377 6877 9206
Finance lease habihties including interest 411 450 1755 21307 23923
Trade and other payables 2646 - ~ - 2646
Guarantees 1597 - - - 1597
Derwvanive financial iabilicies
Denvative contracts — net payments/ (receipts) 83 6| 22 (670) {504)
3 March 2015
Non-dervative financial habitities
Boriowings excuding finance lease habilities 818 1136 4100 10270 16324
Interest payments on borrowings 484 468 1320 7538 2810
Finance lease habiities including interest 436 463 198 2 2,1578 24459
Trade and other payables 777 - - - 2777
Guarantees 1698 - - - 1698
Derivative financial habiittes
Dervative contracts — net payments/ {receipts) 67 55 42 {105 4) (890)
Company
31 March 2016
Non-derivative financial habiliues
Borrowings excluding intercompany borrowings - 744 2258 Sle7 87714
Intercompany borrowings 2872 - - - 2872
Interest payments on borrowings 304 297 767 1224 2592
Trade and other payables 59 - - - 59
Guarantees 5808 - - - 5808
Derivauve financial habilities
Dervative contracts — net payments 11 10 07 — 28
31 March 2015
MNon-derivative financial habihities
Borrowings excluding intercompany barrowings 507 749 3100 5005 936 |
Intercompany borrowings 2832 - - - 2832
Interest payments cn borrowings 308 290 788 1393 2779
Trade and other payables 56 - - - 56
Guarantees 5564 - - - 5564
Derivauve financial habilities
Derivative contracts — net payments 11 10 |12 — 33

No lability 1s expected to anse in respect of the guarantees noted above Guarantees are analysed in note 42
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n) Market risk

The Greup has a pohicy of maintaining at least 50% of interest-bearing habilives at fixed rates The Group uses a combination of fixed rate and
index-linked borr owings and fixed rate intet est swaps as cash flow hedges of future vanable interest payments to achieve this policy At the year-end
67% (2015 72%) of Group net borrowengs were at fixed rates (induding at least 50% of South West Water's borrowings fixed for the pened to

March 2016) after the impact of financial denvatives The notional prinapal amounts of the interest rate swaps are used to determine settlement under
those swaps and are not therefore an exposure for the Group These mstruments are analysed in note 23

The interest rate for index-linked debt s based upon an RPI measure, which 1s also used in determiring the amount of Income from customers in
South West Water and Bournemouth Water 18% {2015 13%) of the Groups gross debt i1s RPl index-linked

The Group has no significant interest-beanng assets upon which the net return fluctuates from market nsk Depostt interest recevable 1s expected to
fluctuate in Wine with Interest payable on floatng rate barrowings Consequently the Group's income and cash generated from aperations {note 38) are
independent of changes in market interest rates

For 2016 1f interest rates on variable net borrowings had been on average 0 5% higher/ lower with all other vanables held constant post-tax profit
for the year and equity would have increased/ decreased by £0 | million (2015 £04 million) for the equity sensitivity far value, derivative impacts
are excluded

Far 2016 if RPI on index-linked borrowings had been on average 0 5% higher/ lower with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
and equity would have decreased/ increased by £19 milbon {2015 £1 5 million)

Foreign currency risk occurs at transactional and translation level from borrowings and transactions in foreign currencies These risks are managed
through forward contracts which prowide certainty over foreign currency nsk

m) Credit risk
Credit counterparty nsk arises from cash and cash deposits derwvative finanaal instruments and exposure to customers, incduding outstanding
recewvables Further nformation on the credit risk relating to trade receivables 15 given in note 22

Counterparty risk arises from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of derivative finanaal instruments The Board has agreed a policy for
managing such risk which 15 controlled through credit imits counterparty approvals and rigorous menitoring procedures

The Group has no other significant concentration of credit 1isk The Group s surplus funds are managed by the Group's treasury funcuion and are
usually placed i short-term fixed interest deposits or the overright maoney markets Deposit counterparties must meet a board approved minimum
critena based on their short term credrt ratings

(B) CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Groups objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Groups ability to continue as a going contern n order to provide teturns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal caprtal structure to minimise the cost of capital

The Groupss policy 1s 1o have a mimimum of 12 months pre-funding of projected caprtal expendrture At 31 March 2016 the Group had cash and
facilies excluding restricted funds of over £1 7 billon meeting this objective

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group seeks to maintain a balance of returns to shareholders through dividends and an
appropnate capital structure of debt and equity for each business segment and the Group

The Group monitors caprial on the basis of the geanng ratio This ratio 15 calculated as net borrowings divided by total capital Net borrowings
are analysed In note 39 and calculated as total barrowings less cash and cash deposits Total capital is calculated as total shareholders equity plus
net borrowings

The geanng ratios at the balance sheet date were

2016 2015

£m £m !
Net borrowings (note 39) 2,484 4 21971
Total equity 1,487 & 13541
Total capiial 39720 3,5512
Gearing ratio 62 5% 61 9%

South West Water and Bournemouth Water 15 also monitored on the basis of the ratio of its net borrowings to Regulatory Capital Value Ofwats
opttmum gearing for the K6 (2015-2020) regulatory period is set at 62 5%

Bournemouth

South West Water Water

2016 2015 2016

Em £m im

Regulatory Capnal Value 12,9973 29280 152 9
Net borrowings 1,793 3 | 8175 B67
Net borrowings/Regulatory Capital Value 59 8% 62 1% 56 7%

The Group has entered into covenants with lenders and while terms vary these typically prowide for imits on geanng and interest cover

The Group has been i compliance with its covenants dunng the year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

{C) DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining the fair value of finanaal instruments by valuation technique

= quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or labilues (level )

* inputs other than quoted prices inctuded within level | that are cbservable for the asset or hability either directfy (that 15, as prices) or indirecily
(that 15 derved from prices) (leve! 2)

* Inputs for the asset or liabiity that are not based on observable market data {that 15, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The Group's financial insttuments are valued prinaipally using level 2 measures as analysed in note 23

The far value of financial Instruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter dervatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques A variety of methods and assumptions are used based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date Quoted market pnces or
dealer quotes for similar inst: uments are used for long-term debt Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the 1 emaiming financia! instruments The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future

cash flows

The carrying values less impairment provision, of trade receivables and payables are assumed 1o approximate to their fair values The far value of
finanaial habilities, prinapally environmental provisions, is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group s prinaipal accounting pohaes are set out in note 2 Management is 1 equired to exerase significant judgement and make use of estimates
and assumptions in the application of these policies Estimates are based on factors including historncal expertence and expectations of future events
that management believe 1o be reasonable However gven the judgemental nature of such estimates actual results could be different from the
assumptions used

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND GOODWILL

In order to determine whether impairments or reversals of previous impairments are required for non-finanaal assets the Gr oup esumates the
recoverable amount of an indmvdual asset or assets grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately iIdentfiable cash flows (cash gener ating
units) To reflect changes in the waste market, including the structural dedline of landfill and the prominence of recyding and recovering value from
waste together with the reonentation of Vindor s operations towards ERFs the Group has apphied judgement in determining the aliocation of
CGUs In the updated allocations non-strategic landfill assets are considered separate CGUs, as are landfill gas assets, with other remaining assets
allocated to regional CGUs

The Impairment assessment of non-current finandal assets 1s based on projections of future cash flows for the cash generating unit and the use of
aterminal value 10 Incorporate expectations of growth after the peniod covered by speafic plans The cash flows are discounted by the weighted
average cost of capital apprepnate to the business actvity which 1s reviewed on an annual basis Judgement and estimation 1s required in determining
the appropnate cash flows and discount rate used in the assessment

The lowest level to which goodwill is allocated morutored and tested by management is the segmental level in line with the segments set out in note
5 The imitial goodwall 1 ecorded and subsequent impairment analysis require management to make estimations of future cash flows terminal values and
an assessment of the long-term pre-tax discount rate to be applied to those cash flows which reflects an assessment of the cost of capital of the cash
generating unit

The principal assumptions used to assess Impairment are set out in notes |5 and 17

ENYIRCNMENTAL AND LANDFILL RESTORATION PROVISIONS

Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred dunng the operatonal ife of each landfill site and for a considerable penod thereafter The
pencd of aftercare post-dosure and the level of costs expected are uncertain and can vary sigmificantly from site to site Key factors are the type of
waste, the speed at which it decomposes, the volume of leachate requiring treatment and regulatory requirements specific to the site The amounts
expected to be incurred are based an landfill site operating Iives taling account of the antiapated decline in landfill actwity

The provisions are based on latest assumptions 1 eflecting recent historic data and future cost eshmates

The provisions are recognised In the finanaal statements at the net present value of the estmated future expenditure required 1o settle the Group's
oblgaucns A discount rate 1s applied to recognise the time value of money and 15 unwound over the life of the provision This ts included in the Income
statement as a finangial item wathin finance costs

As at 3| March 2016 the Group's ermronmental and landfill restoration provisions were £182 | miflion {2015 £193 0 million) {note 32)

Where a restoration prowision gives access 1o future economic benefits, an asset 15 1ecognised and depreciated in accordance with the Group s
depreciation policy As at 31 March 2016 these assets bad a net book value of £11 7 milion (2015 £17% million) (note 17)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for which actuarial valuations are carried out as deterrmined by the trustees at intervals of not
more than three years The last such valuation of the main scheme was as at 31 March 2016

The pension cost and habibities under IAS |9 are assessed in accordance with Directors' best estmates using the advice of an independent qualified
actuary and assumptions n the latest actuanal valuauen The assumptons are based on member data supplied to the actuary and market observations
for interest rates and inflation supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management The mortality assumption uses a scheme-speaific
calculation based on CMI 2016 actuanial tables with an aftowance for future longevity improvement The prinaspal assumptions used to measure
schemes labilities sensitivities to changes In those assumptions and future funding obligations are set out In note 30

TAXATION

The Groups current tax prewision of £371 million relates to management s judgement of the amount of tax payable on open tax computations where
liabilizes remain to be agreed with HMRC The Group evaluates uncertam tax items where a tax item is subject to interpretation and remains to be
agreed Prnapally the uncertain tax items for which a provision 1s made, relate to the interpretation of tax legislauon regarding finanang arrangements
that have been entered into in the normal course of business Provisions estabhshed for uncertain items are made using a best estmate of the tax
expected to be pad, based on a qualitative assessment of all relevant information

In assessing any appropriate prowvision requirements for uncertain tax riems the Group considers progress made in discussions with HMRC expert
adwvice on the kely cutcome and any recent developments in case law

Due to the uncertainty assocated with such tax iterns 1t 1s possible that at a future date, on condusion of the open matters, the final outcome may
vary significantly Whlst a range of outcomes 1s reasonabily possible the extent of this range 1s addiuonal labiliies of up to £20 million 1o a reduction in
liabilwes of up to £52 million Any such vamations will affect the tax finanoal results in the year n which such a deternnaucn 1s made

In addition to prowisions established for uncertain tax rtems, the Group has other uncertan tax items where the Group has paid in full the tax HMRC
Interpret as due, and therefore would benefit by up to £70 millkon should such tax posions be conduded in the Group's favour

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

Consideration from public sector entities for the aperaticn of waste management service concessions is treated as contract recevables or other
intangible assets, depending upon the right to receive cash from the asset Consideration relating to contract recevables is sphit between profit on
the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance 1 ecogrised as interest receivable Management s aflocation between these
three elernents 1s assessed 1o reflect external market conditions according to the type of service provided
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES CONTINUED

LANDFILL COSTS

The estmaton of landfill reserves 1s of particular importance in assessing landfill costs since the projected cost of a landfill site 1s depr ecated aver its
estimated operational life taking into account the usage of void space and gas production at the site post-closure In estimating the operaticnal Ife of a
landfill site consideration 1s given to the expected ongoing dadline in the landfill market Where Viridor plans or has canstructed a competing energy
recovery faclity at certain existing landfill sites, the void which consequently is no longer expected to be used is exduded from the caleulation of
operational Iife The estimates of landfill reserves are regulary reviewed and updated during the financial year for usage and other events (for example
site extensions) Estimates are also subject to physical review by external advisers

Anumber of factors impact on the deprecation of landfill reserves including the available void space, future capital expenditure and operating casts
The assumpticns are revised as these factors change

The estimate of gas praduction at landfill sites post-closure reduces the depreaation of landfill reserves An assessment 1s undertaken for indmdual
sites of the histonic profile of gas production during landfilling actnaty and the projected generation post-closui e according to the type of waste
contaned in the landfill and expected profile of gas production over time

REVENUE RECOGNITION
The Group recognises revenue at the time of delivery of services Payments recewved in advance of services delivered are recorded as a liability

South West Water and Bournemouth Water raise bills and recognise revenue in accordance wath their entritlement to receve revenue in line with
the limits established by the Periodic Review price-setting process For water and wastewater customers with water meters revenue recognised is
dependent upon the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales value of units suppled between the date of the last meter reading and the

year-end Estimated usage (s based on historic data judgement and assumptions

Vindor estimates income from certain contractual revenue streams based on tonnages cost and historic data which are dependent on agreement with
the customer after the delivery of the service

PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS

At the balance sheet date each subsidiary evaluates the collectability of trade recevables and records provisions for doubtful debts based on
experience including comparisons of the relative age of accounts and consideration of actual write-off history

The actual leve! of debt collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery As at 31 March 2016 the Group's current trade recevables were
£303 6 million against which £95 6 million had been provided for impairment {note 22)

NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS
In establishing which items are disclosed separately as non-underlying, to enable a full understanding of the Group s financial performance,
the Directors exercse thew judgement in assessing the size nature or nadence of speafic items
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported i a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker, which has been

tdentified as the Pennon Group Plc Board The earnings measures below are used by the Board in making decisions

The water business comprises the regulated water and wastewater services undertaken by South West Water and the regulated water services

underiaken by Bournemouth Water The waste management business 1s the waste recychng and recovery services provided by Vindor Segment
assets include goodwill and other intangible assets property plant and equipment inventones trade and other recevables and cash and cash deposits
Segment habilities comprise aperaung habilities and exclude taxation The other segment lizbilites Indude the Company s finzncng arrangements and
Group taxation habiities Capital expenditure comprises additions to property plant and equipment including additions resulung from acquisitions

through business combinations

2016 2015
£m £m
Revenue
Water 5470 5222
Waste management BD& 2 8359
Other 120 109
Less intra-segment trading* (129 {118)
1,352 3 13572
Segment result
Qperating profit/ (loss) before deprecianion, amorusaton and non-underlying items (EBITDA)
\Water 3352 3313
Waste management 116 5 BO4
Other 33) 07
448 4 410
Operating profit/ {loss) before non-underlying items
Water 2245 2254
Waste management 409 216
Other 36) 04)
261 8 2466
Profit before tax and non-underlying items
\Water 1657 1679
Waste management 307 277
Other 149 (51
2n3 2107
Profit before tax
Water 160 5 1797
Waste management 257 10
Other 201 163
2063 1970

® Intra-segment transactions between and to ¢ fferent segments 15 under normal market based cormmercal terms and condilions Intra segment revenue of the other segment is at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

\Waste
Water management Other  Eliminations Group
im £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
31 March 2016
Assets (excluding irvestments in joint ventures) 33858 1,811 1 1,715 9 (1,350 4) 5,662 4
Investments in joint ventures - ol - - 01
Total assets 3,385 8 19112 1,715 9 (1,350 4) 5,662 5
Liabilities (2,502 4) (1,5132) (1,509 7) 1,350 4 4174 9)
Net assets 883 4 3980 206 2 - 1,487 6
31 March 2015
Assets (excluding investments in jaint ventures) 30677 18287 17798 (1268 3) 54077
Investments in joint ventures - 0l - - 01
Total assets 30677 t 8288 17796 (1268 3) 54078
Liabilities (235%2) (14134) (1 5494) 12683 {(40537)
Net assecs 708 5 4154 2302 - 1354 |
Segment liabilimes of the water and waste management segments comprise operating liabilities The other segment habilies include the Group
taxation habilities
Waste
Water  management Other Group
Notes £m £m £m £m
Other information
31 March 2016
Amortisation of cther intangible assets 7 07 30 - 37
Capital expenditure (including acquisitions) 220 6 1545 Ql 3752
Depreciation 7 1103 725 al 182 9
Finance income {before non-undertying items) 8 30 282 109 421
Finance costs 8 61 8 123 221 962
31 March 2015
Amortisation of sther intangible assets 7 - 27 - 27
Capital expenditure 17 1451 1563 - 3c04
Depreciation 7 1059 561 {©3) 1617
Impairment 7 - 243 - 243
Finance income 8 28 306 106 440
Finance costs 8 603 140 105 848
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Geographic analysis of revenue based on location of customers

2016 2015
£m £m

Revenue
Unrted Kingdom 1,296 1 13176
Rest of Eurcpean Union 105 104
China 388 253
Rest of World 69 39
1,3523 13572

The Group s country of domicile 1s the United Kingdom and is the country n which it generates the majority of its revenue The Group's non-current
assets are all located in the United Kingdom

6. NON-UNDERLYING ITEMS

Non-underlying items are those thatin the Directors’ view are required to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size, nature or inadence to enable
a full understanding of the Group's finanaal performance

2016 2015
Notes £m £m
Operating {(costs)/ credits
Restructunng costs® 32 (102) -
Pension costs — past service® 30 - 149
Environmental provisiens® 32 - 67
Underperforming contracts'® 32 - {110
Impairment of property plant and equipment® 17 - (243)
Total net operaung costs (102) {137}
Remeasurement of farr value movement in dervatives? 8 52 -
Deferred tax change in rate® 3l 331 -
Tax credit ansing on non-underlying items 2 10 27
Net non-underlying credit/ (charge) 29 | {110)

{a) Duning the year a one-off charge of £10 2 milhon was made to the restructunng prowision reflecting announced reorganisations across the Group

{b) Last year a non-underlying credit was recogrised relating to changes made to the Group's defined benefit scheme Changes implemented last year
capped pensionable pay for active members reducing past service cost

{c) Last year landfill environmental provisioning was reassessed £6 7 milhon lower reflecting lower expected restoration and aftel care costs, partly
offset by a reduction in discount rate

{d) A small number of contracts last year were assessed as underperforming On this basis a provision of £11 @ million was established

{e) Following a detalled review of the allocation of non-financial assets to cash generating units an impairment of £609 millon has been recognised in
refation to Vindor s non-strategic landfill assets and a £60 9 rilhon reversal of impairment has been recognised in the newly aggregated regional
cash generating units Further detalls of the review are set out in note 17

In 2014415 the profitability of 2 small number of landfill energy sites has been impacted by higher than antiapated site costs and lower than
expected volumes due to site speafic arcumstances As a result, a net non-undertnng impairment charge of £24 3 milion has been recognised to
wnie down the carrying value of landfill energy property, plant and equipment Included in the net charge are impairment reversals of £92 milion

() For certain denvative financial instruments, where market volatiity and counterparty credit nsk result in hedge accounting becoming less certain,
hedge accounting 1s discontinued and non-cash fair value movements are recognised in the income statement as nen-underlying items

(g} Following the enactment during the year the rate of corporation tax reduced from 20% to 19% from April 2017 and reduces further to 18%
from Apnil 2020, a one-cff credit of £32 { million has been recognised in the income statement In addition a charge of £3 8 million has been
recognised in the statement of comprehensrve income and a charge of £0 | million has been recognised directly in equity
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

7. OPERATING COSTS

2016 2015
Notes m £m
Employment costs before non-underlying rtems 13 1800 164 3
Raw materials and consumables H47 038
Other operating expenses before non-undertying items include
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (43) (37
Operating lease tentals payable
- Plant and machinery 169 157
— Property 90 92
Research and development expenditure 0l 0l
Trade recewvables impairment 22 84 128
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
— Owned assets 140 0 125 4
~Under finance leases 429 361
— Impairment of property plant and equipment 5 - 2413
Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 37 27
Operating costs iInclude a £10 2 milhon charge {2015 £13 7 million charge) relating to nen-underlying items as detaled in note 6
Fees payable to the Company's auditors in the year were
2016 2015
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and 1ts associates for the audit of parent Company and consolidated 94 75
financial statements
Fees payable to the Company s auditor s and 1ts assodiates for other services
The audit of Company s subsidiaries 635 471
Aydn refated assurance senices 50 50
Other non-audit services 122 7
Total fees 901 603
Fees payable to the Company s auditor s in respect of Pennon Group pension schemes
Audit 30 17

Expenses reimbursed to the auditors in relation to the audit of the Group were £45 000 (2015 £40,000)

A descnpuion of the work of the Audit Commuttee 15 set outin s report on pages 66 1o 63 winch includes an explanation of how the auditors
objectivity and independence are safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors' firm
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8. NET FINANCE COSTS
2016 2015
Finance Finance Finance Finance
cost Income Tortal cost income Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of servicing debt
Bank borrowing and overdrafts (48 7) - (48 7) (322 - (322)
Interest element of finance lease rentals (33 5) - (335) (329) - (329}
Other finance costs (2 8) - (28) 65) - {65)
Interest recevable - 63 63 - 13 113
Interest receivable on shareholder loans to _ 107 107 B (4 14
|oInt ventures
{85 0) 170 (68 0) (71 6) 227 489
Notional interest
Interest recerable on service concession _ 167 167 _ 135 125
arrangements
Retrement benefit obligauons 30 (I 8) - (18) (27) - {27y
Unwinding of discounts in provisions (5 4) - (94) {105) - {105)
(112) 167 55 (132 135 03
MNet gains on dervative finangal instruments
arising from the combination of non-dervative - 84 84 - 78 78
nstruments
MNet finance cost before non-underlying items {96 2) 421 (54 1) (84 8) 440 408)
Non-underlying items
Fair value remeasurement of non-designated
derivative finanaal instruments prowding 6 - 52 52 - - -
commercal hedges
et finance cost after non-underlying tems (96 2) 473 (48 %) (84 8) 440 (408)

In addition to the above finance costs of £94 milhon (2015 £22 5 million) have been capitalised on qualifying assets included in property, plant and

equipment and other intangible assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

9. TAXATION
Non- Non-
underlying underlying
Before non- items Before non- itemns
underlying {Note 6) undertying {Note &)
ikems 2016 2015 Total 2016 items 2015 2015 Total 2015
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Analysis of charge in year
Current tax charge 329 {7 312 392 06 398
Deferred tax - other 392 07 399 182 (33 149
Deferred tax arising on change of rate of _ (3 1) G3 N _ _ _
corporation tax
Total deferred tax charge 31 392 (324) 68 182 (33 149
Tax charge for year 721 (34 1) 380 574 (27) 547

UK corporation tax is calculated at 20% (2015 21%) of the estmated assessable profit for the year

UK corporation tax ss stated after a credit relating te prior year current tax of £1 4 milhien (2015 credit of £5 5 milkon) and a prior year deferred tax
charge of £159 milion (2015 £97 million)

The 2016 deferred tax charge includes a credit of £33 | million :eflecting a reduction in the rate of UK cot poration tax

The tax for the year differs from the theoretical amount which would arise using the standard rate of corporatien tax in the UK (20%) from

2016 2015
£m £m
Profit before tax 2063 1970
Pi ofit befar e tax multiphed by the standard rate of UK cot porauion tax of 20% (2015 21%) 4] 3 414
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 16 41
Finanaial transaction deemed ineligible 120 37
Joint ventures pr ofits not taxed o7 (0
Change 1n rate of corporation tax {33 1) -
Adjustments to tax charge n respect of prior years 145 42
Deprecation charged on nen-qualifying assets 24 23
Tax charge for year g0 547

The adjustments to the tax charge in respect of pnor years, indude a charge of £30 million for an uncertain tax item relating to a financal transaction
partly offset by an updated assessment of other uncertain tax itermns following discussions with HMRC on complex tax legsslation relating to the
deductibility of financal arrangements and relief daims for capital expenditure plus submission of the prior year tax returns resulting in lower tax being
due compared to the assessment made for the 2014/15 charge

The average applicable tax rate for the year before non-underlying items was 34% (2015 27%) The average applicable tax rate for the year after
non-underlying items was (8% (2015 28%)

In addition to the amounts recogrised in the mcome statement the followang tax charges and credits were also t ecogrised

2016 2015
£m £m
Amounts recognised directly in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax chai ge/ (redit) on defined benefit pension schemes 24 04
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) on cash flow hedges 18 (57)
Amounts recognised directly in equity
Deferred tax charge on share-based payments 03 -
Current tax credit on perpetual capital secunties periodic return 1) 43)
10. PROFIT OF THE PARENT COMPANY .
2016 2015
£m £m
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders equity dealt within the accounts of the parent company 91 4 3001

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no income statement or statement of comprehensive ncome 1s presented for the Company
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1. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share are calculated by dividing the earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding duning the year excluding those held in the employee share trust (note 36), which are treated as cancelled

For diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to include all diutive potentia! ordinary shares

The Group has two types of dilutive potential ordinary shares — those share options granted to employees where the exercise price 15 less than the
average market price of the Company s ordinary shares during the year and the contingently issuable shares under the Group s Performance and
Co-investment Plan and the deferred shares element of the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan to the extent that the performance critena for vesting of the
awards are expected to be met

The werghted average number of shares and earnings used in the calculavons were

2016 2015
Number of shares {millions)
For basic earrungs per share 4109 3909
Effect of difutive potential ordinary shares from share options 18 18
For diluted earnings per share 4127 3927

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER QRDINARY SHARE

Earrungs per ordinary share before non-underlying items and deferred tax are presented as the Directors believe that this measure provides a more
useful companson on business trends and performance, since deferred tax reflects distortive effects of changes in carporation tax rates and the level of
long-term capital mvestment Earnings per share have been calculated

2016 2015

Profit Earnings per share Profit Earnings per share

afeer tax Basic Diluted after tax Basic Deuted

£m P P im P P

Statutory earnings 152 1 370 369 1263 323 322

Deferred tax charge before non-underlying items 3912 95 95 182 47 46

MNon-underlying rtems {net of tax) 29 1) {70) @n 10 28 28

Earnings before non-underlying items and deferred tax 1622 395 393 1555 398 3%6
12. DIVIDENDS

2016 2015

im £m

Amounts recogrised as distributions to ordinary equity holders in the year

Intenm dimdend paid for the year ended 31 March 2015 998p (2014 9 39p) per share 98 348
Final dwidend paid for the year ended 31 March 2015 21 82p (2014 2092p) per share 897 822
1295 170

Proposed dividends

Proposed intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 1046p per share 431
Proposed final didend for the year ended 31 March 2016 23 12p per share 954
1385

The proposed intenim and final dwvidends have net been induded as habiliues in these financial statements

The proposed intenim dividend for 2016 was paid on | April 2016 and the proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by sharehalders at the Annual
General Meeting
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13 EMPLOYMENT COSTS

2016 2015
Notes £m £m
Wages and salanes 1580 1439
Social security costs 153 138
Pension costs 30 201 179
Share-based payments 33 18 35
Neon-undertying tems 6 30 86 (149}
Total employment costs 204 8 1642
Charged
Employment costs (excluding non-underlying items) — consohdated income staterment 1800 1643
Non-underlying items — ¢onsolidated income statement [ Bé6 {149)
Capital schemes — property plant and equipment 162 148
Total employment costs 204 8 164 2

Details of Directors emoluments are set out in note 14 There are no personnel, other than Directors who as key management exercise authority and

responsibility for planming directing and controlling the activires of the Group

2016 2015
Employees (average full time equivalent number)
The aver age monthly number of employees {including Executve Dir ectors) was
Water 1,706 1408
Waste management 3,230 3101
Other 51 49
Group totals 4,987 4558
The total number of employees at 31 March 2016 was 5,033 (2015 4 550)
14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2016 2015
£000 £000
Executive D ectors
Salary 1,152 (EF;
Performance-related bonus paid or payable 416 382
Share-based payments 555 750
Other emoluments including payments in heu of pension provisicn 258 327
Nen-executive Directors 529 506
2,910 3084

The cost of share-based payments represents the amount charged to the income statement as described 1n note 33
The aggregate gains on vesting of Directors' share-based awards amounted to a total of £220000 (2015 £642 000)

Totat gains made by Directors on the exerase of share options were £2 000 (2015 £rul)

Total emocluments include £1,200 00C (2015 £1,359,000) payable to Directors for services as directors of subsidiary undertakings

At 3] Mareh 2016 one Director (2015 one) 1s accruing retirement benefits under defined benefit pension schemes in respect of which the Group

contributed £29000 (2015 £5 000)

A1 31 Mareh 2016 one Director (2015 one) is a member of the Group's defined contribution pension scheme in respect of which the Group

contributed £52 000 {2015 £49 700}

At 31 March 2016 three Directors received payments in lieu of pension provision (2015 three)

Mare detaled information concerning Directors’ emoluments (including pensions and the highest paid Director} and share interests 1s shown in the

Directors remuneration report on pages 77 10 98
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5. GOODWILL

£m
Cost
At | Apnl 2014 3393
At 31 March 2015 3393
Recogrised on acquisition of subsidiaries {note 44) 457
At 31 March 2016 3850
Carrying amount
At | Apni 2014 3393
At 31 March 2015 3393
At 31 March 2015 3850

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated at acquisition to the cash generating unit {CGU) expected to benefit from that business
combination £342 7 million of the goodwill balance 1s allocated to the waste management businass with the remaining £42 3 millon allocated to the
water business representing the lowest tevels at which goodwill is monitored and tested

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
The Group tests goodwill for imparment annually or more frequently if there are any indications that impairment may have arisen

The recoverable amount of the water business segment, for which goodwill was first recognised during the year on the zcquisition of Bournemouth
Wiater, 1s assessed with reference to performance expectations compared to those assumed at time of acquisition Key assumptions used to assess the
value of ths goodwll induded future allowed tanif increases and delvery of operational efficiencies

The recoverable amount of the waste management segment, to which the majority of goodwill s allocated 15 determined based on value-in-use
caleulations which under |AS 36 Impairment of Assets, recquire the use of base cash flow projections that reflect 1 easonable and supportable
assumpuons with speofic restrictions on the esumates to be used These indude hrmitations on reflecting eash flows to take account of future cast
restructunag, or improvement or enhancement of asset performance Uncommitied projects are excluded Discount rates are required to be derved
independently of the Group s capital structure and reflect management s prudent esumate of a rate that investors would require If they were to
choose a similar investment

The base cash flow projections have been derived by ptudently adjusung key assumpticns underlying the Group's detailed budget and strategic plan
projections These cover a period of seven years and are prepared as part of the annual planning cycle This period 15 believed to lead to a more
realistic estimate of future cash flows than five years

These plans are based on detaled market-by-market forecasts of projected volumes, prices and costs for each business activity These forecasts
reflect, on an indwidual operational site basis, numerous assumptions and estimates The key assumptions include anticipated changes in market size
and volumes recydate prices, energy selling prices gate fees, the level of future landfill tax, and cost inflation Management has determined the value
assigned to each assumpticn based on historical expenence market surveys indusiry analysss and current legislation For business activities with an
indefinite ife a termenal growth rate has been used

Management has applied the following assumptions to the cash flow projections

Assumption Basis for assumption

Discount rate Dhscount rates have been determined based on an estimate of the waste management
Pre-tax discount rates used range from segment s weighted average cost of capital adjusted for the different risk profiles of the
7% to 10% across the CGUs business activities — segment s business activities 1o the extent that the cash flows have not already been
{2015 75% to 10%) adjusted [nvestments in jont ventures reflect an expected equity return only

Long-term growth rates
0 5% apphed to overheads beyend the period of the Ongaing efficenaes and benefits from econcmies of scale
detalled projections {2015 0 5%)

2 5% apphed to other cash flows beyond the perod of  Based on forecasts of growth in waste management markets and the UK economy
the detaled projections {2015 2 5%)
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Service
concesston Custorner
arrangements contracts Patents Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Acquired intangible assets
Cost
At | April 2014 196 327 02 - 525
Additions 285 - - - 85
At 31 March 2015 431 327 0z - 81Q
Additions 69 - — 03 72
Recognised on acquisition of subsidianes (note 44) - 16 - 23 39
At 31 March 2016 550 343 02 26 921
Accurmnulated amortisation
At | April 2014 - 218 ol - 219
Charge for year - 27 - - 27
At 31 March 2015 - 245 0l - 246
Charge for year - 30 0l 06 37
At 3| March 2015 - 275 02 oe 283
Carrying amount
At | April 2014 196 109 0 - 306
At 31 March 2015 481 82 0l - 564
At 31 March 2016 5590 &8 - 20 6318

Service concession arrangements once available for use are amortised over the useful Iife of each contract The average remaining life 1s 24 years
(2015 25 years)

Customer contracts are amortised over the useful ife of each contract which at acquisiion ranged between two and |5 years The wesghted average
remaining hife 1s three years (2015 three years)

Patents are amorhsed over their estimated useful lives which at acquisition was 13 years The average remaining !ife 1s two years {2015 three years)

Other, ncluding computer software 15 amortised over the useful Iife of the assets which at acquisition was three years The average remaining life 1
two years

The carrying values of other intangible assets are reviewed annually or when events or changes In circumstance indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be fully recoverable

During the year borrowing costs of £2 | millien (2015 £1 4 milhen) have been capitalised on qualifying assets at an average borrowing rate of 4 2%
(2015 4 1%)

The principle assumptions used to assess impairment are set out in aote 17
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fred and
mebile plant
Landand Infrastructure  Operational  vehicles and Landfill  Construction
buildings assets properties computers restoration In progress Total
m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Group
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 4819 16086 6413 1,622 5 634 7305 51482
Additions 97 15 35 348 - 2419 3014
Assets adopted at far value - 69 - o} - - 70
Grants and contributions - (18) - - - - {18)
Drsposals (05 (12 on {256) - - (274
Tr ansfer s/ reclassifications 26 175 49 5198 40 (536 8) 120
At 31 March 2015 4937 6415 6496 21516 674 43546 54394
Addrtions 195 193 10 354 - 2180 2842
Arising on acquisition (note 44) 415 1211 274 352 - 38 2290
Assets adopted at far value - 66 08 - - - 74
Grants and contrbutions - (55) - - - - (55)
Disposals (288 {12 on (182 (28) - (51N
Transfers/ reclassifications 75 43! 148 4259 - {491 3) -
At 31 March 2016 524 4 18249 693 5 26299 646 166 | 59034
Accumulated depreaation
At | April 2014 3128 178 6 2035 960 3 426 - 16978
Charge for year 227 239 17 987 69 - 1639
lrjigg:-em charge/ reversal for _ _ _ 743 _ _ 243
Disposals {02) {12 (on (239 - - (254)
At 31 March 2015 3353 2013 2151 10594 495 - 1,860 6
Charge for year 212 236 124 1235 46 - 1853
Impairment charge/ reversal for 360 _ _ (360) _ B _
the year
Disposals {20 3) {12) en (170) {12) - (39 8)
At 3| March 2016 3722 2237 2274 11299 529 - 2,006 1
Net book value
At | Apnil 2014 169 | 14300 4378 6622 208 7305 34504
At 31 March 2013 158 4 | 440 2 4345 10922 179 4356 35788
At 31 March 2016 152 2 1,601 2 466 | 1,500 0 117 166 | 3,897 3

Cf the total depreciation charge of £185 3 milbon (2015 £163 9 million) £14 million (2015 £1 3 million) has been charged to caprtal projects, £1 0 million
(2015 £0% mullion) has been offset by deferred ncome and £182 9 milllon {2015 £161 7 mull.on) has been charged against profits

Asset Iives and residual values are reviewed annually

Durning the year borrowing costs of £7 3 million (2015 £21 | million) have been capitalised on qualifying assets at an average borrowing rate of 4 1%

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and finite Iived intangible assets are reviewed for imparment when any indicaters of imparment are identfied Most of
the indmdual assets do not generate independent cash flows and as a result, for the purposes of mpairment reviews the assets are grouped into cash
generating units (CGUs) The CGUs of the waste management segment comprise Individual assets which together constitute the smallest identiflable
group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely ndependent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets

The carrying value of these individual assets is compared to the recoverable amount of the CGUs, which 1s based predominantly on value-in-use
Value-in—use calculations use the same base cash flow projections used for testing goodwill (note 15) and are derved by adjusting the Gicup's detaled
budget and strategic plan which cover a period of seven years and are approved by the Board annually The key assumptions are the same as for the
impairment testing of goodwall (note 15)

To reflect changes in the waste market including the structural decline of landfill, and the prominence of recyclng and recovenng value from waste,
together with the reonentation of Vindor s operations towards ERFs the allocation of CGUs has been refreshed

The updated allocations ensw e CGUs reflect the lowest level of independent cash inflows Nan-strategic landfill assets are considered separate CGUs
as are landfill gas assets, with other remaining assets alfocated to regional CGUs

The result of this change 1in CGUs 1s an impairment of non-strategic landfil sites of £609 rullion and 2 £60 9 million rever sal of assets, nduding st ategic
landfill sites and recyding assets, allocated to regional CGUs

For certain CGUs the recoverable amount 1s determined by reference to the far value less costs to sell of the underlying assets using external and
imernal valuations of property and equipment and management s estrmate of disposal costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

For the purpases of disclosing the results of the impairment review the CGUs have been grouped together by asset class of non-strategic landfill CGUs
or regional CGUs The key assumptions in the Group s detaled budget and strategic plan are the same as those used for testing goodwill (note 15) The
assumptions apphed to these cash flow projections are

Assumption Basis for assumption

Discount rate Discount rates have been determined based on an estimate of the waste
management segment s weighted average cost of capital adjusied for the
different risk profiles of the segment s business activibes to the extent
that the cash flows have net already been adjusted

The pre—tax discount rate used for landfill 1s 9%
The pre-tax discount rate used for regional CGUs ranges from 7% - 10%

Long-term growth rates
0 5% applied to overheads beyond the peried of the detaled Ongoing efficienaies and benefits from economies of scale
projections

2 5% appled to other cash flows beyand the strategic plan period upto  Based on forecasts of growth in waste management markets and the
the end of the Ife of the assets on projected volumes UK economy

Using management cash flow projections, a | 5% increase in real long—term growth rate of averheads ot & 0 5% increase in discount rate ora 0 5%
teduction in the long—term growth rate of other cash flaws, or a 5% reduction in overall net cash flows, with all other vaniables held constant would
not have a material impact on the mmpairment charge orimpairment reversal in the year

Assets held under finance leases included above were

Fixed and
mobile plant
Infrastructure  Operational  vehicles and Construction
assets properties  compuiers  In progress Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2015 3980 4223 4923 I 13137
At 31 March 2016 4095 4398 5159 0z 13654
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 March 2015 474 369 2101 - 3544
At 3| March 2016 526 1072 2526 - 4124
MNet book amount
At 31 March 2015 3506 3254 2822 It 9593
At 31 March 2016 156 % 3326 2633 02 9530
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Fixed and mobile plant
vehicles and computers
im
Company
Cost
At | Apnl 2014 03
Additions 0l
Disposals [(42))]
At 31 March 2015 03
Addrtions ]
Disposals 01N
At 31 March 2016 03
Accumulated depreaiation
At | Apnl 2014 ol
Charge for year 0l
Dispasals -
At 31 March 2015 02
Charge for year 0l
Disposals Q1)
At 31 March 2016 02
Net bock value
At | April 2014 02
At 31 March 2015 01
At 31 March 2016 0l

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting pelicies for finanaial Instruments have been applied to the Iine items

Fair value Armortised cost
Derwvatives Derivatives Trade
used for  Derwvatives notin a hedge recevables
fairvalue used fer cash accounting  Loans and and trade
hedging tlow hedging relationship  recervables payables Total
Notes £m £m £m fm £m £m
Group
31 March 2016
Financial assets
Trade recevables 22 - - - - 2080 2080
Qther receivables 1922 - - - 2830 - 2830
Derwative financial instruments 23 18 34 670 - - 722
Cash and cash deposits 25 - - - 6322 — 6322
Total 18 34 670 9152 2080 11954
Financial habilities
Borrowings 28 - - - 3,116 86) - (3166)
Derivative financial instt uments 23 - (46 9) (90 - - (559
Trade payables 26 — - — - (959 (959
Total - 46 9) 90 31166) (959 (326849
31 March 2015
Financial assets
Trade recervables 22 - - - - 1957 1957
Other recewables 1922 - - - 3002 - 3002
Detrvative financial instruments 23 68 | 02 - - - 683
Cash and cash deposits 25 - - - 7710 - 7710
Totat 68 | 02 - 10712 1957 13352
Financial habilities
Borrowings 28 - - - (2968 1} - (2968 1)
Denvative financal instr uments 23 (& 5) 459) (sn - - (655)
Trade payables 26 - - - - {102 5) {102 5)
Total (6 5) 459) (13 1) (2268 1) {102 5) (31361)
Company
31 March 2016
Financial assets
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 1922 - - - 9742 - 8742
Other recevables 22 - - - 74 - 74
Denvauve financial Instruments 23 I8 - - - - I8
Cash and cash deposits 25 — - - 4297 - 4297
Total | 8 - - 14113 - 14131
Financial habilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries 26 - - - {03 - {03)
Borrowings 28 - - - (1,164 3) - (11643}
Denvative finanoal instruments 23 - (76) “42) - - (1 8)
Trade payables 26 - - - - 03 03)
Total - (78) 472) (1164 6) 03 (11767)
31 March 2015
Financial assets
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 1922 - - - 9452 - 9452
Cash and cash deposits 25 - - - 5325 - 5325
Total - - - 14777 - 14777
Finanaal habihities
Amounts due 1o subsidianes 26 - - - 03 - {03)
Borrowings 28 - - - (1,2193) - {12193)
Derwvative finanaal instruments 23 @7 (130 (36 - - (174)
Trade payables 26 - - - - on G1)
Total (C7) (13 1) (36) (1,2196) 01 {12371)
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19. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Non-current recevables
Group Campany
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m im
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 905 | 7896
Amounts owed by related parties {note 4&) 783 976 - -
Service concession arrangements 179 4 1829 - -
Other recevables 101 106 04 04
2678 291 | 9055 7900
Non-current recewvables were due
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Between | and 2 years 367 03 66 4 630
Over 2 years and less than 5 years 294 315 2504 2231
Qver 5 years 217 2393 5887 4979
2578 291 905 5 7300
The fair values of non-current recevables were
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 1,000 5 8975
Amounts owed by related parties 145 4 17067 - -
Service concessicn arrangements 179 4 1829 - -
Qther recervables 101 106 04 04
3349 3642 1.000 9 8979

The fair value of amounts owed by related parties 1s based on cash flows using a rate based oh the borrowings rate of 2 5% (2015 2 5%)

The discount rate 1s equal to London Interbank Offered Pate plus an allowance to reflect an appropriate ¢redit margin

The effective interest rate on amounts owed by related parties was 12 3% (2015 12 3%)

Other recevables include site development and pre-contract costs of £36 million (2015 £9 3 million)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20. INVESTMENTS

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

£m
Company
At | Apnl 2014 13233
Additions 2003
At 3| March 2015 15234
Additrons 1047
At 31 March 2016 1,628 3
JOINT YENTURES

Shares

fm
Group
At Apnl 2014 a1l
Share of post—tax profit 49
Shaie of other comprehensive profit i
Dmidends received 69
At 31 March 2015 al
Share of post—tax profit 36
Share of other comprehensive profit 24
Dividends received (60
At 31 March 2016 ol

The recaverable amount of Investments 1s determined based on value—in—-use calculations which are set out n note 15

Details of the Group s principal subsidiary joint venture and unconsolidated structured entity undertakings are set out in note 40

The Groupss joint ventures and associate listed below all have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares which is held directly by the Group

Name of Entity

Place of business/
country of incorporatien

% of ownership  Measurement method

Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited
Virdor Laing {Greater Manchester) Holdings Limrted®

INEOS Runcorn {TPS) Holdings Limited'®

50 Equity
50 Equity
20 Equity

(1) Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited provides energy recovery facility services

(2) Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited s delivering the 25 year Greater Manchester Waste PFl contract which 1s a combined energy and renewable energy project
(3)INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Holdings Limited provides energy facility facilties The Group s economic interest is 37 5% as set out in note 40

The Group s joint ventures and associate are all private companies and there are no quoted market prices available for their shares
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Summarised financial information for the Groups joint ventures and associate
SUMMARISED BALANCE SHEET
2016 2015
Lakeside Vindar Laing INEQS Lakeside  Vindor Laing
Energy {Greater Runcorn Energy (Greater INEQS
from Waste Manchester) (TPS) fromWaste  Manchester) Runcorn {TPS})
Holdings Holdings Haldings Holdings Holdings Holdings
Limited Limited Lirited Limited Limited Limited
£m £m £m £m £m fm
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 144 612 243 220 1044 293
QOther current assets 95 274 175 75 89 110
Total current assets 239 88 6 418 295 1133 403
Borrowings - - - {eR)] - -
Other current iabilities 37) (43 2) (11 4) &) 424) (200)
Total current labilities (37) (43 2) (r4 62 42 4) (200)
Non-current
Assets 122 6 288 8 2897 1306 3280 2972
Borrowings {114 0) {331 4) (3221) (1258) (3873) 3120
Other labilities (38 0) (43 2) (53 6) {396) (564) 46 ()
Total non-current labilities (152 0) (374 6) 3757 (1654) (4437) {3651)
Net habihities {92) (40 4) (55 &) {115) (44 8) (478)
Net debt (99 6) (270 2) (297 8) (1039) (2829) (2898)
Associated shareholder loans 178 LEE 94 6 185 1144 842
Net debt (excluding shareholder loans) (81 8) (196 6) (203 2) (854) (168 5) (205 6)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
2016 2015
Lakeside Vindor Laing INEOS Lakeside  Vindor Laing
Energy {Greater Runcorn Energy (Greater INEQS
from Waste Manchester) (TPS) from Waste Manchester) Runcorn {TPS)
Holdings Holdings Holdings Holdings Heldings Holdings
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 467 148 9 5612 496 1414 570
EBITDA 313 62 343 362 60 218
Depreoation and amorusaticn {79 {12) (o7 79 (3 (2%
Iar:zl:gs;n:eecs:abfe on service CONCEsSon _ 214 _ B 247 _
Other net interest charge {30) (29 6) {30 0) 24) (328) (243)
Pre—tax profit/ (loss) 14 4 (12) (6 4) 189 37) (54
Income tax {expense)! Income {12) 11 {14) (25) Ll -
Post-tax prafit/ (loss) 132 () (7 8) 164 (26) 54)
Qther comprehensive ncome! {loss) I 45 {02) (78) (15 1) (16 4)
Total comprehensive income/ (Joss) 143 44 (8 0) B6 (177) (21 8)
Dwidends paid by joint venture (120 - - (120 - -

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the finanaal statements of the joint ventures and assocate adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures and assocate The information reflects 100% of the joint ventures and associate resuits

and net habilities
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20. INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

RECONCIUIATION QF SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Reconaliation of the summarised financial infot mation presented 1o the carrying amount of 1ts Interest in the joint venture/ assogiate

2016 2015
Lakeside Vindor Laing INEOS Lakeside  Vindor Laing
Energy {Greater Runcorn Energy {Greater INEQS
from Waste Manchester) (TPS) fromWasta  Manchester) Runcom (TPS)
Holdings Haoldings Haldings Holdings Holdings Holdings
Limited Lirmited Limited Limrted Limited Limited
£m £m im £m £m £m
Opening net habiities | April (11 5) (44 8) (47 6) (2] 271) (258)
Prafit/ (loss) for the year 132 ol (78) 164 (2 6) (54)
QOther comprehensive Income/ (loss) 11 45 (3] (78} (s (164)
Dwidends paid (12 0) - - (120) - -
Closing net habrlities {92 (40 4) {55 6) (15 (448) (47 6)
Interest in joint venture (4 6) {20 2) (209 {8 (224) (238)
Share of net habilities not recognised 47 202 209 5% 224 238
Carrying value 0l - - ol - -
Net liabiirties in excess of the Group s interest are not recognised unless the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to fund those labilities
21. INVENTORIES
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m fm £m
Raw materials and consumables 206 150 - -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — CURRENT

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £m £m fm

Trade recevables 3036 2825 - -
Less provision for imparrment of recewvables (95 6) (86 8) - -
Net trade recervables 2080 1957 - -
Amounts owed by related parties (note 45) 179 197 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 691 1556
Other recevables 143 109 74 03
Prepayments and accrued income 8313 6t4 09 03
3235 2877 774 1562

Trade recewnables include accrued inceme relating to customers with water budget plans
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other recevables approximate to their fair value

There 15 no concentration of ¢redit risk in trade recervables The Group has a large number of customers who are dispersed and there is no sigrificant
loss on trade recevables expected that has not been provided for The Group has created |AS 3% portfolio provisions but cannot practicably idenufy
which recevables speafically are the ones impaired 1115 Group pohicy to consider a recevable i a portfelio to which an impairment has been allocated
on a collective basis as not being impaired for the purposes of IFRS 7 disclesures until the loss can be specifically identified with the recenvable

The ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not specifically impaired was

2016 215
£m £m

Group
Past due | — 30 days 378 336
Past due 31 — 120 days 187 208
More than 120 days 148 8 1344

The aged trade receivables above are taken directly from aged sales ledger records before deduction of credit balances and other adjustments

The Group's operating businesses specafically review separate categories of debt to identfy an appropriate provision for impairment South West
Wiater Linuted and Bournemouth Water Limited have a duty under legistation to cantinue to provide domestic customers with services regardless
of payment

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade recevables was

2016 2015
£m £m
At L Apnl 868 861
Anising on acquisition (note 44) 10 -
Prowvision for recervables impairment 84 128
Recewables wntten off dunng the year as uncollectable “1n (192
Cumulative amounts previously excluded from debt 35 71
At 31 March 956 868
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m

Derivatives used for cash fiow hedging
MNon-current assets 24 02 - -
Current assets 10 - - -
Current labilities (147) (132 27 29)
MNon-current abilities (322) (327) 49 (102)
Derivatives used for fair value hedging
Non-current assets 13 600 13 -
Current assets 05 gt 05 -
Current habilities - 24 - -
Non-current habilities - “n - Q7)
Derrvatives not in a hedge accounting relationship
Non-current assets 590 - - -
Current assets 80 - - -
Current liabiliues 27 39 - -
Non-cureent labilities (63) 37 “n (38)

The fair value of hedging derivatives s split between current and nan-current assets or labiliies based on the matunty of the cash flows
The ineffective partion recognised in the income statement anising from hedging relationships was £nil (2015 £nil)

Imterest + ate swaps, primarily cash flow hedges, and fixed rate bon owings are used to manage the mix of fixed and floating rates 1o ensure at least 50%
of Group net borrowings are at fixed rate At 31 March 2016 67% of Group net borrowings were at fixed rate (2015 72%)

At 31 March 2016 the Group had interest rate swaps to swap from floatng to fixed rate and hedge financial habilrties wath a notional value of £1,0780
million and a weighted average maturity of 39 years (2015 £1 103 0 milllon with 4 4 years) The weighted average interest rate of the swaps for their
nominal amount was 2 0% (2015 2 1%)

Derwvatives deemed held for trading includes a denvative with a fair value of £4 2 million (2015 £3 6 million) which does not qualify for hedge
accounting under LAS 39 but s designed to improve the Group s overall interest rate performance This dervative arises from a combination of
non-derivative mstruments entered inte during the year that when combined result in 2 dervative instrument Included in the derwative instrument is a
£200 milhion floating interest rate-linked loan from Peninsula MB Limited to the Company and a fixed rate £200 millon obligaticn due to the Company
from Penmnsula MB Limited This dervative has an expected life of 10 years

YALUATION HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining the far value of finanaal nstruments by valuation technique

* guoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities (level 1)

* nputs other than quoted prices included wathin level | that are observable for the asset or liability erther directly (that 15 as prices) or indirectly
(that 15 denved from prices) (level 2)

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 15 uncbservable inputs) {level 3)

The fair value of financial instruments not traded In an active market (level 2 for example over-the-counter dervatives) Is deternvined by using

valuation techniques A vaniety of methods and assumptions are used based on market conditions exisung at each balance sheet date Quoted market

prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term debt Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments The fair value of interest rate swaps s calculated as the present value of the estimated

future cash flows
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The Group s financial Instruments are valued pnncpally using level 2 measures

)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Level 2 inputs £m £m £m £m
Assets
Dervatives used for cash flow hedging 34 02 - -
Dertvates used for fair value hedging 18 =2 18 -
Derrvatives not in a hedge accounting refationship 670 - - -
Total assets 7212 683 18 -
Labidities
Dervatives used for cash flow hedging 469 459 75 131
Dervatives used for fair value hedging - 65 - 07
Dervatives nat In a hedge accounting relationship 48 95 - -
Total habiltes 517 619 75 138

Financial nstr uments valued using level 3 measures are valued by the counterparty using cash flows discounted at prevailing mid-market rates The far

value of such finanaal Instruments 1s not significantly sensitive to unobservable inputs

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Level 3 inputs £m £m £m £m
Liabifities
Dervatives deemed held for trading 412 36 412 36
The following table presents the changes in level 3 finanaal instruments for the year
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Level 3 Inputs £m £m £m £m
A | April (3 6) (24) (3 6) (24
Gains recogriused in net finance costs B84 78 84 78
Settlement of recogmised gains {9 0) {(50) (9 0) (90)
At 31 March 472) {36) 42 (36)
24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
Graup Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
fm £m £m £m
Current assets - 01 - _
Current habilities 27 - - -
Non-current habilities {51 0) {573) (16) {05)

Financial instruments at far value through profit reflect the fair value movement of the hedged risk on a hedged stem which had been designated in a

farr value hedging relationship
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

25. CASH AND CASH DEPOSITS

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m im £m
Cash at bank and in hand 44 5 196 927 124
Short-term bank deposits 3t1 1250 311 1250
Other deposits 556 6 5964 3059 3651
Total cash and cash deposits 6322 7710 4297 5325
Group short-term deposits have an average matunty of one day
Group other deposits have an average maturity of 53 days
Group other deposits include restricted funds of £216 8 million (2015 £186 5 million) to settle long-term lease labilities (note 28) and £97 million
(2015 £97 million) relating to letters of credit Restricted funds are available for access subject to being replaced by an equivalent valued security
For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash deposits as above 63212 7710 4297 5325
Less deposits with a matunity of thi ee months or more (restricted funds) (226 5) (196 2) 97 -
4057 5748 420 0 5325
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — CURRENT
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 95¢ 1025 03 0l
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings - - 03 03
Amounts owed to joint ventures (note 46) 3% 12 - -
Other tax and social security 523 642 a3 03
Accruals and other payables 112 5 1098 50 49
264 6 2777 59 56
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value
27. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Corporation tax creditor - 156 - -
Continuing uncertain tax items 516 356 835 238
Clanified tax items {14 5} - - -
Current tax liabiities 371 522 535 238
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28. BORROWINGS
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m im £m £m
Current
Short-term loans 03 509 - 507
European Investment Bank |7 31 - —
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings (note 46) - - 2872 2832
390 820 2872 3339
Obligaticns under finance leases 260 316 - -
Total current berrowings 650 136 2872 3339
Non-current
Bank and other loans 403 2 3380 3233 3380
Private placements 5538 5474 5538 5474
Bond 2040 1333 1330 - -
RPI index-linked bonds 412 2 2588 - -
European Investment Bank 2345 2732 - -
1,737 0 I 5504 8771 8854
Obligatons under finance leases 1,314 6 13041 - -
Total nan-current barrowings 3,051 6 28545 8771 8854
Total borrowings 3He66 2968 | 1,164 3 12193
The Company issued a £100 millien private placement in July 2007 matunng in 2022 Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 3 3%
South West Water Finance Plc issued a £200 milhon RPIl index-linked bond in July 2008 maturing in 2057 with a cash coupon of | 99%
South West Water Finance Plc 1ssued a £150 million bond in July 2010 maturing in 2040 with a cash coupon of 5 875%
Bournemouth Water Limited issued a £65 million RPIindex-Iinked bond in Apnl 2005 maturing in 2033 with & cash coupon of 3 084%
The far values of non-current borrowings, valued using level 2 measures (as set out in note 23) were
2016 2015
Book value Fair value  Book value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
Group
Bank and other loans 403 2 403 2 3380 3380
Private placements 5538 6000 5474 6069
Bond 2040 1333 198 4 1330 999
RP}index-inked bend 4122 364 6 2588 2034
Eurcpean Investment Bank 2345 2093 2732 2506
1,7370 1,775 § 1,550 4 1,598 8
Obligations under finance leases 1,314 6 1,63 0 | 3041 11820
3,051 6 2,9385 12,8545 2,7808
Company
Bank and other loans 3233 3233 3380 3379
Private placements 5538 6000 5474 6069
8771 923 3 8854 9448

Where market values are not available, fair values of borrowings have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing

Interest rates
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

28. BORROWINGS CONTINUED

The maturity of nan-current borrowings was

Groyp Company
2016 2015 2616 2015
Em £m £m £m
Between | and 2 years 1417 i337 746 749
CQver 2 year and less than 5 years 4270 4652 2258 3100
Over 5 years 2,482 9% 22556 5767 5005
3,051 6 28545 8771 8854
The weighted average matunty of non-current borrowings was 22 years (2015 23 years)
Finance lease habilities — minimum [ease payments were
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Within | year 411 506 - -
Over | year and less than 5 years 2205 2513 - -
Cver5 years 2,1307 21676 - -
2,392 3 24695 - -
Less future finance charges {1,051 7) (11338) - -
Pr esent value of finance lease habilities 1,340 6 13357 - -
The maturity of finance lease habilities was
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Em £m £m £m
Within | year 260 237 - -
Over | year and less than 5 years 124 8 1238 - -
Over 5 years 1,1898 11882 - -
1,340 6 13357 - _

Included above are accrued finance charges anising on obligatons under finance leases totalling £138 8 million (2015 £132 8 million) of which

£1 7 millon (2015 £2 9 millien) 1s repayable within one year

The peniod for repayment of certan leases includes an agreement to deposit with the lessor group amounts equal to the difference between the

onginal and revised payments due The accumulated deposits £71 7 million at 31 March 2016 (2015 £70 7 mithion), are currently being held to settle the

lease hability subject to rights to release by negotiation with the lessor The deposits are subject to a registered charge given as security to the lessor

for the balance outstanding
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The penad for repayment of certain other existing leases includes an agreement to deposit with the lessor group amounts equal to the difference
between the original and revised payments due The accumulated deposits £142 3 mullion at 31 March 2C16 {2015 £115 8 miion) are currently being
held to settle the lease lability subject to rights to release by negotiation with the lessor The deposits are subject to a registered charge given as

securrty 1o the lessor for the outstanding balance

Undrawn committed bot rowing faclies at the balance sheet date were

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m fm
Floating rate
Expinng within | year 1000 1500 500 -
Expiring after | year 9750 B204 2400 4200
1,075 0 970 4 2900 4200

In addition at 31 March 2016 the Group had undrawn uncomrmtted short-term bank facilries of £25 0 mulion (2615 £25 0 million) avalable to the

Company or South West Water Limited

29. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
fm £m £m £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 87 87
Cther payables 132 Ho'l - -
113 2 HOo a7 87

Other payables include deferred income resulting from the adoption at fair value of assets transferred from customers in the water segment

Included in other payables are amounts provided by the Group in relation to clams received which are considered by the Directors and the
management of the Group to be the best estimate of the amounts that might be finally settled Further disclosures have not been provided in

accordance with IAS 37 paragraph 92
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

During the year the Group operated a number of defined benefit pension schemes and also a defined contribution section within the main scheme

The assets of the Group's pension schemes are held in separate trustee administered funds The trustees of the funds are required to act in the best
interest of the funds beneficaries The appointment of schemes trustees 1s determined by the schemes trust documentation The Group has a policy

for the man fund that one-half of all trustees, other than the Chairman, are neminated by members of the schemes including pensioners

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEMES
Pension costs for defined conttibution schemes were £75 million {2015 £54 milhon)

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEMES
Assumptions
The prinaipal actuanal assumptions at 31 March were

2016 2015 2014

% % %

Rate of Increase in pensionable pay 29 19 34

Rate of increase for current and future pensions 29 29 32
Rate used to discount schemes liabilities and expected return on schemes assets 330 335 430

Inflation 29 29 34

MORTALITY

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuarial advice In accordance with published statistics and expenence The
mortality assumption uses a scheme-specfic calculabon based on CMI 2013 actuanal tables with an allowance for future longewity iImprovement

The average life expectancy in years of 2 member having retired at age 62 on the balance sheet date is projected as

2016 2015 2014

Male 251 250 249

Female 73 272 271
The average life expectancy in years of a future pensioner retiring at age 62 20 years after the balance sheet date 15 projected as

2016 2015 2014

Male 265 264 263

Female 296 285 294

The sensrivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the schemes liabilrties are

Change in Impact on

assumption  schemes' habilities

Rate of Increase In pensionable pay +/—0 5% +-01%

Rate of increase in current and future pensions +/—05% +H—62%

Rate used to discount schemes labihities +/-05% +-94%

Inflation +-05% +-63%

Life expectancy +f- | year +/-3 6%
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The amounts recognised in the balance sheet were
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
im £m im £m
Present value of financial cohgauons (826 9) (7422 {(507) (S0
Fair value of plan assets 7927 6927 477 466
Defiat ot funded plans (333) (495) (30) “32)
Impact of mimmum funding asset celling (76) {1on - -
Net hability recognised in the balance sheet {40 9) (594) (30) 42)
The movement in the net defined benefit obligation aver the accounting period is as follows
2016 2015
Present Fair value
value of of plan Presentvalue  Far value of
abligation assets Total ofobligation  plan assets Total
fm £m £m £m £m fm
At | Apnl (752 3) 6927 (59 6) (6877) 6084 (793)
Arising on acquisition (note 44) (86 6) 885 19 - - -
Current service cost (12 6) - (12 6) (125} - {125)
Past service cost and gains and losses on settlements* - - - 46 - 146
Interest (expense)/ income (27 3) 258 (18) (28 6) 259 27)
(399) 255 (14 4) (26 5) 259 06
Remeasurements
I(rl:zijfe;cel;uIrnnt:r;ptlaer;;;a;sets excluding amounts _ 97 (197) _ 587 587
Gain from change in demographic assumptions - - - 190 - 190
Gain/ (loss) from change in finanaal assumptions 27 - 27 815 - (815
Experience gains 14 4 - 14 4 17 - 17
171 (197) {2 6) (60 8) 587 2n
Contributions
Employers - 338 338 - 224 224
Plan participants (an Il - (12 12 -
Payments from plans
Benefit payments 292 (29 2) - 239 (239) -
281 57 338 227 ©3 224
At 31 March (833 8) 7927 409 (752 3) 6927 (5% 6)

* ncludes non underlying crecit of £142 mallion in 2015
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

The movement in the Company s net defined benefit obligation over the accounting periad 1s as follows

2016 2015
Present  Fair value
value of of plan Presentvalue  Fairvalue of
obligation assets Total of obligation  plan assets Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m
I Apri (50 8) 46 6 2 “72) 410 62
Current service cost (0 3) - 03) [(02)] - 04
Past service cost and gains and losses on settlement - - - |2 - 12
Interest (expense)/ income {17) 15 02) 20} 18 Q2)
(20) 15 {05) {12) 18 06
Remeasur erments
I(;olzsjle;el‘:]ulr:t:rneilaer;s;\na;sesets excluding amounts _ 9 @9 B 37 17
Gain from change in demographic assumptions - - - | 4 - I 4
Loss from change in financial assumpuions - - - (58) - (58)
Experence gains 03 - 03 cl - o}
03 09 {06) 43) 37 (085)
Contributions
Employers - 23 23 - 20 20
Payments from plans
Benefit payments 18 (18) - 19 (19 -
£8 05 23 e ol 20
31 March (507) 477 (30) (508) 46 6 42
Changes in the effect of the asset ceiling during the year were
Group Company
2016 2015 20t6 2015
£m £m im £m
Irrecoverable asset at start of the year 10| 03 - -
Interest on irrecoverable surplus 03 04 - -
Actuanal losses (2 8) 06) - -

The Group has two smaller pension schemes which are in surplus One of these surpluses 1s deemed 10 have irrecoverable assets in accordance with
IFRIC 14 The Lirmt on Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and then Interactior’

The schemes assets were

2016 2015

Quoted Prices not Quoted Prices not

prices quoted prices quoted

In active In active In active In active
market market Fund market market Fund
£m £m % £m £m %
Equities 2479 - 3l 2404 - 35
Government bonds 872 - 1 1062 - 15
Other bonds 134 2 - 17 1233 - 18
Diversified growth 1708 - 22 72 - 10
Property 504 83 7 418 I'5 7
Cther (induding cash funds) 800 139 12 959 94 15
7705 222 100 6818 109 100
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Other assets at 31 March 2016 represented pnnapally cash contnbutions received from the Group towards the year end which were invested during
the subsequent financal year

The Company s share of the schemes assets at the balance sheet date was

2016 2015

Quoted  Prices not Quoted Prices not

prices quoted prices quoted

n active in active In actve In active
market market Fund market market Fund
£m £m % £m £m %
Equities 143 - 30 154 - 33
Governmeni bonds 80 - 17 82 - I8
Other bends 97 - 20 64 - 14
Dwversified growth 56 - 12 57 - 12
Property 40 - 8 Jé - ]
Other 61 - 13 73 - i5
4717 - 100 466 - 100

Through its defined benefit pension plan, the Group 1s exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below

Asset volatiity The habilities are caleulated using a discount rate set with reference 1o corporate bond yields 1f assets underperform
this yeld, this will create 2 defiot The schemes hold a significant proportion of growth assets {(equities and diversified
growth funds) which are expected to outperform corporate bends in the long-term but can give nise to volatdity
and risk in the short-term The allocation to growth assets s monitored such that it 1s surtable with the schemes’
long-term cbjectives

Changes in bond yields A decrease in corporate bend yiekds will increase the schemes habilities although this will be partially offset by an
ncrease in the value of the schemes bond holdings

Inflation nsk The majonty of the schemes benefit obligatians are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher llabiitres
(although, n most cases, caps on the level of inflauonary increases are in place to protect aganst extreme inflaten)
The majonty of the assets are erther unaffected by or loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase iy
inflation will alsa increase the deficit

Life expectancy The majority of the schemes’ obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in ife
expectancy will resuit in an increase in the labilities

In conjunction with sts tnvestment advisers, the trustees have structured the schemes’ investments with the objective of balanaing investment returns
and levels of nsk The asset allocation for the main scheme has three prinapal elements

+ holding of cash funds and bonds which are expected to be less volatile than maost other asset dasses and reflects market movements in the
schemes labilities

+ a proportion of equities with fund managers having freedom in making investment decisions to maximise returns

+ investment of a proportion of the schemes assets in alternative asset classes which give the potential for diversification (currently property and
diversified growth)

The habilities of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected unit credit method which 1s an accrued benefits valuabion method in
which the scheme habilities make allowance for projected increases in pensionable pay

The future cash flows arising from the payment of the defined benefits are expected 1o be settled pnmanly in the penod between IS and 40 years
from the balance sheet date

The last tnenmal actuanal valuation of the principal defined benefit scheme was at 31 March 2013 The Group has made a deficit recovery contrbuuon
of £23 7 miflion to the main scheme dunng the year (2015 £11 0 milion) The Group monitors funding levels on an anaual basis and expects to pay total
contributions of around £10 millon duning the year ended 31 March 2017
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3|. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax 1s provided in full on temporary differences under the hability method using enacted tax rates (2015 20%)

Mavements on deferred tax were

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Lrabiibes/ (assets) at 1 April 2359 2271 (30) {13
Charged/ (credited) to the income statement 392 182 0s Qn
Charged/ (credited) to equity 45 (R} 0s (16)
Change of rate in iIncome statement — non-undertying (330 - 02 -
Other non-undertymg charges in the income statement 07 (33 - -
Ansing on acquisition (note 44) 48 - - -
Liabilities/ (assets) at 31 March 2720 2359 (2 2) (30)

Deferred tax assets have been recogrised in respect of all temporary differences giving nse to deferred tax assets because it 1s probable that these
assets will be recovered

The majonty of the Group s deferred tax hability 1s expected to be recovered over more than one year
The majonty of the Company s deferred tax asset is expected to be recovered over more than one year
All deferred tax assets and habilities within the same jurisdiction are offset

The deferred tax balance has been reduced by a credit of £291 million to recognise the changes In the rate of corporation tax enacted on 18
November 2015 to reduce the rate at | Apnl 2017 from 20% to 19%, followed by a further reduction from | Apnl 2020 to 18% This credit includes a
credit of £33 | million recogrised in the income statement and a debrt of £3 9 million recogrised n equity If the Government proposals contained in
the Finance Bill 2016 to teduce the rate of caorporation tax by a further |% for the finanaal year 2021 (2% reducuon in total) had been enacted at the
balance sheet date the impact would have been a further reduction of approxcmately £15 0 million

The movements in deferred tax assets and labilities were

GROUP
Deferred tax habilices

Revenue on
Accelerated tax Fair value  service concession
depreciation adjustments arrangements Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At | April 2014 2391 1 173 02 2677
(Credited)/ charged to the income statement (UE)] (12 200 0l 175
Non-underlying credit to the income statement 27) — - — (27)
At 31 March 2015 2350 39 373 03 2825
Ansing on acquisition 183 121 - - 374
Charged/ (credited)to the income statement 163 {7 75 - 221
Non-underlying (credit)/ charge to the income statement {259) 27) (51 06 (33 1)
At 31 March 2016 2437 24 6 3197 09 308 9
Deferred tax assets
Long term  Retirement
habilities ncl benefit Share based Far value
provisions  oblgations Derwvatives payments  Taxlosses adjustment Cther Total
im £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
At b Aprl 2014 {15 8) (159 (33) (17) {14 - (25)  (406)
Charged/ (credited) 10 the income ©5) s B 0l B B ©4) 07
statement
Credited to equity - 049 (57) - - - - &1
Non-underlying (credit)/ charge to the (36) 30 _ _ _ _ B ©6)
Income statement
At 31 March 2015 (19%) (118) (90) (16) {14 - (29) 466)
Arising on acquisition @) 04 - - - (129) - (126)
Charged/ (credited) to the income 40 37 _ _ ©7) 07 06 171
statement
Men-underlying charge/ {credii) to the . @ _ B 037 12 03 07
income statement
(Credited)/ charged to equity - (08) 10 02 - - - 06
Non-underlying charge to equity - 30 08 0l — - — 39
At 31 March 1016 (49 (74) (72 (13) (19) (1o (32 (369
Net hability
At 31 March 2015 2359
At 3l March 2016 2720
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COMPANY
Deferred tax assets
Retirement
benefit Share based
obligattons  Derwvatives payments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At | April 2014 (12) - (04) 03 (13)
Charged/ (credited) to the iIncome statement 05 08) ©n
(Crednied)/ charged to equrty n (I 6) Ol - (! 6)
At 31 March 2015 {08) (16) 03) ©3) [€14)]
Charged to the income statement 03 - - Ol 04
Non-underlying credit to iIncome statement 02) - - - (02)
{Credited)f charged tc equity n 02 0l - 02
Non-underlying charge to equity 03 a1 - - 04
At 31 March 2016 @5 I (02) {0 2) 2D
Deferred tax (charged)/ credited to equity during the year was
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m im
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations {2 4) 04 02) 0l
Cash flow hedges {1 8) 57 {0 3) 16
Deferred tax on other comprehensive loss (gain)/ loss {4 2) 61l (0 5) 17
Share-based payments {0 3) - on ©on
{4 5) 51 (0 &) 1 6
32. PROVISIONS
Environmental
and landfill QOther
restoration Restructunng provisions Total
£m £m £m fm
Group
At | Apnl 2015 1930 20 323 2273
Charged to the income statement Hz2 - 49 161
Non-underlying charge {note &) - 102 - 102
Released (88 - (35) {12 3)
Utilised (13 3) (05) 61) (199)
At 31 March 2016 182 | 17 276 221 4

The amount charged to the iIncome statement incudes £9 4 million (2015 £10 5 milllon) charged to finance costs as the unwinding of discounts
1N provisions

The analysis of provisions batween current and non-cutrent is

1016 2015

£m £m

Current 504 329
Noen-current 1710 194 4
221 4 2273

Environmental and landfill restarabion provisions are incurred dunng the operational life of each landfill site and fer a considerable penod thereafter
The perod of aftercare post-closure and the level of costs expected are uncertamn and can vary significantly from site to site Key factors are the type of
waste the speed at which it decomposes the volume of leachate requinng treatment and regulatory requirements specific to the site Environmental
and landfill restoration provisions are expected to be substantally utilised throughout the operauonal life of a site and for landfill sites within 60 years of
closure The provisions have been estabhished assuming current waste management technology based upeon estimated costs at future prices which have
been discounted to present value

During the year a landfill asset was disposed which resulted in the release of a £8 8 million environmental and landfill restorauon provision The release
of the provision has also been recognised within profit on disposal of proper ty, plant and equipment

The restructuning provision refates prncipally to severance costs and will be utilised within one year

Other provisions include underperforming contracts of £15 6 midlion (2015 £18 3 millior) which are provided for at the net present value of the
operating losses of the underperforrmung contracts and are to be utilsed over the remaining penod of the contract to which they relate
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33. SHARE CAPITAL

ALLOTTED, CALLED-UP AND FULLY PAID

Number of shares

Treasury shares Ordinary shares £m
Group and Company
At | April 2014 ordinary shares of 40 /p each 1282,690 370,552 276 1513
Shares issued in respect of the £125 millien convertible bond - 20909635 85
Shares issued under the Scnp Dividend Alternative - 6365622 26
Shares re-issued under the Company s Performance and Co-mvestment Plan (£31685) 131685 -
For consideration of £0 8 million, shares re-issued to the Pennon Employee Share Trust (99455) 99455 -
For consideration of £0 | milhon shares re-issued under the Executive Share Option Scheme (5027) 5027 -
For consideration of £3 0 mdlion shares re—sssued under the Company s Sharesave Scheme {657008) 657008 -
At 31 March 2015 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 389515 398720708 1624
Shares rssued in respect of equity ssuance - 12084 337 49
Shares 1ssued under the Scrip Dividend Alternative - 760,626 03
For consideration of £1 ) million shares re—issued to the Pennon Employee Share Trust (143 538) 143 538 -
For consideration of £0 | millon shares re—issued under the Executive Share Option Scheme (8 305} 8,305 -
For consideration of £1 3 mullion, shares re—issued under the Company s Sharesave Scheme (227316} 227316 -
For consideration of £2 | million shares issued under the Company s Sharesave Scheme - 395767 02
At 3] March 2016 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 10,356 412,340,597 1678

The 12 084,337 share 1ssuance was on a non pre-emptive basis to replenish cash resources following the acquisrtion of Bournemouth Water in April
2015 The discount achueved was 0 5% and proceeds rarsed net of discount and costs were £98 million The percentage increase in 1ssued share capital
due to the 1ssuance was 3%

Shares held as treasury shares may be sold or re—issued for any of the Company s share schemes or cancelled
EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES
The Group operates a number of equity—settled share plans for the benefit of employees Details of each plan are

1) Sharesava Scheme

An all-employee savings related plan i1s operated that enables employees including Executive Directors to mvest up to a maximum of £500 per month
for three or five years These savings can then be used to buy ordinary shares at a ptice set at a 20% discount to the market value at the start of the
savings penod atthe thied fifth or seventh year anniversary of the option being granted Options expire six months following the exerase date and,
except for certain speafic ¢rcumstances such as redundancy, lapse i the employee leaves the Group before the option exercise period commences

Qutstanding options to subscribe for ordinary shares of 40 7p each under the Company’s share option schemes are

Date granted and subscription Period when options normally  Thousands of shares in respect of which

price fully pad exercisable options outstanding at 31 March

2016 2015

8 July 2008 517p 2011 - 2015 - 3
6 July 2009 386p 2012 -2016 44 43
28 June 2010 431p 2013 -2017 41 205
29 |une 2014 536p 2014-2018 150 156
29 June 2012 588p 2015 - 2017 103 561
3 uly 2013 538p 2016~ 2018 540 58]
14 July 2014 6llp 2017 - 2049 687 772
24 June 2015 683p 2018 ~ 2020 1,291 -
1,856 2330
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The numbet and weighted average exercse price of Sharesave options are
2016 2015

Weighted Weighted average
Number of average exerduse Number of  exeruse price per
ordinary shares  price per share ordinary shares share
(thousands) P) (thousands) ()]
At | April 1,330 561 2330 515
Granted 1,364 683 81l 6l
Forfeited {170) 622 (°7) 55%
Exercised (623) 545 (657) 457
Expired (45} 596 {57) 550
At 31 March 2,856 619 2330 541

The weighted average price of the Company's shares at the date of exercise of Sharesave options during the year was 779p (2015 811p) The opticns
outstanding at 31 March 2016 had a weighted average exercise price of 619p (2015 561p) and a weighted average remaining contractual hfe of 2 | years
(2015 19 years)

The aggregate fair value of Sharesave options granted during the year was £! 7 milhon (2015 £0 8 million), determined using the Black-Scholes valuation
madel The significant inputs into the valuation model! at the date of 1ssue of the options were

2016 2015
Woeighted average share price 854 764p
Weighted average exercise price 683 6llp
Expected volatiity 170% 170%
Expected hfe 3 4 years 34 years
Risk-free rate 08% I 4%
Expected dwdend yield 4 0% 4 0%

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the historical volaulity of the Group's share price over the previous two years

1) Performance and Ce-investment Plan

Executive Directors and semor management recerve a conditional award of ordinary shares in the Company and are also required to hold a substantial
persanal shareholding in the Company The eventual number of shares, iIf any which vest 1s dependent upon the achievement of conditions of the plan
over the restncted penod being not less than three years

The number and price of shares in the Performance and Co-investment Plan are

2016 2015
Weighted Weighted average
Number of average exercise Number of exercise price per
ordinary shares  price per share ordinary shares share
(thousands) (p) {thousands) (p)
At | April 1,195 744 1200 7
Granted 420 81l 400 799
Vested - - (132) 698
Lapsed {417) 764 (273) £98
At 31 March 198 761 1195 744

The awards outstanding at 3| March 2016 had a weighted exerase price of 761p (2015 744p) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of | 3
years (2015 1 3 years)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

33. SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

The aggregate fair value of awards granted duning the year was £1 7 milhon {2015 £1 9 miflion) determined using @ Monte-Carlo simulation model The
sigificant inputs into the valuation model at the date of the share awards were

20156 2015
Weighted average share price 8lip 799
Expectad volatility 17 0% 170%
Risk-free rate 0 8% 1 4%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histerical volatiity of the Group’s share price over the previous two years

m) Annual Incenuve Bonus Plan — deferred shares

Awards under the plan to Executive Directoss and senior management involve the release of ordinary shares in the Company to particpants There is
ne performance condition since vesting 1s conditional upon continuous service with the Group for a peried of three years from the award The number
and weighted average price of shares in the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan are

2016 2015
Woeighted Weighted average
Number of average exercise MNumber of  exercise price per
ordinary shares  price per share ordinary shares share
(thousands) (p) {thousands) P
At | Apnl 36 758 315 727
Granted 154 791 107 822
Vested {152) 790 (106) 728
Lapsed {I1) 776 - -
At 3] March 307 75% ilé 758

The awards outstanding at 3! March 2016 had a weighted average exercise price of 759p (2015 758p) and a weighted average remaining contractual ife
of | 6 years (2015 | 3 years) The Company s share price at the date of the awards ranged from 593p to 822p

The aggregate far value of awards granted during the year was £1 2 millon {2015 £09 million) determined from market value No option pricing
methodology 1s appled since dividends paid on the shares are recevable by the participants in the scheme

Further details of the plans and options granted to Directors included above are shownin the Directers remuneration report

34. SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

£m
Group and Company
At | Apnl 2014 49
Convertible bond — equity 1ssuance 1163
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scnp Dmdend Alternative (26)
At 31 March 2015 1186
Equity placing 954
Equrty 1ssuance related costs (23)
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scrip Dividend Alternative {03)
Shares 1ssued under the Sharesave Scheme 19
At 31 March 2016 2133
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The capital redemption reserve represents the redemption of B shares and cancellation of deferred shares arising from a capital return to shareholders

undertaken dunng 2006
£m
Group and Company
At | Apnl 2014 1442
At 3t March 2015 1442
At 31 March 2016 144 2
36. RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES
Hedgng Retained
Own shares reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m £m
Group
At | Apnl 2014 {n 39 6080 6024
Profit for the year - - 1263 1263
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (330} 06} (336)
Transfer from hedging reserve 1o property, plant and equipment - 19 - 19
Drdends paid refating to 2014 - - {1H79Q) (17 0)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the Scnp Dividend Alternative - - 480 480
Credit to equity In respect of share-based payments (net of tax) - - 35 35
Charge In respect of share options vesting 07 - 07 -
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust in respect
of share options granted ©8) - - ©8)
Convertible bond — equity 1ssuance - - (03) (©5)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 39 39
At 31 March 2015 (18) (350 6709 634!
Profit for the year - - 1521 1521
Other comprehensive loss for the year - 02 (26) 28)
Transfer from hedging reserve to property plant and equipment - 34 - 34
Dvidends paid relating to 2015 - - (1295) (1295)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the Scrp Cividend Alternative - - 63 63
Credit to equity in respect of share-based payments (net of tax) - - 25 15
Charge In respect of share options vesting c8 - {08} -
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust in respect of share (h _ _ an
options granted
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 25 25
Ac 31 March 2016 @n 318) 7014 6675

The own shares reserve represents the cost of ordinary shares in Pennon Group Flc issued to or purchased in the market and held by the Pennon

Employee Share Trust to satisfy awards under the Group's Annual Incentive Bonus Plan
The market value of the 309 000 ordinary shares (2015 304,000 ordinary shares) held by the trust at 31 March 2016 was £2 5 rmillion (2015

£2 5 miflien)
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36. RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES CONTINUED

Hedging Retained

reserve earmings Total
£m £m £m
Company
At | Apnl 2014 - 7772 7772
Profit for the year - 3001 300 |
Other comprehensive loss for the year (55) (04) (59}
Dnadends paid relating to 2014 - (H70) (170)
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scrip Dividend Alternative - 480 480
Credit to equity in respect of share-based payments {net of tax) - 09 09
Charge in respect of share options vesting - 08) (0B}
Convertible bond — equity 1ssuance - 05 ©5)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 39 39
At 31 March 2015 (55) [0l 4 10059
Profit for the year - 914 914
Other comprehensive loss for the year 05 (©9) (04
Dividends paid relating to 2015 - (129 5) (129 5)
Adjustment for shares i1ssued under the Scrip Dividend Alternative - 63 63
Credit to equity i respect of share-based payments {net of tax) - 07 07
Charge in respect of share options vesting - 08) 08)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 25 25
Ac 31 March 2016 (50 981 | 976 |
37. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES
f£m
Group and Company
At | April 2014 294 8
Distributions to perpetual capital security holders (203)
Current tax relief on distributions to perpetual capital security holders 43
Profit for the yeat attnbutable to perpetual caprtal secunty holders 160
At 3t March 2015 2948
Distnbutions to perpetual capital secunity holders (203)
Current tax relief on distributions to perpetual capital security holders 41
Profit for the year attributable to perpetual capital security holder s 162
At 3] March 2016 294 8

On 8 March 2013 the Company issued £300 million perpetual capital securities Costs directly assoaated with the issue of £5 2 million are set off
against the value of the issuance They have no fixed redemption date but the Company may at its sole discretion, redeem all, but not part of these
securrties at ther prinaipal amount on 8 March 2018 or any subsequent periodic return payment date after this

The Company has the option to defer periodic returns on any relevant payment date as long as a dividend on the ordinary shares has not been pard or
declared in the previous 12 months Deferred periodic returns shall be satsfied anly on redemption or payment of dividend on ordinary shares all of
whirch only accur at the sole discretion of the Company

As the Company paid a dividend in the 12 months prior to the periodic retlrn date of 8 March 2016 a periodic rewrn of £26 3 milion was paid during
the year
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38. ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS GIVEN IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconahation of profit for the year to cash generated from operations

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Group Company
2616 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Profit for the year 168 3 142 3 107 6 364
Adjustments for
Share-based payments 28 35 o8 10
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (4 3) (37) - -
Depreciation charge 1829 1617 01 0l
Amortisation of intangible assets 37 27 - -
Non-underlying impairment of property plant and equipment - 243 - -
Non-underlying provision charge 102 43 - -
Non-underlying movement in denvatives 52) - - -
Non-undet lying defined benefit pension credit - (149) - (12
Share of post-tax profit from jont ventur es {(36) “@9 - -
Finance income 21 (440} (52 3) 510
Finance costs 962 848 372 356
Divdends recevable - - (1407) (311 &)
Taxation charge 350 547 449 iy
Changes 1n wat king caprtal
Increase in inventories (55) 29 - -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recevables 105 (170 (37 4) (101 6)
Increase In service concession arrangements recevable (i56) {719 - -
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (27 0) 57 03 (12
Decrease in retirement benefit abligations from contributions 212 {96) (22) (17
Decrease in provisions {16 8) “n - -
Cash generated/ {(outflow) from cperatians 37113 3109 " (103 8)
Reconcllation of total interest paid
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Interest paid in operating activities 791 620 353 347
Interest paid in investing activities 94 225 - -
Total interest pard 885 845 353 347
39. NET BORROWINGS
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash deposits 6322 7710 4297 5325
Borrowings — current
Qther current borrowings (390) 820) - (507)
Finance lease obligations (26 0) {31 6) - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - (287 2) (283 2)
Total current borrowings (65 0) {113 &) (287 2) {3339)
Borrowings —non-current
Bank and other loans (1,502 5) {12772) (8771) (8854)
Other non-current borrowangs (234 5) (373 2) - -
Finance lease cbhigations (1,314 6) (1,3041) - -
Total non-current borrowings (3,051 6) {2,854 5) (877 1) (8854)
Total net borrowings (2,484 4) (2197 1) (734 6) (686 8)
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40. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT YENTURE AND ASSOCIATE UNDERTAKINGS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Principal subsidiary companies

Country of incorperation,

registration and principal operations

Water

South West Water Lirnited* England
South West Water Finance Pic England
Source Contact Management Limited England

Bournemouth Water Investments Limited® England
Bournemouth Water Limited England

Pennon Water Services Limited® England

Waste management

Vinder Limited* England
Vindor Waste Limited England
Virdor Waste Exeter Limited England
Vindor Waste Suffolk Limited England
Vindor Waste (West Sussex) Limited England
Vindor Waste Management Limited England

Vindor EnvireScot Limited Scotland
Virdor Resource Management Limited England
Virdor Waste Kent Limrted England
Virdor Oxfordshire Limited England
Viridor EfwW {Runcorn) Limited England
Virdor Waste {Landfill Restoration) Lirmited England
Vindar Waste (Somerset) Limited England
Vindor Waste {Thames) Limrted England
Vindor Waste (Greater Manchester) Limrted England
Virdor Polymer Recycling Limited England
Virdor Trident Park Linited England
Vindor (Glasgow) Limited Scotland
Virdor (Lancashire) Limited England
Vindor Peterborough Limited England
Vindor South Lendon Limited England
Virdor Ciyde Valley Limited Scotland
Qther
Perinsula Insurance Limited™! Guernsey
Country of Country of
Other trading companies ncerperation Cther dormant companies ncorporation
Alderney Water Limited England A A Best & Sons Limited Scotland
Acetip England

Aquacare (BWH) Limited England  ajion wWater (Shottan) Limited England

Avon Valley Water Limited England  Analag Limited* England

BWH Enterprises Limited England Q;:Legaﬁqt?;?elzum[md E:gz;j

Dragen Waste Limited (81%) England  Centre for Environmental Research Limited England

Peninsula Leasing Limited* England Ezrbzescli?;n;ﬁznf:q::;es Limited E:g::zj

Peninsula Properties (Exeter) Limited England DMP (Heldings) Limited* England

Peninsula Trustees Limited* England ELE Datasysterms England

Exe Continental England

Pennon Defined Contnibution Pension Trustee Limited* England Greater Manchester Sites Limited England

Pennon Pension Trustees Limited® England Greenhill Environmental Limited* England

Handside Limited England
Pennon Share Plans (Guernsey) Limited* Guernsey  Haul Waste Limited* England
Pennon Share Schemes Trustees Limited™ England ~ Hodgejoy Recycing Limited England
Industrial Waste Disposals {Sheffield) Limited England

Pennon Trustee Limited® England Lavelle & Sons Limrted England

Raikes Lane Limited England ~ Mac-Glass Recycling Limited Scotland

Source Collections Limsted England 8:3:; ;:;yf_::i t:g;i: Ezé:::j

Source for Business Limited England  Parkwood Envirenmental Limited England

Vindor Waste (Somerset) Pension Scheme & Life England Parkweod Group Limited England

Assurance Limited Parkwood Recycling Limited England

West Hampshire Water Limited Cngland  Pearsens Group Holdings Limited England

Peninsula England
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Country of Country of

Cther dormant companies Incorporation Cther dormant companies incorporation
Peninsula Water Limited* England  Vindor Glass Recychng Limited England
Pennon Power Limited* England  Vindor London Recycling Limited England
Pennon South West Limited™ England  Vindor New England (EfW) Limited England
Pennon Waste Management Limrted* England  Vindor Resource (Peterborough) Limited England
pHOX Systems Limrted England  Vindor Resource Transport Limited England
Pilsworth Forest (1996) Limited England  Vindor South Lanarkshire Limited Scotland
Pilsworth Forest Limited England  Vindor South West Limited* England
Roseland Plant Co Limrted England  Vindor Waste {(Adapt) Limrted England
Rydon Properties Lirnited England  Vindor Waste (Allwaste Disposal) Limited England
Seal Secunty Systems Limited* England  Vindor Waste (Atherton) Heldings Limited England
Sheffield Waste Disposal Company Limited England  Vindor Waste {(Atherton) Limited England
Shore Recycing {Ozone) Limited England Vindor Waste (Bristo! Holdings) Limited England
SWW Pension Trustees Limited* England  Vindor Waste {Bristol) Limited England
Thames Inuneration and Recycling Limited England  Vindor Waste (Bury ) Limited England
Thames Incineratien Services Limited England  Vindor Waste (Corby) Limited Ergland
Thames Tankering Services Limited England  Vindor Waste (Earls Barton) Limited England
Thames Waste Limrted England  Vindor Waste (East Angha) Limited England
The Metropalitan Water Company Limited England ~ Vindor Waste (Medway Holdings} Limited England
Tokenmarch Lirmited England  Vindor Waste (Medway) Limited England
Vindor (Cheshire) Limited England  Virndor Waste (Sheffield) Limited England
Vinder (Community Recycling MK) Limrted England  Vindor Waste (Thetford) Limited England
Vindor {Community Recychng MKH) Limited England  Virdor Waste (Wastenot Recyching) Limited England
Vindor (Erith) Limited England  Vindor Waste 2 Limited* England
Vindor (Martock) Limited fngland  Vindor Waste Disposal Limrted England
Vindor (Winsford) Limrted England  Vindor Waste Hampshire Limited England
Vindor Contracting Limited England  Virdor Waste Wootton Limited England
Vindor Electrical Recyching (Holdings) Linuted Scotland VWM (Scotland) Limited Scotland
Vindor Electrical Recycling Limited Scotland ~ Waste Treatment Limrted England
Vindor Enterprises Limited* England  VWater West Limited* England

* Indicates the shares are held directly by Pennon Group Plc the Company
(1) Captive insurance company established with the speafic abjectve of fimancing risks emanating fr om wathin the Group

The subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned unless stated otherwise and all shares in 1ssue are ordinary shares All companies above are consolidated

i the Group financial statemenits

Interests in unconsolidated structured entrties

The Company holds 75% of the ordinary share capital of Perinsula MB Limited a company which raises funds through the issuance of debt instruments
and third party lending but does not control the company since 1t does not have the power to affect returns Consequently the company has not been

consolidated into the Pennon Group

Pennon Group Pl has borrowed a £200 milhon floating interest rate-linked loan from Peninsula MB Limited and 1s owed a fixed rate £200 million

obligation from Peninsula M8 Limited

Jotnt ventures and associate

All joint ventures the assooate and the subsidiary undertakings of Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited  Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester)
Heldings Limited INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Heldings Limited and Shelford Composting Limited are incorporated and registered in England winch 1s also

ther country of operation

Joint ventures

Share capital in issue Per

Principal activity

centage held

Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited

1 000,000 A ardinary shares

1 000 000 B ordinary shares 100%
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited Waste management
Shares in Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Vaste Managament Limited
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited 12 000 ordinary shares 50%
Vinder Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited Waste management
Shares in Vindor Lang {Greater Manchester} Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited
Shelford Composting Limited 50 A ordmary shares -
50 B ordinary shares 100% Waste management
Associate
INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Holdings Limited 1 000 A ordinary shares 20%
186,750 Bl ordinary shares 50%

62 250 B2 ordinary shares

INEQOS Runcorn (TPS) Limited

Waste management

Shares in INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited

The Group s economic interest in INEQS Runcern {TPS) Holdings Uimited 1s 37 5% as returns from the investment are based on holdings of Bl and

B2 ordinary shares
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41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m im £m

The future aggregate minmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
Within | year 107 110 - -
Over | year and less than 5 years 292 320 - -
Over 5 years 80O 824 - -
199 1254 - -

The Group leases vanous offices, depots and workshops under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The |eases have vanous terms escalation
clauses and renewal nghts Property leasas are negotiated for an average term of 42 years and rentals ai e reviewed on average at five-yearly intervals

The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating lease agreements

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m

Guarantees
Borrowing faciliies of subsidiary undertakings - - 1211 3866
Performance bonds 1597 1658 1597 1698
Other 40 40 40 40
163 7 1738 5848 5604

Guarantees in respect of performance bonds are entered into in the normal course of business No llability 1s expected to arise in respect of
the guarantees

Other contingent labilites relate to a possible obligation to pay further consideration in respect of a previcusly acquired business when the outcome of
plannuing applications 1s known

In connection with the application of the audit exemption under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has guaranteed all the
outstanding labilities as at 31 March 2016 of certain of its subsidiaries Peninsula Leasing Limnied Pennon Power Limited, Exe Continental and Vindor
Waste 2 Limnted since these companies quakfy for the exernption

The Group is subject to ltgation from time to tme as a result of its actvities The Group establishes provisions in connection with Iitrgation where 1t
has a present legal or constructive obligatton as a result of past events and where 1t1s more likely than not an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligabon and the amount can be rehably estmated

Significant management judgement s required to estimate the tax provisions relating to uncertain tax items that remain to be agreed with HMRC [tis
reasonably possible that the outcomes and settlements may differ from the estimated current tax hatilities shown 1n the consolidated balance sheet

Due to the uncertainty assccated with such tax items, it s possible that at a future date, on condusion of the open matters, the finat cutcome may
vary significantly Whilst a range of outcomes 15 reasonzbly possible, the extent of the range 15 addruonal liabilites of up to £20 million to a reduction in
labilibes of up to £52 million Any such vanations will aftect the tax financal results in the year in which such a determination 1s made

In addition to provisions established for uncer tain tems, the Group has paid in fulk the tax HMRC interpr et as due, and therefore would benefit by up
te £70 mulllon should such tax positiens be cencluded in the Group s favour

43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Contracted but not provided 374 4 3503 - -
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44. ACQUISITIONS

On 15 Apnl 2015 Pennon Group Pl acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Sembcorp Bournemouth Water Investments Limited {(renamed
'Bournemouth Water Investments Limited") including its non-regulated subsidianes from Sembcorp Holdings Lumited for a cash consideration of
£100 3 million Sembcorp Bournemouth Water Investments Limited is the holding company for Sembcorp Bournemouth Water Luruted {renamed
Bournemouth Water Limited )

The acquisition was in ine with the Group s strategy to increase shareholder returns from the antcipated future synergies and outperformance ansing
from the merger into South West Water

The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method Goodwall of £42 3Im miflion has been capitalised attributable to the anticipated
future synergies and outperformance ansing from the merger into South West Water

On | June 2015 Vindor Waste Management Limited acquired Commeraal Recycling Limited s waste collection dvision in Dorset and Somerset for an
initiat £4 5 million An addittonal payment of up to £1 O million could be made in the future depending upon certain performance-related cntena The
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquistion method

Goodwill of £3 4 millon has been capitalised atinbutable to the profitability of the acquired business
No amount of goodwill related to these acquisitions 1s expected to be deductble for tax purposes

The residual excesses over the net assets acquired n each business combination has been recognised as goodwill

Bournemouth Water Waste Collection
Investments Limited Drasion
£m £m
Fair values on acquisition
Intangible assets 23 16
Property plant and equipment 2285 05
Inventories 0l -
Trade and cther receivables 238 -
Cash and cash deposits 138 —
Retrement benefit sutplus 19 -
Borrowings (160 2) -
Trade and cther payables (197) -
Other habilies {05) -
Taxation - current Q27 -
Deferred tax liabilities {24 8) -
Provisions {02 -
MNet assets acquired 623 21
Goodwill 423 34
Total consideration 1046 55
Satisfied by
Cash 1003 45
Transfer of amounts due to Bournemouth Water Investments Limited 43 -
Deferred consideration - 10
104 6 55
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 1003 45
Cash and cash deposits acquired 138 -
B65 45
Revenue for the penod since acquisiion to 31 March 2016 419 46
Prafit before tax for the penod since acquisiion to 31 March 2016 60 07
Directly attnbutable costs included in other operating expenses 19 02

The fair value of trade and other recevables in Bournemouth Water Investments Limited on acquisition was £23 8 milion This included gross
contracted amounts recevable of £21 8 milhon of which cash flows of £1 O millian were not expected to be collected

im
Goodwill movement
At | Apnl 2015 3393
Acquisition of Bournemouth Water Investmentis Limited 423
Acquisition of the waste collection division of Commercial Recycling Limited 34
At 31 March 2016 3850
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

45. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On | April 2016 the Company sold the entire share capital of Bournemouth Water investments Limited to South West Water Limited for
£104 milion The conssderation was satisfied through Pennon Group Ple subscribing for an addiional £100 mullion of new share capital in South West
Water Limited and transfernng a £4 million loan due to Bournemouth Water Limited to South West Water Limited

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dunng the year Group companies entered into the followsng transactions with joint ventures and assocrate related parties who are not members of
the Group

2016 2015
£m £m
Sales of goads and services
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited 873 990
INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Limited 185 36
Purchase of goods and services
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchesier) Limited 03 -
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited 121 126
INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Limited 43 I
Dinidends received
Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited 60 60
Year-end bafances
2016 2015
£m £m
Receivables due from related parties
Vindor Laing {(Greater Manchester) Limited {loan balance) 368 372
Lakeside Energy from Waste Linuted (loan batance) 89 93
INEQS Runcorn (TPS) Limited (loan balance) 355 314
812 979
Vindor Laing {Greater Manchester) Limited (trading balance) 3 128
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited (trading balance) 10 10
INEQS Runcorn (TPS) Limited (trading balance) 27 56
150 194
Payables due to related parues
Lakeside Energy for Waste Limited (trading balance) 23 I
INEQS Runcorn (TPS) Limited (trading balance) 16 01
39 12

The £81 2 mithon (2015 £979 milhon) recewvable relates to loans to related parues incduded within receivables and due for repayment in instalments
between 2016 and 2033 Interest 1s charged at an average of [30% (2015 |3 0%)
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Company
The following transactions with subsidiary undertakings occurred in the year:
2016 2015
£m fm
Sales of goods and services (management fees) 05 95
Purchase of goods and services (support services) 04 05
Interest recewvable 86 356
Interest payable 0l 0l
Dwvidends recewed 1407 3lle

Sales of goods and services to subsidiary undertakings are at cost Purchases of goods and services from subsidiary undertakings are under normal
commercial terms and conditions which would also be avallable to unrelated third parties

Year-end balances

2018 2015
£m £m

Receivables due from subsidiary undertakings
Loans 965 6 9366
Trading balances 86 85

Interest on £70 0 million of the loans has been charged at a fixed rate of 4 5%, on £373 6 milicn at a fixed rate of 50%, on £28 0 million at a fixed t ate
of 6 0% and on £0 5 milhon at a fixed rate of | 4% (2015 £70 S midlion at 4 5% nil at 5 0%, £332 5 million at 6 09 and £0 5 million at 1 4%) Interest

on £443 5 millon of the loans 1s charged at 12 menth LIBOR +1 0% (2015 £403 | million) These loans are due for repayment in instalments over the
penod 2016 to 2043

Interest on £50 8 million of the loans has been charged at | month LIBOR + 0% (2015 £130 0 millon) This loan 15 expected to be repaid in 2016/17

During the year there were no provisions (2015 nil} in respect of loans to subsidianes not expected to be repaid

2016 2015
Em £m

Payables due to subsidiary undertakings
Loans 2872 2832
Trading balances 14 6 146

The loans from subsidizry undertakings are unsecured and interest-free without any terms for repayment
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2016 2015 2014 2013 2002*
£m m £m £m £m
Income statement
Revenue 1,352 3 13572 13212 b201 | 12331
Qperating profit before non-underlying items 2618 2466 2575 2456 2688
Net finance costs before non-underlying items (54 1) (40 8) (539) (61 4) (723)
Shate of profit in joint ventur es 36 49 37 58 40
Profit before tax and nen-underiying items 2113 2107 2073 1900 2005
MNat non-underiying items before tax {50) (137) (486) (1764} -
Taxation (charge)/ credit (38 0) (547) € 6) 70 (281)
Profit for the year 168 3 1423 1581 206 1724
Attributable to
QOrdinary shareholders of the parent 152 1 1263 1425 206 1724
Perpetual capital security holders 162 160 156 - -
Dividends proposed/declared 138 5 1295 170 1039 9%0
Earnings per ctdinary share (basic)
From continuing operations
Earnings per share 370p 323p 388p 57p 48 lp
Deferred tax before non-underlying riems 9 5p 47p (70)p “40p {08)p
Non-underlying tems (net of tax) (70)p 28p 10 8p 386p -
Earrings per share before non-underlying and deferred tax 39 5p 398p 42 6p 403p 47 3p
Declared dvidends per share 33 58p 31 80p 303Ip 2846p 26 52p
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012*
£m £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure
Acquisitions 910 - - 148 92
Property plant and equipment 284 2 3014 3608 4101 2574
Balance sheet
MNon-current assets 4,676 3 43259 4076 6 38460 35925
Net current assets 5495 5860 419 3785 8
Non-current habitittes (3.7382) (35578) (31209) {31524y 27752)
MNet assets 1,487 & 13591 11976 10721 8291
Number of employees (average for year)
Water 1,706 | 408 1356 1354 1335
Waste management 3,230 3101 3044 3180 3,148
Other businesses 51 43 51 50 46
4,987 4558 4,451 4584 4522

* Pnior to the apphication of IAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial year end 31 March
27th Annual General Meeung I July 2016
Ex-dmdend date for 2016 final dwidend 7 July 2016*
Record date for 2016 final dwvidend 8 July 2016%

2016 final dwvidend payable

2 September 2016*

2016/17 hatf-yearly results announcement

25 November 2016

2017 interim dividend payable Aprit 2017
2017 final results announcement May 2017
28th Annual General Meeting July 2017

2017 final dwvdend payable

September 2017

SCRIP DIVIDEND ALTERNATIVE*

Ordinary shares quoted ex-dividend 7 July 2016
Record date for final dividend 8 July 2016
Posting of scrip dwvidend offer 22 July 2016

Final date for receipt of forms of mandate

15 August 2014

Posting of didend cheques and shate certificates

| September 2018

Final cash dividend payment date

2 September 2016

First day of dealing in the new ordinary shares

2 September 2016

* Subject 10 obtaining shaieholder approval at the 2016 Annwal General Meeting to the payment of a final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2016

SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Holding of shares

Number of shareholders

% of total shareholders

% of ordinary shares

[-100 2457 1105 002
101-1 000 9312 41 89 i 21
t001-5 000 8,854 3983 466
5001-50 000 1231 554 232
50001-100000 88 040 153
100,001 + 288 130 8926
22,230
Number of accounts % of total accounts % of total shares
Indriduals 17839 80125 670
Companies 125 056 025
Trust companies (pension funds etc ) 9 004 00l
Banks and nominees 4257 1915 9303
22230
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

MA)JOR SHAREHOLDINGS

The net position on 31 March 2016 of investors who have notified interests in the 1ssued share capital of the Company pursuant to the
Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules is as follows

Number of voting rights (direct and tndirect)} % of voung rights
Pictet Asset Management SA 25599217 6121%
The Capital Group Companies Inc 25268 507 613%
Lazard Asset Management LLC 24,547 305 595%
Ameriprise Financial Inc 20328 |54 493%
RARE Infrastructure Limited 19366782 470%
AXA Investment Managers SA 18,088 394 439%
Invesco Limited 17212959 417%
UBS Investment Bank 16610004 403%
Legal & General Group Plc 13458 627 326%
Reyal London Asset Management Limited 12,453 831 302%

On 12 May 2016 Lazard Asset Management LLC notfied the Campany
that it held 20 257 364 shares {equivalent to 4 91% of voting nghts)

No further changes to interests in the Company s issued share

capital have been disclosed to the Company between 3| March 2016
and 20 May 2016 (being a date not more than one month prior to the
date of the Company s Natice of Annual General Meeting)

REGISTRAR

All enquiries concerning sharehaldings induding notification of change of
address loss of a share ceruficate or dimdend payments should be made
to the Company s registrar Caprta Asset Services, who can be contacted
as foliows

Capita Asset Services

Pennon Group Share Register
The Registey

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Telephone 0371 664 9234 {calls are charged at standard network rates)
Lines are open 8 20am-5 30pm Monday-Frday

Overseas telephone +44 371 664 9234

Emal pennon@capita co uk

Website capitashareportal com

SHARE DEALING SERVICE

The telephone share dealing service offered by Stocktrade enables
shareholders to buy and sell shares in the Company on a low-cost
basis For further details of this service contact Stocktrade on

+44 (0)131 2400414 and quate Pennen Group Dial & Ceal Service
Commssion s 1% {subject to 2 mirsmum charge of £2500)

SHARE GIFT SERYICE

Through Sharegift an independent chanty share donation scheme
shareholders who enly have a small number of shares with a value that
makes it uneconomical to sell them can donate such shares to charity
Donations can be made by completion of a simple share transfer form
which 15 available from the Company s registrar Capita Asset Services

INDIVIDUAL SAVINGS ACCOUNTS
Shareholders may gain tax advantages by holding their shares in the
Company in an Individual Savings Account (I1SA)

PENNON GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SCRIP DIVIDEND ALTERNATIVE

Subject to obtaining shareholder approval at the 2016 Annual General
Meeting far the payment of a final dvidend for the year ended 31 March
2016 full detads of the scrip dwvidend alternative and how to participate
will be sent to shareholders on 22 July 2G1& The full timetable for offering
the scrip dividend alternative 1s given on the opposite page

The scrip dividend alternative provides shareholders with an apportunity
to Invest the cash dividend they receive on their Pennon Group Ple shares
to buy further shares in the Company without incurning stamp duty or
dealing expenses

ONLINE PORTFOLIO SERVICE

The online portfolic service provided by Capita Asset Services
gives shareholders access to more information on their
investments Detalls of the portfolio service are available onling
at www capitashareportal com

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
The Company has passed a resclution which allows it to communicate
with its shareholders by means of its website

Shareholders currently recenving a printed copy of the annual report who
now wish to sign up to receve all future shareholder communications
electronically can do so by registering with Capita Asset Services share
portal Go to www capitashareporral com to register select ‘Account
Registration and then follow the en-screen instructions by inputting your
surname your Investor Code {(which can be found on your proxy form)
and your postcode as well as entering an email address and selecting

a password

By registering to receve your shareholder communications
electronically you will also automatically receve your Dividend Tax
Vouchers electronically

ELECTRONIC PROXY VOTING

Shareholders also have the oppertunity to register the appointment

of a proxy for any general meeting of the Company once notice of the
meeting has been given and may do so via www capitashareportal
com Shareholders who register an email preference will not receive a
paper prexy form Instead, they will receive an email alert adwising them
of general meetings of the Company with links to the notices of meetings
and annual reports
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PENNON’S WEBSITE
www pennon-group ca uk prowvides news and detalls of the Company's
activities plus inks 1o its subsidianes’ websites

The Investor Information section contains up-to-date informaticn

for shareholders including detaled share price informaton finanaal
results dividend payment dates and amounts and stock exchange
announcements There is also a comprehensive shareholder services
section which includes information on buying, selling and transfernng
shares, and how to netify a change in personal crcumstances for
example a change of address

BEWARE OF SHARE FRAUD

The following 1s taken from the ScamSmart sectton of the Financral
Conduct Authonty's website (www scamsmart fea orguk) Fraudsters use
persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure investors Into scams

They may offer to sell shares that turn out to be worthless or
non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated price in return for an
upfront payment

While high profits are pronused, if you buy or sell shares in this way you
will probably lose your money

HOW TO AvOID SHARE FRAUD

I Keep in mind that firms authorised by the Financial Conduct Authonity
{FCA) are unlikely to contact you out of the blue with an offer to buy
or sell shares

2 Do not get into a conversation note the name of the person and firm
contacting you and then end the call

3 Check the Financial Services Register from www fca org uk to see sf
the person and firm contacting you 1s authorised by the FCA

4 Beware of fraudsters daiming to be fom an authonised firm, copying
1ts website or givng you false contact details

5 Use the firm s contact details listed on the Register if you want to call
1t back

6 Callthe FCA on 0800 111 6768 11 the firm does not have contact
detaits on the Register or you are told they are out of date

7 Search the FCA Warning List of unauthonsed firms at www
scamsmart fca orguk Consider that if you buy or sell shares from
an unauthorised firm you will not have access to the Finanaal
Ombudsman Service or Financial Services Compensation
Scheme Seek impartal advice from a finanaial adwiser befor e you
make an investment

8 Remember if it sounds too good 1o be true, 1t probably 1s!

5,000 people cantact the Financial Conduct Authonty abour share fraud each
year, with victims losing an average of £20,000

REPORT A SCAM

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the share
fraud reporting form at www fca org uk/scams where you can find out
more about Investment scams

You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 1t 6768

If you have already paid meney to share fraudsters, you should contact
Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040
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